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H.E.W. and Solid Waste Committee Agenda 
Tuesday, December 14, 2010  


 
Tentative Minutes 


 
 


1. Call to Order by Chairman Bauer at 4:00 
 Members present:  Bauer, Bowers, Kilker, Barnes, Horner and Janes 
 Members absent: Williams   
 Others present:  DeArvil, Steve Rypkema, Amy Jo Clemens, Doreen O’Brien and 


Sharon De Arvil 
 Public: Scott Perian  


 
2. Approve Committee Minutes: November 9, 2010  


 Motion by Bowers 
 2nd by Horner 
 Motion carried 


 
3. Public Comment – none 


 
4. New Business –  


 2010 Senior Levy Revenue and Expense Difference – Treasurer Coffman addresses 
the committee regarding the cash shortfall of $785.48 this year. There was no overage 
on expenditures and each senior group will get their budgeted amount. Coffman says 
this happens because not all of the taxes levied were collected and created this 
shortfall. There were factors involved; over the trigger amount with Exelon, the 
amount of abatements given to parcels and Correction of Exemptions on parcels. 
Coffman states this also happens because the County Appropriates and Levies the 
same amount. Kilker asks for written clarification regarding this. Coffman said he can 
try and put something together. Chairman Bauer asks if there is anything they need to 
at this meeting? Coffman says no, but this will be a similar issue in 2011. The Senior 
Levy will be further in the hole because the appropriation and levy are the same. 
Chairman Bauer asks if we can levy a more money around $1,000 or so to prevent 
this from happening. Coffman said you could. Bowers asks if it is justifiable to do 
this. Coffman says yes, as long as you don’t carry an excessive balance. Horner asks 
if a contingency fund could be established. Coffman thinks this is how the $2,500 to 
start with years ago when this was established.  
 


5. Regional Office of Education 
 Bills for Approval –  


Amy Jo Clemens explains the $500 in the repair & maintenance line item. The ROE 
is billed annually for a Palm update in the amount of $1,000 which is split between 
Ogle and Lee counties. This allows her Assistant Superintendent to access all 
building information in the district to ensure all rooms are up to code. This also 
allows him to access the International Building Code, take pictures if needed and 
communicates to principles the Health Life Safety report is available.  


o Motion to approve $1,387.47 by Bowers 
o 2nd by Horner 
o Motion carried 


 Clemens states by January 1 of each year the  ROE’s Annual Report is filed with the 
County Clerk’s Office and they are finalizing the report at this time. Clemens says 







exciting things are happening with the National Core Standings and she will have 
more information to handout next month.     


 
6.  Health Department 


 Doreen O’Brien distributed her monthly budget reports and end of the year report. 
O’Brien said this has been a bad year because not all of the grant money came in 
from the State for the last quarter. She does expect the money from both of the grants 
to come. They didn’t see as much money in the Immunization Program this year 
because they didn’t have as many flu shots as they usually do. Horner asks if it is 
because more people are giving the flu shots. O’Brien states yes it is. O’Brien 
distributes information regarding Foodborne Illnesses; an Executive Summary on the 
case in October which involved Subway franchises, a Girl Scout Weekend at White 
Pines Ranch and a wedding held at Hickory Grove in Rochelle. A sample 
questionnaire was distributed to show the committee what type of questions are 
involved.  
 


7. Solid Waste Department  
 Bills for Approval – 


o Motion to approve second half of November 2010 bill in the amount of  
$10,623.04 by Horner 


o 2nd by Bowers 
o Motion carried 


  
o Motion to approve first half of December 2010 bills in the amount of 


$12,580.29 by Bowers 
o 2nd by Horner 


 
 Rypkema distributes the final budget report for 2010 and states they ended the year 


with 95% in expenditures and 104% in revenues. Also distributed was a 2011 
Proposed Budget report for the Solid Waste Department.  


 Enforcement Grant – Received information this was approved and information was 
distributed. There will be document information next month to sign regarding the 
Enforcement Grant. 


 Ground Water Monitoring Plan – This information was sent to Rochelle Disposal and 
we are waiting to hear back from them.  


 Audit – They are making progress and hopefully next month he will have more to 
report. Rypkema has reviewed information with Administrator McKinley and State’s 
Attorney Ben Roe and would like to meet with Chairman of the Board Jim Barnes 
and the new Chairman of this committee as well.  


 Grant Applications – no new grant applications to report.   
 Rochelle Waste Disposal update – Rypkema is working with States Attorney Ben Roe 


on drafting a letter of response regarding the 3rd quarter payment which was not 
made. Rypkema is also working with the City of Rochelle and the Village of Creston 
regarding the response.  


 
8. Animal Control –  


 Bills for Approval – Sharon De Arvil reports there were no expenditures for the Pet 
Population Fund for the last half of November 2010.  


 
o Motion by Bowers to approve $1,916.80 for Pet Population Fund (1st half of 


December 2010) 
o 2nd  by Janes 







o Motion carried  
 


o Motion by Bowers to approve $5,064.59 for Animal Control Fund (2nd half of 
November 2010) 


o 2nd by Horner 
o Motion carried 


 
o Motion by Horner to approve $5,971.47 for Animal Control Fund (1st half of 


December 2010)  
o 2nd by Bowers 
o Motion carried 


 
 De Arvil asks if all committee members are receiving the e-mailed reports. The 


members of the committee said yes. 
 De Arvil states they were within their budget at the end of this fiscal year.  
 Warden Retirement – De Arvil says there will be expenses for training the new 


Animal Warden when Hank Coy retires next year.  
 De Arvil keeps track of how many reminder cards are sent out for vaccinations and 


tags. Due to the economy she has seen an increase in the number of follow-ups she 
has given to the Animal Warden to follow-up on. She also had to order an additional 
300 tags for 2010 and for 2011 she ordered 13,500 tags. 


 Village of Hillcrest – Hank Coy has been working diligently with the Village 
regarding their ordinance.  


 
9. Old Business – none 


 
10. Adjournment – by Chairman Bauer at 4:41 pm  


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laura J. Cook, Chief Deputy Clerk 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS   )
                    )SS
COUNTY OF OGLE      )


In the Matter of the Petition
              of
Chris A. Ames, Monroe Township
Ogle County, Illinois


               Testimony of Witnesses
               Produced, Sworn and
               Examined on this 23rd day
               of November A.D. 2010
               before the Ogle County
               Zoning Board of Appeals


Present:
Maurice Bronkema
Randall Anderson
Curtis Freeberg
Jason Sword
Bruce McKinney, Chairman
Mark Miller, Acting Zoning Administrator
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Call this meeting of the
2      Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals for November
3      23rd, 2010 to order.
4           Please stand for the Pledge of Allegiance.
5                    (Whereupon the Pledge of
6                     Allegiance was recited.)
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Roll call.
8                    (Roll call was taken and all were
9                     present.)


10           MR. MILLER:  Five present.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  We do have a quorum.
12           The verbatim transcripts serving as
13      minutes from the last meeting are on file and
14      will not be read at this time.  I'll entertain a
15      motion to approve the minutes of the last ZBA
16      meeting.
17           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
18           MR. SWORD:  I'll second.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  It's been moved and
20      seconded.  All those in favor signify by saying
21      aye.
22                    (All those simultaneously
23                     responded.)
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
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1                       INDEX
2
3     Witness                             Examination
4 Chris Ames . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     11
5 Dave Ames. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     11
6 Cathy Fiebig . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     21
7      (By Dale Alcock). . . . . . . . . .     27
8      (By Paul Cicero). . . . . . . . . .     35
9 Gary Thompson. . . . . . . . . . . . . .     40


10 Paul Cicero. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     44
11 Debra Thompson . . . . . . . . . . . . .     48
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20 End. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .     61
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22
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24
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1      Motion passed.
2           All testimony will be taken under oath.
3      Please come forward to testify and state your
4      name and address to the recording secretary.
5      Please spell your last name.  When testifying,
6      please speak clearly and loud enough to be
7      heard.  This hearing is the only opportunity to
8      place testimony and evidence on the record.
9      There will not be another opportunity beyond


10      tonight's hearing to submit additional evidence
11      or testimony for consideration.
12           Please turn off all cell phones, pagers,
13      and any other electronic devices.
14           The procedures on hearings that will be
15      followed tonight is as found in the ZBA Rules of
16      Procedures or the Citizen's Guide to Zoning
17      Board of Appeals, which is available near the
18      door in the back of the room.
19           If anyone has trouble hearing, please let
20      me know.
21           Mr. Lloyd Funk is also present
22      representing the Ogle County Planning Commission
23      if any board member has questions on their
24      actions of a petition.
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1           What's the first order of business?
2           MR. MILLER:  The first order of business
3      is to consider the request filed October 12,
4      2010 of Chris A. Ames, 15930 East Rachel Lane,
5      Davis Junction, Illinois for a Special Use
6      Permit to allow a Conference and Retreat
7      facility in the AG-1 Agricultural District on
8      property described as follows and owned by the
9      Petitioner:


10           Part of Government Lot 1 and Government
          Lot 2 of the NW 1/4 and part of the NE 1/4


11           Fractional Section 18, Monroe Township,
          179.38 acres, more or less.


12           Common location is 6752 North Kilbuck
          Road.


13
14           For the record, a sign was posted along
15      the frontage of the premises indicating that a
16      zoning hearing is to be held regarding this
17      property.  All adjoining owners have been
18      notified of the hearing this evening, and the
19      specifics of the petition and a legal notice was
20      published in the November 1st, 2010 edition of
21      the Ogle County Life notifying the public of the
22      hearing this evening and the specifics of the
23      petition.
24           Under the Staff Report, a copy of which is
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1      Tertiary Growth Area should be discouraged until
2      the other two growth areas are substantially
3      developed."
4            The Monroe Township Comprehensive Plan
5      designates the site and surrounding area for
6      agricultural use.
7           The Ogle County Amendatory Comprehensive
8      Plan designates the site and surrounding area
9      for continued agricultural and


10      agriculturally-related uses, with only limited
11      residential being permitted.
12           Transportation, North Kilbuck Road is a
13      seal-coated Ogle County highway.
14           Physical characteristics, the site
15      contains both bottomland and upland areas.
16      According to the Ogle County Digital Soil
17      Survey, the soils identified on the site contain
18      the following selected characteristics:  91
19      percent classified as "prime farmland"; 87
20      percent classified as "very limited" for septic
21      fields; 21 percent are "frequently flooded"; 2
22      percent subject to occasional ponding; and 22
23      percent have seasonal water table less than 20
24      inches.
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1      on file and the board members have received, I
2      will point out that under general information,
3      existing land use, 51 percent of the site is in
4      cropland; the remainder of the site is in
5      timber, bottomland, and building areas.  All
6      agricultural.
7           Surrounding land use and zoning, the site
8      is located within a predominantly agricultural
9      area.  Two non-farm dwellings adjoin the site;


10      said non-farm dwellings are located on the east
11      side of North Kilbuck Road.  There are four
12      non-farm dwellings within a half mile of the
13      site.  All surrounding land is zoned AG-1,
14      Agricultural District.
15           Under the Comprehensive Plan, a portion of
16      the site is located within a mile and a half of
17      the Village of Davis Junction, which is as an
18      adopted Comprehensive Plan.  The site is located
19      in Monroe Township, which has a Township
20      Planning Commission and a Comprehensive Plan.
21           The Village of Davis Junction
22      Comprehensive Plan designates the site and
23      surrounding area as a "tertiary growth area",
24      and states that, "Development within the
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1           The LESA score of                    205
2      indicates a Medium rating for protection.  The
3      land evaluation being                      79.0,
4      and the site assessment being             126.
5           Recommendations, the following are
6      recommended conditions for approval of the
7      Special Use Permit:
8           Number 1) All proposals and
9      representations made by the applicant and/or


10      their representatives shall be conditions of the
11      Special Use Permit.
12           Number 2) No camping, tent or recreational
13      vehicle, shall be permitted.
14           Number 3) Outside gatherings shall be
15      discontinued no later than 1 a.m.  Outside
16      speakers, music, etcetera shall be discontinued
17      no later than 12 a.m.
18           Number 4) The use shall not become
19      obnoxious or create a nuisance to the
20      neighborhood.
21           Number 5) Property boundary fences shall
22      be maintained so as to deter guests from leaving
23      the property.
24           Number 6) All requirements of the Ogle
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1      County Health Department and the Illinois
2      Department of Public Health shall be complied
3      with in regards to water supply and sewage
4      disposal.
5           And Number 7) All facilities shall comply
6      with the Illinois Accessibility Code as
7      applicable.
8           I have a letter from the Illinois
9      Department of Natural Resources that reads in


10      part, the natural resource review provided by
11      Eccocat identified protected resources that may
12      be in the vicinity of the proposed action.  The
13      Department has evaluated this information and
14      concluded that adverse effects are unlikely,
15      therefore consultation is terminated.
16           At the November 18th meeting of the Ogle
17      County Regional Planning Commission Mr. Oncken
18      made a motion to recommend approval of the
19      petition numbered 10-10 SU.  The motion was
20      seconded by Mr. Conn, and the motion carried by
21      roll call vote of 7 to zero, unanimous.
22           I have a letter from the Ogle County
23      Highway Department that reads in part, this
24      office has completed its review of the above
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
2           Motion passed.  We're in a public hearing.
3           Will all those that will be testifying,
4      answering any questions please -- for the
5      petitioner please come forward.
6           At the Planning Commission, you answered a
7      lot of questions, so you may want to be sworn in
8      also, so raise your right hand.
9               CHRIS AMES and DAVE AMES,


10      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Please state your names and
12      your addresses for the recording secretary.
13           MS. AMES:  Chris Ames, 15930 East Rachel
14      Lane, Davis Junction.
15           MR. AMES:  Dave Ames, 6778 North Kilbuck.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Tell us about your
17      petition.
18           MS. AMES:  Okay.  Our petition is to open
19      a retreat center back there at the house that I
20      raised my family on, and it's for pastoral
21      retreats, youth retreats, women's retreats, and
22      hopefully in the future we'll be able to do an
23      outreach program for the youth at risk.  So
24      that's what the plan is, that's what we'd like
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1      Special Use Permit request and offered the
2      following comments be included by the Ogle
3      County Board for the approval of this request:
4           Number 1) Applicant shall dedicate 40 feet
5      of public right-of-way to Ogle County as
6      measured perpendicularly from the roadway center
7      line along the property frontage.
8           And Number 2) The applicant is notified
9      that the Ogle County Comprehensive Stormwater


10      Management Ordinance requirements apply to
11      development upon this site.
12           Respectfully yours, Curtis D. Cook, County
13      Engineer.
14           Mr. Chairman, that's all I have.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Thank you, Mr. Miller.
16           This is a public hearing, so I'll
17      entertain a motion to go into a public hearing.
18           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Been moved.
20           MR. ANDERSON:  Second.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  And Randy has seconded.
22           All those in favor signify by saying aye.
23                    (All those simultaneously
24                     responded.)
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1      to do.
2           MR. AMES:  We also want to keep the
3      natural habitat and all the natural animals and
4      keep everything the way it is, not change it,
5      bring back the woodchucks and all the natural
6      habitat, bring back the wetlands in the areas so
7      people can just go out and see nature, and
8      create some trails and stuff so they can walk
9      it.


10           MS. AMES:  And also the use of alcohol
11      will be prohibited back there, we don't have any
12      of that going on.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  Have any what?
14           MS. AMES:  Alcohol will not be permitted
15      back there, so.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Are you affiliated with a
17      church organization or something?
18           MS. AMES:  No, not really.  I go to
19      church, but no.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Doesn't matter, just
21      wondering.
22           MS. AMES:  Right.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Was it affiliated with any
24      organization?
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1           MS. AMES:  No.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  You did hear and do you
3      agree with the staff's seven recommendations and
4      Curtis Cook's two recommendations for this
5      petition, or do you want me to read them again?
6           MS. AMES:  With the road frontage?
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. Cook had two:  The
8      applicant shall dedicate 40 feet of public
9      right-of-way to Ogle County as measured


10      perpendicular from the roadway center line on
11      the property frontage; and Number 2) The
12      applicant is notified that the Ogle County
13      Comprehensive Stormwater Management Ordinance
14      requirements apply to development upon this
15      site.
16           MS. AMES:  Yes.
17           MR. AMES:  Yes.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Then there's also the seven
19      staff -- or Mr. Reibel's recommendations.  Do
20      you agree with those --
21           MR. AMES:  Yes.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  -- or do you want me to
23      read those?
24           MS. AMES:  Can you read them for me,
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1           MS. AMES:  Yes.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay, so you do agree with
3      those.
4           How long have you been doing this?  Have
5      you been having --
6           MS. AMES:  Well, actually we had just a
7      couple of groups from our church just come out
8      and, you know, give us maybe some things that we
9      could do out there just to make it, you know,


10      more --
11           MR. McKINNEY:  How many beds are in the
12      lodge right now?
13           MS. AMES:  It -- we have enough
14      accommodations for 40 in the lodge, yeah, in the
15      main house.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  I believe you stated at the
17      Planning Commission that in the future you may
18      add another lodge with how many beds?
19           MS. AMES:  64.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  One of my concerns
21      is parking.
22           MS. AMES:  Right.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  It really didn't look like
24      there was that much parking, at least in the
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1      please?
2           MR. McKINNEY:  All proposals and
3      representation made by the applicant and/or the
4      representatives shall be conditions of the
5      special use.
6           No camping, tent or recreational vehicles,
7      shall be permitted.
8           MS. AMES:  Right.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Outside gatherings shall be


10      discontinued no later than 1 a.m.  Outside
11      speakers and music, etcetera shall be
12      discontinued no later than 12 a.m., midnight.
13           The use shall not become obnoxious or
14      create a nuisance to the neighborhood.
15           Property boundary fences shall be
16      maintained so as to deter guests from leaving
17      the property.
18           All requirements of the Ogle County Health
19      Department and Illinois Department of Public
20      Health shall be complied with in regards to
21      water supply and sewage disposal.
22           And Number 7) All facilities shall comply
23      with the Illinois Accessibility Code as
24      applicable.
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1      front or to the side.  Are you going to be
2      making --
3           MS. AMES:  Yes, sir.
4           MR. AMES:  Yes, sir.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  -- a gravel parking lot or
6      asphalt?
7           MS. AMES:  Blacktop.
8           MR. AMES:  It will be blacktop.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Blacktop parking lot.


10           MR. AMES:  Yes, and we're going to have
11      handicap parking right up in front, and then
12      right by the horse pasture there's a place in
13      there that we're going to have parking for
14      anybody else.  It's way back into the woods
15      there.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Will you be having buses
17      come in there at anytime?
18           MR. AMES:  There could be some buses
19      bringing people in.  Like with the children, the
20      foster children they usually are picked up
21      around in the counties and then bussed in.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  One of the conditions is
23      fencing.  Do you currently have fencing around
24      the property, and if so what type of fencing?
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1           MR. AMES:  We have board fencing and there
2      is barbwire fencing around some of it, but down
3      in the wetlands we have no fencing down in the
4      wetlands.  I do believe some of the neighbors
5      have partial fences around down in there, but in
6      the flooded areas and stuff it always gets wiped
7      out, you know, when it floods and in the
8      floodplains on the property we own, so I don't
9      know how we're going to keep all them up but, I


10      mean, we're willing to try.
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Maybe not -- even if you
12      don't put the fencing right on the property
13      line, if you come --
14           MR. AMES:  Right.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah, put the fencing so
16      that just the people don't wander off into other
17      private property.
18           MS. AMES:  Right.
19           MR. AMES:  Right.
20           MS. AMES:  There will be --
21           MR. McKINNEY:  You also have the arm that
22      comes down over the driveway.  Will that be
23      activated every night?
24           MS. AMES:  Uh-huh.
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1           MS. AMES:  We have some peacocks.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Peacocks?
3           MS. AMES:  Yeah, and some cats but that's
4      it.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  Will the guests be able to
6      ride horses, and is there going to be horse
7      trails or is the horse just for your --
8           MS. AMES:  Well, actually we're in the
9      process of -- some friends of ours that have


10      been working with the horses hopefully is what
11      we want to do is if -- we're not going to be
12      able to use these horses, they drive and they're
13      riding horses, but we'd like to have them -- us
14      to be able to use them and with the youth kids
15      mostly.  It's not really something that we
16      planned on having, you know, the people from the
17      retreat center do.  It's just maybe a
18      therapeutic thing for the kids, you know.  Some
19      of the kids that we'll be dealing with are inner
20      city kids and they're ages from 7 to 11 and they
21      just have never seen anything, you know, they're
22      just --
23           MR. McKINNEY:  The one barn, is that going
24      to be used for the guests as a retreat center?
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1           MR. AMES:  Yeah.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Will there be somebody from
3      your staff staying there when you have people?
4           MR. AMES:  Yes.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Questions from
6      anybody?
7           MR. SWORD:  I have a question.  Do you
8      have experience with this type of facility in
9      the past or is this something new to you?


10           MS. AMES:  This is new.
11           MR. SWORD:  Okay.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have a business plan
13      in place?  Are you going to market this?
14           MS. AMES:  Yeah.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Advertisements?
16           MS. AMES:  Yes.  If you'd like to talk to
17      her, but yeah, we're planning on, you know, over
18      the internet and just going out and speaking to
19      churches and, you know, we have -- we want to
20      have some pamphlets, and not a lot of
21      advertising because, you know, we know that it
22      would just -- it would go by itself.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  What type of animals do you
24      have on this property besides horses?
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1           MR. AMES:  Eventually.
2           MS. AMES:  Yeah, like a conference hall,
3      you know, maybe where the kids are -- somebody
4      can use that for groups, you know, because the
5      house is pretty big but we need, you know, a big
6      area to where they can maybe hold their seminars
7      or meetings.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  I think you said at the
9      Planning Commission but just so we get it on the


10      record since this is a public hearing, how many
11      bathrooms do you have, and the septic system
12      that you have, has that been checked?
13           MS. AMES:  Yes, yes.
14           MR. AMES:  Yes.
15           MS. AMES:  And we have I believe there's
16      seven bathrooms.
17           MR. AMES:  Yes.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Seven.
19           MS. AMES:  Yeah.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Anybody else have any
21      questions?
22           MR. BRONKEMA:  I guess my question is what
23      is the definition of at risk kids?
24           MS. AMES:  Well, these are kids, these are
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1      foster kids that -- maybe you'd like to talk
2      about it?  She's -- Cathy here is the director
3      of Royal Family Kids, and that's the group that
4      we would like to have come out there.  Would you
5      like her to explain?
6           MR. McKINNEY:  If she wants to.  I'll have
7      to swear her in.
8           MS. AMES:  Okay.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Please raise your hand.


10                     CATHY FIEBIG,
11      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Give Callie your name and
13      address.
14           MS. FIEBIG:  It's Cathy --
15           MR. McKINNEY:  And please stand closer to
16      the microphone.
17           MS. FIEBIG:  It's Cathy Fiebig, and it's
18      117 Heath Cliff Drive, Poplar Grove, Illinois.
19           Okay.  At risk kids, I work with foster
20      care children, and what we do is we bring them
21      in for a week-long camp and just try to
22      encourage them that they are respectful for who
23      they are, where they are at in their lives right
24      now regardless of their circumstances.
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1      challenges than our own children do growing up,
2      and so we're just trying to help that
3      demographic of children.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  When you have this group of
5      kids like this or say any type of group of kids,
6      what's the ratio of adult supervision to kids?
7           MS. FIEBIG:  It is pretty much one-on-one.
8      We have one counselor for two campers.  Then we
9      also have backup staff, so if we need to


10      separate the kids because somebody's having a
11      meltdown or just a hard day we can do that.  So
12      we always have two adults present whenever the
13      children are around.  There's never an
14      opportunity for the, you know, adult children to
15      wander around.  We are always, you know,
16      grouping up.
17           MR. BRONKEMA:  What area do you bring
18      these kids in from, all over?
19           MS. FIEBIG:  All over.  Right now the area
20      I'm working, we are servicing Winnebago and
21      Boone County, but I'm also working with some
22      groups out of Chicago, so they're doing the
23      inner city kids and Cook and Lake County.  We're
24      all over.  It is an international organization,
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1           And age groups that we're doing right now
2      are 7 to 11 year olds, but we are in the
3      beginning stages of developing programs to also
4      administer to children 11 to 13, and then 14 to
5      16, on up until they're graduating high school.
6           So we're just trying to develop
7      relationships with them so that they can have
8      something that they go to as a constant, and not
9      necessarily part of a family group but just to


10      enhance what social services is already doing
11      for these children.  For many of the kids that
12      we work with already and in my experience, we
13      have the little ones that have moved five times
14      in one year.  So for them to come and have, you
15      know, a stable environment where it's all about
16      just being able to, you know, do activities that
17      they can achieve goals at, it's really just
18      about being achievers and being able to do
19      things on their own power and being encouraged
20      and their own abilities to accomplish things
21      that, you know, they set out to do.
22           So that's what we mean at risk kids, just
23      children who, you know, because of the
24      circumstances that they're in have even more
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1      and we just happen to be one of the local
2      chapters.
3           MR. ANDERSON:  Do you provide the staff
4      then?
5           MS. FIEBIG:  Yes.  We do all the training,
6      provide all the staff, we raise all the money.
7      We just go to local places like Chris's and we,
8      you know, run our camps through there, so.
9           MR. ANDERSON:  About how many camps would


10      you run per, say, like in the summer?
11           MS. FIEBIG:  If we had the opportunity I
12      would like to see six to eight camps go through
13      there, so, in the summertime.
14           MR. ANDERSON:  You usually run a five-day
15      camp?
16           MS. FIEBIG:  Yes.  They arrive on Monday
17      and we take them home on Friday.
18           MR. SWORD:  Do you have some type of
19      medical personnel then?
20           MS. FIEBIG:  Absolutely, yeah.  And we
21      work with social workers, so we have got a
22      social worker that's on call, if not at camp
23      with us, so that if there is any issue at all we
24      have got the professional help that we need to
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1      address the issue right there, because we're
2      only trained so far.
3           MR. BRONKEMA:  Is this a year-round
4      operation or just a summer operation?
5           MS. FIEBIG:  Well, here it's summer but --
6      and again, given the facility if we could do it
7      year-round we would, because we could do, you
8      know, winter camps with these kids, we could do
9      weekend camps with the kids.  I mean, the


10      opportunities are limitless if we had the
11      facility to do it at, you know.  So I am only --
12      I have been in the organization for four years
13      but, I mean, it's been around for 30 already.
14      So given the facility and the programs we have
15      developing right now my plan is to continue to
16      do this every month, not week long but probably
17      more like the weekend activities, but definitely
18      during the summer it will be week long.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  All right.  Some
20      other questions, besides this group other people
21      staying at your retreat house, will they do
22      their own cooking or will you have staff there
23      to do the cooking for these people?
24           MR. AMES:  They will do their own cooking
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1           MS. FIEBIG:  Well, Monroe Center is just,
2      what, three, four minutes away.  The fire
3      department is right there.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Any other questions
5      right now?
6           Okay.  We do have two letters of
7      appearance -- do you have anything left to
8      follow up with?
9           MS. AMES:  I think we covered it all.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  I will explain this
11      appearance.  These people, they are here to ask
12      questions, they cannot testify, they can testify
13      later.
14           Dale Alcock.  Do you have questions for
15      the petitioners right now?
16           MR. ALCOCK:  Yes.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Please come forward.
18      Because you're just asking questions I won't
19      swear you in, but please stand up by the
20      microphone and tell the secretary your name and
21      address.
22           MR. ALCOCK:  Dale Alcock, A-L-C-O-C-K, 685
23      North Kilbuck.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Ask them your
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1      mostly or they can get carryout from the local
2      restaurants and some caterers might come in.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Will you have your own
4      laundry facility there?
5           MS. AMES:  (Nods head.)
6           MR. McKINNEY:  And your septic field will
7      take care of the extra --
8           MR. AMES:  Yes, under my understanding it
9      will all be okay, and then we did soil bore more


10      in case we needed to add on and the soil bored
11      passed and it's okay to put in -- I don't know
12      how many more feet, but quite a few more feet of
13      septic line if we needed to.
14           MR. McKINNEY:  Will you eventually have a
15      swimming pool or anything?
16           MR. AMES:  There is a swimming pool, yes.
17           MR. McKINNEY:  I guess I didn't see it.
18           Did you say your name is Cathy?
19           MS. FIEBIG:  Yes.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Cathy said they would
21      provide medical assistance when they have
22      special groups there with kids.  For everybody
23      else how far is the nearest ambulance, medical
24      facilities?
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1      questions.
2           MR. ALCOCK:  We have several.  Are we
3      limited to questions?
4           MR. McKINNEY:  No.
5           MR. ALCOCK:  Okay.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  It's a public hearing.
7           MR. ALCOCK:  We noticed that there's a
8      chapel on-site.  Is it going to be a church or
9      chapel -- or a church later?


10           MR. AMES:  It's just a place of worship if
11      they want to go in to worship.  There's not one
12      on-site but we have it in the plans if it can
13      be -- you know, if we get that far.  You know,
14      it just depends how everything else goes.  You
15      know, if we can get enough revenue and income to
16      build the chapel we would submit that into Ogle
17      County Planning.
18           MS. AMES:  There wouldn't be regular
19      services on it.
20           MR. ALCOCK:  Okay.  No plans for a church?
21           MS. AMES:  No.
22           MR. ALCOCK:  Why do you have 180 acres all
23      the way up to the road there?  We're thinking --
24      I was thinking maybe just the woods and the --
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1           MR. AMES:  Most of it will be just the
2      woods and the front fields and stuff in there.
3      We might put some gardens in there for the kids
4      so she can garden and stuff, maybe some organic
5      gardening, and the rest of it will probably just
6      be rented out for hay fields and stuff because
7      it really wouldn't be used.
8           MS. AMES:  Basically it's just on the area
9      that all the buildings are on now.  We want to


10      keep it secluded so that there wouldn't be any
11      buildings and all this stuff wouldn't be going
12      out to the road.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  That's also required of the
14      County, we can't take a parcel and just make a
15      quarter of it Special Use, it has to be that
16      whole parcel.
17           MR. ALCOCK:  It has to be the whole
18      parcel?
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah.
20           MR. ALCOCK:  Even though it's broke up in
21      tax codes, like two or three or four codes?
22           MR. McKINNEY:  Yeah, all those tax codes
23      would come under that.  If part of that tax code
24      is going to be used as a Special Use that whole
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1      here.
2           MS. AMES:  All it would say is maybe
3      just -- we're not going to do this big flashing
4      sign.
5           MR. AMES:  No, no marquees.  It's just
6      going to be -- we want to keep it as private as
7      possible.
8           MR. ALCOCK:  My recommendation is some
9      type of sign up by the road.


10           MR. AMES:  Yes.
11           MR. ALCOCK:  I'm getting some traffic now.
12           MS. AMES:  Oh, you are?
13           MR. ALCOCK:  Oh yeah.  They're lost, they
14      can't find you.
15           Will you be carrying commercial insurance,
16      liability?
17           MR. AMES:  Yes.
18           MR. ALCOCK:  Will there be residents there
19      like full-time, will somebody be living there?
20           MR. AMES:  It will just be maybe a
21      caretaker or me in my house.
22           MR. ALCOCK:  Camping was mentioned.  Are
23      you going to do camping?
24           MS. AMES:  The only thing that we had
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1      parcel of that tax code has to be.
2           MR. ALCOCK:  I see.  That probably answers
3      my next question then as to why the secondary
4      residence, David Ames' place, would be Special
5      Use.
6           MS. AMES:  I own that place.
7           MR. ALCOCK:  I understand.
8           MS. AMES:  Yeah, but so if it's all in the
9      same thing --


10           MR. ALCOCK:  It has to be tied in.  Any
11      plans on using David's house as this facility?
12           MS. AMES:  No.
13           MR. ALCOCK:  Okay.  Nobody's addressed
14      signage yet or marquees, what's your plan?
15           MR. AMES:  What?  I'm not following you.
16           MR. ALCOCK:  Are you going to have big
17      flashing lights?
18           MR. AMES:  No.  There might be a gate that
19      we'll put up towards Kilbuck farther.
20           MR. ALCOCK:  Down the road aways, down the
21      lane?
22           MR. AMES:  Yeah, it has to be down the
23      lane so we can at least get buses in say 40 feet
24      off the roadway I believe is what they said
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1      thought that we might do is put some tepees up,
2      we bought some tepees in Oregon just for the
3      kids, but there is no camping trailers, you
4      know, no recreation, nothing like that, you
5      know, no tent camping there.
6           MR. ALCOCK:  No plans for permanent
7      camping?
8           MS. AMES:  Oh no.
9           MR. ALCOCK:  No campers year-round?


10           MS. AMES:  No.
11           MR. ALCOCK:  Okay.  What's the most amount
12      of horses that you're going to have, do you
13      think?
14           MS. AMES:  Horses?
15           MR. ALCOCK:  Yeah.
16           MS. AMES:  We have five now.  You know, we
17      don't really have the pasture for them, so we're
18      not really sure.  Just enough to maybe use them.
19      We're not even sure we'll be able to, you know,
20      with the kids.  There's a lot of training that
21      goes into the horses.  I'm not sure that they're
22      safe with kids.  But there will be no like
23      organized trail rides or anything for the
24      adults.  It would all be done with the kids
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1      under a lot of supervision.
2           MR. ALCOCK:  I target shoot in my
3      backyard.  Since you have to include everything,
4      the whole parcel, now you're going to hear
5      gunfire.  It's strictly target shooting.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Sir, you're starting to
7      testify.  You can only ask a question.
8           MR. ALCOCK:  Any objections to me shooting
9      guns?


10           MR. AMES:  No.
11           MS. AMES:  No.  No, not at all.  We don't
12      allow it on our property, you know, so.  But
13      it's okay where you're at, that's fine.
14           MR. ALCOCK:  Okay.  I can live with that.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have any other
16      questions?
17           MR. ALCOCK:  Yes, one.  If it's sold or
18      subleased is it referred back to the original
19      zoning?
20           MR. MILLER:  Special Use is if it's
21      discontinued for a period of 12 months it
22      becomes null and void.
23           MR. ALCOCK:  And if it's subleased?
24           MR. MILLER:  Pardon?
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1      Mr. Alcock?
2           All right.  Go ahead and sit down.
3           Paul Cicero.  Please give the recording
4      secretary your name.
5           MR. CICERO:  Paul Cicero, from Rockford.
6      C-I-C-E-R-O.
7           I have a couple questions.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Just stand closer to
9      the mic, please.


10           MR. CICERO:  Yes, sir.
11           Do you intend to allow any hunting on the
12      property?
13           MR. AMES:  No.
14           MR. CICERO:  Would you object to cutting
15      off the music earlier than midnight?
16           MR. AMES:  No.
17           MR. CICERO:  Are you going to allow any
18      alcohol consumption on the property?
19           MR. AMES:  No.
20           MR. CICERO:  Any ATV or snowmobile use?
21           MR. AMES:  No.
22           MR. CICERO:  When you said you're going to
23      perhaps have a new lodge, would that be an
24      additional lodge or to replace the current one?
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1           MR. ALCOCK:  If it's subleased?
2           MR. MILLER:  It stays with the property if
3      it's approved.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  And the recommendations and
5      all this testimony will go along -- you know, if
6      they sell it to somebody else that all goes
7      along --
8           MR. ALCOCK:  It runs with the property.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  -- fencing and, you know,


10      whatever they testified that they're going to do
11      or not going to do.
12           MR. ALCOCK:  Okay.  I have no further
13      questions.
14           MS. AMES:  Okay.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Does anybody have any
16      questions?
17           MR. ANDERSON:  Where do you live in
18      relationship to the property?
19           MR. ALCOCK:  I live straight north of the
20      secondary residence, probably 250 feet?
21           MR. AMES:  Somewhere around there.
22           MR. ALCOCK:  We're adjoined to the ag
23      land, the fields.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other questions for
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1           MR. AMES:  Additional.
2           MR. CICERO:  So you'd go from 40 to 100
3      kids; is that correct?
4           MS. AMES:  Uh-huh.  Well, can I just state
5      that the house itself is really not meant for
6      the kids, that's something that we want to
7      hopefully get into in the future.  So, you know,
8      although it could be used for that, our plan is
9      to put up another log structure just like -- you


10      know, similar to the one that's already there
11      and then hopefully get some kids in there.  I
12      don't want them to trash it.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  You asked about cutting
14      music off earlier and he said they have no
15      objection.  What time?  Right now the
16      recommendations are outside speakers, music
17      shall be discontinued at 12 a.m., midnight.
18      What time are you proposing?
19           MR. CICERO:  I'm thinking 9 p.m. would be
20      my testimony when it's time.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  What's your --
22           MS. AMES:  We don't have an objection to
23      that unless, of course, you know, we're able to
24      have some wedding ceremonies back there, but
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1      then again, there will be no alcohol and it will
2      be inside, you know, that's what we're hoping to
3      use the other building for, so no parties.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Let me ask you this:  Do
5      you have any objections to having all music and
6      outside speakers shut off at 9, or would you
7      want it negotiated?
8           MS. AMES:  Could we -- a little
9      compromise, you know.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  What time would you suggest
11      be the best time to shut off the music?
12           MS. AMES:  Well, really I would like
13      everything shut down by midnight, you know, I
14      mean, but I'm talking about the facility itself.
15      So if we set 11 o'clock that would give
16      everybody a good -- you know, an hour maybe to
17      clean up or pick up out there.  I don't --
18           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. Cicero, would 11
19      o'clock be all right?
20           MR. AMES:  I don't really see a lot of
21      outside speaker.  I mean, they'll be inside the
22      convention hall, there might be some inside
23      there.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Well, we have a bunch of
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1           MR. CICERO:  I represent the Stuga Trust,
2      owns the land to the north, the west, and the
3      southwest, wraps around this property.
4           MR. ANDERSON:  So the name of the trust is
5      what?
6           MR. CICERO:  S-T-U-G-A, Stuga Trust.  It's
7      a trust that owns the land.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Does anybody else have any
9      questions for Mr. Cicero?


10           Okay.  Any closing statements?
11           MS. AMES:  I think everything's pretty
12      much been said.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  You can have a seat.
14           MS. AMES:  Okay.  Thank you.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  At this time I will ask is
16      there anybody here that wishes to testify in
17      favor of the petition?
18           Seeing none, is there anybody here that
19      wishes to testify opposing the petition?
20           Please come forward.
21           MR. THOMPSON:  If I testify can I ask a
22      question?
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Let me get you sworn in and
24      you can ask the question.
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1      kids that may be playing their boom boxes and
2      stuff.
3           MS. AMES:  No, there's no TVs, there's no
4      radios, there's no phones.  You know, there is
5      no electronics whatsoever allowed with the kids.
6      You know, this is all just, you know, crafts,
7      and all of that stuff is not there.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Would 10 o'clock be
9      acceptable for both?


10           MR. CICERO:  Quite frankly if it's not
11      amplified it's probably -- I mean, it's not
12      ideal but it's probably okay.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  So amplified speakers, 10
14      o'clock?
15           MR. AMES:  Sure.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  If we change the
17      recommendations to outside speakers, music shall
18      be discontinued at 10 p.m.
19           MR. CICERO:  I think that's all the
20      questions I have.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Does anybody have
22      any questions?
23           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.  Do you represent
24      yourself or who do you represent?
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1                    GARY THOMPSON,
2      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Give the secretary your
4      name.
5           MR. THOMPSON:  Gary Thompson, 6474 Kilbuck
6      Road.
7           I'm here both as a neighbor and president
8      of the Board of Trustees from Monroe Township
9      Fire and Ambulance.  I'm not aware, and I'm


10      asking, have you requested a review of the
11      property and the access to the property for
12      access by ambulances and emergency equipment?
13      I'm not aware that you have.
14           MS. AMES:  No, but the fire -- can I just
15      say the fire department was down there when I
16      lived there, you know, and checked the whole
17      place out.  So I mean, if that's something that
18      we need to do --
19           MR. THOMPSON:  I think you should do --
20      I'm asking that if --
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Please step a little bit
22      closer to the mic.
23           MR. THOMPSON:  I'm asking that be made one
24      of the recommendations, because it is back in
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1      the woods, there's some turns, and the rescue
2      equipment we have today is much bigger, taller,
3      we have to clear branches.  And with that many
4      children back there I think it's important we
5      make certain we can have a reasonable response
6      time in the event of an issue or whatever.
7      That's my question and request.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  I would think that the Fire
9      Marshal would have to inspect the property, I'm


10      not sure if it's on a yearly basis but at least
11      before.
12           MR. THOMPSON:  As a commercial thing I
13      think you're probably right, but I think they
14      inspect more the facility for sprinklers and
15      what-have-you and I'm not sure that they
16      necessarily always look at the access.
17           Then I have a second question that kind of
18      goes along with that same thing.  Directly south
19      of where we're talking about having the
20      residence there's a very, very sharp cliff, the
21      creek is 60, 70 feet down below this property.
22      When we used to farm it we used to lose cattle
23      over there once every two or three years, it was
24      a problem, I mean it was that steep, and they


Page 43


1      truck in there and ambulance?
2           MS. AMES:  That would be great if you guys
3      could come down.
4           MR. THOMPSON:  And the access to, you
5      know, the lower land which is -- you know, you
6      can't drive down there so that really becomes
7      search and rescue.
8           MS. AMES:  Right.
9           MR. THOMPSON:  You say the kids are all


10      supervised, but you got two kids and one can go
11      off by themselves.
12           MS. AMES:  Obviously we would welcome that
13      just to make sure.
14           MR. THOMPSON:  That's my question, I am
15      worried about that part of it, so.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have any testimony?
17           MR. THOMPSON:  No.  Thank you.
18           MR. McKINNEY:  All right.  Would you have
19      any objections then for us to add to the
20      recommendation inspection by the Monroe Township
21      Fire Department.
22           MS. AMES:  No, none.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  And what was the other?
24           MR. AMES:  No, we recommend it.
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1      don't survive.
2           Is there any thought about protecting that
3      if you have a bunch of kids out there running
4      around?  I haven't been out there in years, I
5      don't know if there's a fence out there.  I know
6      there used to not be.  I'm speaking really on
7      behalf of the fire department.  We don't like to
8      have to do search rescues.  I think that's
9      something that ought to be addressed.


10           MS. AMES:  Right, if they suggested that
11      we'll do what needs to be done.  Obviously the
12      safety of everyone that's back there is top
13      priority for us, so if that's a recommendation
14      we'll certainly take care of that.
15           MR. AMES:  And the children don't --
16      they're not left alone, there's always adults
17      with them.  And I have had a 55-foot semi come
18      all the way down to the log house and all
19      around.
20           MS. AMES:  They can still come out and
21      they can check it out, that's no problem.
22           MR. THOMPSON:  The rescue equipment we
23      have today is tall, and I know you can probably
24      get a semi down there, but can we get a rescue
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1           MS. FIEBIG:  The emergency vehicle.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  Emergency vehicles, and
3      also have fencing around this cliff.
4           MS. AMES:  Right.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  We'll add those two items
6      to the staff recommendation.
7           MR. BRONKEMA:  We just had a retreat where
8      we had a quarry involved.  They put a fence
9      around that because the one side was dangerous


10      and they did that too, so it's pretty much the
11      same deal here.
12           MS. AMES:  Actually I'm glad that he
13      brought that up, you know brought it to our
14      attention because, you know, we didn't --
15      there's some horse fence up there but I don't
16      think that's in the same area that we have, and
17      so I'm really glad that he did suggest that.
18      We'll run with anything in that nature.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. Cicero?
20           MR. CICERO:  Thank you.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  I'll swear you in now.
22                     PAUL CICERO,
23      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  You have already
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1      given her your name and address, so go ahead,
2      testimony.
3           MR. CICERO:  Sir, I'm here representing
4      the Stuga Trust, which owns the land to the
5      north, west, and southwest, essentially a
6      wraparound of this property.  Some of the lot
7      line occurs along the Kilbuck Creek, but the lot
8      line, the property line crosses the creek on
9      three or four occasions.


10           The beneficial owner of the Trust is Nora
11      Sandall (phonetic), who's here with me tonight.
12           And I would say that this portion of the
13      meeting is objections, and we're really not
14      trying to object, I think that's a little harsh
15      word.  We want some qualifications with it.  My
16      client thinks this is a very noble kind of idea.
17      In general I think she's in favor of helping
18      youth and youth camps and things of that nature,
19      but there are several safety issues that we'd
20      like to -- that she'd like me to present to the
21      board.
22           One is the fencing issue is a big issue
23      along the creek.  I'm informed and I believe
24      that there's hunting going on down there that is
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1      issues need to be clarified.
2           MR. McKINNEY:  I believe the County Health
3      Department has to inspect the building.
4           As far as the hunting, the petitioners
5      have already testified that there will be no
6      hunting on their property.  They have already
7      testified that they will put fencing around the
8      property and to the water area maybe come
9      towards -- come inward so that the fencing would


10      not wash out.  And they also have testified that
11      wherever this 60 foot drop cliff is they'll have
12      fencing around that for safety reasons.
13           MR. CICERO:  I just want to make sure
14      we're clear on the record.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Would you have any
16      objections for us to add a recommendation about
17      no ATV, snowmobiles?
18           MS. AMES:  Absolutely not.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  Add that to the
20      recommendation.  I think we're up to about nine.
21           MR. MILLER:  10.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  10.
23           Anything else, sir?
24           MR. CICERO:  No.
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1      not authorized by my client on several
2      occasions.  It's very difficult to keep people
3      out of that creek bottom.  We're very
4      concerned -- we're not in favor of it, not that
5      hunting isn't okay, but we don't want it on our
6      land without permission.  And we don't think
7      there ought to be hunting next door.
8           Because of the layout of the creek and the
9      layout of the property line, we think there


10      should be substantial fencing not right along
11      the creek, because it will wash out, but rather
12      high enough that substantial fencing can contain
13      the children if they do wander off, both for
14      safety reasons and for privacy reasons.
15           We already talked about the noise and
16      music.  We're very interested that there not be
17      alcohol.  We would like the condition that there
18      be no ATV track or snowmobiles.
19           If there's a licensure requirement for a
20      group home for children or camp for children,
21      obviously we would like this to be licensed
22      fully.
23           Now, with those qualifications we're not
24      really objecting, we just think these safety
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Thank you.
2           MR. CICERO:  Thank you very much.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there anybody else that
4      wishes to testify?
5           Seeing none, do you have any closing
6      statements that you want to make?
7           MS. AMES:  No.  It is what it is.
8           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  I will entertain --
9      yes, ma'am, come forward.


10           MS. THOMPSON:  I'm sorry, I have never
11      been to one of these things before so I am a
12      virgin at this.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  No problem.  Let me swear
14      you in.
15                    DEBRA THOMPSON,
16      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Please give her your name
18      and address.
19           MS. THOMPSON:  Debra Thompson, 6474 North
20      Kilbuck Road, Monroe Center, Illinois.
21           I guess basically what I want to ask is --
22      I have a question for them.  I'm sorry, I don't
23      know how these things work, I don't come to
24      them.
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1           They say they want to have this retreat
2      for the kids and all this other stuff and, you
3      know, at risk children.  Is it a profit or
4      non-for-profit?  But then I also hear them say
5      they want to have weddings also too, so.
6           MS. AMES:  That's -- the weddings and --
7      right now what we have is the house back there
8      for the retreat for the pastoral kids, that's
9      all in the plan.  We -- when we submitted this


10      permit, you know, we needed to give them like a
11      10-year plan.
12           MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.
13           MS. AMES:  So we don't really know where
14      it's going.  We're just letting people know that
15      that's possibly what we may do.  Again, there
16      still will be no alcohol at the weddings and,
17      you know, the loud music, that's not what it's
18      about.  That's not our goal in the first place.
19           MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.  The only question I
20      have is is it a profit or non-for-profit?
21           MS. AMES:  We're not non-for-profit right
22      now.
23           MS. THOMPSON:  So it's profit?
24           MS. AMES:  Well, no.


Page 51


1      public hearing.
2           MR. SWORD:  I'll so move.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there a second?
4           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  Maury's seconded.
6           All those in favor signify by saying aye.
7                    (All those simultaneously
8                     agreed.)
9           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.


10           Motion passed, we're out of public
11      hearing, and we'll do our finding of facts.
12           MR. MILLER:  No Special Use shall be
13      recommended by the Zoning Board of Appeals
14      unless said board shall find, No. 1) That the
15      proposed Special Use will not unreasonably -- be
16      unreasonably detrimental to the value of other
17      property in the neighborhood in which it is
18      located or the public health, safety, morals,
19      comfort or general welfare at large.
20           MR. ANDERSON:  The proposed Special Use
21      will not be unreasonably detrimental to the
22      value of the other property in the neighborhood
23      in which it is to be located or the public
24      health, safety, morals, comfort or general
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Just so you know, the board
2      really cannot take that into consideration.
3           MS. THOMPSON:  I'm just asking.  I am
4      done.  Thank you.
5           MR. McKINNEY:  If you haven't filed a
6      501c3 or whatever it is for non-for-profit then
7      you're for profit.
8           MS. AMES:  Right.  You know, we have
9      lawyers that are involved and we have an


10      accountant, and that non-for-profit permit takes
11      about a year.  Obviously that's what we want to
12      do, but because we haven't started anything yet,
13      you know, we're just going on our own.
14           MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.  My question is
15      answered.  Thank you.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Now, is there anybody else
17      that wishes to testify?
18           Seeing none, give you one last chance then
19      for closing statements.
20           MS. AMES:  No, thank you.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Does the board have
22      any other questions while we're still in public
23      hearing?
24           I'll entertain a motion to go out of
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1      welfare, as the proposed use is in a rural area
2      on a hard surfaced road, is well buffered and
3      located a quarter mile from any public road,
4      there are only four other dwellings within a
5      half mile of the site, and the proposed use is
6      in a small scale, it will be conducted from
7      existing buildings on the site.  I find that
8      standard is met.
9                    (All those simultaneously


10                     agreed.)
11           MR. MILLER:  No. 2) That the location and
12      size of the Special Use, the nature and
13      intensity of the operation involved or conducted
14      in connection with it and the location of the
15      site with respect to streets giving access to it
16      are such that this Special Use will not dominate
17      the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent
18      development and the use of neighboring property
19      in accordance with the applicable zoning
20      district regulations.  In determining whether
21      the Special Use will so dominate the immediate
22      neighborhood considerations shall be given to,
23      A) The location, nature and height of buildings,
24      structures, walls and fences on the site, and B)
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1      The nature and extent of the proposed
2      landscaping and screening on the proposed site.
3           MR. SWORD:  The location and the size of
4      the Special Use, the nature and intensity of the
5      operation involved in or conducted in connection
6      with it and the location of the site with
7      respect to streets giving access to it are such
8      that the Special Use will not dominate the
9      immediate neighborhood so as to prevent


10      development and use of neighboring property in
11      accordance with the AG-1 zoning district
12      regulations, as the proposed use will be
13      conducted from within existing buildings, is
14      located on a hard surfaced road, is over a
15      quarter mile from the road that provides access,
16      which is Kilbuck Road, and there are few other
17      dwellings in the immediate vicinity.
18           They have also testified that it's going
19      to be a facility that's run in tight accordance
20      with, you know, nature.  So I feel that standard
21      is met.
22                    (All those simultaneously
23                     agreed.)
24           MR. MILLER:  No. 3) That off-street
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1      can be operated in a manner that is not
2      detrimental to the permitted developments and
3      uses in the zoning districts -- district and can
4      be developed and operated in a manner that is
5      visibly compatible with the permitted uses in
6      the surrounding area and is deemed essential or
7      desirable to preserve and promote the public
8      health, safety and general welfare of Ogle
9      County.


10           MR. SWORD:  The proposed use can be
11      operated in a manner that is not detrimental to
12      the permitted developments and uses in the AG-1
13      zoning district, can be developed and operated
14      in a manner that is visibly compatible with the
15      permitted uses in the surrounding area, and is
16      deemed essential or desirable to preserve or
17      promote the public health, safety and general
18      welfare of Ogle County.  I feel that standard is
19      met.
20                    (All those simultaneously
21                     agreed.)
22           MR. MILLER:  No. 6) That the proposed
23      Special Use complies with all the provisions of
24      the applicable district regulations.
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1      parking and loading areas will be provided in
2      accordance with the standards set forth in this
3      regulation -- in these regulations.
4           MR. BRONKEMA:  Well, the site they
5      testified it actually don't have adequate
6      off-street parking but they testified that they
7      would make some more parking in the area and, of
8      course, they said they have trucks back in there
9      so they must have a loading area provided.  So I


10      feel the standard is met.
11                    (All those simultaneously
12                     agreed.)
13           MR. MILLER:  No. 4) That adequate
14      utilities, ingress, egress to the site, access
15      roads, drainage and other such necessary
16      facilities have been or will be provided.
17           MR. FREEBERG:  Adequate utilities,
18      ingress, egress to the site from North -- from
19      Kilbuck Road, access roads, drainage and other
20      such necessary facilities have been or will be
21      provided.  I believe the standard is met.
22                    (All those simultaneously
23                     agreed.)
24           MR. MILLER:  No. 5) That the proposed use
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1           MR. BRONKEMA:  The proposed Special Use
2      appears to comply with all the regulations of
3      the AG-1 district regulations.  Standard met.
4                    (All those simultaneously
5                     agreed.)
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Before I ask for a motion I
7      want to reread all of the recommendations, as we
8      have added some.  Mark, give me the list.
9           This is the staff recommendations.  There


10      was also two from the County Highway Department.
11           Staff recommendations:
12           One) All proposals and representations
13      made by the applicant and/or their
14      representative shall be conditions of the
15      Special Use Permit.
16           Two) No camping, tent or recreational
17      vehicles, shall be permitted.
18           Three) Outside gatherings shall be
19      discontinued no later than 1 a.m.  Outside
20      speakers, music, etcetera shall be discontinued
21      no later than 10 p.m.  That was changed from 12,
22      midnight, so it's now 10 p.m.
23           The use shall not become obnoxious or
24      create a nuisance to the neighborhood.
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1           Five) Property boundary fences shall be
2      maintained so as to deter guests from leaving
3      the property.
4           Six) All requirements of the Ogle County
5      Health Department and Illinois Department of
6      Public Health shall be complied with in regards
7      to water supply and sewage disposal.
8           Seven) All facilities shall comply with
9      the Illinois Accessibility Code as applicable.


10           Eight) That the fire department from
11      Monroe Township shall conduct an inspection
12      for -- to make sure that fire trucks, ambulances
13      and rescue vehicles can access the property.
14           Nine) That there will be a fence around
15      the 60 foot drop off cliff that's on the
16      property.
17           And Ten) No ATVs or snowmobiles will be
18      allowed.
19           MR. BRONKEMA:  I think on the fire
20      inspection deal I think it should be in there at
21      least once a year, I mean it would be for their
22      good and also the fire department's so they can
23      update themselves on this.  We do that in our
24      townships.
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1      Chris A. Ames.
2           Mr. Miller, roll call.
3           MR. MILLER:  Freeberg?
4           MR. FREEBERG:  Yes.
5           MR. MILLER:  Bronkema?
6           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.
7           MR. MILLER:  Anderson?
8           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.
9           MR. MILLER:  Sword?


10           MR. SWORD:  Yes.
11           MR. MILLER:  McKinney?
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes.
13                    (By voice vote five ayes.)
14           MR. MILLER:  Five yes.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion passes.
16           There will be some more meetings, you do
17      not have to attend them if you don't want to.
18      Mr. Miller will read the dates and times.
19           MR. MILLER:  The petition will go to the
20      Planning Assessment and Zoning Committee meeting
21      on December 15th, 1 p.m. here; and to the County
22      Board for final decision on December 24 -- 21st,
23      excuse me, at 5:30 p.m. in this room.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Thank you.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Any objections --
2           MS. AMES:  No.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  -- if we add at least once
4      a year?
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  It would be a real plus for
6      them.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  That would be also up to
8      the fire department.
9           MR. BRONKEMA:  Fire department, yeah.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  So with that, if the board
11      has no other questions I'll entertain a motion.
12           MR. BRONKEMA:  I make a motion that we
13      recommend to the County Board the Special Use to
14      allow a conference and retreat facility in AG-1
15      District on property described as follows, for
16      Chris A. Ames, Petition 10-10 SU, with all the
17      recommendations being -- with the
18      recommendations.
19           MR. McKINNEY:  And all the standards met.
20           MR. BRONKEMA:  And all the standards met.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there a second?
22           MR. SWORD:  I'll second that.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  It's been moved and
24      seconded to approve Special Use No. 10-10 for
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1                    (The hearing was concluded at
2                     8:01 p.m.)
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
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11
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1           Now on this 23rd day of November, A.D.
2 2010, I do signify that the foregoing testimony was
3 given before the Ogle County Zoning Board of
4 Appeals.
5
6
7
8


               Bruce McKinney, Chairman
9


10
11
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               Mark Miller,
14                Acting Zoning Administrator
15
16
17
18


               Callie S. Bodmer
19                Certified Shorthand Reporter


               Registered Professional Reporter
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               Zoning Board of Appeals
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Mr. Miller, next order of
2      business.
3           MR. MILLER:  The next order of business is
4      to consider the request filed October 18th, 2010
5      of Terry Myers, 8580 North Limestone Road,
6      Rockford, Illinois for a Special Use Permit to
7      allow a Small Rural Business, classic and
8      antique auto restoration, in the AG-1 on
9      property described as follows and owned by the


10      petitioner:
11           Part of Government Lot 1 in the NE 1/4


          Fractional Section 5, Monroe Township,
12           14.18 acres, more or less.


          The common location being 8580 North
13           Limestone Road.
14           For the record, a sign was posted along
15      the frontage of the premises indicating that a
16      zoning hearing is to be held regarding this
17      property.  All adjoining owners have been
18      notified of the hearing this evening and the
19      specifics of the petition, and a legal notice
20      was published in the November 1st, 2010 edition
21      of the Ogle County Life notifying the public of
22      the hearing this evening and the specifics of
23      the petition.
24           Under the Staff Report, a copy of which is
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1      on file and the board members have received, I
2      will point out that under general information,
3      existing land use, 34 percent residential, 66
4      percent agricultural.
5           Surrounding land use and zoning, the site
6      is located on a predominantly agricultural area.
7      The western boundary of the site adjoins
8      Interstate 39; the northern boundary of the site
9      adjoins a parcel in agricultural use that also


10      contains a cellular communications tower;
11      eastern boundary of the site adjoins a non-farm
12      residential parcel and crop land; the southern
13      boundary of the site adjoins crop land.  There
14      are six non-farm dwellings within a half mile of
15      the site.  All surrounding land is zoned AG-1
16      Agricultural District.
17           Under the Comprehensive Plan, the site is
18      not located within a mile and a half of an
19      incorporated city or village.  Monroe Township
20      has a Township Planning Commission that has
21      adopted a township Comprehensive Plan.  The
22      township -- Monroe Township Comprehensive Plan
23      and Ogle County Amendatory Comprehensive Plan
24      designate the site and surrounding area for
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1      continued agricultural use, with only limited
2      residential uses being allowed.
3           Transportation, North Limestone Road is a
4      seal coat surfaced road under the jurisdiction
5      of Monroe Township.
6           Physical characteristics, the site is
7      located in a well drained, gently sloping upland
8      area.  No wetlands, floodplain, or areas of
9      flooding and ponding are present on this site.


10      According to the Ogle County Digital Soil
11      Survey, the soil type present on the site is
12      622B - Wyanet silt loam, 2 to 5 percent slopes.
13      This soil has the following selected
14      characteristics:  Prime farmland; very limited
15      for septic fields due to slow water movement;
16      and seasonal water table greater than 78 inches.
17           The LESA score of                      196
18      indicates a Low rating for protection.  The land
19      evaluation portion being                     87,
20      and the site assessment being               109.
21           Recommendations, the following are
22      recommended conditions for approval of this
23      Special Use Permit:
24           Number 1) That all proposals and
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Entertain a motion to go
2      into public hearing .
3           MR. ANDERSON:  Okay.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there a second?
5           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yup.
6           MR. McKINNEY:  Moved and seconded to go
7      into a public hearing.  All those in favor
8      signify by saying aye.
9                    (All those simultaneously


10                     responded.)
11           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
12           Motion passes.  We're in a public hearing.
13           Mr. Myers, you lost your audience.  Please
14      raise your right hand.
15                     TERRY MYERS,
16      being first duly sworn, testified as follows:
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Give the recording
18      secretary your name and address.
19           MR. MYERS:  Terry Myers, M-Y-E-R-S, and
20      address is 8580 Limestone Road.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Tell us about your
22      petition.
23           MR. MYERS:  I came forward with a petition
24      for a Special Use Permit that was recommended by
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1      representations made by the applicant and/or
2      their representative shall be conditions of the
3      Special Use Permit.
4           And Number Two) Outside storage of
5      vehicles, vehicle parts, or other items and
6      materials associated with the use shall not be
7      permitted.
8           I have a letter from the Illinois
9      Department of Natural Resources that states in


10      part, the national -- excuse me, the Illinois
11      Natural Heritage Database contains no record of
12      state listed threatened or endangered species,
13      Illinois National Area Inventory Sites,
14      dedicated Illinois nature preserves, or
15      registered land and water reserves in the
16      vicinity of the project location, and the
17      consultation is terminated.
18           At the November 18th, 2010 meeting of the
19      Ogle County Regional Planning Commission
20      Mr. Colson made a motion to recommend approval
21      of the Petition 11-10 SU.  The motion was
22      seconded by Mr. Smith, and the motion carried by
23      roll call vote of 7 to zero.
24           And, Mr. Chairman, that's all I have.
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1      Mike Reibel.  He's been out to my facility a
2      number of times --
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Can I ask you to come up
4      here so we can hear a little bit better, just
5      stand right up here.
6           MR. MYERS:  Right here?
7           MR. McKINNEY:  No, right up here.
8           MR. MYERS:  The Secretary of State, the
9      reason I'm here is to appease the Secretary of


10      State.  For 36 years I have been doing classic
11      car antique restoration.  Prior to living on
12      Limestone I lived on Alpine, and I have been on
13      Limestone Road for 17 years now, which is kind
14      of hard to believe.  So I have been doing this
15      all this time and doing nothing different,
16      changing nothing, I'm not adding to buildings,
17      but basically it's just to appease the Secretary
18      of State because they consider -- I actually
19      take them apart and put them back together so
20      I'm considered an auto builder or something to
21      that effect.  Basically it's just for a license.
22      They require me to have a license to do that, so
23      that gives them the right to come in at any
24      point in time, inspect the vehicles, make sure
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1      that the VINs and the tags are intact.  It's
2      just actual legality stuff.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  It's so they know it's not
4      a chop shop.
5           MR. MYERS:  Exactly, and I understand
6      that, and I know there are shops out there in
7      the past that have done that.  Obviously I don't
8      do that, so.  It's basically so they have the
9      right to come in and inspect my facility and the


10      cars that are there and, of course, they want
11      their fee each year, so.
12           MR. ANDERSON:  Terry, what kind of money
13      do you got into some of these cars for
14      restoration?
15           MR. MYERS:  As far as what they're worth?
16           MR. ANDERSON:  Uh-huh, when they're done.
17      I know some of the cars you have done, so I am
18      kind of curious.
19           MR. MYERS:  This past year two of my cars
20      have sold that I have restored, one sold for
21      335,000 and the other one was 400,000, and
22      that -- so it's kind of taken, you know, a lot
23      of experience just through the years to build
24      these cars.  I have reached probably my plateau,
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1           MR. MYERS:  Okay, so I'd rather not, and I
2      have already told them that.
3           MR. SWORD:  Put a small one there.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  If you had a sign that just
5      says Myers.
6           MR. MYERS:  That's kind of what I would
7      do, it would be just like Myers, that's it.  It
8      would be like going past any house where they
9      put their name on a stone or something.


10           MR. BRONKEMA:  We can put in the
11      recommendations and let them figure it out.
12           MR. MYERS:  Okay.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  That might tie him up in
14      getting a license.
15           MR. MYERS:  That is one of my concerns too
16      is I don't want them to come in and play
17      hardball and say, well, you have to do this, you
18      have to do that, I have got to jump through
19      these hoops.  All I really would like to do is
20      continue what I have been doing out there for 17
21      years and basically appease the State by what I
22      have to do.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  In a Special Use, you know,
24      signage is something totally different, so
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1      if you will.  I'm real choosy on who comes in my
2      shop and what projects I take on.  It has to be
3      something of interest to me, and of course, the
4      people that I typically do this for make sure
5      that they can afford it and most of them can.
6      And most of my cars that I have done in the last
7      several years now are all either Chicago,
8      Chicago suburbs, state of Washington, state of
9      Michigan, state of Texas, and now I have got


10      three cars that -- I have got two, possibly a
11      third coming out of California.
12           So it's -- and the one thing I want to --
13      the Secretary of State was out, they said that I
14      had to put a sign out in front of my place, and
15      I don't want to do that.  I don't want to be
16      exposed that way, because the fact of the matter
17      is there's some very expensive cars there and I
18      don't need that type of exposure where theft can
19      be a problem.  So if there could be in the
20      petition or however that works -- because, as I
21      understand it, you guys can overrule the State
22      on that, is that correct, where if you say
23      there's no signs?
24           MR. MILLER:  I doubt it.
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1      really I don't think we -- putting
2      recommendations, either yes or no, for a sign or
3      what the size of the sign would be, you know,
4      that you're going to have to work out with the
5      State.
6           MR. MYERS:  Okay.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  You know, another thing I
8      don't want to do is tie everything up where the
9      State's going to come in, tie you up for a year


10      or so just because of a sign.  You know, if we
11      say no sign and they say you have to have a
12      sign, you'd have to come back.
13           MR. MYERS:  Okay, yeah, because if that's
14      written --
15           MR. ANDERSON:  -- then it's fixed.
16           MR. McKINNEY:  If we put a recommendation
17      in no sign and the State said you have to have a
18      sign, then you'd have to pay all these fees to
19      come back in.
20           MR. MYERS:  Yeah, no, that probably won't
21      be a good idea.  So I'll try to go with minimal.
22      Like you say, if I can just get by with Myers.
23           MR. FREEBERG:  The County does have an
24      ordinance on signs though, I imagine.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  He would have to come in
2      and get a permit for a sign.
3           MR. FREEBERG:  You have to go by it.
4      Generally the County's not wanting big signs out
5      in the country, so.
6           MR. MYERS:  If I have to, it will be
7      something pretty unique and, like I say, when
8      you go into some of these estates, subdivisions
9      and they have just, you know, Oak Knolls or


10      something, this will just say Myers.  My
11      business name is just Myers, and so I would
12      think that would surpass where it's not like, I
13      don't know, you know, some other name but it's
14      just my name.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  You may be able to -- I
16      hate to tell you how you might get around the
17      government, but real small letters put your name
18      on the building, because your building is
19      sitting so far back it's going to be hard to
20      read anyway.
21           MR. MYERS:  I think if I put it on the
22      south end where I actually ran into it, put a
23      dent in it, that would take care of two things,
24      cover up that dent.  And you wouldn't see that
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1      for the paint?
2           MR. MYERS:  Yes, I have a room that I
3      built, and it's all drywalled, drop ceilings,
4      it's all ventilated and it's all -- of course
5      being drywalled, the drop ceiling is all flame
6      retardant.  And I have got neighbors real close
7      by, and I have got fire extinguishers
8      everywhere.  Like I said, I have been doing the
9      same thing now for about 36 years.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  Do you have a lot of
11      chemicals in this building?
12           MR. MYERS:  No, no, and I really don't --
13      I do maybe one to two cars a year, and two is
14      really working hard at it.  So basically usually
15      the extent of these restorations it takes me
16      about a year to do a car.  Even though I have
17      several different stages, it's me and I got a
18      guy that kind of helps, so I don't have any
19      employees.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  That was my next question.
21      Employees, I think you said you have a neighbor
22      that comes in and helps really briefly for heavy
23      things you need to move or something?
24           MR. MYERS:  Right.
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1      from the front, it would be on the side.  You
2      know, like you say, it's far enough back I don't
3      think it would offend anyone.
4           MR. McKINNEY:  Let me ask -- or do you
5      have anything else you want to add right now?
6           MR. MYERS:  No.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  Are you going to be doing
8      or have engine work or anything done on your
9      property?


10           MR. MYERS:  No, no, I have got a good
11      builder that does those for me that's
12      semiretired.
13           MR. McKINNEY:  He does that off-site?
14           MR. MYERS:  Yeah.  There's several things
15      I don't do, and engines is one, and anything
16      that has to be stripped goes to either RP
17      Services in Belvidere or Metal Prep in New
18      Milford.  I don't do any sandblasting.  I do a
19      little bit -- just a small area, because I'm not
20      equipped for a big compressor to do that.
21      There's quite a few things I outsource.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  How about painting?
23           MR. MYERS:  I do some of that, yes.
24           MR. McKINNEY:  Have you got a containment
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  You don't have a full-time
2      or even part-time worker?
3           MR. MYERS:  No, my neighbor who bought
4      Randy's house as a matter of fact, Todd, he's
5      the one who came up and helped me put this big
6      hood up.
7           MR. McKINNEY:  And your son also helps you
8      now?
9           MR. MYERS:  He helped me out.  He's real


10      good about that.  I have never really encouraged
11      him to do what I do because it's just hard work.
12      And you hear the prices of these cars, it takes
13      a lot of money to initially buy them and buy the
14      parts it takes to restore them.  It's not a huge
15      moneymaker.  I worked for a phone company for 33
16      years, retired five years to do this as a
17      retirement type job, and worked at it all those
18      others years on nights, weekends and even some
19      of my vacations to do the work.  So I just
20      continue to play cars.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  And you have business up in
22      Rockford?
23           MR. MYERS:  I had a brick home right on
24      Alpine just south of Spring Creek with an
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1      attached garage and that's -- I did a lot there
2      for the 13 years I was there, and I had clients
3      that were mostly at that point Dr. Jarrett
4      (phonetic) from Byron, Greg Grishman (phonetic),
5      which he's a big businessman.  I did a Trans Am
6      for him that ended up on a cover of Car and
7      Driver magazine.  So like I say, I have had some
8      really good fun with it and met some really neat
9      people.  It's just been a good ride so far.


10           MR. McKINNEY:  Did you get that one car
11      all done that you said you had to get done at
12      the last meeting?
13           MR. MYERS:  After the last meeting we went
14      back home, my wife and I we worked on it until
15      1:30 in the morning, got back up at 6, finished
16      it up, loaded it up on the trailer at about 3:30
17      that afternoon and went to Chicago with it for
18      the Muscle Car Nationals.  The owner, of course,
19      met me there, and that's the first time he saw
20      the car totally complete.  He had been out the
21      week prior, so there was a quite a bit of
22      change, especially when you put the hood on.  So
23      he was very pleased with the car, which is my
24      goal is to do the best I can with the results.
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1      all proposals and representations made by the
2      applicant and/or their representatives shall be
3      conditions of the Special Use Permit; and also
4      Number 2, outside storage of vehicles, vehicle
5      parts, and other items/materials associated with
6      the use shall not be permitted?  So no outside
7      storage?
8           MR. MYERS:  Right.
9           MR. McKINNEY:  So you agree with the


10      recommendations?
11           MR. MYERS:  Yes.
12           MR. McKINNEY:  Okay.  Any other questions?
13           Okay.  You can have a seat.
14           MR. MYERS:  Thank you.
15           MR. McKINNEY:  This will be quick.
16      Anybody wishes to testify either in favor or
17      opposing the petition?
18           Seeing none, I'll ask for a motion to go
19      back into open session.
20           MR. BRONKEMA:  So moved.
21           MR. McKINNEY:  It's been moved.
22           MR. SWORD:  Second.
23           MR. McKINNEY:  Seconded.
24           All those in favor signify by saying aye.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Any other questions?
2           MR. ANDERSON:  He keeps it pretty neat.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  I just want to say for the
4      record, I love the way you have got that
5      landscaped, your house, you know, the back
6      patio, you really did a great job.
7           MR. MYERS:  Thank you.
8           Have you been by there, Randy?
9           MR. ANDERSON:  Yeah, I drove up that way


10      but I didn't get to nose around too much because
11      I had already been through your shop when we
12      lived over there so I pretty much knew what you
13      were doing, and you always kept it low key
14      because you didn't want people nosing around.
15           MR. MYERS:  I have had, you know, people
16      in the past when I go up to Monroe Center to,
17      you know, have a bite to eat go, oh, you're the
18      guy up there, what do you got in those
19      buildings, and I say, oh tractors.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Parts.
21           MR. MYERS:  Parts and stuff.
22           MR. McKINNEY:  A couple recommendations
23      that have you -- are you -- do you understand
24      the recommendations, staff recommendations about
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1                    (All those simultaneously
2                     responded.)
3           MR. McKINNEY:  Any opposed say nay.
4           Motion passed.  We are in open session.
5      We'll go through our finding of facts.
6           MR. MILLER:  No Special Use shall be
7      recommended by the Zoning Board of Appeals
8      unless said Board shall find:  One) That the
9      proposed Special Use will not be unreasonably


10      detrimental to the value of other property in
11      the neighborhood in which it is located or the
12      public health, safety, morals, comfort or
13      general welfare at large.
14           MR. ANDERSON:  The proposed Special Use
15      will not be unreasonably detrimental to the
16      other property in the neighborhood in which it
17      is to be located or the public health, safety,
18      morals, comfort or general welfare, as the
19      proposed use is in a rural area on a hard
20      surfaced road, there are only six other
21      dwellings within a half a mile of the site, and
22      the proposed use is small in scale, it will be
23      conducted from a completely enclosed existing
24      building.  I feel that standard is met.







(815) 453-2260
In Totidem Verbis, LLC (ITV)


6 (Pages 21 to 24)


Page 21


1                    (All those simultaneously
2                     agreed.)
3           MR. MILLER:  No. 2) That the location and
4      size of the Special Use, the nature and
5      intensity of the operation involved in or
6      conducted in connection with it and the location
7      of the site with respect to streets giving
8      access to it are such that the Special Use will
9      not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to


10      prevent development and use of neighboring
11      property in accordance with the applicable
12      zoning district regulations.  In determining
13      whether the Special Use will so dominate the
14      immediate neighborhood considerations shall be
15      given to, A) The location, nature and height of
16      buildings, structures, walls, and fences on the
17      site, and B) The nature and extent of the
18      proposed landscaping and screening on the
19      proposed site.
20           MR. BRONKEMA:  The location and size of
21      the Special Use and nature and intensity of the
22      operation involved in or conducted in connection
23      with it and the location of the site with
24      respect to the streets giving access to it are
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1      roads, drainage and other necessary facilities
2      have been or will be provided.
3           MR. FREEBERG:  Adequate utilities,
4      ingress, egress to the site from North Limestone
5      Road, access roads, drainage and other such
6      necessary facilities have been or will be
7      provided.  Standard's met.
8                    (All those simultaneously
9                     agreed.)


10           MR. MILLER:  No. 5) That the proposed use
11      can be operated in a manner that is not
12      detrimental to the permitted developments and
13      uses in the zoning district, can be developed
14      and operated in a manner that is visibly
15      compatible with the permitted uses in the
16      surrounding area, and is deemed essential or
17      desirable to prevent -- to preserve, excuse me,
18      and promote the public health, safety and
19      general welfare of Ogle County.
20           MR. SWORD:  The proposed use can be
21      operated in a manner that is not detrimental to
22      the permitted developments and uses in AG-1
23      zoning and can be developed and operated in a
24      manner that is visibly compatible with the
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1      such that the Special Use will not be
2      detrimental to the immediate neighborhood so as
3      to prevent development and use of the
4      neighboring property in accordance with AG-1
5      zoning district regulations, as the proposed use
6      will not be conducted -- or will be conducted
7      from within the existing buildings, it is
8      located on a hard surfaced road, and there are a
9      few other dwellings in the immediate area, and


10      it's a real low key operation.  So I feel that
11      standard is met.
12                    (All those simultaneously
13                     agreed.)
14           MR. MILLER:  No. 3) That off-street
15      parking and loading areas will be provided in
16      accordance with the standards set forth in these
17      regulations.
18           MR. SWORD:  The site has adequate
19      off-street parking and unloading areas.  That
20      standard is met.
21                    (All those simultaneously
22                     agreed.)
23           MR. MILLER:  No. 4) That adequate
24      utilities, ingress, egress to the site, access
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1      permitted uses in the surrounding area and is
2      deemed essential or desirable to preserve and
3      promote the public health, safety and general
4      welfare of Ogle County.  I feel that standard is
5      met.
6                    (All those simultaneously
7                     agreed.)
8           MR. MILLER:  And No. 6) That the proposed
9      Special Use complies with all the provisions of


10      the applicable district regulations.
11           MR. BRONKEMA:  The proposed Special Use
12      appears to comply with all the provisions of the
13      AG-1 District regulations.  Standard's met.
14                    (All those simultaneously
15                     agreed.)
16           MR. McKINNEY:  Going through the
17      standards, the board has found that all
18      standards have been met.  I will entertain a
19      motion.
20           MR. ANDERSON:  I'll make a motion that we
21      recommend to the County Board the approval of
22      Special Use for Terry Myers, No. 11-10, for a
23      Small Rural Business in AG-1 District, finding
24      all standards have been met.
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1           MR. McKINNEY:  Is there a second?
2           MR. BRONKEMA:  Second.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  It's been moved and
4      seconded to recommend to the County Board to
5      approve Special Use No. 11-10 for Terry Myers
6      for a Small Rural Business in AG-1.
7           Roll call.
8           MR. MILLER:  Bronkema?
9           MR. BRONKEMA:  Yes.


10           MR. MILLER:  Anderson?
11           MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.
12           MR. MILLER:  Freeberg?
13           MR. FREEBERG:  Yes.
14           MR. MILLER:  Sword?
15           MR. SWORD:  Yes.
16           MR. MILLER:  McKinney?
17           MR. McKINNEY:  Yes.
18                    (By voice vote five ayes.)
19           MR. MILLER:  Five voted yes.
20           MR. McKINNEY:  Motion passes.
21           MR. MILLER:  This petition will go to the
22      Planning Assessment Zoning Committee on December
23      15th, 2010 at 1 p.m., our committee meeting; and
24      then to the full County Board for their decision
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1      Now on this 23rd day of November, A.D. 2010, I
2 do signify that the foregoing testimony was given
3 before the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals.
4
5
6
7


               Bruce McKinney, Chairman
8
9


10
11
12


               Mark Miller,
13                Acting Zoning Administrator
14
15
16
17


               Callie S. Bodmer
18                Certified Shorthand Reporter


               Registered Professional Reporter
19                IL License No. 084-004489


               P.O. Box 381
20                Dixon, Illinois  61021
21
22
23
24
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1      on December 21st at 5:30, and both are in this
2      room.
3           MR. McKINNEY:  It's not required that you
4      be there, but you're welcome to be there if you
5      want.
6           Is there any other business?  Seeing that
7      there's no other business, I'll adjourn this
8      meeting.  Wish everybody a Happy Thanksgiving.
9                    (The hearing was concluded at


10                     8:26 p.m.)
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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Judiciary & Circuit Clerk & Juvenile & Probation  
Committee Meeting  


Tuesday, December 14, 2010  
 


Tentative Minutes 
 
 
 


1. Call to Order- at 3:00 by Vice-Chairman Stahl 
 Members present:  DeArvil, Messer, Kenney, Colbert and Stahl 
 Members absent: Gouker 
 Others present:  Focus House Director Mike Dale,  Circuit Clerk Ron McDermott, 


Marty Typer, Lynne Kilker and Jim Barnes 
 


2. Approval of Minutes: November 9, 2010 
 Motion by Messer 
 2nd by De Arvil 
 Motion carried 


 
3. Public Comment - None 


 
4. Consideration of Monthly Invoices 


 Focus House –  
o De Arvil moved to approve $1,515.58  
o 2nd by Messer 
o Motion carried  


 Probation 
o Kenney moved to approve $2,410.00  
o 2nd by De Arvil 
o Motion carried  


 
 Circuit Clerk 


o De Arvil moved to approve $427.75  
o 2nd by Kenney 
o Motion carried 


 
o Judiciary – no bills presented to the committee 


 
5. Department Reports  


 Probation- nothing to report 
 Focus House – Mike Dale informed the committee of the Census at Focus House. 


There are currently 24 juveniles and 7 will be discharged next week; there are 
currently 11 juveniles from out of the county and 3 will discharged next week as well. 
Dale noted on December 22nd there will a Christmas Party at Focus House and invites 
the committee to attend.  







 Reporting Center – Dale says the Reporting Center is back to normal and running 
both day and evenings. 


 Circuit Clerk – Circuit Clerk Ron McDermott says the transition in the office is going 
well. He also compliments the staff for their help in making this transition go 
smoothly. McDermott attend his first Zone Meeting in Bureau County. There are 
Circuit Clerks from about 20 other counties in the state and all are feeling the budget 
crisis. Kenney asks if there are any updates on the Union contract. McDermott says 
there is nothing to report at this time and a meeting is scheduled for January 20, 2011. 


 
6. Old Business – none 


 
7. New Business –  


 Mike Dale informs the committee of the need to update the signature cards for six 
Focus House bank accounts. Dale states this has to be done in an open meeting and 
asks Vice-Chairman Stahl to sign the cards and the County Clerk will need to sign as 
well.  


 Circuit Clerk McDermott informs the committee his Bond information has been 
signed in the Treasurers Office and is on file. 
 


8. Adjournment- At 3:14 pm, Messer made the motion to adjourn the meeting, De Arvil 
seconds and the motion carries. 


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laura J. Cook, Chief Deputy Clerk    


 
 








          


Ogle County Community 
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OGLE COUNTY COMMUNITY 


 
   MENTAL HEALTH (708) BOARD 


 
 MINUTES OF THE   


November 4, 2010 Meetings 
 
On November 4, 2010, Kathleen Wilson, President called a meeting of the 708 Board to 
order at 7:30 a.m. at the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office, Jefferson Street, Oregon, Illinois, 
at the call of the secretary and a notice given to each board member and on notice posted 
at the Ogle County Courthouse and Ogle County Sheriff’s Office.  Kathleen Wilson 
presided. 
 
The secretary called the roll: 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Kathleen Wilson, President, Louise Hall, Treasurer 
Laura Medlar, Wendy Howarter, Susan Schroeder, Seth McCanse and Dorothy Bowers, 
Ogle County Board Liaison  
  
ABSENT: Marcia Heuer 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: James Sarver of Sinnissippi Center’s Inc., Lorrie Bearrows of 
Ogle County Hospice, Ruth Carter of Help Offer Protective Environment (HOPE of Ogle 
County) Kathleen Kurtz and Missy Wilson of Easter Seals Children’s Development 
Center, Craig Carpenter of Village of Progress and Susan Loyd of Lutheran Social 
Services of Illinois 
 
The Chair announced a quorum. 
 
Approval of Agenda: Dorothy Bowers moved to accept the agenda as presented.  
Laura Medlar seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Review and approval of the October minutes was done. Wendy Howarter moved to 
approve the October meeting minutes as presented.  Seconded by Seth McCanse.  
Motion carried unanimously.    
 
Review and approval of the agency vouchers for November was done. Dorothy Bowers 
moved to approve the vouchers for November as submitted.  Susan Schroeder 
seconded.  Motion carried seven ayes, no nays and one absent. 
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After reviewing the financial reports for November.  A motion was made by Dorothy 
Bowers to approve the financial reports for November. Susan Schroeder seconded.   
Motion carried seven ayes, no nays and one absent. 
 
Officer’s Reports: 
 
Newspaper article for October was Lutheran Social Services of Illinois and November is 
Hospice. 
 
Lorrie Bearrows requested permission from the 708 Board and Agencies to put an article 
in the paper regarding the wonderful the social service agencies that we are fortunate to 
have here in Ogle County that are partially funded by the tax dollars and community 
dollars. 
 
Unfinished Business: 
 
Dorothy Bowers had nothing to report regarding our newsletter to the County Board. 
 
The video “ A Crises in Caring “ reported no new viewings. 
 
After discussion of the By Laws Dorothy Bowers moved to approve them as they are 
with no changes.  Wendy Howarter seconded.  Motion carried seven ayes, no nays 
and one absent. 
 
Human Services Directory will be ready for the next meeting. 
  
Review of Brochure was done and new ones will be printed to go along with the Human 
Services Directory. 
 
Funding for FY11 was discussed.  At this time we are informed that there will be no 
increase for the agencies.  Discussion was held as to whether the $25,000 extra given to 
Sinnissippi, Inc. was one time or on going programs.  Then tabled until next month. 
 
New Business: 
 
It was decided to continue meeting on the first Thursday of the month, with the same 
time schedule as now for next year. 
 
It was moved by Susan Schroeder to adopt the same budget as presented at the 
November meeting.  Dorothy Bowers seconded.  Motion carried seven ayes, no nays 
and one absent. 
 
Agency reports: 
 
Susan Loyd of Lutheran Social Services of Illinois – reported no cuts in the state.  
DHS is going through some major restructuring and that is where it is going.  Ogle 
County Youth Services continue. 
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Ruth Carter Director of Hope – Ruth Carter reported that the fundraiser in October and 
the Open House of the resale store in Rochelle went well, lots of work for the volunteers, 
but raised $4,000 so it was successful.  They tried to get Domestic Violence information 
and the Human Service Directory to all the Beauty Shops in the county.   
 
Hope was highlighted in the Environmental Magazine and it was a great article. 
 
They have three families and two single women in shelter. 
 
The new roof is on the transitional housing and siding is there ready to put on.  We are 
looking for grant funding and have been looking at HUD Funding, which is a new 
experience. 
 
Lorrie Bearrows of Ogle County Hospice – Lorrie Bearrows reported that the Annual 
Memorial Service would be held on November 7th at 2:00 in the afternoon at the 
Ebenezer Reform Church at no charge for the use of the facility.  They usually have 
around 100 to 120 people attend the memorial service.  The groups have had to be 
divided because there are so many attending the meetings.  The results are stunning. 
 
The Serenity Home extra care is not part of the bereavement program, but we certainly 
are spending a lot of time interacting with these families.  We have had many families 
that are young and it is a lot different than the elderly that have had many years 
struggling with a disease and such to deal with.  We are very grateful for the Serenity 
Home to be able to meet those needs.  We are grateful for the funds you provide for this 
service that is mandated by the government but not funded. 
 
We are planning a Memorial Tree Fund on the grounds to remember a loved one, by 
dedicating a tree at the cost of $150 and they will have a plaque on the tree in memory of 
or whatever and an angel on top with white lights.  We are calling them Angel Trees. 
Having the Community Coordinator has been just wonderful. 
 
Lorrie Bearrows reported that they (HOSPICE) are the number one hospice in the nation 
percentage wise.  That is the number one in the nation for certified hospice nurses. 
 
Craig Carpenter of the Village of Progress – Craig Carpenter reported that on 
November 17th at 6:30pm they would be holding the 41st annual banquet at St. Mary’s 
Learning Center. It is a Roast Beef Dinner prepared by the ladies of the church.  He 
invited everyone to come and enjoy the evening. 
 
They just received notice that they will be receiving a 22-passenger bus before the month 
is over with a lift from the State.  This will replace one of the older vehicles.  This is an 
IDOT fund and we received the grant information to fill out for next year.  The year after 
that it might not be available.  This is really important to us because we have seven routes 
that we do daily picking up over one hundred clients to work at the village.  We need to 
keep our vehicles in excellent shape and this will really help. 
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Sub-contract work is still good thanks to Wahl Clipper we are still keeping busy.  We are 
still using the Herman building for the overflow.  We did have a tenant looking at the 
building last month and hope something will happen.  The Park District is using a portion 
of the building where Jon Barnhart is painting two large murals to be placed in Oregon 
 
The State has released some funds for July and August, but missed Feb, March, April, 
May and June.  We find no reason what they are doing.  Time will tell. 
 
Kathleen Kurtz and Missy Wilson of Easter Seals Children’s Development Center –  
Kathleen Kurtz reported that on November 9th the Ogle County Autism Support Group 
would hold a program at St Mary’s in Byron from 6 to 8 entitled “Picky Eaters”.   
 
Looking for grant money for the Mom’s Retreat. 
 
Santa Clause is to appear for the groups is all set up. 
 
DFI money from the Federal Government is coming in. 
 
Jim Sarver and Kim James of Sinnissippi Centers, Inc – Jim Sarver reported that they  
have expanded the DUI evaluations in the Oregon and Rochelle Offices and the numbers 
seem to be going up. 
 
The Rochelle High School has requested a grief group meeting and it is a couple hours a 
week at the Rochelle Hospital. 
 
Money has come in but they do not tell you what it is for and we are still trying to track 
what they are paying us for.   
 
The Community that Cares Project held a meeting just recently and Louise Hall was not 
informed about it as she is our representative, so Jim Sarver will let her know when the 
next meeting is going to be.  They have about 85 participants countywide.  It is great. 
 
There being no objection the meeting was adjourned. 
 
The next meeting will be December 2, 2010 at the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office, Training 
Room, Jefferson Street, Oregon, IL. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Cecilia M. Zimmerman 
Recording Secretary 
 
815.732.6762 
fax  732.6147 
celiazimm@oglecom.com 
 
Approved:  December 4, 2010 
______________________________  ___________________________ 
Kathleen Wilson, President               Louise Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
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Resolution 2010-1212 


Personnel Policies and Benefits for Ogle County  


WHEREAS, it is necessary to conduct County business in an orderly fashion and to 
comply with Federal and State law in the area of personnel practices, certain procedures 
should be adhered to:  


THEREFORE, be it resolved by the County Board of Ogle County, Illinois, that the 
following personnel policies and benefits be adopted as guidelines for all County 
employees, not governed by Union agreements.  


Passed and adopted this __21st day of December, 2010.    


Attest:  


_______________________    _______________________ 
Rebecca Huntley      James L. Barnes 
Ogle County Clerk           Chairman, Ogle County Board  


 
 
 
 


REVISIONS 
June 15, 2005 – Leave of Absence 
February 20, 2007 – Office Closing Policy 
June 19, 2007 – Vacation - Sick Leave Accrual & Personal Days 
November 20, 2007 – Sick Leave Accrual & Personal Days 
February 19, 2008 – No Smoking Policy 
September 16, 2008 – Retiree Health Contribution 
December 21, 2010 – Accommodation of Disabilities (ADA) 
December 21, 2010 – Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 
December 21, 2010 – IT Use Policy 
December 21, 2010 – Appendices & Supplements 
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Ogle County Personnel Policies and Benefits 
 


I.  INTRODUCTION  


Ogle County seeks to employ and retain staff whose individual 
competence, values and dependability are equal to the jobs they are expected to 
perform.  To secure and keep such a staff, Ogle County aims to provide fair 
salaries, benefits and working conditions.  It strives to treat each employee with 
dignity and respect.  All County policies that affect working conditions are 
designed and established to assist in achieving that goal.  


Every employee must remember that Ogle County is a tax-supported 
entity and the citizens of Ogle County paying those taxes should receive the best 
possible quality and highest standard of service possible.  Public employees 
should act in a professional manner, using good judgment and courtesy at all 
times, and should avoid any type of behavior that would even appear illegal or 
unethical.  Employees should carry out their work efficiently, honestly and with 
the intention of keeping good relationships with co-workers and the public.  


Ogle County employment practices operate under the legal doctrine 
known as “employment at will.”  Within state and federal employment law, Ogle 
County has the right to terminate an employee at any time and for any reason, 
with or without notice, except that Ogle County will comply with all state and 
federal legal requirements requiring notice and an opportunity to be heard in the 
event of discipline or dismissal.  Ogle County will attempt to ensure that 
employee terminations are not made in an arbitrary or capricious manner. This 
manual and the personnel policies referenced do not constitute an express or 
implied a contract, agreement, promise or guarantee of employment or 
continued employment.  The manual is for informational purposes only and 
is not a contract.  Ogle County also reserves the right to change these policies 
at any time and without prior notice to employees.  


Circumstances may arise in which Ogle County determines that changes 
are required in the personnel policies.  Ogle County reserves the right, at any 
time, to modify, rescind or supplement these policies.  As policies are updated, 
employees will receive current changes and acknowledge receipt thereof in 
writing. All policies contained herein or which may be added in the future do not 
constitute a contract, either express or implied.  As guidelines, these policies 
should not be considered as grouting employment rights or insuring continuation 
of employment for any employee.  


These personnel policies are intended to provide guidelines for 
employment.  An attempt has been made to cover matters related to 
employment, employee benefits and services available to assist employees in 
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performing their duties and responsibilities.  Each department may, at the 
department head’s discretion, add a departmental supplement to the Employee 
Manual.  


Departments with a collective bargaining agreement shall abide by their 
own contract, and may refer to items in the Ogle County Personnel Policies and 
Benefits for employees not covered by the agreement. If a collective bargaining 
agreement does not cover a specific topic included in the Ogle County Personnel 
Policies and Benefits, the County’s policy is to serve as the default guideline.     


The Employee Manual shall be given to each present and every new 
employee of the County at the time of their employment.  The manual shall 
remain the property of the County.  The manual shall have an acknowledgment 
receipt which must be signed by all affected employees.  


II. EMPLOYMENT 
  


A. Application  
 


1. All applicants for employment with Ogle County shall complete 
the standard application form.  Contact the appropriate department 
head for an application form.   


 
 B.  Equal Employment Opportunity  


 
1. Equal Employment opportunity is both a policy and practice of 


Ogle County.   
 
2. To the extent required by Federal and State laws, Ogle County will 


recruit, hire and promote applicants on the basis of qualifications 
and without regard to race, religion, color, age, national origin, 
marital status, sex, disability, sexual orientation, veteran status, 
unfavorable discharge from the military, or any other protected 
status.  


 
3. This practice also applies to compensation, benefits, training, 


promotions, transfers and terminations.  Standards of conduct and 
performance are also enforced in accordance with the above 
practice.  


 
4. This policy also applies to the use of all county services and 


programs.  It is the intention of this policy to prohibit 
discriminatory treatment of any person using services or 
opportunities offered by the County.  
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 C.  Accommodation of Disabilities (see Appendix 7 for Definitions) 
 


The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requires employers to 
reasonably accommodate qualified individuals with disabilities.  It is the 
policy of Ogle County to comply with all Federal and State laws 
concerning the employment of persons with disabilities.   


It is the policy of Ogle County not to discriminate against qualified 
individuals with disabilities in regard to application procedures, hiring, 
advancement, discharge, compensation, training, or other terms, 
conditions, and privileges of employment.   


An individual who can be reasonably accommodated for a job, without 
undue hardship, will be given the same consideration for that position as 
any other applicant.   


All employees are required to comply with safety standards.  Applicants 
who pose a direct threat to the health or safety of other individuals or 
themselves in the workplace, which threat cannot be eliminated by 
reasonable accommodation, will not be hired.  Current employees who 
pose a direct threat to the health of safety of the other individuals or 
themselves in the workplace will be placed on appropriate leave until an 
organizational decision has been made in regard to the employee’s 
immediate employment situation.   


The County Administrator is responsible for implementing this policy and 
will work with the Department Head to ensure resolution of reasonable 
accommodation, safety, and undue hardship issues.      


Employees requiring any reasonable accommodation should notify their 
supervisor.  To assist an individual in the performance of his or her 
position, application for a position or equal enjoyment of benefits and 
working conditions, Ogle County will take the following steps:  


a) Determine whether the individual has a disability as 
defined by the ADA (requesting documentation of the 
disability):  


b) Analyze the purpose and essential functions of the job;  


c) Consult with the individual and, where appropriate, the 
Administrator will consult with the individual’s health care 
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provider, to determine the precise job-related limitations 
imposed by the disability and how they could be overcome 
with a reasonable accommodation;  


d) Identify reasonable potential accommodations in 
consultation with the individual, Administrator and, 
when appropriate, medical and technical professionals;  


e) Assess the effectiveness of reasonable potential 
accommodations, considering the preference of the 
individual; and  


f) Select the reasonable accommodation that is most 
appropriate for both Ogle County and the individual. 
While the preference of the individual will be given 
primary consideration, Ogle County retains the ultimate 
discretion to choose between effective reasonable 
accommodations, and may choose the less expensive 
reasonable accommodation or the reasonable 
accommodation that is easier for the County to provide.  


 
 D.  Verification of Work Eligibility  


The employing department is responsible for verifying the applicant’s 
employment experience, education, and skills before extending a job offer to the 
applicant.   


By federal law, each new employee must, within the first three days of 
employment, complete and sign an INS Form 1-9, and show proof of identity 
and eligibility.  The new applicant must have also completed a W-4 form, 
insurance forms, insurance information about dependents, the Employee 
Acknowledgment form from Employee Handbook and any other necessary 
employee benefit forms.  


If the applicant knowingly makes a false statement on the application form 
or cannot legally hold the position; offers money, service, or anything of value to 
win favor during the application process he or she may be disqualified. Finally, if 
the prospective employee does not meet the physical requirements when tested; or 
has not provided proof of citizenship or legal work status within the first three 
days of employment, they may be disqualified.  


 E.  Ethics in Employment  


No person will be employed full time by Ogle County when that 
employment would result in a violation of the ethics in government provisions 
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found in Illinois Public Act 93-615 and Public Act 93-617.  Any such 
appointment may be voided by the Ogle County Board if not done voluntarily by 
the hiring department.  


No hiring authority may appoint or vote for the appointment of his/her 
father, mother, husband, wife, son, daughter, sister, brother, uncle, aunt, nephew, 
niece, first cousin, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 
son-in-law, or daughter-in-law for any full-time position within the same 
department. Current employees are exempt from this paragraph.  


This section becomes effective upon adoption of this manual.  


III. BENEFITS  
 


A. General Benefits  
 


1. FICA/Social Security/Medicare: All employees are covered by 
Social Security and Medicare as required by law.  Deductions will 
be made from the employee’s pay and matched by the County at 
the prevailing rates.  


 
2. Worker’s Compensation: All employees are covered by Worker’s 


Compensation insurance through the Illinois Counties Risk 
Management Trust program (ICRMT), which is administered by 
Claims One.  This insurance is required by the State of Illinois, 
with Ogle County paying the full amount.  


 
3. Unemployment Insurance: All employees are covered by 


Unemployment Insurance as required by the State of Illinois, with the 
County paying the entire premium.  When an employee is separated 
from employment for any reason, they will be provided with the 
publication, “What Every Worker Should Know About 
Unemployment Insurance,” which outlines eligibility for this 
insurance.  


 
4. Health Insurance: The County offers a health and dental insurance 


plan which is available to all full time employees (30+ hours/week) 
and their dependents.  If elected, the health insurance coverage begins 
on the first day of the month following 30 days of employment. The 
County and the employee share the cost of employee; spouse and 
dependent coverage under this plan.  The proportion paid by the 
County and Employees are determined by the Ogle County Board.  
Employee contributions are deducted pre-tax unless specifically 
declined by employee.  The plan benefit coverage, deductibles, 
maximums, co-payments and other details are subject to change.  
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Dental coverage is available even if health benefits are not elected. See 
health insurance handbook for specifics, or contact the Treasurer’s 
office with questions.  An optional eye care discount card is available 
at the employee’s expense, as well as a flexible spending account.  
 
Effective December 1, 2008, the County shall begin to contribute fifty 
(50%) of the cost of single health insurance coverage through the 
County policy when the non-represented  employee retires after at 
least meeting the minimum age and time statutory requirements of the 
IMRF pension fund. This contribution shall continue until the non-
represented employee reaches the age at which Medicare coverage 
begins. This contribution is effective for non-represented employees 
who retire after December 1, 2008.(Adopted by the Ogle County Board 
on September 16, 2008) 


 
An optional payroll deduction life insurance program is also 
available to full-time and qualified part-time employees.  This 
program offers a variety of term, universal and whole life policies 
at the employee’s expense.  


 
5. Supplemental Insurance: Several supplemental insurance policies 


are available to the employee and dependents and can be paid 
through payroll deduction at the employee’s expense.  


 
6. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF): A tax sheltered 


retirement, disability and death benefit plan is required for all  
employees working more than 600 hours per year.  See IMRF 
benefits booklet for details or contact the County Clerk’s office 
with questions 
 


7. Deferred Compensation Program: In addition to IMRF, the 
County offers a deferred compensation program to full-time and 
qualified part-time employees.  This program gives County 
employees a way to save and invest for their retirement through 
payroll deductions, while postponing the payment of income taxes 
on their contributions and investment earnings until they retire.  


 
8. Payroll Deduction Savings Program: A payroll deduction savings 


program is also available to full-time and qualified part-time 
employees through local credit unions which enable employees to 
deposit a portion of their payroll directly into checking, savings, 
Christmas, vacation or other accounts. Contact the Treasurer’s 
Office for a list of participating credit unions.  


 
 B.  Hours of Work/Time off  
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1. Regular Day - Courthouse hours are from 8:30 A.M. to 4:30 P.M., 
Monday through Friday.  The regular work week is 35 hours per 
week.  A meal break shall be arranged, and shall be no more than 
one hour.  Break time is scheduled at the discretion of the 
Department Head and shall not exceed twice a day for more than a 
total of 30 minutes per day.  


 
2. Compensatory Time - Overtime work must be approved. Overtime 


is the hours worked in excess of the allowable number of hours per 
day as written in the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), generally 
40 hours per week.  Overtime hours are paid at one and one-half 
times the usual hourly wage.  The determination of whether 
compensatory time is to be given in lieu of payment must be made 
by the employer and employee before the time is worked.  
Compensatory time off will be calculated at a rate of one and one-
half hours for every hour of overtime worked over 40 hours.  
Accumulation of compensatory time is strongly discouraged, and 
is limited to a cap of eighty (80) hours per fiscal year.  Exempt 
employees may not receive compensatory time. 


 
3. Vacation Time – Effective December 1, 2007, Vacation time with 


pay shall be granted for full time employees according to the 
following schedule:  


Years 1 and 2 - 1 week  
Years 3 through 7 - 2 weeks  
Years 8 through 11 - 3 weeks  
Years 12 through 15 - 4 weeks 
Year 16 – 4 weeks, plus 1 day 
Year 17 – 4 weeks, plus 2 days 
Year 18 – 4 weeks, plus 3 days 
Year 19 – 4 weeks, plus 4 days  
Years 20 and beyond - 5 weeks  


 
                                   Adopted by the Ogle County Board on June 19, 2007 
 


Vacation time shall be computed from the anniversary date of 
employment. Vacation time cannot be accumulated, and must be 
used in the year in which it was granted. Vacation schedules 
shall be granted at the discretion of the Department Head in order 
to maintain the services of their department.  


Interruptions in employment of less than two consecutive years 
shall entitle employees to be considered as a continuing 
employee in granting vacation time.   
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No employee shall collect vacation pay and pay for time worked 
during the same time period.  Vacation pay is not to exceed the 
standard work week.  


4. Sick Leave - Sick leave may be used, when it has accrued, if the 
employee misses work for personal illness, health care 
appointments or treatments, to care for members of his/her 
immediate family during illness or for health care appointments for 
family members.  


  Effective   January 1, 2008, Sick leave accrues at one (1) day per 
pay month. An employee may use sick leave as it is accumulated 
even during the probationary period of employment. (Adopted by 
the Ogle County Board on June 19, 2007 and revised on November 
20, 2007.) 
 


Employees, when using sick leave for health care appointments, 
are required to notify their managers at least a day in advance of 
the requested sick leave day.  


A manager or department head may request that employees 
furnish a medical leave slip from their health care provider, when 
the sick leave extends beyond three days.  


 
Employees may accumulate up to 240 working days of sick leave. 
At that point sick leave no longer accrues, until the balance of days 
drops below the 240 maximum.  Employees who have exhausted 
sick pay must take unpaid time from work, when authorized, and 
may request vacation or use other paid leave time they may have 
accrued.  Employees leaving County employment are not 
compensated for any accrued sick leave.  


Time spent recuperating from an illness that strikes an employee 
while on vacation leave can be taken as sick leave.  As soon as 
possible, the employee’s vacation timesheet should be changed to 
reflect the hours claimed as sick leave.  (Falsification of such 
evidence may result in disciplinary action.)  


5. Holidays - all paid holidays shall be set annually by the County 
Board.  


 
6. Personal Days – Effective January 1, 2008, Employees shall be   


provided three (3) personal days each calendar year. The 
Department Head shall grant requests by employees to use 







 
December 2010 Revision & Distribution  


 


13


personal days except when to do so would conflict with the 
Employer’s operational need. 


 
Unused personal days may not be carried over from year to year. 
Use of personal days does not reduce accumulated sick leave 
hours. (Adopted by the Ogle County Board on June 19, 2007 and 
revised on November 20, 2007) 
 


7.        Bereavement Leave - Department Heads may grant employees up 
to three days of paid leave for attendance at funerals for immediate 
family (spouse, significant other, parent, step-parent, sister, 
brother, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandchild, 
grandparents, or anyone who raised the employee from childhood). 
Written proof of relationship, death and/or funeral location may be 
required by the Department Head prior to final approval of such 
leave. This leave shall be non-accumulative.  


 
8 Jury Duty - Ogle County employees called for jury services shall 


be granted paid leave, but must return pay for jury service, but not 
mileage allowances, to the Department Head. 


 
9 Military Leave - An employee who is a member of the Armed 


Forces Reserves or National Guard, when ordered for active duty 
or training, shall be granted special leave.  The employee, upon full 
disclosure, shall be compensated the difference in pay, if any, 
during such period of leave. The County will comply with all 
current State and Federal laws pertaining to other types of active 
duty assignments.  The employee’s family health coverage shall 
continue under Cobra.  


 
 C.  Salaries/Pay Periods  


Starting wages and base salaries for all non-represented positions are 
established by the Department Head according to job level classification 
plans approved and amended by the County Board from time to time.  
Starting wage exceptions are determined by individual Department 
Heads and the Administrator based on discretion allowed within the 
established pay range per job classification and approved budget.   


Annual salary adjustments are determined by the Department Head 
subject to the departmental budget approved by the Ogle County Board.  


There are 24 pay periods in a year.  Pay days are on the 15th and the last 
day of each month.  When pay days fall on a weekend or a holiday, every 
effort will be made to distribute checks on a prior day.  
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 D.  Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)  


Ogle County complies with the Family and Medical Leave Act 
implementing regulations as revised effective October 28, 2009 and as 
amended from time to time by the US Department of Labor.  The function 
of this policy is to provide employees with a general description of their 
FMLA rights.  In the event of any conflict between this policy and the 
applicable law, employees will be afforded all rights required by law.  


General Provisions: In accordance with federal law, Ogle County will 
grant up to 12 weeks (or up to 26 weeks of military caregiver leave to care 
for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness) of unpaid 
leave of absence during a twelve (12) month period to eligible employees.  
The leave may be paid, unpaid, or a combination of paid and unpaid leave 
depending on the circumstances of the leave and as specified in this 
policy.   


Eligibility: To qualify to take family or medical leave under this policy, 
the employee must meet all of the following conditions: 


1. The employee must have worked for Ogle County for 12 months 
or 52 weeks.  The 12 months or 52 weeks need not have been consecutive.  
Separate periods of employment will be counted, provided that the break 
in service does not exceed seven years.  Separate periods of employment 
will be counted if the break in service exceeds seven years due to National 
Guard or reserve military service obligations or when there is a written 
agreement, including a collective bargaining agreement, stating the 
employer’s intention to rehire the employee after the service break.  For 
eligibility purposes, an employee will be considered to have been 
employed for an entire week even if the employee was on the payroll for 
only part of a week or if the employee is on leave during the week. 


2. The employee must have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 
12-month period immediately before the date when the leave is requested 
to commence. The principles established under the Fair Labor Standards 
Act (FLSA) determine the number of hours worked by an employee.  The 
FLSA does not include time spent on paid or unpaid leave as hours 
worked.  Consequently, these hours of leave should not be counted in 
determining the 1,250 hours eligibility test for an employee under FMLA. 


3. The employee must work in a worksite where 50 or more 
employees are employed by Ogle County within 75 miles of that office or 
worksite.  The distance is to be calculated by using available 
transportation by the most direct route.  
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Type of Leave Covered:  To qualify as FMLA leave under this policy, 
the employee must be taking leave(1) to care for a spouse, child, or parent  
with a serious health condition (defined below), (2) because the serious 
health condition of the employee that makes the employee unable to 
perform the functions of the employee’s position (3) the birth of a child 
and in order to care for that child (4) the placement of a child for adoption 
or foster care and to care for the newly placed child or (5) Qualifying 
exigency leave for families of members of the National Guard or Reserves 
or of a regular component of the Armed Forces when the covered military 
member is on covered active duty or called to covered active duty. 


A serious health condition is defined as a condition that requires inpatient 
care at a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility, including 
any period of incapacity or any subsequent treatment in connection with 
such inpatient care or a condition that requires continuing care by a 
licensed health care provider. 


This policy covers illnesses of a serious and long-term nature, resulting in 
recurring or lengthy absences.  Generally, a chronic or long-term health 
condition that would result in a period of three consecutive days of 
incapacity with the first visit to the health care provider within seven days 
of the onset of the incapacity and a second visit within 30 days of the 
incapacity would be considered a serious health condition.  For chronic 
conditions requiring periodic health care visits for treatment, such visits 
must take place a least twice a year.    


Employees with questions about what illnesses are covered under this 
FMLA policy or under Ogle County’s sick leave policy are encouraged to 
consult with their Department Head and/or the County Administrator.   
 
If an employee takes paid sick leave for a condition that progresses into a 
serious health condition and the employee requests unpaid leave as 
provided under this policy, Ogle County may designate all or some portion 
of related leave taken as leave under this policy, to the extent that the 
earlier leave meets the necessary qualifications.   


 
An employee whose spouse, son, daughter, or parent either has been 
notified of an impending call or order to covered active military duty or 
who is already on covered active duty may take up to 12 weeks of leave 
for reasons related to or affected by the family member’s call-up or 
service.  The qualifying exigency must be one of the following: (1) short-
notice deployment, (2) military events and activities, (3) child care and 
school activities, (4) financial and legal arrangements (5) counseling (6) 
rest and recuperation (7) post-deployment activities and (8) additional 
activities that arise out of active duty, provided that the employer and 
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employee agree, including agreement on timing and duration of the leave.        


Amount of Leave: An eligible employee can take up to 12 weeks for the 
FMLA circumstances noted in (1) through (5) above under this policy 
during any 12-month period.  The 12-month period is calculated according 
to the employee’s anniversary date.  If a full 12 weeks FMLA leave are 
used within a 12-month period, the employee must wait 12 months from 
the last day of the 12-week leave taken before becoming eligible for 
another 12 weeks of FMLA leave.  An eligible employee can take up to 26 
weeks for the FMLA circumstance (7) above (military caregiver leave) 
during a single 12-month period.  FMLA leave already taken for other 
FMLA circumstances will be deducted from the total of 26 weeks 
available.   


If a husband and wife both work for Ogle County and each wishes to take 
leave for the birth of a child, adoption, or placement of a child in foster 
care, or to care for a parent (but not a parent “in-law”) with a serious 
health condition, the husband and wife may only take a combined total of 
12 weeks of leave.  If a husband and wife both work for Ogle County and 
each wishes to take leave to care for a covered injured or ill service 
member, the husband and wife may only take a combined total of 26 
weeks of leave.   


All employees requesting FMLA leave must provide verbal or written 
notice of the need for the leave to their Department Head.  Within five 
business days after the employee has provided this notice, the Department 
head will complete and provide the employee with the DOL Notice of 
Eligibility and Rights 
(http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/fmla/finalrule/WH381.pdf.)  


When the need for the leave is foreseeable, the employee must provide the 
employer with at least 30 days advance notice.  When an employee 
becomes aware of a need for FMLA leave less than 30 days in advance, 
the employee must provide notice of the need for the leave either the same 
day or the next business day.  When the need for FMLA leave is not 
foreseeable, the employee must comply with Ogle County’s usual and 
customary notice and procedural requirements for requesting leave, absent 
unusual circumstances.   


Leave for parenting must be taken within one year of the birth or 
placement of the child.   


Within five business days after the employee has submitted the 
appropriate certification form, the Department Head will complete and 
provide the employee with a written response to the employee’s request 



http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/fmla/finalrule/WH381.pdf
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for FMLA leave using the DOL Designated Notice 
(http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/WHh-382.pdf). 


Upon request for medical leave, Ogle County will require certification of 
the condition from an appropriate health care provider.  If an employee 
refuses to sign a HIPAA release form allowing Ogle County to talk with 
the employee’s health care provider to certify the leave based on a  
serious health condition, Ogle County may deny the FMLA request.  
Depending upon the need which is certified, leave may be taken 
intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule.  


Employees on FMLA leave will be required to take accrued vacation, 
compensatory time and sick leave concurrently.  
 
While an employee is on leave, Ogle County will continue the employee’s 
health benefits during the leave period at the same level and under the 
same conditions as if the employee had continued to work.  If the 
employee chooses not to return to work for reasons other than a continued 
serious health condition of the employee or family member or a 
circumstance beyond the employee’s control, Ogle County will require the 
employee to reimburse the County the amount it paid for the employee’s 
health insurance premium during the leave period.  While on unpaid leave, 
the employee must continue to make health care premium payments to the 
Treasurer’s Office.  If the payment is more than 30 days late, the 
employee’s health care coverage may be dropped for the duration of the 
leave.   
 
Contact your Department Head or the County Administrator for additional 
FMLA policy questions.   


 
 
 E. Leaves of Absence 
 
  Unpaid leaves of absence may be granted by Department Heads to 


employees, who have used their accumulated sick leave time, for 
continued sickness or disability or for other good cause shown by the 
employee. The length of an unpaid leave of absence is at the discretion of 
the Department Head, but may be granted with the goal of maintaining 
department services. Anyone hired to fill a vacancy created by a leave of 
absence granted under this section shall be informed as to the duration of 
their employment. No permanent employment status is conferred on a 
person hired to replace a continuing employee on leave of absence.  


 
  Employees granted a leave under this provision for good cause other than 


sickness or disability shall not lose accumulated sick days. Vacation time 
shall be granted on the basis of time employed not counting the leave of 



http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/WHh-382.pdf
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absence, but no vacation time shall be granted for time on leave. 
Employees seeking an unpaid leave under this provision who wish to 
continue service credit during the leave with the IMRF must request 
approval of the County Board Chairman, the Chairman of the Personnel 
and Salary Committee as well as their department head, in advance of 
commencing the leave. Employees will also be responsible for all 
contributions required by IMRF during this leave. An employee who 
participates in the County Health Insurance Plan must pay all (employee 
and employer) health insurance premiums falling due during any month in 
which the employee has not worked the minimum hours required by the 
County insurance carrier. 


 
      Revised by the Personnel & Salary Committee on June 15, 2005 


 


IV. ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY  


 A. Policy 
 It has been and remains the policy of Ogle County to prevent sexual 


harassment in the workplace.  Accordingly, sexual harassment in the 
workplace is prohibited and will not be tolerated.  Sexual harassment 
derogates another’s dignity and privacy: if found, it may result in the 
offender’s discipline or termination of employment.  On the other hand, 
allegations of sexual harassment are serious and can be extremely harmful 
to the alleged offender.  Accordingly, such allegations should only be 
made in good faith and with the exercise of good judgment.  False or 
irresponsible allegations may subject the complainant to discipline or 
other adverse employment actions by Employer.  


 
 
B.   Individuals Covered Under the Policy   
 This policy covers all Ogle County employees and officials.  Ogle County 


will not tolerate, condone, or allow sexual harassment, whether engaged in 
by fellow employees, Supervisors and Managers, support staff or other 
non-employees who conduct business with the County.  The County 
supports and encourages reporting all incidents of sexual harassment, 
regardless of who the offender may be. 


 
C. Sexual harassment 
 Sexual harassment includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for 


sexual favors and other verbal or physical behavior of a sexual nature when 
(1) submitting or refusing to submit to that conduct is used as a basis for 
any decision affecting an individual’s employment status or (2) that 
conduct has the purpose of effect of substantially interfering with an 
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or 
offensive working environment. 
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D. Complaint Procedure 
 Individuals who believe they have been subjected to sexual harassment 


have recourse through the following procedure designed to effectively 
investigate and fairly resolve the complaint: 


  
1) Initiation of complaint 


Any employee with a complaint of sexual harassment should 
report the incident promptly to the employee’s immediate 
Supervisor or Department Head.  If the Complainant deems it 
inappropriate to do so, the complainant may report the alleged 
harassment to any other Supervisor in whom the complainant has 
trust and confidence.  If the complaint is against the employee’s 
supervisor, the complaint should be filed with the next higher level 
of supervision.  If the complaint is against the Department Head 
the complaint should be filed with the Department Head of any 
other Department of Ogle County.  If the complaint is against any 
elected official, the complaint should be filed with the County 
Board Chairperson.  Unless directed otherwise, any Supervisor so 
informed will immediately notify the Department Head.  Each 
Department Head will be responsible for promptly reviewing and 
resolving the complaint.  If appropriate, however, other officers of 
Employer may be given responsibility for the review and 
resolution of the complaint. 


 
  2) Review 


i. Confidentiality during the review will be maintained at all 
times.  Accordingly, [a] only a person who is identified as an 
alleged offender or witness will be informed of the complaint and, 
where necessary, interviewed and [b] the minimum number of 
employees necessary to resolve the complaint shall be involved, 
and made knowledgeable of the complaint, and [c] documents, if 
any, alluding to the complaint shall be kept segregated from other 
personnel records and sealed when the investigation is complete;  


  
ii. The review will include interviews with the complainant, 
the alleged offender, who will be informed of the allegations made, 
and any other relevant persons.  Relevant documents will also be 
reviewed; 


 
iii. Within five (5) days after the review concluded, the 
Department Head will decide whether the allegations are 
supported.  The Department Head will then inform the complainant 
and alleged offender of his decision.  If the Department Head 
determines that the offender shall be subject to disciplinary action, 
disciplinary action may include, but is not limited to termination of 
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employment. 
 
 Individuals who believe they have been subjected to sexual harassment may also 


seek recourse through the Illinois Department of Human Rights and the Illinois 
Human Rights Commission.  The procedure individuals must follow is set forth in 
the Illinois Human Rights Act and the rules and regulations of the Illinois 
Department of Human Rights and the Illinois Human Rights Commission.  
Further information, if needed, should be obtained by contacting the Illinois 
Department of Human Rights at 100 West Randolph Street, Suite 10-100, 
Chicago, Illinois, [telephone number (312) 814-6200], or the Illinois Human 
Rights Commission at 100 West Randolph Street, Suite 5-100, Chicago, Illinois, 
[telephone number (312) 814-6269]. 


  
 E. Third Party Harassment 


 Any employee who has been sexually harassed by a third party (e.g., 
citizen or vendor) should report the incident promptly in accordance with 
the above procedures and the complaint will be investigated and resolved 
in a manner similar to that set forth above. 


 
F. Non-Retaliation  
 Complaints made in good faith under this policy shall not result in any 


adverse action against the complainant, and no other who participates in 
good faith in an investigation will be treated adversely because of that 
participation. 


  
 
 G. Examples of Sexual Harassment 
 
  1) Sexual comments of a provocative or suggestive nature; 
  2) Jokes or innuendoes intended for and directed to another  


employee; 
  3) Leaving sexually explicit books, magazines, or photographs where  


employees will find them; 
  4) Unwelcome demeaning comments, ridicule, offensive language,  


propositions, or other similar actions; 
  5) Unwanted, unwarranted, unsolicited off-duty telephone calls and  


contact; 
  6) Signed or anonymous unwelcome notes or drawings placed on or  


in desks or bulletin boards, or in lockers; 
  7) Deliberately singling out female employees in front of male co- 


workers (or vice versa) and subjecting them to demeaning or 
derogatory remarks; 


  8) Creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working  
environment; 


  9) Making acceptance of unwelcome sexual conduct or advances or  
requests for sexual favors of any nature a condition of continued  
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employment, or a part of the employment arrangement; 
  10) Transferring, demoting, or dismissing employees who refuse  


sexual advances or those whose place is taken by an employee 
receiving sexual favors. 


   
V. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE  


A. Ogle County desires to employ a work force free from abuse of alcohol 
and illegal drugs to improve the quality of life for our employees, provide 
a safe and productive work environment, and to save money on health care 
costs.  


 
B. Ogle County recognizes the problem of alcohol and other substance abuse 


in our society.  Furthermore, Ogle County considers substance abuse as a 
serious threat to the quality of life in our community.  We are addressing 
this problem by maintaining a substance abuse policy.  This policy 
requires that Ogle County be a drug-free workplace in compliance with 
the Drug Free Workplace Act.  Ogle County may be denied State and/or 
Federal funds for violations of the Drug Free Workplace Act.  


 
C. Ogle County has a vital interest in maintaining safe, healthful, and 


productive working conditions for its employees and the public.  An 
employee whose work performance is adversely affected by the use of 
illegal drugs or alcohol may cause personal injury, decreased productivity, 
decreased morale, increased medical expenses and other work related 
problems.  


 
D. The ultimate goal of this policy is to balance our respect for individual 


privacy with our need to keep a safe, productive, drug-free environment. 
We encourage those who use illegal drugs or abuse alcohol to seek help in 
overcoming this problem.  In this way, fully rehabilitated abusers who 
remain drug-free can remain at work or return to work in good standing.  


 
E. Ogle County understands that employees and job applicants benefit from 


the responsible use of prescription drugs.  However, abuse of prescribed 
medications will be dealt with in the same manner as the abuse of illegal 
substances.  This policy does not prohibit the lawful, responsible use of 
alcohol or other legal drugs.  


 
F. The purpose of this policy is to insure a safe and productive workplace; 


provide notice that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, 
possession, or use of a controlled substance, including cannabis, is 
prohibited in any and all of the Ogle County workplaces; specify the 
actions that will be taken for violations of the drug laws; require 
compliance with the drug free work place policy; inform employees about 
the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the policy for maintaining a 
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drug free workplace, available drug counseling and rehabilitation and the 
penalties that may be imposed for drug violations; and to assist the 
employee in selecting a course of action in the event drug counseling, 
treatment, and/or rehabilitation is required.  


 
G. This policy sets forth a standard of conduct for the employees of Ogle 


County.  Employees shall not use illegal drugs, be under the influence of 
alcohol or have alcohol in his/her system such that business activities are 
adversely affected.  This policy relates only to individual behaviors while 
in the scope of employment.  


 
H. Definitions  


 
1) “Legal Drug” - includes prescribed drugs and over-the-counter 


drugs which have been legally obtained and are being used solely 
for the purpose for which they were prescribed or manufactured.  


 
2) “Illegal Drug” - any drug: [a] which is not legally obtainable; [b] 


which may be legally obtainable but has not been legally obtained; 
or [c] which is being used in a manner or for a purpose other than 
as prescribed.  


3) “Under the Influence” - an employee shall be determined under 
the influence of alcohol or other drug, if, in the course of 
employment for the County:  


i The employee’s normal faculties are impaired due to 
consumption of alcohol or other drug, and/or,  


ii The employee has a blood alcohol level of .04 or higher, 
and/or,  


iii The employee is affected by an illegal drug, alcohol or both 
in any detectable manner.  


iv The symptoms of influence are not confined to those 
consistent with misbehavior, nor to obvious impairment of 
physical or mental ability, such as slurred speech or 
difficulty in maintaining balance.  A determination of 
influence can be established by a lay-person’s opinion.  


 
I. Procedure  


1) An employee must immediately notify the employer of any finding of 
guilty for a violation of the drug laws where such violation occurred in the 
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workplace.  


2) Ogle County must notify any applicable State or Federal funding 
agencies within ten (10) days after receiving notice from an employee 
that he/she had been found guilty of the drug law.  


3) Ogle County will maintain a policy notifying employees that the 
unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of 
drug or controlled substance or unauthorized use of or being under the 
influence of alcohol is prohibited in the workplace.  


4) A Drug Free Workplace Acknowledgment Form shall be signed by all 
employees upon employment (Appendix 4).  


 


5) Ogle County will conduct a reasonable investigation if there is reasonable 
cause to believe that there has been a violation of this policy.  


6) An Employee determined to be in violation of this policy is guilty of 
misconduct and is subject to disciplinary action which may include:  


i. A one time satisfactory completion of a substance abuse assistance 
program or rehabilitation program as appropriate will be available 
within insurance limits.  


 
 
ii. Probationary status with specific objectives to be determined 


depending on the situation.  
 
iii. Immediate termination.  


 
7) An employee reporting for Ogle County work activities while under the 


influence will not be allowed to work.  If possible, the employee’s 
supervisor should seek a conferring opinion on the status of the impaired 
employee.  The supervisor should consult privately with the employee to 
determine cause of impairment. The supervisor or staff should arrange 
for the employees’ safe transportation home.  


8) Testing for Ogle County employees may include pre-employment testing,  
 post-accident testing and/or upon reasonable suspicion of use.  Those  
 employees operating vehicles may also be subject to random alcohol and 
 drug testing.  
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VI. PERSONNEL RECORDS  


A. Ogle County maintains confidential personnel files on all employees. 
These records must be kept current and accurate.  Correct information will 
allow for prompt notification in an emergency and ensure correct coverage 
for insurance and other benefits.  Only authorized personnel are permitted 
access to files.   


 
 B. It is the employee’s responsibility to provide prompt notification of a  
 change in any of these items: 
  
 1)  name 


2)  address 
3)  telephone number 
4) person to notify in case of an emergency  
5) tax withholding information  
6) payroll deductions  


C. It is the employee’s responsibility to provide current copies of professional 
licensure (Driver’s License), required certifications for his/her personnel 
file, as well as proof of auto insurance for those using their own vehicles 
to conduct county business.  


 
D. Subject to the requirements and restrictions of the Illinois Personnel 


Record Review Act (Act) (820 ILCS 40 et. Seq.), an employee may 
request to inspect their personnel file/records.  Department Heads shall 
allow the employee an inspection opportunity within 7 working days after 
the employee makes the request, or as outlined in the Act. The employee 
shall review the file in the presence of the Department Head or designee.  


 
Inspections are subject to the restrictions and exceptions outlined in the  
Act.  


E. All elected Department Heads shall have a personnel file in the State 
Attorney’s Office.  Appointed Department Heads shall have a personnel 
file in the County Administrator’s Office.   Uniform files will be provided 
by the Personnel and Salary Committee and will be considered County 
property.  


 
F. Copies of information in the personnel file may be furnished to the 


employees, subject to the restrictions in the Act.  
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VII. DISCIPLINE/DISCHARGE  


It shall be the duty of each employee to maintain high standards of conduct, to 
work cooperatively and efficiently. Whenever work habits, attitude, production or 
personal conduct of any employee fall below a desirable standard, employees may 
be subject to disciplinary action.  


When disciplinary action is warranted, it will ordinarily be of a progressive nature 
starting with an oral warning, followed by a written warning, followed by a 
suspension and then followed by dismissal.  However, progressive discipline is 
not warranted in all cases and the County may proceed to any and all steps in 
discipline at employer’s sole discretion, nor does it change or alter the 
employment “at-will” relationship.  Repeated violations of the same rule, 
violations of more than one rule in a single act, violations of different rules at 
different times, and aggravating circumstances, however, shall be cause for 
accelerated or compound disciplinary action. Moreover, certain serious types of 
misconduct may result in immediate dismissal.  


Some examples are but not necessarily limited to:  
 


• Theft or misuse of County property  
• Abuse of sick leave  
• Unexplained absence or repeated tardiness  
• Misconduct with or wrongful use of equipment  


 • Possession, use, consumption, transfer or sale of alcohol or unlawful  
 substances while on county property or in the performance of duties  


• Reporting to work following the abuse of alcohol or unlawful substances  
• Severe insubordination  


 
All actions shall be documented and added to the employees personnel  
file.  


VIII. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE  


The County realizes the importance of good employee relations and, therefore, 
has implemented a grievance process.  However, the grievance process does not 
create a contract between the County and any employee, does not alter the “at-
will” employment relationship, and is not required before the termination of an 
employee.   


The following is adopted as a means of problem solving or grievance resolution 
for employees of Ogle County:  


1. Ogle County wishes to prevent circumstances that lead to grievances. 
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When a dispute occurs, it is to be resolved promptly.  Employees will not 
face adverse consequences for filing a grievance.  Grievances may be filed 
alleging unfair treatment, discrimination, improper application of 
regulations and benefits of employment, and for improper working 
conditions.  


 
2. Informal grievance is the first step in the process, attempting to resolve the 


problem through an informal meeting with the supervisor.  If this attempt 
to resolve the problem fails, a more formal grievance, in writing, should 
be filed.  This formal grievance, signed by the employee, is presented to 
his/her supervisor within two weeks of the occurrence. The employee 
should include a statement regarding what action they are requesting be 
taken as a result of the grievance.  


 
3.  The Department Head or appointed manager will provide a copy to the 


County Administrator and initiate an appropriate investigation.  The 
Department Head or appointed manager will take steps to resolve the 
grievance. All documentation should be held by the Department Head, 
appointed manager, and the County Administrator.  The employee may 
appeal to the Personnel Committee during the process if dissatisfied with 
the resolution of the grievance.  Failure to appeal will imply agreement 
with the resolution.  


 
IX.  INCIDENT REPORT  
  
 A. An incident is any happening which involves a client, visitor or employee 


which is not consistent with the regular work routine for Ogle County.   
  
 B. Employees must verbally report all incidents to their supervisors as soon 


as possible and complete the written Employee Incident Report within 24 
hours (working period). (Appendix 3)  


  
 C. All on-the-job injuries must be reported to the Department Head or 
 designee as soon as practicable to allow filing of worker’s compensation  
 claims in the proper manner.  If an employee is disabled temporarily by an  
 on-the-job accident, he/she is eligible for worker’s compensation and will  
 not be charged with any vacation or sick leave time while away from  
 his/her position.  
  
X. SOLICITATION/DISTRIBUTION POLICY  
 


A. Solicitations by employees seeking payments, contributions, 
memberships, signatures, funds and other similar solicitations or the 
distribution of non-work related literature by employees will not be 
permitted during the working time of any employee involved in the 
solicitation and/or distribution.  
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B. Solicitation or distribution by employees on non-working time in a 
manner that disturbs other employees performing work or is otherwise 
disruptive of the performance of the (employer’s) work will not be 
permitted.  


C. Distribution of non-work related literature by employees will not be 
permitted in working areas at any time.  


D. Solicitation or distribution by non-employees will not be permitted:  


1. During the working time of any employee receiving the solicitation 
or distribution,  


 
2. At any time in areas not open to the public or in public areas where 


such activity is inconsistent with the intended and normal use of 
the area,  


 
3. In a manner which disturbs employees who are working.  


 
E. The posting of non-work related materials or literature on Ogle County 


government bulletin boards used for County business is prohibited. 
Governmental notices by other units of government are excepted.  


F. “Working time” does not include break time, lunch periods, or other 
periods where employees are not required to be performing their job 
functions.  


G. Gifts and Gratuities - Ogle County employees and Officials shall comply 
with the current Ogle County Ethics Ordinance. (Appendix 5)  


H. Communications and Telecommunications - Any communication with the 
public is the responsibility of Ogle County management or the person 
designated for that communication.  Any non-routine or controversial 
questions or those out of the scope of the employee’s job duties should be 
referred to the person designated to communicate on behalf of Ogle 
County.  


Ogle County telephones are to be used for Ogle County business. 
Personal calls should be limited both in frequency and length of the call. 
Long distance personal calls are not allowed, except in particular 
situations, which should have approval of the manager.  
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XI. SMOKING POLICY  


A. January 1, 2008, Public Act 095-0017, the Smoke Free Illinois Act 
became law in the State of Illinois.  


B. To comply with Act 095-0017, Smoking is prohibited on the identified 
County Properties of: the entire block on which the Old Courthouse is 
located; the entire block commonly referred to as 103 Jefferson Street 
(including all outbuildings and unattached office and workspaces), the 
property at 106 S. 5th Street (Judicial Center) and the property at 907, 
909, 911 and 913 Pines Road, commonly referred to as the Pines Road 
Annex, and all Focus House locations.  


           Smoking at the Ogle County Highway Complex is not allowed within 
15 feet of any building, doorway or window area. (Adopted by the Ogle 
County Board on February 19, 2008) 


      C. Employees who smoke and wish to stop are encouraged to seek 
assistance.  Information can be obtained at the Ogle County Health 
Department.  


XII. IT USE POLICY 


 The purpose of this policy is to establish acceptable and unacceptable use of 
electronic devices and network resources at Ogle County in conjunction with its 
established culture of ethical and lawful behavior, openness, trust, and integrity.  Ogle 
County provides computer devices, networks, and other electronic information systems to 
deliver service, meet goals and initiatives, and must manage them responsibly to maintain 
the confidentiality, integrity and availability of its information assets.  This policy 
requires the users of information assets to comply with County policies and protects Ogle 
County against damaging legal issues.  All employees, contractors, consultants, 
temporary, and other County workers, including all personnel affiliated with third parties, 
must adhere to this policy, and should have no expectation of privacy while conducting 
county business through Ogle County systems and devices.  This policy applies to 
information assets owned or leased by Ogle County or to devices that connect to an Ogle 
County network or reside at an Ogle County site.  The Sheriff must approve exceptions to 
this policy in advance. 
 
Employees are responsible for exercising good judgment regarding appropriate use of 
Ogle County resources in accordance with Ogle County policies, standards, and 
guidelines.  County resources may not be used for any unlawful or prohibited purpose.   
 
For security, compliance, and maintenance purposes, authorized personnel may monitor 
and audit equipment, systems, and network traffic per audit policy.  Devices that interfere 
with other devices or users on the county network may be disconnected.  Employees may 
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not block authorized audit scans.  Firewalls and other blocking technologies must permit 
access to the scan sources.   
 
Employees are responsible for the security of data, accounts, and systems under their 
control.  Employees must keep passwords secure and not share account or password 
information with anyone, including other personnel, family, or friends.  Providing access 
to another individual, either deliberately or through failure to secure its access, is a 
violation of this policy.  Employees must maintain system level and user level passwords 
in accordance with established password policies.   
 
Employees must ensure through legal or technical means that proprietary information 
remains within the control of Ogle County at all times.  Conducting County business that 
results in the storage of proprietary information on personal or non-county controlled 
environments, including devices maintained by a third party with whom Ogle County 
does not have a contractual agreement, is prohibited.  This specifically prohibits the use 
of an email account that is not authorized by Ogle County for County business.   
 
Employees are responsible for ensuring the protection of county assets as reasonably 
possible.  Promptly report any theft of County assets to the Sheriff.  All PCs, PDAs, 
laptops, and workstations must be secured with a password protected screensaver with 
the automatic activation feature set to 10 minutes or less.  You must lock the screen or 
log off when the device is unattended.  Devices that connect to the County network must 
also comply with these procedures.  Employees are prohibited from interfering with the 
County’s device management or security system software, including but not limited to 
antivirus and malware software distribution and activation.   
 
Employees are responsible for the security and appropriate use of County network 
resources under their control.  Using County resources for the following is strictly 
prohibited: 
 


1.  Causing a security breach to either County or other network resources, including 
but not limited to accessing data, servers, or accounts to which you are not 
authorized, circumventing user authentication on any device, or sniffing network 
traffic. 


2. Causing a disruption of service to either County or other network resources, 
including but not limited to ICMP floods, packet spoofing, denial of service, 
heap or buffer overflows, forged routing information for malicious purposes 
such as honeypots, honeynets, or similar technology on the County network.  


3. Violating copyright law, including but not limited to illegally duplicating or 
transmitting copyrighted pictures, music, video, and software.   


4. Exporting or importing software, technical information, encryption software, or 
technology in violation of international or regional export control laws.   


5. Use of the internet or County network that violates County policies or local laws. 
6. Intentionally introducing malicious code, including but not limited to, viruses, 


worms, Trojan horses, e-mail bombs, spyware, adware, and keyloggers.   
7. Port scanning or security scanning on a production network unless authorized in 
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advance by the Sheriff.   
 
The following are strictly prohibited: 


1. Inappropriate use of communication vehicles and equipment, including but not 
limited to supporting illegal activities and procuring or transmitting material that 
violates County policies against harassment or the safeguarding of confidential or 
proprietary information. 


2. Sending spam via email, text messages, pages, instant messages, voice mail, or 
other forms of electronic communication. 


3. Forging, misrepresenting, obscuring, suppressing, or replacing a user identity on 
any electronic communication to mislead the recipient about the sender. 


4. Posting the same or similar non-buseinss related messages to large numbers of 
usenet newsgroups (newsgroup spam.) 


5. Use of County email or IP address to engage in conduct that violates County 
policies or guidelines.  Posting to a public newsgroup, bulletin board, or listserv 
with a County email or IP address represents Ogle County to the public; therefore, 
you must exercise good judgment to avoid misrepresenting or exceeding your 
authority in representing the opinion of the County. 


 
An employee found to have violated this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, 
up to and including termination of employment.  A violation of this policy by a 
temporary worker contractor, or vendor may result in the termination of their 
assignment or contract with the County.     


 


XII. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE  


A.  If any part of this resolution is found to be unconstitutional, the remainder 
shall be valid.
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Appendix #1  


Employee Acknowledgment Form  


The Ogle County Personnel Policies and Benefits Handbook describes important information 
about Ogle County and I understand that I should consult my supervisor regarding any 
questions not answered in the handbook.  


Since the information, policies, and benefits described here are necessarily subject to change, I 
acknowledge that revisions to the handbook may occur.  All such changes will be communicated 
through official notices, and I understand that revised information may supersede, modify, or 
eliminate existing policies.  Only the County Board has the ability to adopt any revisions to the 
policies in this handbook, including departmental supplements.  


I have entered into my employment relationship with Ogle County voluntarily and acknowledge 
that there is no specified length of employment.  Accordingly, either I or Ogle County can 
terminate the relationship at will, with or without cause, at any time.  Upon resignation or 
termination of employment, my employer shall complete and submit the Employee Separation 
Form (Appendix 4), which states the reason for my separation from employment.  


Furthermore, I acknowledge that this handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a legal 
document. I have received the handbook, and I understand that it is my responsibility to read and 
comply with the policies contained in this handbook and any revisions made to it.  
 
 
 


__________________________________________ _______________________ 
Employee’s Signature     Date  
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Employee’s Name (typed or printed)  
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Appendix # 2  


New Employee Checklist  


DEPARTMENT: ____________________________________________________________ 


NAME: _________________________________ SS #: _________________________ 


ADDRESS:__________________________________ HOME PHONE:_________________ 


____________________________________________ Date of Employment______________ 


Given             Completed  


1. _____ Ogle County Personnel Policies Manual & Employee Acknowledgment Form  _________ 
2. _____ Job Description _________  
3. _____ IL-W-4 Form (IL Employee’s Withholding Allowance Certificate)  _________  
4. _____ W-4 Form (US Employee’s Withholding Allowance Certificate)  _________  
5. _____ Form I-9 (US Dept. Of Justice - Employment Eligibility Verification) _________  
5a.          Copy of Drivers License and Social Security Card for above _________  
6. _____ Notice of Enrollment in IMRF Form (IMRF Form 6.10) _________  
7. _____ Designation of Beneficiary Form (IMRF Form 6.11)  _________  
8. _____ IMRF booklet “Your IMRF Benefits”      _________ 
9. _____ Health Insurance Packet        _________ 
10._____ Credit Union Payroll Deduction Savings Program enrollment form   _________  
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Appendix #3  
OGLE COUNTY EMPLOYEE 


UNUSUAL OCCURRENCE/INCIDENT REPORT


 


NAME__________________________________DATE__________________________ 


JOB 
TITLE_____________________________DEPARTMENT_______________________ 
 
LOCATION/TIME___________________________________________________________  


 
TYPE OF INCIDENT  
_____ Injury to Employee   _____ Threatened, Verbal Abuse to Employee  


_____ Injury to Visitor/citizen  _____ Threatened, Verbal Abuse to Visitor/citizen  


_____ Damage to County Property _____ Equipment Failure


_____ Damage to Citizen Property  


 
DESCRIPTION OF INCIDENT (what happened, who/what was involved, how did it 
happen, sequence of events, witnesses?)  
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
NOTIFICATIONS 
___Dept. Head________________________________ Date/time___________________ 
___Family____________________________________ Date/time___________________ 
___Sheriff’s Dept______________________________  Date/time___________________ 
___Ambulance________________________________ Date/time___________________ 
 
FOLLOW-UP 
ACTIONS___________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
FORM COMPLETED BY _____________________________________________________ 


DEPT HEAD REVIEW/SIGN__________________________________DATE___________ 
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Appendix #4 


 
Ogle County Drug-Free Workplace Policy  


Ogle County functions as a drug-free workplace in accordance with the provisions of the Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1988.  Unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use 
of a controlled substance is prohibited in the County and its programs, wherever such programs or 
services are provided.  


Ogle County desires to employ a work force free from abuse of alcohol and illegal drugs to 
improve quality of life for our employees, provide a save and productive work environment, and 
to save money on health care costs.  


All employees are provided with this statement as to the County’s drug-free workplace policy. 
All employees are required to confirm receipt of this policy by signing below.  A copy of the 
employee’s signed statement will be kept in the employee’s personnel file.  


Employees are required to abide by the terms of this statement as a condition of initial and 
continued employment. Employees are also required to notify their Department Head of any 
criminal drug statute conviction occurring in the workplace after such conviction.  


The County will take the following actions, at the discretion of the Department Head, within 30 
days of receiving notice regarding an employee convicted of a criminal drug charge:  


1. Take appropriate personnel action, up to and including termination.  
 
2. Require employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 


rehabilitation program, such participation to include all recommended evaluation, 
treatment and follow-up, as a condition of continued employment, as appropriate.  


 
I have been provided with and have read the above statement as regards Ogle County’s drug-
free workplace policy.  I understand that a copy of this statement with my signature will be a 
part of my personnel file, and that my employment with the County is contingent upon 
compliance with the drug-free workplace policy.  


Employee ____________________________________________ Date __________________  
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Appendix # 5  
 
Ogle County Ethics Ordinance  
 


ETHICS ORDINANCE 
 
 
PREAMBLE 
 
WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly has enacted the State Officials and 
Employees Ethics Act (Public Act 93-615, effective November 19, 2003, as amended by 
Public Act 93-617, effective December 9, 2003), which is a comprehensive revision of 
State statutes regulating ethical conduct, political activities and the solicitation and 
acceptance of gifts by State officials and employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act requires all units of local government and school districts, within 
six months after the effective date of Public Act 93-615, to adopt ordinances or 
resolutions regulating the political activities of, and the solicitation and acceptance of 
gifts by, the officers and employees of such units "in a manner no less restrictive" than 
the provisions of the Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the clear intention of the Act to require units of local government and 
school districts to implement regulations that are at least as restrictive as those contained 
in the Act, and to impose penalties for violations of those regulations that are equivalent 
to those imposed by the Act, notwithstanding that such penalties may exceed the general 
authority granted to units of local government to penalize ordinance violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the clear intention of the Act to provide units of local government with 
all authority necessary to implement its requirements on the local level regardless of any 
general limitations on the power to define and punish ordinance violations that might 
otherwise be applicable; and 
 
WHEREAS, because the Act provides for the imposition of significant penalties for 
violations of said local regulations, it is necessary to adopt the required regulations by 
Ordinance rather than by Resolution;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF OGLE 
COUNTY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: The Code of Ordinances of Ogle County is hereby amended by the 
addition of the following provisions: 
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ARTICLE 1 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 1-1. For purposes of this ordinance, the following terms shall be given these 
definitions:  
 
"Campaign for elective office" means any activity in furtherance of an effort to 
influence the selection, nomination, election, or appointment of any individual to any  
federal, State, or local public office or office in a political organization, or the selection, 
nomination, or election of Presidential or Vice-Presidential electors, but does not include 
activities (i) relating to the support or opposition of any executive, legislative, or 
administrative action, (ii) relating to collective bargaining, or (iii) that are otherwise in 
furtherance of the person's official duties.  
 
"Candidate" means a person who has filed nominating papers or petitions for 
nomination or election to an elected office, or who has been appointed to fill a vacancy in 
nomination, and who remains eligible for placement on the ballot at a regular election, as 
defined in section 1-3 of the Election Code (10 ILCS 5/1-3).  
 
"Collective bargaining" has the same meaning as that term is defined in Section 3 
of the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act (5 ILCS 315/3).  
 
"Compensated time" means, with respect to an employee, any time worked by or 
credited to the employee that counts toward any minimum work time requirement 
imposed as a condition of his or her employment, but for purposes of this Ordinance, 
does not include any designated holidays, vacation periods, personal time, compensatory 
time off or any period when the employee is on a leave of absence. With respect to 
officers or employees whose hours are not fixed, "compensated time" includes any period 
of time when the officer is on premises under the control of the employer and any other 
time when the officer or employee is executing his or her official duties, regardless of 
location.  
 
"Compensatory time off" means authorized time off earned by or awarded to an  
employee to compensate in whole or in part for time worked in excess of the minimum 
work time required of that employee as a condition of his or her employment.  
"Contribution" has the same meaning as that term is defined in section 9-1.4 of 
the Election Code (10 ILCS 5/9-1.4).  
 
"Employee" means a person employed by Ogle County whether on a full- 
time or part-time basis or pursuant to a contract, whose duties are subject to the direction 
and control of an employer with regard to the material details of how the work is to be 
performed, but does not include an independent contractor. 
 
"Employer" means Ogle County 
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“Gift" means any gratuity, discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, 
or other tangible or intangible item having monetary value including, but not limited to, 
cash, food and drink, and honoraria for speaking engagements related to or attributable to 
government employment or the official position of an officer or employee. 
 
"Leave of absence" means any period during which an employee does not receive 
(i) compensation for employment, (ii) service credit towards pension benefits, and (iii) 
health insurance benefits paid for by the employer. 
 
"Officer" means a person who holds, by election or appointment, an office created 
by statute or ordinance, regardless of whether the officer is compensated for service in his 
or her official capacity. 
 
"Political activity" means any activity in support of or in connection with any 
campaign for elective office or any political organization, but does not include activities 
(i) relating to the support or opposition of any executive, legislative, or administrative 
action, (ii) relating to collective bargaining, or (iii) that are otherwise in furtherance of the 
person's official duties.  
 
"Political organization" means a party, committee, association, fund, or other 
organization (whether or not incorporated) that is required to file a statement of  
organization with the State Board of Elections or a county clerk under Section 9-3 of the 
Election Code (10 ILCS 5/9-3), but only with regard to those activities that require filing 
with the State Board of Elections or a county clerk. 
 
"Prohibited political activity" means:  
(1)  Preparing for, organizing, or participating in any political meeting, 
       political rally, political demonstration, or other political event.  
(2)  Soliciting contributions, including but not limited to the purchase of, 
      selling, distributing, or receiving payment for tickets for any political fundraiser, 
      political meeting, or other political event. 
(3)  Soliciting, planning the solicitation of, or preparing any document or 
      report regarding anything of value intended as a campaign contribution. 
(4) Planning, conducting, or participating in a public opinion poll in 
     connection with a campaign for elective office or on behalf of a political 
     organization for political purposes or for or against any referendum question. 
(5) Surveying or gathering information from potential or actual voters in 
     an election to determine probable vote outcome in connection with a campaign for  
     elective office or on behalf of a political organization for political purposes or for 
     or against any referendum question.  
(6) Assisting at the polls on election day on behalf of any political 
     organization or candidate for elective office or for or against any referendum 
     question.  
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(7) Soliciting votes on behalf of a candidate for elective office or a 
     political organization or for or against any referendum question or helping in an 
     effort to get voters to the polls. 
(8) Initiating for circulation, preparing, circulating, reviewing, or filing any petition on  
     behalf of a candidate for elective office or for or against any referendum question.  
(9) Making contributions on behalf of any candidate for elective office in 
     that capacity or in connection with a campaign for elective office.  
(10) Preparing or reviewing responses to candidate questionnaires.  
(11) Distributing, preparing for distribution, or mailing campaign 
        literature, campaign signs, or other campaign material on behalf of any candidate 
       for elective office or for or against any referendum question.  
(12) Campaigning for any elective office or for or against any referendum question.  
(13) Managing or working on a campaign for elective office or for or against any  
       referendum question.  
(14) Serving as a delegate, alternate, or proxy to a political party convention.  
(15) Participating in any recount or challenge to the outcome of any election. 
 
"Prohibited source" means any person or entity who: 
(1) is seeking official action (i) by an officer or (ii) by an employee, or by 
     the officer or another employee directing that employee; 
(2) does business or seeks to do business (i) with the officer or (ii) with an 
     employee, or with the officer or another employee directing that employee; 
(3) conducts activities regulated (i) by the officer or (ii) by an employee, or 
     by the officer or another employee directing that employee; or 
(4) has interests that may be substantially affected by the performance or 
      non-performance of the official duties of the officer or employee. 
 
ARTICLE 5 
PROHIBITED POLITICAL ACTIVITIES 
 
Section 5-1. Prohibited political activities. 
 
 (a) No officer or employee shall intentionally perform any prohibited political activity 


during any compensated time, as defined herein. No officer or employee shall 
intentionally use any property or resources of Ogle County in connection with any 
prohibited political activity. 
 


(b) At no time shall any officer or employee intentionally require any other officer or 
employee to perform any prohibited political activity (i) as part of that officer or 
employee's duties, (ii) as a condition of employment, or (iii) during any compensated 
time off (such as holidays, vacation or personal time off). 
 


(c) No officer or employee shall be required at any time to participate in any prohibited 
political activity in consideration for that officer or employee being awarded 
additional compensation or any benefit, whether in the form of a salary adjustment, 
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bonus, compensatory time off, continued employment or otherwise, nor shall any 
officer or employee be awarded additional compensation or any benefit in 
consideration for his or her participation in any prohibited political activity. 
 


(d) Nothing in this Section prohibits activities that are permissible for an officer or 
employee to engage in as part of his or her official duties, or activities that are 
undertaken by an officer or employee on a voluntary basis which are not prohibited 
by this Ordinance.  
 


(e) No person either (i) in a position that is subject to recognized merit principles of 
public employment or (ii) in a position the salary for which is paid in whole or in part 
by federal funds and that is subject to the Federal Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration applicable to grant-in-aid programs, shall be denied or 
deprived of employment or tenure solely because he or she is a member or an officer 
of a political committee, of a political party, or of a  political organization or club. 
 


 
ARTICLE 10 
GIFT BAN 
 
Section 10-1. Gift ban. Except as permitted by this Article, no officer or employee, and 
no spouse of or immediate family member living with any officer or employee 
(collectively referred to herein as "recipients"), shall intentionally solicit or accept any 
gift from any prohibited source, as defined herein, or which is otherwise prohibited by 
law or ordinance. No prohibited source shall intentionally offer or make a gift that 
violates this Section. 
 
Section 10-2. Exceptions. Section 10-1 is not applicable to the following: 
(1) Opportunities, benefits, and services that are available on the same conditions as for 
the general public. 
(2) Anything for which the officer or employee, or his or her spouse or immediate family 
member, pays the fair market value. 
(3) Any (i) contribution that is lawfully made under the Election Code or (ii) activities 
associated with a fundraising event in support of a political organization or candidate. 
(4) Educational materials and missions. 
(5) Travel expenses for a meeting to discuss business. 
(6) A gift from a relative, meaning those people related to the individual as father, 
mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, great aunt, great uncle, first cousin, 
nephew, niece, husband, wife, grandfather, grandmother, grandson, granddaughter, 
father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 
stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half brother, half 
sister, and including the father, mother, grandfather, or grandmother of the individual's 
spouse and the individual's fiancé or fiancée. 
(7) Anything provided by an individual on the basis of a personal friendship unless the 
recipient has reason to believe that, under the circumstances, the gift was provided 
because of the official position or employment of the recipient or his or her spouse or 
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immediate family member and not because of the personal friendship. In determining 
whether a gift is provided on the basis of personal friendship, the recipient shall consider 
the circumstances under which the gift was offered, such as: (i) the history of the 
relationship between the individual giving the gift and the recipient of the gift, including 
any previous exchange of gifts between those individuals; (ii) whether to the actual 
knowledge of the recipient the individual who gave the gift personally paid 
for the gift or sought a tax deduction or business reimbursement for the gift; and (iii) 
whether to the actual knowledge of the recipient the individual who gave the gift also at 
the same time gave the same or similar gifts to other officers or employees, or their 
spouses or immediate family members. 
(8) Food or refreshments not exceeding $75 per person in value on a single calendar day; 
provided that the food or refreshments are (i) consumed on the premises from which they 
were purchased or prepared or (ii) catered. For the purposes of this Section, "catered" 
means food or refreshments that are purchased ready to consume which are delivered by 
any means.  
(9) Food, refreshments, lodging, transportation, and other benefits resulting from outside 
business or employment activities (or outside activities that are not connected to the 
official duties of an officer or employee), if the benefits have not been offered or 
enhanced because of the official position or employment of the officer or employee, and 
are customarily provided to others in similar circumstances.  
(10) Intra-governmental and inter-governmental gifts. For the purpose of this Act, "intra- 
governmental gift" means any gift given to an officer or employee from another officer or 
employee, and "inter-governmental gift" means any gift given to an officer or employee 
by an officer or employee of another governmental entity. 
(11) Bequests, inheritances, and other transfers at death. 
(12) Any item or items from any one prohibited source during any calendar year having a 
cumulative total value of less than $100. 
 
Each of the exceptions listed in this Section is mutually exclusive and independent of 
every other. 
 
Section 10-3. Disposition of gifts. An officer or employee, his or her spouse or an 
immediate family member living with the officer or employee, does not violate this 
Ordinance if the recipient promptly takes reasonable action to return a gift from a 
prohibited source to its source or gives the gift or an amount equal to its value to an 
appropriate charity that is exempt from income taxation under Section 501 (c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now or hereafter amended, renumbered, or succeeded. 
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ARTICLE 25 
PENALTIES 
 
Section 25-1. Penalties.  
(a) A person who intentionally violates any provision of Article 5 of this Ordinance may 
be punished by a term of incarceration in a penal institution other than a penitentiary for a 
period of not more than 364 days, and may be fined in an amount not to exceed$2,500. 
 
(b) A person who intentionally violates any provision of Article 10 of this Ordinance is 
subject to a fine in an amount of not less than $1,001 and not more than $5,000. 
 
(c) Any person who intentionally makes a false report alleging a violation of any 
provision of this Ordinance to the local enforcement authorities, the State's Attorney or 
any other law enforcement official may be punished by a term of incarceration in a penal 
institution other than a penitentiary for a period of not more than 364 days, and may be 
fined in an amount not to exceed $2,500. 
 
(d) A violation of Article 5 of this Ordinance shall be prosecuted as a criminal offense by 
an attorney for Ogle County by filing in the circuit court any information, or sworn 
complaint, charging such offense. The prosecution shall be under and conform to the 
rules of criminal procedure. Conviction shall require the establishment of the guilt of the 
defendant beyond a reasonable doubt. A violation of Article 10 of this Ordinance may be 
prosecuted as a quasi-criminal offense by an attorney for Ogle County, or, if an Ethics 
Commission has been created, by the Commission through the designated administrative 
procedure. 
 
(e) In addition to any other penalty that may be applicable, whether criminal or civil, an 
officer or employee who intentionally violates any provision of Article 5 or Article 10 of 
this Ordinance is subject to discipline or discharge. 
 
SECTION 2: This Ordinance shall be in effect upon its passage and approval as 
provided by law.  
 
SECTION 2-8-1 OF THE OGLE COUNTY ORDINANCES (STATE GIFT BAN ACT) 
IS SUPERCEDED BY THIS ORDINANCE AND IS HEREBY REPEALED. 
 
 
Adopted this 18th day of May, 2004. 
 


_______________________________ 
W. Ed Rice 


Ogle County Board Chairman 
_____________________________ 
Attest: Rebecca Huntley 
Ogle County Clerk 
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Appendix #6 
COUNTY OFFICE CLOSING POLICY  


 
FEBRUARY 20, 2007 


 
In an effort to provide for the safety of Ogle County employees, the following procedures related 
to office closings shall be followed.  The intent of the policy is to address how decisions will be 
made for the closing of County offices related to inclement weather or building security issues. 
The policy also addresses employee compensation during office closings.  
 
Overnight Weather Events:   
 


• In the event of a weather emergency, the Sheriff, County Engineer, Presiding Judge and 
County Board Chairman will jointly make the decision regarding the closing of County 
Offices. The decision will be made no later than 6:30 a.m. 


 
• The decision regarding the closing of county offices will be conveyed to the listed 


Department Heads as quickly as possible.  
 


      The Sheriffs office shall notify the County Clerk and Health Department Administrator.  
 


The Presiding Judge shall notify the States Attorney, Circuit Clerk, Probation Director 
and other judges.  
 
The County Board Chairman shall notify the County Administrator. 


 
Upon notification by the Sheriffs Department, the County Clerk shall notify the County 
Assessor and Treasurer 
 
Upon notification by the Sheriffs Department, the Health Department Administrator shall 
notify the Zoning Administrator, Solid Waste Department Manager and Animal Control 
Department. 


 
• Each Department Head or designated contact shall have the responsibility of notifying 


their respective staffs. 
 


• Sheriff’s Department shall be responsible for notifying the local media. 
The following media will be contacted: Rockford Televisions stations 13, 17, 23, 39. 
Radio Stations WRHL (1060 AM - Rochelle) and WIXN (1460 AM - Dixon) 


 
Daytime Closings:  
 


• In the event the offices need to be closed during the work day from weather conditions or 
a security issue, this information will be communicated to the Judicial Center and Old 
Court House Department Heads by the Bailiffs. The Sheriffs Department will notify the 
Pines Road Department Heads.  


 
• Announcements regarding the cancellation of County Board meetings, committee 


meetings or other related county functions will be at the call of the Board Chairman. 
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• Each Department Head or designated contact shall have the responsibility of notifying 
their respective staffs. 


 
Office Closing Policy (continued) 
 
Compensation  
 


• In the event the County Offices are closed (or closed early) for weather or security issues, 
non represented employees shall receive their normal pay and will not be required to use 
accumulated leave time. Employees who are part of a labor contract shall follow the 
terms of the labor contract.  Non-represented employees that are required to continue 
work, as part of their job descriptions, shall receive personal time equal to the number of 
hours the County Offices are closed, to be used during the calendar year, at the discretion 
of the Department Head. 
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Appendix #7 
Accommodation of Disabilities Definitions 


 
As used in this policy, the following terms have the indicated meaning and will be 
adhered to in relation to the ADA policy. 


• “Disability” refers to a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one 
or more of the major life activities of an individual.  An individual who has such 
an impairment has a record of such an impairment, or is regarded as having such 
an impairment, is a “disabled individual.” 


• “Direct threat to safety” means a significant risk to the health or safety of the 
individual or others that cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation. 


• A “qualified individual” means an individual who, with or without reaonsable 
accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the employment position 
that the individual holds or has applied for. 


• “Reasonable accommodation” means making existing facilities readily accessible 
to and usable by individuals with disabilities, job restructuring, part-time or 
modified work schedules, reassignment to a vacant position, acquisition or 
modification of equipment or devices, adjustment or modification of 
examinations, adjustment or modification of training materials, adjustment or 
modification of policies, and similar activities.    


• “Undue hardship” means an action requiring significant difficulty or expense by 
Ogle County.  The factors to be considered in determining an undue hardship 
include: (1) the nature and cost of the accommodation; (2) the overall financial 
resources of the facility at which the reasonable accommodation is to be made; (3) 
the number of persons employed at that facility; (4) the effect on expenses and 
resources or other impact upon that facility; (5) the overall financial resources of 
the County; (6) the overall number of employees and facilities (7) the operations 
of the particular facility as well as the entire County operations; and (8) the 
relationship of the particular facility to the County.  These are not all of the 
factors, but merely examples. 


• “Essential job functions” refers to those activities of a job that are the core to 
performing said job for which the job exists that cannot be modified.  
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XIV. DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLEMENTS (for suggested departmental use at the 
department head’s discretion.  Contractual and/or additional departmental policies and 
forms may supersede these as necessary.)  


1. Emergency Plans  


2. Job Description  


3. Organizational Chart  


4. Ogle County Vehicle Use Policy (if applicable)  


5. Travel Policy  


6. Credit Card Log Sheet Form  


7. Expense Reimbursement Form 
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Ogle County Vehicle Use Policy  


This policy applies to the use of County owned vehicles by employees of Ogle 
County and shall remain in effect until amended by action of the Ogle County Board. This 
policy does not apply to elected officials of Ogle County nor to their employees.  


Article I.  Personal use of County owned vehicles is prohibited.  


Article II.  Any vehicle abuse or suspected abuse shall be reported to and 
investigated by the department head having supervising jurisdiction 
of the employee. 


  
Article III.  Department heads, with concurrence of their respective committees, 


shall assign vehicles to appropriate employees.  Employees, who are 
subject to 24 hour call for emergency response or who, due to the 
nature of their employment, must routinely conduct county business 
before or after normal working hours, shall be allowed to have 
continuous and immediate access to the assigned county vehicle for 
county related business use only.  Department heads shall evaluate 
vehicle use on an annual basis and report any substantial change in 
use to their respective committees for appropriate action. 
 


Article IV.  Ogle County employees driving a County owned vehicle and their 
passengers shall, at all times, wear seat belts when the vehicle is in 
motion. 
 


Article V.  The person to whom a vehicle is assigned shall be responsible for 
ensuring that all vehicle maintenance outlined in the owner’s manual 
is followed. 
 


Article VI.  Repairs to the vehicle other than those of an emergency nature shall 
first be authorized by the department head.  If the vehicle becomes 
disabled at any location, the department head shall be immediately 
contacted to make arrangements for towing the vehicle to a repair 
location.  If the department head can not be reached the vehicle 
operator shall use his/her discretion in obtaining assistance.  Repairs 
costing in excess of $250.00 must first be authorized by the 
department head. 
 


Article VII.  The County owned vehicle shall be kept locked at all times when 
unoccupied to protect the contents and to prevent theft of the vehicle. 
 


Article VIII.  Drivers shall obey all traffic laws and drive defensively and safely. 
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Drivers shall be courteous to other drivers and pedestrians at all 
times. 
 


Article IX.  If involved in an accident resulting in personal injury or property 
damage, the vehicle operator shall not leave the scene of the accident 
until authorized by the investigating law enforcement officer.  The 
vehicle operator shall immediately contact the Ogle County Sheriff’s 
Department or local police agency having jurisdiction, by using the 
car radio or cellular telephone, and notify them of the accident and the 
location. Medical assistance shall, at the same time, be requested for 
persons injured.  If unable to make contact, the vehicle operator shall 
seek assistance from persons in nearby residences or passers by.  If 
the accident occurs in a remote area where assistance can not be 
found, the vehicle operator shall drive to the nearest available 
telephone and report the accident as previously specified. 


 
Article X. The operator of the vehicle shall submit a copy of the police accident 


report to the department head who will present a copy to the Ogle County 
Treasurer and the Ogle County Clerk for forwarding to the insurance 
company.  The department head shall be responsible for forwarding a copy 
of the police report to the appropriate county board committee.  


 
Article XI. Any person who is cited for violating any traffic laws while operating a 


county owned vehicle shall be responsible for paying all fines and court 
costs assessed against him/her for any such violation, and for any legal fees 
that arise for the defense against such charges.  


Article XII. Any violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action against the 
vehicle operator in accordance with provisions of the Ogle County 
Personnel Policy.  


(July 1, 1994) 
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Travel Policy 
 
Purpose: 
To provide a reimbursement mechanism for employees for certain authorized expenses 
incurred during departmental business travel. 
 
Policy: 
1. Workshops, continuing education, in-service hours, conferences, etc., must have 


prior approval by the director if the employee wishes to go during scheduled work 
hours or wants reimbursement. 


 
2. The County-owned vehicle should be used for departmental travel whenever 


possible. When a personal vehicle is used, mileage reimbursement will in accordance 
with Ogle County Vehicle Use Policy.  


 
3. Employees using personal vehicles shall have a valid Illinois driver’s license and 


adequate liability insurance coverage, as required by State law. 
 
4. While in work status, the use of safety belts is required by all employees. 
 
5. Smoking and the use of alcohol or illegal drugs in departmental vehicles or operating 


the vehicle under the influence of such are strictly prohibited.  
 
6. Compensation for time worked shall be in accordance with Hours of Work/Time Off, 


of the Ogle County Personnel Policies and Benefits Manual, as amended from time 
to time. 


 
7. A completed Monthly Expense Sheet and receipts are required for reimbursement of 


all travel expenses, and must be approved by the Supervisor and/or Department 
Head. 


 
8. Reimbursable Travel Expenses include: 


a. Mileage  
b. Lodging expenses 
c. Registration fees 
d. Parking fees and tolls 
e. If 2 day or day trip, lunch, if not included in registration fees. (See Per Diem 


below) 
f. If overnight, meals not included in registration fees. (See Per Diem below) 
g. Safe arrival phone call. 
h. Business related cab fees/public transportation. 


 
9. Per Diem/Meals:  Travel involving an overnight stay shall be eligible for a per 


diem payment of $25.00 per night.  Meal receipts are not necessary.  Any meals 
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provided as a part of a conference registration payment made by the department 
shall be deducted by the employee from the per diem rate based on the following 
schedule: 


 
Breakfast $  5.00 
Lunch $  7.00 
Dinner $13.00 


 
Travel which does not involve an overnight stay shall not be eligible for a full per 
diem unless travel began prior to 6:00 a.m. and concluded after 7:00 p.m. 


 
Partial per diem for pre-approved, work-related travel (not routine work) will be 
paid according to the following schedule:     


 
Travel prior to 6:00 a.m. through 12:00 p.m....................$ 5.00 
Travel prior to 12:00 p.m. through 3:00 p.m....................$ 7.00 
Travel prior to 3:00 p.m. through 7:00 p.m. or later........$13.00 


 
10. Travel expenses or per diems shall not include the purchase of alcoholic 


beverages or other personal items. 
 
11. Reimbursement of other necessary travel related expenses shall be handled on a 


case by case basis. The employee should consult first with the Director, if 
possible, before incurring such expenses. 


 
12. As a general rule, advance payments will not be made unless extenuating 


circumstances exist.  These requests will be considered on a case by case basis 
and require Department Head  approval. 


 
 


(December 2010)







 
December 2010 Revision & Distribution  


 


51


Ogle County Credit Card Log Sheet 
Please log the following items each time you use the credit card and submit receipts with 
this form each month.  Expenses must be approved in advance.  BE SURE TO SPECIFY 
TO THE VENDOR THAT WE ARE TAX EXEMPT.   
 
Name on Card _____________________________Account #______________________ 
Billing Month & Year _____________________________________________________ 


 
Date Vendor Items 


Charged 
Type or 


Order (I = 
Internet, P 
= Phone, S 


= Store)  


Budget 
Category 
(DH to 


identify) 


Total 
Amount 


Initials 


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
 


      


 
Total Due To Employee:   
 
Department Head Signature ______________________________Date ______________ 
 
(December 2010)







 
December 2010 Revision & Distribution  


 


52


 
Expense Reimbursement Form 


 
Employee name:                                                                             Month:                                             
 
Employee Signature:                                                                       Date:                                               
 
Reason for expense must be approved in advance by the Department Head.  Expenses 
must comply with current Ogle County and Departmental policies and procedures. 
 


 
Date 


 
Reason for Expense 


 
Description of Expense 
(if mileage, list # of miles traveled 


and rate per mile) 


 
Cost 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 Total Due to Employee 


 
 


 
Supervisor’s Signature                                                          Date:                                         
 
(December 2010) 





		ETHICS ORDINANCE






EXTRACT OF MINUTES of the December 21, 2010 public meeting of 
the County Board of The County of Ogle, Illinois, held in the 
County Board Room at the County Courthouse, in said County, at 
5:30 o’clock P.M., on the 21st day of December, 2010. 


*                   *                   * 


The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, and upon the roll being called, 


____________________, the Chairman, and the following County Board Members at said 


location answered present:  _______________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


_____________________________________________________________________________ . 


The following County Board Members were absent:  _____________________________ 


_____________________________________________________________________________ . 


The Chairman announced that the next item of business before the County Board  was the 


consideration of an ordinance abating the taxes heretofore levied for the year 2010 to pay the 


debt service on the County’s outstanding $5,200,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 


Revenue Source), Series 2004.  After a full and complete discussion thereof, County Board 


Member __________________ presented and there was read into the record in full the following 


ordinance: 


Ordinance - $5.2 Abatement - O-2010-1203 
2105112/SAS:11/15/2010 







ORDINANCE NO. 2010-1203 
 
 


AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAXES HERETOFORE LEVIED FOR THE YEAR 2010 TO PAY DEBT 
SERVICE ON $5,200,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), 


SERIES 2004, OF THE COUNTY OF OGLE, ILLINOIS. 


*          *         * 


WHEREAS, the County Board (the “Board”) of The County of Ogle, Illinois (the 


“County”), by ordinance adopted on the 16th day of December, 2003 (the “12/16/03 


Ordinance”), did provide for the issue of $5,200,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 


Revenue Source), Series 2004 (the “2004 Bonds”), and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient 


to pay debt service on the 2004 Bonds; and 


WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of December, 2003, a duly certified copy of the 12/16/03 


Ordinance was filed in the office of the County Clerk of the County (the “County Clerk”); and 


WHEREAS, the County has Pledged Revenues (as defined in Section 12 of the 12/16/03 


Ordinance) available for the purpose of paying debt service on the 2004 Bonds heretofore 


imposed by the 2010 levy; and 


WHEREAS, the Pledged Revenues are hereby directed to be deposited into the “Alternate 


Bond Fund” established pursuant to Section 12 of the 12/16/03 Ordinance for the purpose of 


paying the debt service on the 2004 Bonds; and 


WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the taxes heretofore 


levied for the year 2010 to pay the debt service on the 2004 Bonds be abated: 


NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the County Board of The County of Ogle, Illinois, 


as follows: 


 Section 1. Abatement of Tax for 2004 Bonds.  The tax heretofore levied for the year 


2010 in the 12/16/03 Ordinance shall be abated  in its entirety. 


Ordinance - $5.2 Abatement - O-2010-1203 
2105112/SAS:11/15/2010 







 Section 2. Filing of Ordinance.  Forthwith upon the adoption of this ordinance, the 


Clerk of the Board shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk and it shall be the duty 


of the County Clerk to abate said taxes levied for the year 2010 in accordance with the 


provisions hereof. 


 Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 


upon its adoption. 


Presented – November 16, 2010 Ogle County Board Meeting 


Adopted – December 21, 2010 Ogle County Board Meeting  


 


 


 


_________________________________ 
  Chairman of the 
  County Board of The County of 
  Ogle, Illinois 


ATTEST: 


____________________________________ 
County Clerk and ex-officio 
Clerk of the County Board of 
The County of Ogle, Illinois 


-2- 







-3- 


Member ___________________ moved and Member ____________________ seconded 


the motion that said ordinance as presented and read be adopted. 


After a full and complete discussion thereof, the Chairman of the County Board directed 


that the roll be called for a vote upon the motion to adopt said ordinance. 


Upon the roll being called, Members __________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


voted “AYE”, and Members _______________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


voted “NAY”.  Whereupon the Chairman of the County Board declared the motion carried and 


the ordinance adopted, and henceforth did approve and sign the same in open meeting and did 


direct the County Clerk to record the same in full in the records of The County of Ogle, Illinois, 


which was done. 


Other business not pertinent to the adoption of said ordinance was duly transacted at said 


meeting. 


Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 


 _______________________________ 
County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of 
the County Board of The County of 
Ogle, Illinois 







STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF OGLE ) 


CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE AND MINUTES 


I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 
of The County of Ogle, Illinois (the “County”), and ex-officio Clerk of the County Board of the 
County (the “County Board”), and as such official I am the keeper of the books, records and 
files of the County and the County Board. 


I do further certify that the foregoing constitutes a full, true and complete transcript of the 
minutes of the meeting of the County Board held on the 21st day of December, 2010, insofar as 
same relates to the adoption of Ordinance No. 2010-1203 entitled: 


AN ORDINANCE abating the taxes heretofore levied for the year 
2010 to pay debt service on $5,200,000 General Obligation Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2004, of The County of Ogle, 
Illinois. 


a true, correct and complete copy of which said ordinance as adopted at said meeting appears in 
the foregoing transcript of the minutes of said meeting. 


I do further certify that the deliberations of the County Board on the adoption of said 
ordinance were taken openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken openly, 
that said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of 
said meeting was duly given to all of the news media requesting such notice, that an agenda for 
said meeting was posted at the principal office of the County Board at least 48 hours in advance 
of the holding of said meeting, that a true, correct and complete copy of said agenda as so posted 
is attached to this certificate as Exhibit A, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
accordance with the provisions of the Counties Code of the State of Illinois, as amended, and the 
Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and that the County Board has complied 
with all of the applicable provisions of said Code and said Act and its procedural rules in the 
adoption of said ordinance. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature this 21st day of December, 
2010. 


 _______________________________ 
County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of 
the County Board of The County of 
Ogle, Illinois 


 


 







STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF OGLE ) 


FILING CERTIFICATE 


I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 


of The County of Ogle, Illinois, and as such official I do further certify that on the 21st day of 


December, 2010, there was filed in my office a duly certified copy of Ordinance No. 2010-1203 


entitled: 


AN ORDINANCE abating the taxes heretofore levied for the year 
2010 to pay debt service on $5,200,000 General Obligation Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2004, of The County of Ogle, 
Illinois. 


duly adopted by the County Board of The County of Ogle, Illinois, on the 21st day of December, 


2010, and that the same has been deposited in the official files and records of my office. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said County, 


this 21st day of December, 2010. 


 _______________________________ 
County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of 
the County Board of The County of 
Ogle, Illinois 


(SEAL) 


 








EXTRACT OF MINUTES of the December 21, 2010 public meeting of 
the County Board of The County of Ogle, Illinois, held in the 
County Board Room at the County Courthouse, in said County, at 
5:30 o’clock P.M., on the 21st day of December, 2010. 


*                   *                   * 


The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, and upon the roll being called, 


____________________, the Chairman, and the following County Board Members at said 


location answered present:  _______________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


_____________________________________________________________________________ . 


The following County Board Members were absent:  _____________________________ 


_____________________________________________________________________________ . 


The Chairman announced that the next item of business before the County Board  was the 


consideration of an ordinance abating the taxes heretofore levied for the year 2010 to pay the 


debt service on the County’s outstanding $9,800,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 


Revenue Source), Series 2003.  After a full and complete discussion thereof, County Board 


Member __________________ presented and there was read into the record in full the following 


ordinance: 


Ordinance - $9.8 Abatement - O-2010-1202 
2105112/SAS:11/15/2010 







ORDINANCE NO. 2010-1202 


AN ORDINANCE abating the taxes heretofore levied for the year 
2010 to pay debt service on $9,800,000 General Obligation Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2003, of The County of Ogle, 
Illinois. 


*          *         * 


WHEREAS, the County Board (the “Board”) of The County of Ogle, Illinois (the 


“County”), by ordinance adopted on the 16th day of September, 2003 (the “2003 Ordinance”), 


did provide for the issue of $9,800,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 


Series 2003 (the “2003 Bonds”), and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay debt service 


on the 2003 Bonds; and 


WHEREAS, on the 17th day of September, 2003, a duly certified copy of the 2003 


Ordinance was filed in the office of the County Clerk of the County (the “County Clerk”); and 


WHEREAS, the County has Pledged Revenues (as defined in Section 12 of the 2003 


Ordinance) available for the purpose of paying debt service on the 2003 Bonds heretofore 


imposed by the 2010 levy; and 


WHEREAS, the Pledged Revenues are hereby directed to be deposited into the “Alternate 


Bond Fund” established pursuant to Section 12 of the 2003 Ordinance for the purpose of paying 


the debt service on the 2003 Bonds; and 


WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the taxes heretofore 


levied for the year 2010 to pay the debt service on the 2003 Bonds be abated: 


NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the County Board of The County of Ogle, Illinois, 


as follows: 


 Section 1. Abatement of Tax for 2003 Bonds.  The tax heretofore levied for the year 


2010 in the 2003 Ordinance shall be abated in its entirety. 


Ordinance - $9.8 Abatement - O-2010-1202 
2105112/SAS:11/15/2010 







 Section 2. Filing of Ordinance.  Forthwith upon the adoption of this ordinance, the 


Clerk of the Board shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk and it shall be the duty 


of the County Clerk to abate said taxes levied for the year 2010 in accordance with the 


provisions hereof. 


 Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 


upon its adoption. 


Presented – November 16, 2010 Ogle County Board Meeting 


Adopted – December 21, 2010 Ogle County Board Meeting 


 


 


      ____________________________________ 
  Chairman of the 
  County Board of The County of 
  Ogle, Illinois 


ATTEST: 


____________________________________ 
County Clerk and ex-officio 
Clerk of the County Board of 
The County of Ogle, Illinois 


-2- 







-3- 


Member ___________________ moved and Member ____________________ seconded 


the motion that said ordinance as presented and read be adopted. 


After a full and complete discussion thereof, the Chairman of the County Board directed 


that the roll be called for a vote upon the motion to adopt said ordinance. 


Upon the roll being called, Members __________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


voted “AYE”, and Members _______________________________________________________ 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


voted “NAY”.  Whereupon the Chairman of the County Board declared the motion carried and 


the ordinance adopted, and henceforth did approve and sign the same in open meeting and did 


direct the County Clerk to record the same in full in the records of The County of Ogle, Illinois, 


which was done. 


Other business not pertinent to the adoption of said ordinance was duly transacted at said 


meeting. 


Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 


 _______________________________ 
County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of 
the County Board of The County of 
Ogle, Illinois 







STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF OGLE ) 


CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE AND MINUTES 


I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 
of The County of Ogle, Illinois (the “County”), and ex-officio Clerk of the County Board of the 
County (the “County Board”), and as such official I am the keeper of the books, records and 
files of the County and the County Board. 


I do further certify that the foregoing constitutes a full, true and complete transcript of the 
minutes of the meeting of the County Board held on the 21st day of December, 2010, insofar as 
same relates to the adoption of Ordinance No. 2010-1202 entitled: 


AN ORDINANCE abating the taxes heretofore levied for the year 
2010 to pay debt service on $9,800,000 General Obligation Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2003, of The County of Ogle, 
Illinois. 


a true, correct and complete copy of which said ordinance as adopted at said meeting appears in 
the foregoing transcript of the minutes of said meeting. 


I do further certify that the deliberations of the County Board on the adoption of said 
ordinance were taken openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken openly, 
that said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of 
said meeting was duly given to all of the news media requesting such notice, that an agenda for 
said meeting was posted at the principal office of the County Board at least 48 hours in advance 
of the holding of said meeting, that a true, correct and complete copy of said agenda as so posted 
is attached to this certificate as Exhibit A, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
accordance with the provisions of the Counties Code of the State of Illinois, as amended, and the 
Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and that the County Board has complied 
with all of the applicable provisions of said Code and said Act and its procedural rules in the 
adoption of said ordinance. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature this 21st day of December, 
2010. 


 _______________________________ 
County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of 
the County Board of The County of 
Ogle, Illinois 


 


 







STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF OGLE ) 


FILING CERTIFICATE 


I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 


of The County of Ogle, Illinois, and as such official I do further certify that on the 21st day of 


December, 2010, there was filed in my office a duly certified copy of Ordinance No. 2010-1202 


entitled: 


AN ORDINANCE abating the taxes heretofore levied for the year 
2010 to pay debt service on $9,800,000 General Obligation Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2003, of The County of Ogle, 
Illinois. 


duly adopted by the County Board of The County of Ogle, Illinois, on the 21st day of December, 


2010, and that the same has been deposited in the official files and records of my office. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said County, 


this 21st day of December, 2010. 


 _______________________________ 
County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of 
the County Board of The County of 
Ogle, Illinois 


(SEAL) 


 

































































































































































































































Personnel & Salary – County Clerk & Recorder 
Committee Meeting Wednesday, December 15, 2010. 


 
Tentative Minutes  


 
1. Call to Order – by Chairman Kenney at 10:00 


• Members present:  Bowers, Colbert, Heuer, Boes, Gouker 
• Members absent:  Saunders 
• Others present:  Barnes, DeArvil, Gronewold, Welty, County Clerk Rebecca Huntley, Coroner Lou Finch, 


Treasurer John Coffman, Solid Waste Director Steve Rypkema, Marty Typer 
 
2. Approval of Minutes: November 10, 2010 meeting minutes 


• Motion by Bowers 
• 2nd by Heuer 
• Motion carried 


 
3. Approval of Bills – 


• Motion to approve $40,973.59 by Bowers 
• 2nd by Heuer 
• Motion carried 


 
4. Public Comment - None 


 
5. County Clerk & Recorder Report – Huntley distributed the monthly/annual Recorders report and noted figures are 


continuing to increase due to refinancing of mortgages. Discussion took place in regards to how the FY2010 office 
budget came out, Huntley reported that she returned roughly $30,000 and mentioned she had concern with how bills 
are being paid in FY 2011 and what auditors might say because of the reductions in her budget.  


 
6. Old Business-   


• Policy Manual – Kenney reminded the committee that the manual will be voted on next week at the county 
board meeting. Discussion took place in regards to which employees it covers, Kenney stated all employees 
are to follow the manual, however the union contracts supersedes the manual.  


 
7. New Business -   


• Employee Progressive Discipline Training – Kenney informed the Committee of his research on this subject 
and more information will follow. 


• Performance Pay – Heuer distributed 2 handouts; copy of her FOIA request, performance pay letter and 
transaction listing showing where the payment was given. She questioned Treasurer Coffman as to his reason 
for giving the one-time payment and how it could have jeopardized the negotiations with the FOP contracts. 
Coffman explained his actions. Discussion followed and Heuer stated that there needs to be better 
communication amongst department heads and committees. 


 
8. Adjournment-  


• Motion by Bowers 
• 2nd by Heuer 
• Motion carried 
• Time: 11:30 a.m. 


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tiffany O’Brien 




























Ogle County Regional Planning Commission
911 W. Pines Road


Oregon, IL 61061
(815) 732-1190


Fax: (815) 732-2229
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REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT
NOVEMBER 18, 2010


The regular monthly meeting of the Ogle County Regional Planning Commission was
held on Thursday, November 18, 2010 at 7:00 P.M. at the Old Ogle County Courthouse,
Third Floor County Board Room #317, 105 S. Fifth St., Oregon, IL.


The Order of Business is as follows:


1. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM.


Chairman Funk called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. Roll call indicated seven
members of the Regional Planning Commission were present: Chairman Lloyd Funk,
Ron Colson, Wayne Reising, Don Conn, Tom Smith, David Poole and Randy Ocken.


2. READING AND APPROVAL OF REPORT OF OCTOBER 21, 2010 AS
MINUTES.


Chairman Funk asked for any changes or corrections to the report of the October 21,
2010 meeting of the Ogle County Regional Planning Commission; hearing none,
Chairman Funk declared the minutes approved as read.


3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


4. NEW BUSINESS


A. DECISIONS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


#10-10 SPECIAL USE -- Chris A. Ames, 15930 E. Rachel Lane, Davis
Junction, IL for a Special Use Permit to allow a Conference and Retreat
facility in the AG-1 Agricultural District on property described as follows
and owned by petitioner:


Part of G.L.1 & G.L.2 of the NW1/4 and part of the NE1/4 of
Fractional Section 18 Monroe Township 42N, R2E of the 3rd P.M.,
Ogle County, IL, 179.38 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: 12-18-100-001, -003, -005, & -006
Common Location: 6752 N. Kilbuck Rd.


Mr. Miller read the staff report with seven (7) recommended conditions.  The LESA
score of 205 indicates a Medium rating for protection (LE = 79.0; SA = 126). The
Natural Resources Review by IDNR states there is no record of State-listed threatened
or endangered species in the vicinity of the project location.


Chris Ames was present.  She explained that the proposal is to create a retreat for
pastors, women, men and possibly an outreach for at risk kids.  It will be a place for
people to go and relax.  She stated that there are plans to work with the Corps of
Engineers to preserve the existing wetlands on the property.  She stated that she used
to live at the site and raised her family there.  She stated that they would like to create
hiking trails in the bottoms of the property.  She continued that eventually they may
have weddings and other events at the site but there would be no alcohol.  She stated
the use will be Christian based.
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Mr. Funk asked what type of activities will take place on the property.  Mrs. Ames
responded that there are no plans for large events at this time.  She stated that her
nephew was married there and there have been church gatherings at the site.


Mr. Funk asked how much of the land is farmed.  Mrs. Ames responded that the
neighbor rents and farms about 124 acres.  Mr. Funk asked if any of the tillable land will
be affected by the expansion.  Mrs. Ames responded that it would not.  


Mr. Funk asked if the petitioners heard and had any objections to the recommended
conditions.  Mrs. Ames responded that there is no objection to the recommendations. 
She further explained that no tent camping will be allowed.  She stated that they may
have a camp out in tepees for children.  


Mr. Funk read conditions submitted by the county engineer and asked if the petitioners
had any objections.  The petitioners agreed to the conditions.  Discussion ensued
regarding drainage issues.


Mrs. Ames stated that they may put up another building if they start serving at risk kids.


Mr. Conn asked for clarification regarding the conditions regarding drainage issues.  He
wanted to know that none of the drainage improvements will be required until additional
buildings are constructed on the property.  Mr. Colson explained that the requirements
would be for future expansion.


Mr. Ocken asked if the petitioners live at the site.  Mrs. Ames responded that her
brother lives in the house at the edge of the property.  


Mr. Ocken asked how many people would stay at the lodge at one time.  Mrs. Ames
responded that the facility can sleep forty.  Mr. Smith asked how many restrooms were
in the lodge.  Mrs. Ames responded that there are six restrooms.  David Ames stated
that the health department has been to the site and the septic has been approved for
expansion.


Mr. Colson stated that the comprehensive plan and the Village of Davis Junction have
dedicated this area to agricultural uses.  He stated that this retreat requires a special
use permit in the agricultural district and could be incorporated into the Village of Davis
Junction.  He continued that this use would be appropriate as it will in no way conflict
with the comprehensive plan.  


Mr. Smith asked how big the additional lodge will be if constructed.  Mr. Ames
responded that it would sleep sixty and be rustic like the existing lodge.  Mr. Ames
explained where expansion and construction may take place in the future.


Mr. Ocken made a motion to approve petition no. 10-10 SU as it is an appropriate use
of the property and will be a benefit to the county; seconded by Mr. Conn; The motion
carried unanimously by roll call vote.
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#11-10 SPECIAL USE -- Terry Myers, 8580 N. Limestone Rd.,
Rockford, IL for a Special Use Permit to allow a Small Rural Business
(classic & antique auto restoration) in the AG-1 Agricultural District on
property described as follows and owned by petitioner:


Part of G.L.1 in the NE1/4 Fractional Section 5 Monroe Township
42N, R2E of the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, IL, 14.18 acres, more or
less
Property Identification Number: 12-05-200-022
Common Location: 8580 N. Limestone Rd.


Mr. Miller read the staff report with two (2) recommended conditions.  The LESA score
of 196 indicates a Low Rating for protection (LE = 87; SA = 109). The Natural
Resources Review by IDNR states there is no record of State-listed threatened or
endangered species in the vicinity of the project location.


Terry Meyers was present.  He explained that he is retired and his hobby is restoring
antique cars.  He stated that he had a shop in Rockford and when he moved to his
current home began restorations in his shop.  He explained that since he is becoming
nationally known he is being required to be registered with the Secretary of State.  To
do this he must be in compliance with the local zoning regulations.  He stated that
nothing will change and operations will be the same as when he moved to the property
seventeen years ago.  He explained that he likes to stay low key and not draw a lot of
attention to the business for security reasons.  He stated that the Secretary of State
requires a sign on the property and he would like to get around doing that if possible. 
Mr. Meyers spoke more of his property and how his hobby has evolved over the years.


Mr. Ocken asked if the applicant has any employees.  Mr. Meyers responded that he
does all the work himself or with the help of friends and family.


Mr. Ocken noted that the property is very neat and well managed.  Mr. Conn agreed
and commended Mr. Meyers saying that more rural properties should look like his.


Mr. Smith asked what each of the buildings are used for.  Mr. Meyers explained what he
uses for storage and as a workshop.  Mr. Meyers explained that he does not do the
work on the engines and contracts out a lot of the work and that he focuses on
dismantling and finish work on the vehicles.  Mr. Meyers stated that he restores high
end vehicles and sells them for large amounts and that security is very important.


Mr. Smith asked how much time is put into each of the cars.  Mr. Meyers responded that
depending on the condition of the vehicle he spends 700 to 1400 hours on each one. 
He continued that he only restores one or two vehicles a year.  Mr. Meyers clarified that
he will never expand to the point of needing employees and this is more of a retirement
hobby for him.


Mr. Funk asked if the applicant understood and approved of the recommended
conditions.  Mr. Meyers responded that he did.


A brief discussion ensued regarding the sign required by the Secretary of State.


Mr. Colson stated that the property is clean and very well managed.  He continued that
the applicant is doing what he needs to be in compliance with county regulations.  He
stated that the use fits with the comprehensive plan in developing an appropriate rural
business.  Stating this Mr. Colson made a motion to approve petition no. 11-10 SU with
the recommended conditions; Seconded by Mr. Smith; The motion carried unanimously
by roll call vote.
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Mr. Funk made a motion to amend the approval motion of petition 10-10 SU to include
the recommended conditions; The motion carried unanimously by roll call vote.


5. OTHER BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


6. PUBLIC COMMENT


7. ADJOURN The meeting adjourned at 7:44 p.m.


The next meeting of the Ogle County Regional Planning Commission will be December
23, 2010 at the Old Ogle County Court House, 3rd Floor County Board Room #317, 105
S. Fifth St., Oregon, IL


Respectfully submitted,


Mark Miller
Deputy Planning & Zoning Administrator































































Local Share State-Co Sales Tax


2001
Date: Sep-00 Oct-00 Nov-00 Dec-00 Jan-01 Feb-01 Mar-01 Apr-01 May-01 Jun-01 Jul-01 Aug-01


1% 24,313.96 19,850.46 23,479.47 31,683.47 19,181.33 25,314.49 19,645.52 21,528.22 22,487.61 30,478.73 26,714.10 24,890.95
0.25% 62,964.70 63,526.16 58,328.86 62,337.51 51,949.13 56,729.63 52,862.85 62,084.91 60,605.58 67,157.39 61,687.44 61,606.33


Date Received 12/12/00 01/12/01 02/09/01 3/12/2001 4/9/2001 5/15/2001 6/14/2001 7/13/2001 8/13/2001 9/14/2001 10/16/2001 11/15/01


2002
Date: Sep-01 Oct-01 Nov-01 Dec-01 Jan-02 Feb-02 Mar-02 Apr-02 May-02 Jun-02 Jul-02 Aug-02


1% 23,329.67 28,646.15 25,981.01 30,655.67 24,147.99 17,786.97 20,812.48 29,296.70 30,697.52 29,833.86 35,284.88 23,620.19
0.25% 57,735.30 60,997.53 58,989.26 59,562.11 46,582.98 47,901.37 58,654.73 57,971.78 62,861.47 62,242.74 64,805.15 58,226.70


Date Received 12/17/01 01/16/02 02/13/02 03/15/02 04/12/02 05/10/02 06/12/02 07/19/02 08/08/02 09/11/02 10/10/02 11/15/2002


2003
Date: Sep-02 Oct-02 Nov-02 Dec-02 Jan-03 Feb-03 Mar-03 Apr-03 May-03 Jun-03 Jul-03 Aug-03


1% 23,579.07 22,604.66 25,350.00 30,424.10 17,947.90 27,490.72 26,620.97 23,717.44 26,330.59 26,761.02 28,656.11 24,832.31
0.25% 59,965.51 55,532.58 56,251.25 60,936.87 53,031.81 59,675.04 58,531.71 61,243.49 61,296.40 65,246.67 64,310.81 65,071.86


Date Received 12/13/02 01/13/03 02/13/03 03/03/03 04/09/03 05/09/03 06/11/03 07/10/03 08/07/03 09/11/03 10/09/03 11/12/03


2004
Date: Sep-03 Oct-03 Nov-03 Dec-03 Jan-04 Feb-04 Mar-04 Apr-04 May-04 Jun-04 Jul-04 Aug-04


1% 30,549.32 26,054.39 26,726.99 51,895.76 21,901.78 29,348.92 35,669.84 21,889.76 27,943.57 31,484.88 24,128.34 64,004.49
0.25% 61,832.23 64,327.04 65,276.32 68,285.72 54,643.98 61,609.73 63,160.16 60,747.15 66,625.16 66,648.33 66,023.92 78,166.58


Date Received 12/11/04 01/14/04 02/11/04 02/19/04 04/15/04 05/13/04 06/10/04 07/12/04 08/13/04 09/10/04 10/14/04 11/12/2004







Local Share State-Co Sales Tax


2007


Date: Sep-06 Oct-06 Nov-06 Dec-06 Jan-07 Feb-07 Mar-07 Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07 Jul-07 Aug-07
1% 32,492.10 37,919.68 41,699.07 47,825.63 31,126.16 41,339.13 32,613.67 34,773.62 35,994.87 48,312.48 33,486.44 46,269.09


0.25% 68,828.13 69,023.15 72,641.11 73,368.44 58,533.28 63,564.06 67,736.07 72,969.75 80,540.11 79,372.20 67,306.79 77,933.64
Date Received 12/13/06 01/17/07 02/15/07 03/12/07 04/13/07 05/09/07 06/11/07 07/12/07 08/08/07 09/10/07 10/11/2007 11/8/2007


2008


Date: Sep-07 Oct-07 Nov-07 Dec-07 Jan-08 Feb-08 Mar-08 Apr-08 May-08 Jun-08 Jul-08 Aug-08
1% 41,049.88 41,923.89 36,698.20 48,029.84 24,002.05 38,331.51 34,929.95 29,538.65 28,720.82 36,784.23 33,093.76 33,321.62


0.25% 74,044.74 77,446.68 72,573.09 78,898.37 64,434.00 65,484.72 73,229.56 71,467.75 77,300.87 79,683.53 78,949.86 78,491.82
Date Received 12/12/07 01/17/08 02/15/08 03/14/08 04/16/08 05/15/08 06/13/08 07/16/08 08/14/08 09/12/08 10/09/08 11/17/08


2009


Date: Sep-08 Oct-08 Nov-08 Dec-08 Jan-09 Feb-09 Mar-09 Apr-09 May-09 Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09
1% 29,306.46 51,652.16 50,293.11 59,786.04 38,762.01 29,326.22 25,162.70 27,202.61 19,928.67 34,607.88 25,081.97 24,717.72


0.25% 71,505.89 72,368.97 67,526.54 68,388.94 59,448.81 49,403.83 57,204.48 56,476.63 60,457.90 65,699.01 57,432.22 58,221.75
Date Received 12/17/08 01/12/09 02/13/09 03/12/09 04/08/09 05/11/09 06/12/09 07/13/09 08/10/09 09/11/09 10/15/09 11/12/09


2010


Date: Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10
1% 33,875.78 32,673.63 53,953.59 50,585.02 32,061.24 24,157.02 29,420.06 16,544.90 20,133.03 30,922.59 23,361.42 21,703.60


0.25% 62,174.13 57,942.45 67,359.82 65,780.51 51,874.02 50,282.80 57,454.37 53,687.46 62,351.29 72,236.66 65,735.29 62,965.34
Date Received 12/14/09 01/13/10 02/11/10 03/12/10 04/09/10 05/12/10 06/10/10 07/09/10 08/06/10 09/10/10 10/14/10 11/16/10
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3218 Public Defender Reimbursement $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $16,651.68 $0.00 $39,209.06 ($9,209.06) 131% $27,510.31


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury


3310 Copies $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,688.30 ($2,688.30) 134% $8,219.50


Department: 03 Treasurer totals: $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,688.30 ($2,688.30) 134% $8,219.50


Department: 03 Treasurer


3999 Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3605 HAVA Grant $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $2,459.75


3542 County Licenses $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,300.00 $200.00 92% $2,100.00


3530 Liquor License $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,900.00 $6,100.00 76% $19,962.50


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder 
totals:


$27,500.00 $0.00 $27,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,200.00 $6,300.00 77% $24,522.25


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder


3999 Other Revenue $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $3,182.22 $0.00 $11,362.62 ($1,362.62) 114% $16,215.87


3900 Interfund Transfer In $1,400,000.00 $0.00 $1,400,000.00 $250,000.00 $0.00 $2,400,000.00 ($1,000,000.00) 171% $1,700,000.00


3380 Restitution $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,683.60 ($183.60) 112% $80.00


3372 Administrative Court Fee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3330 Cable TV Franchise Fees $56,000.00 $0.00 $56,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $96,105.64 ($40,105.64) 172% $69,171.59


3160 Inheritance Tax Reimbursement $17,500.00 $0.00 $17,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,842.33 ($11,342.33) 165% $37,170.26


3127 PILOT  Payment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $270,863.00


3126 Mobile Home Tax $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $0.00


3125 Property Tax $4,033,200.00 $0.00 $4,033,200.00 $58,807.95 $0.00 $4,011,518.85 $21,681.15 99% $4,017,512.16


3120-30 Sales Tax - Local Use Tax $325,000.00 $0.00 $325,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $252,419.00 $72,581.00 78% $331,791.70


3120-20 Sales Tax - 1% Portion $450,000.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $21,703.60 $0.00 $369,391.88 $80,608.12 82% $415,827.55


3120 Sales Tax $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3120-10 Sales Tax - $.0025 Portion $765,000.00 $0.00 $765,000.00 $62,965.34 $0.00 $729,844.14 $35,155.86 95% $744,134.97


Rollup Account 3120 Sales Tax totals: $1,540,000.00 $0.00 $1,540,000.00 $84,668.94 $0.00 $1,351,655.02 $188,344.98 88% $1,491,754.22


3110 State Income Tax $1,850,000.00 $0.00 $1,850,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,455,063.25 $394,936.75 79% $1,796,529.67


3099 Fund Revenue Budget $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 00 Non-Departmental totals: $8,913,200.00 $0.00 $8,913,200.00 $396,659.11 $0.00 $9,356,231.31 ($443,031.31) 105% $9,399,296.77


Department: 00 Non-Departmental


Revenue


Fund: 100 General Fund
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3233 Inmate Medical Reimbursement $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $11.01 $0.00 $1,169.41 $1,330.59 47% $2,663.76


3230 Sheriff's Department 
Reimbursements


$60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $45,791.20 $0.00 $47,357.72 $12,642.28 79% $103,730.86


Department: 12 Sheriff


3599 Other Licenses & Permits $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $4,185.28 $0.00 $45,169.18 $4,830.82 90% $47,342.54


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20.00 ($20.00) +++ $0.00


Department: 11 Zoning totals: $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $4,185.28 $0.00 $45,189.18 $4,810.82 90% $47,342.54


Department: 11 Zoning


3460 Maps & Plat Books $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $360.00


3310 Copies $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $1,600.20 $0.00 $7,112.85 ($3,112.85) 178% $3,713.80


3220 Assessor's Salary Reimbursement $32,500.00 $0.00 $32,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,666.64 $10,833.36 67% $21,458.32


Department: 10 Assessment totals: $36,500.00 $0.00 $36,500.00 $1,600.20 $0.00 $28,779.49 $7,720.51 79% $25,532.12


Department: 10 Assessment


3900 Interfund Transfer In $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,332.00 $18,668.00 25% $0.00


Department: 09 Focus House totals: $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,332.00 $18,668.00 25% $0.00


Department: 09 Focus House


3900 Interfund Transfer In $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,332.00 ($6,332.00) +++ $0.00


3215 Probation Salary Reimbursements $175,000.00 $0.00 $175,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $278,075.00 ($103,075.00) 159% $404,974.00


Department: 08 Probation totals: $175,000.00 $0.00 $175,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $284,407.00 ($109,407.00) 163% $404,974.00


Department: 08 Probation


3900 Interfund Transfer In $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0% $0.00


3396 County Fee -(Traffic) $144,000.00 $0.00 $144,000.00 $14,550.18 $0.00 $140,026.22 $3,973.78 97% $144,207.63


3395 Traffic Fines $332,000.00 $0.00 $332,000.00 $27,323.18 $0.00 $328,131.37 $3,868.63 99% $331,337.07


3390 Criminal Fines $128,000.00 $0.00 $128,000.00 $5,581.00 $0.00 $100,246.67 $27,753.33 78% $112,172.04


3385 Street Value Drugs $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $258.63 $0.00 $3,212.02 $1,287.98 71% $4,609.30


3375 Public Defender $2,400.00 $0.00 $2,400.00 $80.00 $0.00 $1,246.00 $1,154.00 52% $2,030.00


3362 Police Vehicle Fee $4,400.00 $0.00 $4,400.00 $402.00 $0.00 $4,634.00 ($234.00) 105% $4,581.50


3357 Bailiff Fee $118,000.00 $0.00 $118,000.00 $8,801.47 $0.00 $110,160.78 $7,839.22 93% $117,388.94


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk totals: $758,300.00 $0.00 $758,300.00 $56,996.46 $0.00 $687,657.06 $70,642.94 91% $716,326.48


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk


3900 Interfund Transfer In $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 100% $10,000.00


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury totals: $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $26,651.68 $0.00 $49,209.06 ($9,209.06) 123% $37,510.31
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3999 Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $452.75 ($452.75) +++ $500.00


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3210 Victim Witness Advocate 
Reimbursement


$30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,839.00 $9,161.00 69% $34,866.00


3205 State's Attorney Salary 
Reimbursement


$152,500.00 $0.00 $152,500.00 $60,282.10 $0.00 $192,902.72 ($40,402.72) 126% $132,620.62


Department: 14 State's Attorney totals: $182,500.00 $0.00 $182,500.00 $60,282.10 $0.00 $214,194.47 ($31,694.47) 117% $167,986.62


Department: 14 State's Attorney


3999 Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3599 Other Licenses & Permits $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $430.00 $570.00 43% $740.00


3310 Copies $250.00 $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0% $220.00


Department: 13 Coroner totals: $1,250.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $430.00 $820.00 34% $960.00


Department: 13 Coroner


3900 Interfund Transfer In $135,500.00 $0.00 $135,500.00 $22,147.31 $0.00 $48,758.60 $86,741.40 36% $105,401.71


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency 
Communications totals:


$135,500.00 $0.00 $135,500.00 $22,147.31 $0.00 $48,758.60 $86,741.40 36% $105,401.71


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency Communications


3900 Interfund Transfer In $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 100% $66,500.00


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA totals: $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 100% $66,500.00


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA


3999 Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13.00 ($13.00) +++ $0.00


3900 Interfund Transfer In $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $12,877.30 $0.00 $12,877.30 $7,122.70 64% $59,000.00


3610 Grants $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $10,107.00


3608 Sold Property $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 0% $56,301.00


3445 Work Release $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $814.00 $0.00 $10,119.85 ($119.85) 101% $12,976.09


3440 Tower Rent $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,250.08 ($1,250.08) 108% $17,291.74


3425 Jail Boarding $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00 $312.25 $0.00 $695,906.25 $304,093.75 70% $1,001,635.55


3420 Hirebacks $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


3415 Fingerprinting $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $0.00 $519.25 ($519.25) +++ $500.50


3410 Computer Rent $3,600.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $600.00 83% $3,600.00


3310 Copies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3.25 ($3.25) +++ $9.00


Department: 12 Sheriff totals: $1,316,600.00 $0.00 $1,316,600.00 $123,303.07 $0.00 $875,974.71 $440,625.29 67% $1,439,717.21


Revenue Totals $11,533,850.00 $0.00 $11,533,850.00 $669,677.90 $0.00 $11,580,292.58 ($46,442.58) 100% $12,272,387.80
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4214 Gas (Heating) $102,075.00 $0.00 $102,075.00 $3,359.22 $0.00 $55,676.85 $46,398.15 55% $79,427.79


4212 Electricity $208,045.00 $0.00 $208,045.00 $26,372.57 $0.00 $250,752.67 ($42,707.67) 121% $206,394.44


4210 Disposal Service $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $1,560.00 $0.00 $11,265.00 ($1,265.00) 113% $10,724.47


4140 Holiday Pay $1,696.00 $0.00 $1,696.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,696.00 0% $196.90


4130 Overtime $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,739.36 $4,260.64 64% $10,866.41


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $336,039.00 $0.00 $336,039.00 $28,444.43 $0.00 $341,027.96 ($4,988.96) 101% $368,639.49


Department: 02 Building & Grounds


4742 Election Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4714 Software Maintenance $26,880.00 $0.00 $26,880.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,060.87 ($1,180.87) 104% $16,414.74


4528 Voter Registration Supplies $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $2,022.61 $0.00 $8,982.02 $1,017.98 90% $6,097.91


4525 Election Supplies $66,500.00 $0.00 $66,500.00 $31,632.44 $0.00 $65,939.01 $560.99 99% $36,284.73


4412 Official Publications $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $2,327.45 $0.00 $11,090.03 ($1,090.03) 111% $5,185.50


4100 Salaries- Departmental $76,265.00 $0.00 $76,265.00 $29,255.00 $0.00 $57,257.20 $19,007.80 75% $28,609.75


Sub-Department: 10 Elections totals: $189,645.00 $0.00 $189,645.00 $65,237.50 $0.00 $171,329.13 $18,315.87 90% $92,592.63


Sub-Department: 10 Elections


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $778.69 $0.00 $1,486.59 $13.41 99% $1,467.64


4720 Office Equipment $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $355.83 $0.00 $355.83 $1,144.17 24% $1,470.10


4714 Software Maintenance $17,500.00 $0.00 $17,500.00 $4,630.50 $0.00 $16,880.50 $619.50 96% $13,818.00


4510 Office Supplies $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $2,134.01 $0.00 $9,999.21 $2,000.79 83% $7,269.33


4460 Registrar Births & Deaths $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $347.00


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $274.00 $0.00 $2,399.15 $1,600.85 60% $3,364.51


4410 Microfilming & Indexing $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $727.67 $0.00 $1,028.61 $971.39 51% $1,062.10


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $8,500.00 $0.00 $8,500.00 $1,307.50 $0.00 $2,760.00 $5,740.00 32% $5,162.59


4100 Salaries- Departmental $289,446.00 $0.00 $289,446.00 $24,016.12 $0.00 $288,193.44 $1,252.56 100% $279,265.20


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder 
totals:


$526,091.00 $0.00 $526,091.00 $99,461.82 $0.00 $494,432.46 $31,658.54 94% $405,819.10


Department: 01 County Clerk/Recorder


4900 Interfund Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4899 Other Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 00 Non-Departmental totals: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 00 Non-Departmental
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4510 Office Supplies $24,500.00 $0.00 $24,500.00 $846.36 $0.00 $19,983.40 $4,516.60 82% $21,813.23


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $312.94 $0.00 $2,697.04 $52.96 98% $3,086.35


4412 Official Publications $1,800.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 $1,113.05 $0.00 $1,675.85 $124.15 93% $1,643.20


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $2,665.63 $0.00 $36,138.39 ($11,138.39) 145% $36,859.34


4100 Salaries- Departmental $115,650.00 $0.00 $115,650.00 $9,791.66 $0.00 $104,299.92 $11,350.08 90% $100,775.88


Department: 03 Treasurer


4890 Grant Expense $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $11,584.31


4770-30 Capital Improvements - - Weld 
Park


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4755 Vehicle Purchase $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4740 Postage Meter & Rental $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4730 Equipment - New & Used $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,480.48 $4,519.52 55% $0.00


4720 Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $43,500.00 $0.00 $43,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $41,487.23 $2,012.77 95% $22,101.69


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $1,110.00 $0.00 $1,110.00 $0.00 $0.00 $112.98 $997.02 10% $165.00


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $7,802.00 $0.00 $7,802.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,086.26 $5,715.74 27% $2,984.00


4570 Uniforms $2,700.00 $0.00 $2,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,700.00 $0.00 100% $2,659.05


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$8,010.00 $0.00 $8,010.00 $352.12 $0.00 $6,683.77 $1,326.23 83% $4,865.86


4540-30 Repairs & Maint - Facilities - 
Weld Park


$6,500.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,011.44 ($511.44) 108% $6,701.02


4540-10 Repairs & Maint - Facilities $90,000.00 $0.00 $90,000.00 $8,329.63 $0.00 $99,716.98 ($9,716.98) 111% $118,158.11


Rollup Account 4540 Repairs & Maint - 
Facilities totals:


$96,500.00 $0.00 $96,500.00 $8,329.63 $0.00 $106,728.42 ($10,228.42) 111% $124,859.13


4520 Janitorial Supplies $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,504.81 $5,495.19 78% $23,036.02


4512 Copy Paper $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4490 Contingencies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4420 Training Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4220 Rent $3,600.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 100% $3,600.00


4218 Water $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $3,326.50 $0.00 $27,761.92 ($7,761.92) 139% $17,393.97


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $1,860.45 $0.00 $23,998.24 $6,001.76 80% $29,772.10


4216 Telephone $65,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 $4,011.18 $0.00 $50,065.06 $14,934.94 77% $55,627.07


Rollup Account 4216 Telephone totals: $95,000.00 $0.00 $95,000.00 $5,871.63 $0.00 $74,063.30 $20,936.70 78% $85,399.17


Department: 02 Building & Grounds totals: $983,077.00 $0.00 $983,077.00 $77,616.10 $0.00 $956,671.01 $26,405.99 97% $974,897.70
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4510 Office Supplies $6,500.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $267.95 $0.00 $2,529.98 $3,970.02 39% $5,977.52


4465 Jurors - Circuit Court $29,173.00 $0.00 $29,173.00 $313.80 $0.00 $8,611.50 $20,561.50 30% $12,730.03


4442 Psychiatric Services $7,000.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,919.50 $1,080.50 85% $3,625.00


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $275.00 $0.00 $7,812.43 ($1,812.43) 130% $2,917.44


4345 Interpreter $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $1,016.50 $0.00 $13,369.25 ($8,369.25) 267% $13,279.80


4335 Expert Witnesses $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $960.20 $0.00 $4,694.00 $1,306.00 78% $8,665.08


4324 Appointed Attorneys $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $1,015.50 $0.00 $45,947.83 ($10,947.83) 131% $49,689.65


4274 CASA $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 100% $5,000.00


4112 Judges Reimbursement $2,320.00 $0.00 $2,320.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,332.42 ($12.42) 101% $2,331.24


4106 Salaries- Public Defenders $149,880.00 $0.00 $149,880.00 $12,490.02 $0.00 $147,798.57 $2,081.43 99% $145,962.28


4100 Salaries- Departmental $36,136.00 $0.00 $36,136.00 $3,011.34 $0.00 $38,217.75 ($2,081.75) 106% $36,136.08


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 100% $500.00


4510 Office Supplies $975.00 $0.00 $975.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,153.81 ($178.81) 118% $1,498.98


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$4,800.00 $0.00 $4,800.00 $274.80 $0.00 $4,993.58 ($193.58) 104% $4,844.28


4314 Contractual Services $5,118.00 $0.00 $5,118.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,749.77 $368.23 93% $5,074.74


4220 Rent $16,500.00 $0.00 $16,500.00 $4,125.00 $0.00 $16,500.00 $0.00 100% $16,500.00


4216 Telephone $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $120.84 $0.00 $1,495.84 $4.16 100% $1,500.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $27,319.00 $0.00 $27,319.00 $2,276.58 $0.00 $27,318.96 $0.04 100% $27,318.96


Sub-Department: 20 Regional Supt of 
Schools totals:


$56,712.00 $0.00 $56,712.00 $6,797.22 $0.00 $56,711.96 $0.04 100% $57,236.96


Sub-Department: 20 Regional Supt of Schools


4250-40 Agency Allotments - Soil & 
Water Conservation


$25,717.00 $0.00 $25,717.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,717.00 $0.00 100% $25,717.00


4250-20 Agency Allotments - Board of 
Health


$84,000.00 $0.00 $84,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $84,000.00 $0.00 100% $179,000.00


Rollup Account 4250 Agency Allotments - 
Board of Health totals:


$109,717.00 $0.00 $109,717.00 $0.00 $0.00 $109,717.00 $0.00 100% $204,717.00


Department: 04 HEW totals: $166,429.00 $0.00 $166,429.00 $6,797.22 $0.00 $166,428.96 $0.04 100% $261,953.96


Department: 04 HEW


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $750.00 $0.00 $750.00 $102.01 $0.00 $952.91 ($202.91) 127% $529.43


4720 Office Equipment $100.00 $0.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0% $0.00


4714 Software Maintenance $12,250.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 100% $12,250.00


Department: 03 Treasurer totals: $182,800.00 $0.00 $182,800.00 $14,831.65 $0.00 $177,997.51 $4,802.49 97% $176,957.43
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4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4140 Holiday Pay $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,820.55 $12,179.45 39% $0.00


4130 Overtime $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,817.01 ($12,817.01) +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $120,000.00 $0.00 $120,000.00 $1,945.20 $0.00 $119,354.38 $645.62 99% $139,803.73


4100 Salaries- Departmental $732,768.00 $0.00 $732,768.00 $19,490.85 $0.00 $732,736.86 $31.14 100% $760,024.41


Department: 09 Focus House


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4720 Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4438 Juvenile Detention Fees $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $2,640.00 $0.00 $21,430.00 $8,570.00 71% $41,313.86


4250-70 Agency Allotments - Youth 
Service Bureau


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 100% $12,000.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $640,924.00 $0.00 $640,924.00 $52,183.13 $0.00 $601,130.21 $39,793.79 94% $670,521.38


Department: 08 Probation totals: $682,924.00 $0.00 $682,924.00 $54,823.13 $0.00 $634,560.21 $48,363.79 93% $723,835.24


Department: 08 Probation


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 0% $245.87


4720 Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4516 Postage $18,500.00 $0.00 $18,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,500.00 0% $15,596.79


4510 Office Supplies $20,500.00 $0.00 $20,500.00 $3,437.56 $0.00 $23,582.99 ($3,082.99) 115% $11,000.92


4509 Jury Supplies $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0% $8,584.20


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $105.00 $0.00 $1,433.86 ($233.86) 119% $5,335.47


4412 Official Publications $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $39.00 $0.00 $2,195.20 ($1,195.20) 220% $1,460.55


4312 Auditing $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $26,000.00 $0.00 $26,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,153.63 $17,846.37 31% $16,709.84


4100 Salaries- Departmental $504,000.00 $0.00 $504,000.00 $44,751.26 $0.00 $547,033.96 ($43,033.96) 109% $528,466.36


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk totals: $582,400.00 $0.00 $582,400.00 $48,332.82 $0.00 $582,399.64 $0.36 100% $587,400.00


Department: 07 Circuit Clerk


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $239.93 $0.00 $3,382.54 $117.46 97% $2,962.99


4720 Office Equipment $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,217.00 $2,783.00 44% $3,926.43


4535 Law Library Materials $13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,992.43 ($1,992.43) 115% $14,923.56


Department: 06 Judiciary & Jury totals: $309,509.00 $0.00 $309,509.00 $19,590.24 $0.00 $302,825.20 $6,683.80 98% $308,127.10
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4720 Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $919.12


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $775.93 $0.00 $1,551.24 $448.76 78% $767.37


4510 Office Supplies $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $439.01 $0.00 $4,486.36 $3,513.64 56% $4,750.13


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$5,800.00 $0.00 $5,800.00 $307.40 $0.00 $4,191.85 $1,608.15 72% $4,888.51


4412 Official Publications $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $724.25 ($224.25) 145% $2,625.57


4146 Regional Planning Commission $3,300.00 $0.00 $3,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,680.00 $620.00 81% $2,764.70


4145 Board of Appeals $3,900.00 $0.00 $3,900.00 $160.00 $0.00 $3,016.55 $883.45 77% $4,866.40


4100 Salaries- Departmental $135,468.00 $0.00 $135,468.00 $10,584.54 $0.00 $128,241.21 $7,226.79 95% $130,496.91


Department: 11 Zoning


4510 Office Supplies $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,462.99 $537.01 82% $2,216.07


4412 Official Publications $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $564.63 $935.37 38% $1,029.70


4100 Salaries- Departmental $14,500.00 $0.00 $14,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,057.50 $442.50 97% $13,611.00


Sub-Department: 40 Board of Review 
totals:


$19,000.00 $0.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,085.12 $1,914.88 90% $16,856.77


Sub-Department: 40 Board of Review


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $158.97 $841.03 16% $349.50


4720 Office Equipment $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,424.13 $575.87 81% $5,100.00


4714 Software Maintenance $12,250.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,250.00 $0.00 100% $12,250.00


4530 Mapping $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $946.02 $0.00 $5,202.27 $4,797.73 52% $10,156.15


4510 Office Supplies $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $1,208.10 $0.00 $7,978.18 $2,021.82 80% $6,069.83


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $55.00 $0.00 $480.65 $1,519.35 24% $275.28


4420 Training Expenses $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0% $888.88


4412 Official Publications $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $951.76 $0.00 $2,734.54 $3,265.46 46% $2,038.98


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $184,385.00 $0.00 $184,385.00 $15,625.00 $0.00 $186,874.97 ($2,489.97) 101% $187,500.00


Department: 10 Assessment totals: $249,635.00 $0.00 $249,635.00 $18,785.88 $0.00 $235,188.83 $14,446.17 94% $241,485.39


Department: 10 Assessment


4555 Animal Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 100% $4,152.68


4444 Medical Expense $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $183.83 $0.00 $1,859.39 $140.61 93% $1,560.03


4440 Personal Care & Hygiene $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $838.94 $161.06 84% $766.34


4435 Transportation of Detainees $13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $0.00 100% $11,324.64


Department: 09 Focus House totals: $893,768.00 $0.00 $893,768.00 $21,619.88 $0.00 $893,427.13 $340.87 100% $917,631.83
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4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $130.00 $0.00 $248.83 $251.17 50% $818.11


4216 Telephone $14,000.00 $0.00 $14,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,496.39 $6,503.61 54% $12,043.85


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $1,064.44 $0.00 $4,291.73 ($1,791.73) 172% $3,112.92


Rollup Account 4216 Telephone totals: $16,500.00 $0.00 $16,500.00 $1,064.44 $0.00 $11,788.12 $4,711.88 71% $15,156.77


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,260.13 ($1,260.13) +++ $1,659.05


4100 Salaries- Departmental $58,364.00 $0.00 $58,364.00 $38,603.35 $0.00 $91,845.11 ($33,481.11) 157% $58,081.92


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA


4755 Vehicle Purchase $35,658.00 $0.00 $35,658.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,658.15 $2,999.85 92% $185,737.14


4737 Maintainence of Radios $12,500.00 $0.00 $12,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,483.00 $11,017.00 12% $1,220.00


4730-30 Equipment - New & Used - - 
Radio Equipment


$71,571.00 $0.00 $71,571.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62,073.31 $9,497.69 87% $62,280.20


4726 Furniture $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $8,500.00 $0.00 $8,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,587.79 $1,912.21 78% $6,178.66


4720 Office Equipment $2,220.00 $0.00 $2,220.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,220.00 0% $7,320.33


4715 Computer Maintenance $26,739.00 $0.00 $26,739.00 $7,288.80 $0.00 $19,912.81 $6,826.19 74% $32,488.83


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $1,136.00 $0.00 $1,136.00 $0.00 $0.00 $776.00 $360.00 68% $24,003.16


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $135,872.00 $0.00 $135,872.00 $6,660.29 $0.00 $70,567.95 $65,304.05 52% $102,035.46


4575 Weapons & Ammunition $14,760.00 $0.00 $14,760.00 $9,842.31 $0.00 $10,342.31 $4,417.69 70% $25,026.55


4570 Uniforms $23,224.00 $0.00 $23,224.00 $1,281.40 $0.00 $11,585.62 $11,638.38 50% $29,056.90


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$112,280.00 $0.00 $112,280.00 $8,023.32 $0.00 $97,465.19 $14,814.81 87% $154,214.86


4510 Office Supplies $26,500.00 $0.00 $26,500.00 $2,769.88 $0.00 $10,449.95 $16,050.05 39% $25,461.45


4424 Out-of-State Travel $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $3,199.20


4420 Training Expenses $8,525.00 $0.00 $8,525.00 $324.19 $0.00 $5,004.81 $3,520.19 59% $42,882.20


4140 Holiday Pay $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $16,802.81 $0.00 $71,063.06 $28,936.94 71% $98,370.26


4130 Overtime $145,854.00 $0.00 $145,854.00 $6,628.21 $0.00 $66,053.01 $79,800.99 45% $121,399.84


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,789.43 $0.00 $8,778.72 ($8,778.72) +++ $20,585.70


4111 Salaries- Merit Commission $1,640.00 $0.00 $1,640.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,640.00 0% $4,552.32


4108 Salaries- Bailiffs $162,236.00 $0.00 $162,236.00 $13,375.87 $0.00 $160,499.10 $1,736.90 99% $218,827.79


4100 Salaries- Departmental $1,789,056.00 $0.00 $1,789,056.00 $180,517.55 $0.00 $1,988,205.01 ($199,149.01) 111% $2,029,609.98


Department: 12 Sheriff


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $89.99 $0.00 $477.60 $522.40 48% $568.39


Department: 11 Zoning totals: $159,968.00 $0.00 $159,968.00 $12,356.87 $0.00 $145,369.06 $14,598.94 91% $152,647.10
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4420 Training Expenses $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,905.40 $594.60 76% $1,473.76


4355 Autopsy Fees $32,800.00 $0.00 $32,800.00 $2,100.00 $0.00 $26,508.06 $6,291.94 81% $29,666.60


4216 Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $37,014.00 $0.00 $37,014.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,593.78 ($579.78) 102% $38,072.21


4100 Salaries- Departmental $80,739.00 $0.00 $80,739.00 $10,308.64 $0.00 $86,109.90 ($5,370.90) 107% $79,081.39


Department: 13 Coroner


4737 Maintainence of Radios $63,894.00 $0.00 $63,894.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60,534.20 $3,359.80 95% $59,957.76


4726 Furniture $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $214.00 $286.00 43% $509.29


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0% $200.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $14,167.00 $0.00 $14,167.00 $8,989.39 $0.00 $35,152.49 ($20,985.49) 248% $27,013.11


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $43,087.00 $0.00 $43,087.00 $7,200.00 $0.00 $9,530.67 $33,556.33 22% $26,244.28


4570 Uniforms $2,880.00 $0.00 $2,880.00 $0.00 $0.00 $978.00 $1,902.00 34% $285.71


4500 Supplies $1,875.00 $0.00 $1,875.00 $577.66 $0.00 $4,131.62 ($2,256.62) 220% $4,402.87


4424 Out-of-State Travel $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4420 Training Expenses $1,115.00 $0.00 $1,115.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $915.00 18% $860.11


4140 Holiday Pay $29,000.00 $0.00 $29,000.00 $5,934.40 $0.00 $23,068.90 $5,931.10 80% $27,717.95


4130 Overtime $46,000.00 $0.00 $46,000.00 $7,038.73 $0.00 $46,900.78 ($900.78) 102% $47,912.57


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $527,867.00 $0.00 $527,867.00 $38,474.00 $0.00 $478,954.66 $48,912.34 91% $522,538.08


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency 
Communications totals:


$731,385.00 $0.00 $731,385.00 $68,214.18 $0.00 $659,665.32 $71,719.68 90% $717,641.73


Sub-Department: 62 Emergency Communications


4755 Vehicle Purchase $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,574.44 $3,425.56 57% $8,000.00


4737 Maintainence of Radios $1,514.00 $0.00 $1,514.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,318.48 ($804.48) 153% $2,222.16


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,243.79 $506.21 82% $2,109.72


4720 Office Equipment $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0% $49.87


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $7,765.00 $0.00 $7,765.00 $1,777.00 $0.00 $9,573.25 ($1,808.25) 123% $5,873.25


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $1,034.00 $0.00 $1,034.00 $24.99 $0.00 $93.33 $940.67 9% $291.07


4570 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $827.86


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$2,700.00 $0.00 $2,700.00 $39.05 $0.00 $3,215.46 ($515.46) 119% $3,086.18


4510 Office Supplies $800.00 $0.00 $800.00 $11.04 $0.00 $646.39 $153.61 81% $509.19


Sub-Department: 60 OEMA totals: $100,427.00 $0.00 $100,427.00 $41,649.87 $0.00 $127,807.33 ($27,380.33) 127% $98,685.15


Department: 12 Sheriff totals: $3,510,083.00 $0.00 $3,510,083.00 $366,168.11 $0.00 $3,410,978.44 $99,104.56 97% $4,010,777.71
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4159 Workman's Compensation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4157 Unemployment Compensation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4155 Health Insurance $1,457,500.00 $0.00 $1,457,500.00 $122,008.78 $0.00 $1,418,884.34 $38,615.66 97% $1,429,164.77


4150 Blanket Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


Department: 15 Insurance totals: $1,457,500.00 $0.00 $1,457,500.00 $122,008.78 $0.00 $1,418,884.34 $38,615.66 97% $1,429,164.77


Department: 15 Insurance


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0% $1,192.01


4720 Office Equipment $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $282.77 $0.00 $384.17 $615.83 38% $158.49


4538 Legal Materials & Books $13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $1,007.48 $0.00 $12,903.35 $96.65 99% $13,858.45


4510 Office Supplies $9,500.00 $0.00 $9,500.00 $144.30 $0.00 $10,164.24 ($664.24) 107% $8,629.30


4450 Investigation Expense $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $409.72 $90.28 82% $569.95


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $1,168.10 $0.00 $7,138.23 ($1,138.23) 119% $10,398.12


4415-10 Printing - Appeals & 
Transcripts


$8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $32.63 $0.00 $5,979.42 $2,020.58 75% $8,201.71


4340 IL Appellate Prosecutor $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 100% $15,000.00


4335 Expert Witnesses $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,300.00 $700.00 83% $957.71


4274 CASA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $5,000.00


4216-30 Telephone - Cell Phones & 
Pagers


$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $7,200.00 $0.00 $7,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,200.00 0% $4,520.50


4107 Salaries-Victim Witness Advocate $34,257.00 $0.00 $34,257.00 $2,611.58 $0.00 $31,338.96 $2,918.04 91% $30,442.08


4100 Salaries- Departmental $566,924.00 $0.00 $566,924.00 $40,552.76 $0.00 $551,008.12 $15,915.88 97% $560,178.90


Department: 14 State's Attorney totals: $666,881.00 $0.00 $666,881.00 $45,799.62 $0.00 $637,626.21 $29,254.79 96% $659,107.22


Department: 14 State's Attorney


4755 Vehicle Purchase $4,782.00 $0.00 $4,782.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,845.46 ($63.46) 101% $4,781.07


4720 Office Equipment $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $650.40 $549.60 54% $1,090.90


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $35.00 $0.00 $2,235.81 $264.19 89% $2,950.72


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $103.06 $0.00 $1,916.89 $1,583.11 55% $2,098.89


4510 Office Supplies $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $99.15 $0.00 $2,759.02 $1,740.98 61% $3,902.14


4458 Coroner Lab Fees $8,868.00 $0.00 $8,868.00 $549.00 $0.00 $8,632.03 $235.97 97% $8,104.90


4455 Coroner Jurors $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0% $2,712.60


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350.00 $1,650.00 18% $1,425.00


Department: 13 Coroner totals: $181,903.00 $0.00 $181,903.00 $13,194.85 $0.00 $173,506.75 $8,396.25 95% $175,360.18


Account Number Adopted Budget
Budget 


Amendments Amended Budget
Current Month 


Transactions
YTD 


Encumbrances YTD Transactions
Budget - YTD 
Transactions


% Used/ 
Rec'd Prior Year YTD







General Fund Budget Performance
Ogle County


Fiscal Year To Date: 11/30/2010


Friday, December 10, 2010Pages 12 of 14user: John Coffman


4162 IMRF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4160 FICA/ Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4155 Health Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4142 IT/ Network Administration $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $991.00 $0.00 $31,552.74 $3,447.26 90% $37,233.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $21,217.92


Sub-Department: 35 Information Technology


4740 Postage Meter & Rental $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,943.98 $1,056.02 74% $2,943.98


4512 Copy Paper $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,494.18 $3,505.82 71% $10,275.92


4510 Office Supplies $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $53.51 $0.00 $620.59 ($120.59) 124% $785.79


4490 Contingencies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $481.28 $18.72 96% $1,551.86


4100 Salaries- Departmental $80,000.00 $0.00 $80,000.00 $6,666.66 $0.00 $79,076.84 $923.16 99% $69,131.29


Sub-Department: 30 County 
Administrator totals:


$97,000.00 $0.00 $97,000.00 $6,720.17 $0.00 $91,616.87 $5,383.13 94% $84,688.84


Sub-Department: 30 County Administrator


4770-20 Capital Improvements - - Ogle 
County Fair Assn


$2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 100% $5,000.00


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4510 Office Supplies $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $213.90 $0.00 $2,781.16 ($1,281.16) 185% $3,080.72


4490 Contingencies $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $59,857.23 $0.00 $78,785.56 $21,214.44 79% $52,865.64


4422 Travel Expenses, Dues & 
Seminars


$3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $582.18 $0.00 $3,974.71 ($974.71) 132% $15,321.05


4415-20 Printing - County Ordinances $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $71.00 $429.00 14% $1,360.00


4412 Official Publications $300.00 $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $611.14 ($311.14) 204% $368.13


4312 Auditing $45,500.00 $0.00 $45,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45,000.00 $500.00 99% $57,925.00


4250-30 Agency Allotments - Economic 
Development Dist. Dues


$10,179.00 $0.00 $10,179.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,178.64 $0.36 100% $11,678.64


4250-60 Agency Allotments - NW IL 
Criminal Justice


$2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,925.00 ($425.00) 117% $2,990.00


Rollup Account 4250 Agency Allotments - 
Economic Development Dist. Dues totals:


$12,679.00 $0.00 $12,679.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,103.64 ($424.64) 103% $14,668.64


4148 Administrative Hearing Officer $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0% $0.00


4144 Pay Grade Study $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 0% $0.00


4142 IT/ Network Administration $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 +++ $0.00


4100 Salaries- Departmental $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $7,000.00 $0.00 $69,550.00 $450.00 99% $69,150.00


Department: 16 Finance
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4737 Maintainence of Radios $475.00 $0.00 $475.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $475.00 0% $0.00


4730-30 Equipment - New & Used - - 
Radio Equipment


$1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 0% $1,050.95


4726 Furniture $350.00 $0.00 $350.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350.00 0% $0.00


4724 Office Equipment Maintenance $2,750.00 $0.00 $2,750.00 $72.49 $0.00 $3,965.98 ($1,215.98) 144% $3,604.03


4720 Office Equipment $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0% $0.00


4715 Computer Maintenance $27,467.00 $0.00 $27,467.00 $8,521.16 $0.00 $19,954.21 $7,512.79 73% $20,437.46


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $742.30 ($742.30) +++ $1,077.29


4585 Vehicle Maintenance $2,872.00 $0.00 $2,872.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,122.59 $1,749.41 39% $622.27


4575 Weapons & Ammunition $1,313.00 $0.00 $1,313.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,313.00 0% $2,453.79


4570 Uniforms $2,700.00 $0.00 $2,700.00 $88.65 $0.00 $1,405.05 $1,294.95 52% $8,444.96


4550 Food for County Prisoners $139,475.00 $0.00 $139,475.00 $13,953.61 $0.00 $140,530.70 ($1,055.70) 101% $160,643.51


4545-10 Petroleum Products - - 
Gasoline


$2,335.00 $0.00 $2,335.00 $215.41 $0.00 $1,261.86 $1,073.14 54% $1,759.41


4510 Office Supplies $32,500.00 $0.00 $32,500.00 $2,856.63 $0.00 $37,208.59 ($4,708.59) 114% $38,461.63


4446 Prisoner Mental Health $16,125.00 $0.00 $16,125.00 $1,125.00 $0.00 $16,125.00 $0.00 100% $15,000.00


4444 Medical Expense $79,275.00 $0.00 $79,275.00 $8,979.20 $0.00 $90,965.80 ($11,690.80) 115% $90,948.15


4424 Out-of-State Travel $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 $1,993.20 $0.00 $14,379.40 ($6,879.40) 192% $10,185.56


4420 Training Expenses $850.00 $0.00 $850.00 $0.00 $0.00 $898.21 ($48.21) 106% $9,979.90


4140 Holiday Pay $36,794.00 $0.00 $36,794.00 $11,839.51 $0.00 $40,287.64 ($3,493.64) 109% $42,604.52


4130 Overtime $140,000.00 $0.00 $140,000.00 $13,247.27 $0.00 $117,696.25 $22,303.75 84% $120,460.65


4120 Part Time/ Extra Time $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,483.31 ($1,483.31) +++ $23,862.59


4100 Salaries- Departmental $1,089,914.00 $0.00 $1,089,914.00 $108,403.72 $0.00 $1,211,558.44 ($121,644.44) 111% $1,077,064.21


Department: 22 Corrections totals: $1,584,395.00 $0.00 $1,584,395.00 $171,295.85 $0.00 $1,699,585.33 ($115,190.33) 107% $1,628,660.88


Department: 22 Corrections


4710 Computer Hardware & Software $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,762.44 ($1,762.44) 109% $24,811.12


Sub-Department: 35 Information 
Technology totals:


$55,000.00 $0.00 $55,000.00 $991.00 $0.00 $53,315.18 $1,684.82 97% $83,262.04


Department: 16 Finance totals: $397,479.00 $0.00 $397,479.00 $75,364.48 $0.00 $361,309.26 $36,169.74 91% $387,690.06


Expenditure Totals: $12,534,842.00 $0.00 $12,534,842.00 $1,168,047.30 $0.00 $12,291,190.34 $243,651.66 98% $13,041,515.67


Revenue Totals: $11,533,850.00 $0.00 $11,533,850.00 $669,677.90 $0.00 $11,580,292.58 ($46,442.58) 100% $12,272,387.80


Fund Totals: General Fund ($1,000,992.00) $0.00 ($1,000,992.00) ($498,369.40) $0.00 ($710,897.76) ($290,094.24) ($769,127.87)


Expenditure Grand Totals: $12,534,842.00 $0.00 $12,534,842.00 $1,168,047.30 $0.00 $12,291,190.34 $243,651.66 98% $13,041,515.67


Revenue Grand Totals: $11,533,850.00 $0.00 $11,533,850.00 $669,677.90 $0.00 $11,580,292.58 ($46,442.58) 100% $12,272,387.80
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Grand Totals: ($1,000,992.00) $0.00 ($1,000,992.00) ($498,369.40) $0.00 ($710,897.76) ($290,094.24) ($769,127.87)







1000.002 Cash - AB - Solid Waste 988,833.40 38,629.81 33,781.82 993,681.39
1000.004 Cash - AB - County Highway 1,235,474.01 55,865.31 190,025.22 1,101,314.10
1000.006 Cash - AB - Treasurer 100,561.88 11.06 0.00 100,572.94
1000.010 Cash - BB - Insurance Reserve 75,561.95 15.54 0.00 75,577.49
1000.011 Cash - BB - Bond Fund 43,416.55 1,105,005.42 1,140,000.00 8,421.97
1000.012 Cash - BB - Probation Service Fee 34,185.24 11,542.98 15,451.43 30,276.79
1000.014 Cash - BB - County Bridge 25,323.26 268,900.53 240,753.94 53,469.85
1000.016 Cash - - BB - Document Storage 118,777.79 6,267.60 21.07 125,024.32
1000.018 Cash - BB - Long Range Planning 1,814,556.49 8,766.37 1,242,325.83 580,997.03
1000.020 Cash - FSB - TB Checking 25,181.56 736.97 2,753.38 23,165.15
1000.022 Cash - FSB - TB Money Market 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000.024 Cash - FSB - 911 660,162.21 46,644.23 41,599.89 665,206.55
1000.030 Cash - HSB - Federal Aid Matching 221,067.15 51,383.62 250,208.13 22,242.64
1000.032 Cash - HSB - War Veterans Assistance 55,766.63 982.93 4,900.00 51,849.56
1000.034 Cash - HSB - Solid Waste 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000.040 Cash - NBR - Treasurer 2,734,498.12 1,051,954.67 1,652,009.64 2,134,443.15
1000.042 Cash - NBR - Township MFT 508,013.28 84,337.58 1,692.00 590,658.86
1000.044 Cash - NBR - Engineering 36,547.05 3.82 0.00 36,550.87
1000.046 Cash - NBR - Vital Records 84,642.17 1,507.34 2,400.00 83,749.51
1000.048 Cash - NBR - GIS Fee Fund 122,665.93 15,783.85 51,218.28 87,231.50
1000.050 Cash - NBR - Marriage Fund 3,952.03 60.69 0.00 4,012.72
1000.055 Cash - Polo - Dependent Children's 99,414.51 64,895.18 122,427.06 41,882.63
1000.060 Cash - RRB - Animal Control 184,663.74 14,068.51 12,515.29 186,216.96
1000.062 Cash - RRB - Public Health 92,986.76 21,164.38 82,770.12 31,381.02
1000.064 Cash - RRB - Payroll Clearing 0.00 1,411,358.26 1,411,358.26 0.00
1000.066 Cash - RRB - County MFT 248,622.69 64,609.07 129,978.50 183,253.26
1000.068 Cash - RRB - GIS Committee Fund 7,304.67 58,148.23 6,484.05 58,968.85
1000.070 Cash - RRB - County Orders 222.96 1,175,565.50 1,175,788.46 0.00
1000.072 Cash - RRB - A/P Clearing (3,900.00) 995,118.49 991,218.49 0.00
1000.074 Cash - - RRB - County Indemnity 22,673.77 14.60 0.00 22,688.37
1000.076 Cash - RRB - Social Security 434,311.07 11,738.92 73,873.63 372,176.36
1000.078 Cash - RRB - Treasurer 405,480.71 48,200.30 39,707.93 413,973.08
1000.080 Cash - SV - Mental Health 496,027.41 11,871.06 53,108.17 454,790.30
1000.082 Cash - SV - Township Bridge 19,795.48 1.46 16,833.00 2,963.94
1000.084 Cash - SV - IMRF 1,083,447.92 206,797.82 285,681.59 1,004,564.15
1000.086 Cash - SV - County Automation 137,193.02 6,238.96 6,342.50 137,089.48
1000.088 Cash - SV - Recorder's Resolution 80,772.39 4,651.10 3,461.30 81,962.19
1000.090 Cash SV - Health Claims 0.00 182,944.06 182,944.06 0.00
1000.091 Cash - SV - Flex Spending 3,777.54 2,617.00 281.75 6,112.79
1000.099 Cash - Treasurer's Cash 1,909.63 0.00 0.00 1,909.63
1002.002 Investments - RRB Insurance Reserve 225,000.00 504.11 0.00 225,504.11
1002.004 Investments - Insurance Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.006 Investments - RRB County MFT 140,000.00 240,000.00 140,000.00 240,000.00
1002.007 Investments - SV Township Bridge 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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1002.008 Investments - HSB -FAM 700,000.00 660,000.00 700,000.00 660,000.00
1002.009 Investments - BB -Thorpe Road


Overpass
276,633.00 0.00 0.00 276,633.00


1002.010 Investments - NBR Township MFT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.012 Investments - NBR Engineering 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.013 Investments - RRB- GIS Committee 110,000.00 100,000.00 110,000.00 100,000.00
1002.014 Investments - Storm Water


Management
48,832.33 0.00 0.00 48,832.33


1002.015 Investments - NBR - FAM 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.016 Investments - FSB -911 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.017 Investments - Polo - 911 906,694.52 0.00 0.00 906,694.52
1002.018 Investments - RRB -911 1,149,403.94 0.00 0.00 1,149,403.94
1002.020 Investments - RRB Indemnity 252,431.55 0.00 0.00 252,431.55
1002.021 Investments - FSB-Solid Waste 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.022 Investments - HSB Solid Waste 849,166.77 5,136.88 0.00 854,303.65
1002.024 Investments - LSB Solid Waste 1,189,554.64 0.00 0.00 1,189,554.64
1002.026 Investments - NBB Solid Waste 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00
1002.027 Investments - Polo - Solid Waste 407,951.37 0.00 0.00 407,951.37
1002.028 Investments - HSB Long Range Capital


Imp
2,731,670.37 3,210.55 0.00 2,734,880.92


1002.029 Investments - FSB - Long Range
Capital Improve


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


1002.030 Investments - Long Range Capital Imp 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00
1002.031 Investments - NBR County General 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.032 Investments - BB Long Range Capital


Imp
1,734,836.15 0.00 0.00 1,734,836.15


1002.033 Investments - SV - Long Range Capital 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.034 Investments - TB 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.036 Investments - Public Health 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.038 Investments - FSB Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.040 Investments - Polo Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.042 Investments - HSB - Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.043 Investments - RRB - Treasurer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1002.049 Investments - SF- GIS Committee 202,742.56 0.00 0.00 202,742.56
1002.068 Investments - Polo - Long Range


Capital
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


1002.069 Investments - NBR- Long Range
Capital


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


1002.079 Investments - BB- Bond Fund 885,000.00 1,140,000.00 0.00 2,025,000.00
1004 Postage 7,293.24 0.00 3,095.91 4,197.33
1010 Municipal Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1100 Accounts Receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1101 Due From 3,900.00 2,402,576.75 2,406,476.75 0.00


Grand Total: 80 Account(s) $25,025,001.41 $11,579,831.51 $12,823,487.45 $23,781,345.47
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100 General Fund 100 General Fund (786,971.56) 1,856,101.47 2,354,470.87 (1,285,340.96)
120 AP Clearing 120 AP Clearing 0.00 1,986,336.98 1,986,336.98 0.00
130 County Payroll Clearing 130 County Payroll Clearing 0.00 2,822,716.52 2,822,716.52 0.00
140 County OfficersFund 120 AP Clearing 976,864.26 74,112.71 94.50 1,050,882.47
150 Social Security 120 AP Clearing 434,311.07 11,738.92 73,873.63 372,176.36
160 IMRF 120 AP Clearing 1,083,447.92 206,797.82 285,681.59 1,004,564.15
170 Capital Improvement Fund 120 AP Clearing 43.87 0.00 0.00 43.87
180 Long Range Capital Improvemnt 120 AP Clearing 6,781,063.01 11,976.92 1,242,325.83 5,550,714.10
182 Judicial Facility Project Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
183 Justice Project Fund II 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
185 Bond Fund 120 AP Clearing 928,416.55 2,245,005.42 1,140,000.00 2,033,421.97
200 County Highway 120 AP Clearing 1,235,474.01 55,865.31 190,025.22 1,101,314.10
210 County Bridge Fund 120 AP Clearing 25,323.26 268,900.53 240,753.94 53,469.85
212 Thorpe Road Overpass 120 AP Clearing 276,633.00 0.00 0.00 276,633.00
220 County Motor Fuel Tax Fund 120 AP Clearing 388,622.69 304,609.07 269,978.50 423,253.26
230 County Highway Engineering 120 AP Clearing 36,547.05 3.82 0.00 36,550.87
240 Federal Aid Matching 120 AP Clearing 921,067.15 711,383.62 950,208.13 682,242.64
250 Township Roads - Motor Fuel Tax 120 AP Clearing 508,013.28 84,337.58 1,692.00 590,658.86
260 Township Bridge Fund 120 AP Clearing 19,795.48 1.46 16,833.00 2,963.94
270 GIS Committee Fund 120 AP Clearing 320,047.23 158,148.23 116,484.05 361,711.41
280 Storm Water Management 120 AP Clearing 50,768.10 0.00 0.00 50,768.10
300 Insurance - Hospital & Medical 120 AP Clearing 1,840,890.49 426,275.65 398,481.70 1,868,684.44
310 Insurance Premium Levy 120 AP Clearing 588,552.46 7,310.98 13,696.50 582,166.94
320 Self Insurance Reserve 120 AP Clearing 300,561.95 519.65 0.00 301,081.60
350 County Ordinance 120 AP Clearing 52,042.79 2,767.77 12,588.40 42,222.16
360 Marriage Fund 120 AP Clearing 3,952.03 60.69 0.00 4,012.72
370 Law Library 120 AP Clearing 21,059.70 1,610.00 3,257.00 19,412.70
400 Public Health 120 AP Clearing 92,986.76 21,164.38 82,770.12 31,381.02
410 TB Fund 120 AP Clearing 25,181.56 736.97 2,753.38 23,165.15
420 Animal Control 120 AP Clearing 152,144.57 12,438.51 9,759.99 154,823.09
425 Pet Population Control 120 AP Clearing 32,519.17 1,630.00 2,755.30 31,393.87
430 Solid Waste 120 AP Clearing 3,935,506.18 43,766.69 33,781.82 3,945,491.05
450 Inheritance Tax Fund 120 AP Clearing 53,665.32 0.00 53,665.32 0.00
455 Trust Deposits 120 AP Clearing 3,808.51 0.00 0.00 3,808.51
460 Condemnation Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
465 Hotel/ MotelTax 120 AP Clearing 7,377.17 5,331.87 0.00 12,709.04
470 Cooperative Extension Service 120 AP Clearing 146,824.53 2,184.46 0.00 149,008.99
475 Mental Health 120 AP Clearing 496,027.41 11,871.06 53,108.17 454,790.30
480 Senior Social Services 120 AP Clearing 109,125.38 3,297.64 113,208.50 (785.48)
485 War Veterans Assisstance 120 AP Clearing 55,766.63 982.93 4,900.00 51,849.56
500 Recorder's Automation 120 AP Clearing 80,772.39 4,651.10 3,461.30 81,962.19
510 GIS Fee Fund 120 AP Clearing 122,665.93 15,783.85 51,218.28 87,231.50
520 Recorder's GIS Fund 120 AP Clearing 75,694.76 1,131.00 0.00 76,825.76
530 Vital Records 120 AP Clearing 8,947.41 376.34 2,400.00 6,923.75
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550 Document Storage Fee Fund 120 AP Clearing 118,777.79 6,267.60 21.07 125,024.32
555 County Automation -Circuit Clerk 120 AP Clearing 137,193.02 6,238.96 6,342.50 137,089.48
560 Dependant Children 120 AP Clearing 96,359.85 62,267.48 119,613.65 39,013.68
565 Dependant Children Medicaid 120 AP Clearing 99.21 0.00 0.00 99.21
570 Probation Services 120 AP Clearing 34,180.49 7,364.73 8,046.13 33,499.09
571 Drug Court 120 AP Clearing 4.75 4,178.25 7,405.30 (3,222.30)
572 Victim Impact 120 AP Clearing 2,268.66 80.00 159.00 2,189.66
575 Juvenile Restitution Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
580 Alts to Detention IPCSA/IJJ 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
585 JAIBG Equipment #59087 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
590 ICJIC Probation Grant 500053 120 AP Clearing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
595 Juvenile Diversion 120 AP Clearing 2,955.45 2,627.70 2,813.41 2,769.74
600 Drug Assistance Forfeiture 120 AP Clearing 13,716.22 0.00 0.00 13,716.22
605 Bad Check Restitution 120 AP Clearing 6,014.66 0.00 0.00 6,014.66
610 OEMA 120 AP Clearing 76,523.47 73,174.24 43,982.46 105,715.25
611 EOC 120 AP Clearing 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00
615 Take Bond Fee 120 AP Clearing 12,547.30 330.00 12,877.30 0.00
620 Sheriff's Petty Cash 120 AP Clearing 7,724.77 385.00 222.24 7,887.53
625 DUI Equipment 120 AP Clearing 5,101.34 447.80 0.00 5,549.14
630 Arrestee's Medical Cost 120 AP Clearing 5,199.92 488.00 0.00 5,687.92
635 Drug Traffic Prevention 120 AP Clearing 6,387.07 137.00 0.00 6,524.07
640 911 Emergency 120 AP Clearing 1,059,318.73 22,051.72 11,289.39 1,070,081.06
644 911 Next Generation 120 AP Clearing 987,572.40 0.00 0.00 987,572.40
645 911 Wireless 120 AP Clearing 669,369.54 24,592.51 30,310.50 663,651.55
650 Out of County Medical 120 AP Clearing 6,345.80 0.00 0.00 6,345.80
660 Federal/ State Grants 120 AP Clearing (878.42) 6,058.00 1,332.76 3,846.82
665 Fed/State Reimb/Overtime 120 AP Clearing 45,791.20 0.00 45,791.20 0.00
700 Tax Sale Automation 120 AP Clearing 26,783.40 0.00 0.00 26,783.40
710 Indemnity Cost Fund 120 AP Clearing 275,105.32 14.60 0.00 275,119.92
725 Coroner's Fee Fund 120 AP Clearing 0.00 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00


Grand Total: 74 Fund(s) $25,025,001.41 $11,579,831.51 $12,823,487.45 $23,781,345.47
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The Ogle County ETSB monthly meeting was called to order by Chairman. B. Winebaugh on 
Wednesday, December 8th, at 6pm.   
 
Members present: 
R. Brass  R. Buck 
D. DeWall  L. Feary 
F. Horner  E. O’Brien 
S. Sullivan  B. Winebaugh 
 
Others Present: 
S. Beitel, Ogle County E9-1-1 Coordinator 
 
Chairman B. Winebaugh called for any public comment, there were none. 
 
A Motion by F. Horner and seconded by E. O’Brien to approve the minutes of the November 2010 
meeting.  The motion carried. 
 
A motion by R. Buck and seconded by S. Sullivan to pay the listed bills.  The motion carried. 
 
Land Line Account: 
Century Link  $163.12 
Frontier   $7,872.79 
Language Line  $83.38 
Leaf River Telephone $157.80 
Postmaster   $70.00 
Verizon Wireless  $246.54 
Total Land Line  $8,593.63 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 
 


       Ogle Co ETSB Dec. 8, 2010 page 2 
 
 
Wireless Account: 
Card Member Services $258.00 
Frontier   $6,149.59 
Ogle County Treasurer $22,147.31  
Total Wireless  $28,554.90 
 
Total Bills for Payment $37,148.53 
 
Old Business: 
 
The budget for fiscal year 2011 was sent prior to the meeting to all board members for their review. 
The board discussed the line items and how some of them were calculated.  A motion by R. Buck 
and seconded by B. Brass to approve the budget.  The motion carried. 
 
The discussion on the bylaws was tabled until the January 2011 meeting. 
 
New Business: 
S. Beitel informed the board that the Ogle County ETSB budget year runs from January 1st to 
December 31st.  This makes it difficult as the county budget is December 1st to November 30th.  A 
motion by F. Horner and seconded by D. DeWall to change the ETSB’s budget year to follow the 
county.  The motion carried. 
 
S. Sullivan presented the board with a request for a new server for the Rochelle Communications 
center.  There was discussion that this price quote was for hardware only.  There was no mention of 
the conversion of the data to the new server.  S. Sullivan will continue to work on this and report 
back to members after obtaining further information. 
 
S. Beitel presented a list of the dates for the meetings for 2011.  The dates are as follows: 
  January 12th   February 16th 
  March 9th   April 13th 
  May 11th   June 15th 
  July 13th   August 10th 
  September 14th  October 12th 
  November 9th   December 14th 
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S. Beitel presented the members with the discussion of the Per Diem for meals for travel.  Since 
1990 the per diem for travel for members has always be a set amount of $30.00 per day.  The break 
down is $5.00 for breakfast, $10.00 for lunch, and $15.00 for dinner.  This is usually not covering 
the meals especially when travelling to the major cities for conferences.  Most entities are using the 
IRS established amounts based on the city of travel for meals.  A motion by L. Feary and seconded 
by B. Brass to adopt the IRS meal per Diem for travel.  The motion carried. 
 
S. Beitel and S. Sullivan spoke with the board of the fact that the company we use for 
telecommunicator training is changing from using the pre-arrival instructions manuals to a flip chart 
method.  The company is also providing a program to assist with setting up and reviewing quality 
assurance policies for agencies utilizing their systems.  This package also includes updates for the 
flip charts at no cost.  The flip charts are $649.00 each, for a total of $3894.00.  The accreditation 
process would be $4,000 for both Communications Centers for 2 years.  With the shipping costs of 
the flip charts the total cost of the program would be $7994.00.   
A motion by R. Buck and seconded by E. O’Brien to purchase the flip charts and the accreditation 
process.  The motion carried. 
 
S. Beitel reported that the INENA legislative committee is currently working on re-writing the 9-1-1 
legislation to include interconnection for all carriers, not just AT&T, Verizon, and Frontier for the 
NG 9-1-1.  S. Beitel also informed the board that there was a NG9-1-1 presentation last week by 
AT&T.  It was well attended and S. Beitel mentioned that 3 of Ogle County Board members were 
there, Bob DeArvil, Ron Colson, and Jim Barnes.  S. Beitel stated she appreciated the time they took 
to attend the meeting and become informed of the situations that we will be facing with the NG 9-1-
1 systems.  County Administrator Meggon McKinley was also present.   
 
S. Beitel informed the board that she would be attending 9-1-1 Goes To Washington as the Vice 
President of Illinois NENA.  This will be funded through Illinois NENA. 
 
A motion by R. Buck and seconded by F. Horner for adjournment.  The motion carried and the 
meeting was adjourned at 7:00pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Sandy Beitel, Secretary 
Ogle County E9-1-1 Coordinator 
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Report to the Sponsors  
 
 
Following is the latest news from Blackhawk Hills RC&D: 
 
Energy Audits and Grant Writing Services – Blackhawk Hills RC&D partnered with 
Limestone Bluffs RC&D in Iowa to offer grant writing services in the development of 
Renewable Energy Assistance Program (REAP) grant applications.  These grants in the 
past have funded a number of new Grain Drying systems.  Blackhawk Hills RC&D will 
work with Jo Carroll Energy to offer energy audits to landowners over our entire service 
area.  Contact our office for more details. 
 
Grazing Workgroup – The Blackhawk Hills RC&D Grazing Workgroup is planning a 
winter conference sometime in late January or February.  It will be held at the Naaman 
Diehl Auditorium in Mt Carroll. 
 
Midwest Biomass Conference – One hundred and sixty five people participated in the 
Midwest Biomass Conference held November 16-18 in Dubuque, IA.  Since the 
conference was a success there is talk of hosting another one next year.   
 
Leadership Conference in Louisville, KY – Theresa Wittenauer, Blackhawk Hills 
RC&D Economic Development Professional, and Dave Dornbusch, Blackhawk Hills 
RC&D Coordinator, have been asked to present at the National Leadership Conference 
on December 15, 2010 in Louisville, KY.  They will present on the importance of 
business planning and how it can relate to getting conservation on the ground. 
 
Community Capital Improvement Plans – Blackhawk Hills RC&D Council has 
earmarked funds to assist six communities with less than 5,000 population to develop a 
Capital Improvement Plan.  For more information on this project, please contact 
Theresa Wittenauer at the RC&D Office. 
 
Illinois Association of RC&Ds (IARCD) – Cathy Brunner, Blackhawk Hills RC&D 
Council Member, was recently elected as the President of the IARCD. 
 
RC&D Office Closed – Blackhawk Hills RC&D Office will be closed December 24 in 
observance of Christmas and December 31 in observance of New Year’s Day. 
 


The Blackhawk Hills RC&D Council and Staff 
wish you and your family a happy holiday season. 


 
December 2010 


 
 


102 East Route 30, Suite 3 • Rock Falls, IL 61071 • Phone: 815-625-3854 • Fax: 815-625-3831 • URL: www.blackhawkhills.com 
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Local Share State-Co Sales Tax


2008


Date: Sep-07 Oct-07 Nov-07 Dec-07 Jan-08 Feb-08 Mar-08 Apr-08 May-08 Jun-08 Jul-08 Aug-08
1% 41,049.88 41,923.89 36,698.20 48,029.84 24,002.05 38,331.51 34,929.95 29,538.65 28,720.82 36,784.23 33,093.76 33,321.62


0.25% 74,044.74 77,446.68 72,573.09 78,898.37 64,434.00 65,484.72 73,229.56 71,467.75 77,300.87 79,683.53 78,949.86 78,491.82
Date Received 12/12/07 01/17/08 02/15/08 03/14/08 04/16/08 05/15/08 06/13/08 07/16/08 08/14/08 09/12/08 10/09/08 11/17/08


2009


Date: Sep-08 Oct-08 Nov-08 Dec-08 Jan-09 Feb-09 Mar-09 Apr-09 May-09 Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09
1% 29,306.46 51,652.16 50,293.11 59,786.04 38,762.01 29,326.22 25,162.70 27,202.61 19,928.67 34,607.88 25,081.97 24,717.72


0.25% 71,505.89 72,368.97 67,526.54 68,388.94 59,448.81 49,403.83 57,204.48 56,476.63 60,457.90 65,699.01 57,432.22 58,221.75
Date Received 12/17/08 01/12/09 02/13/09 03/12/09 04/08/09 05/11/09 06/12/09 07/13/09 08/10/09 09/11/09 10/15/09 11/12/09


2010


Date: Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10
1% 33,875.78 32,673.63 53,953.59 50,585.02 32,061.24 24,157.02 29,420.06 16,544.90 20,133.03 30,922.59 23,361.42 21,703.60


0.25% 62,174.13 57,942.45 67,359.82 65,780.51 51,874.02 50,282.80 57,454.37 53,687.46 62,351.29 72,236.66 65,735.29 62,965.34
Date Received 12/14/09 01/13/10 02/11/10 03/12/10 04/09/10 05/12/10 06/10/10 07/09/10 08/06/10 09/10/10 10/14/10 11/16/10


2011


Date: Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11
1% 26,193.10


0.25% 62,181.83
Date Received 12/13/10
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R E S O L U T I O N


WHEREAS, the County of Ogle has entered into an agreement with the Illinois
Department of Transportation for participation in the County Engineer Salary Program.


THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County of Ogle hereby authorizes the transfer
of $   53,204            from their Federal Surface Transportation Rural Funds to the Illinois
Department of Transportation for the use of the Illinois Department of Transportation, and 


WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Transportation, under the terms of the County
Engineer Salary Program agreement, will deposit $    53,204               of State funds into the
Ogle County Motor Fuel Tax account, upon receipt of this resolution, for the purpose of payment
of the County Engineer’s salary.


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that an appropriation of one hundred six thousand four
hundred eight dollars be made by the County Board of Ogle County from the Motor Fuel Tax
Funds allotted to said county to pay the salary of the County Engineer for the period 
January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011, Section 11-00000-00-CS.


STATE OF ILLINOIS  )
              )  SS
COUNTY OF OGLE   )


I, Rebecca Huntley, County Clerk in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, and keeper of
the records and files thereof, as provided by Statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a
true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the County Board of Ogle County,
at its Special meeting held at Oregon on    December 21                       , 2010.


IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 


seal of said County at my office in Oregon, in said County,


this   21st        day of    December                        A.D. 2010.


                                                                                          
County Clerk


(SEAL)
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This meeting will be taped 
Please turn off all electronic communication devices and place cell phones on vibrate 


 
Ogle County Board Meeting Agenda    


 
Tuesday, December 21, 2010 at 5:30 p.m. 


 
Ogle County Courthouse – 105 S. 5th Street, Oregon 


 
Call to Order:   
Roll Call:   
Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance: Nye 
 


• Motion to approve the November 10, 2010 Ogle County Board Special Meeting minutes 
• Motion to approve the November 16, 2010 Ogle County Board minutes 
• Motion to accept monthly reports of the County Clerk/Recorder, Circuit Clerk and Treasurer  
 


Presentation –  
• Road & Bridge Annual Report – County Engineer Curtis D. Cook 


Vacancies –  
• Mental Health 708 Board – 1 unexpired term 
• Mental Health 708 Board – 2 vacancies 
• Ogle County Civic Center Authority – 1 unexpired term  
 


Application deadline for vacancies will be 
Friday, January 3, 2011 at 4:30 p.m. in the County Clerk’s Office  


located at 105 S. 5th St – Suite 104, Oregon, IL 
 
Zoning –  


#10-10 SPECIAL USE – Ordinance 2010-1204 
Chris A. Ames, 15930 E. Rachel Lane, Davis Junction, IL for a Special Use Permit to allow a 
Conference and Retreat facility in the AG-1 Agricultural District on property described as follows 
and owned by petitioner: 
 Part of G.L.1 & G.L.2 of the NW1/4 and part of the NE1/4 of Fractional Section 18 


Monroe Township 42N, R2E of the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, IL, 179.38 acres, more or less 
Property Identification Number: 12-18-100-001, -003, -005, & -006 
Common Location: 6752 N. Kilbuck Rd. 


 
#11-10 SPECIAL USE – Ordinance 2010-1205 


Terry Myers, 8580 N. Limestone Rd., Rockford, IL for a Special Use Permit to allow a Small 
Rural Business (classic & antique auto restoration) in the AG-1 Agricultural District on property 
described as follows and owned by petitioner: 


Part of G.L.1 in the NE1/4 Fractional Section 5 Monroe Township 42N, R2E of the 3rd 
P.M., Ogle County, IL, 14.18 acres, more or less 
Property Identification Number: 12-05-200-022 
Common Location: 8580 N. Limestone Rd. 


 
Eagle Reserve Plat One – Ordinance 2010-1206 


Ordinance approving an extenstion of the recording date of the final subdivsion plat of AEagle 
Reserve Plat One@ 


 
Public Comment –  
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Road & Bridge – 
• Appropriate $650,000 County Motor Fuel Tax for Section 11-00000-00-GM, 2011 County 


General Maintenance (R-2010-1207) 
• Approve 2011 County Engineer Salary Resolution, Section 11-00000-00-CS, payable from Motor 


Fuel Tax and Federal Highway funds (R-2010-1208) 
 
Ogle County Claims – Clerk reads the claims:  


• Payments in Vacation – November 2010 - $97,106.03 
• County Board Payments -  December 21, 2010 -  $161,766.83 
• County Highway Fund – $167,615.85 
 


o Motion to approve claims as presented  
 
Committee Reports –  


• Personnel & Salary Committee: 
o Adopt Personnel Policies and Benefits for Ogle County (R-2010-1212) 
 


• Sheriff & Coroner / Buildings & Grounds / IT Committee: 
o ICE Project Update 
 


• Executive Committee: 
o State’s Attorney Appellate Prosecutor Program (R-2010-1209)  
o Lee County Enterprise Zone – Amending Ordinance #9 & Amendment #13 to the 


Intergovernmental Agreement (O-2010-1201) presented 11/19/2010 
 


• Finance Committee: 
o Ordinance – Bond Abatement $9.8 General Obligation Bonds (2010-1202) – Roll Call Vote 
o Ordinance – Bond Abatement $5.2 General Obligation Bonds (2010-1203) – Roll Call Vote 
o Ogle County as Trustee – 04-36-479-003 (R-2010-1205) - Roll Call Vote 
o Ogle County as Trustee – 14-16-136-002 (R-2010-1206) - Roll Call Vote 


 
• Chairman Comments: 


o County Board Committee Meeting Assignments (R-2010-1210) 
o County Board Committee Meeting Dates and Times (R-2010-1211) 
*****These Resolutions will be distributed at the Board Meeting***** 
 


• Administrator Comments:  
 


Unfinished Business – 
 
New Business –  
 
Communications –  


o US Army Corps of Engineers – Rochelle Waste Disposal  
o Sales Tax for August 2010 was $21,703.60 and $62,965.34 
o Sales Tax for August 2009 was $24,717.72 and $58,221.75 
o Sales Tax for September 2010 was $26,193.10 and $62,181.83 
o Sales Tax for September 2009 was $33,875.78 and $62,174.13 


 
Motion to adjourn until Tuesday, January 18, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. 


 
Agenda is posted at the following locations: 


105 S. 5th Street, Oregon, IL 
www.oglecountyclerk.org 



http://www.oglecounty.org/






Page 1 of 1 BLR 14220 (Rev. 7/06) 
Printed on 12/14/2010 2:51:55 PM 


 


County Maintenance Resolution


 
RESOLVED, by the County board of Ogle County, that  $650,000.00
is appropriated from the Motor Fuel Tax allotment for the maintenance on county or State highways and meeting the 
requirements of the Illinois Highway Code, and be it further
 
RESOLVED, that maintenance sections or patrols be maintained under the provision of said Illinois Highway Code 
beginning January 1, 2011 and ending December 31, 2011 , and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that the County Engineer/County Superintendent of Highways shall, as soon as practicable after the close of 
the period as given above, submit to the Department of Transportation, on forms furnished by said Department, a certified 
statement showing expenditures from and balances remaining in funds authorized for expenditure by said Department 
under this appropriation, and be it further 
 
RESOLVED , that the County Clerk is hereby directed to transmit two certified copies of this resolution to the district office 
of the Department of Transportation. 


 
 
 
 


Authorized MFT Expenditure  STATE OF ILLINOIS 


Ogle 


 


County, } 
 


ss. 


   
  I,  Rebecca Huntley County Clerk, in and for said County, 


  in the State aforesaid, and keeper of the records and files thereof, as provided 
by statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete 
copy of a resolution adopted by the County Board of 


    


Date   Ogle County, at its regular
    


   meeting held at Oregon
    


  on December 21, 2010  
   Date  


Department of Transportation        IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and
     


  affixed the seal of said County at my office in Oregon 
      


   in said County, this 21st day of December A.D. 2010
Regional Engineer


        


        


        


      (SEAL) County Clerk.
 


R-2010-1207
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Proceedings of the Ogle County Board  
Reorganization Meeting 


December 6, 2010 
 


State of Illinois )  
County of Ogle ) ss    
Call to Order  
          
 County Clerk Huntley calls the reorganizational meeting to order at 5:08 p.m. 
 
Swearing in of New County Board Members 
 County Clerk Huntley asks the following newly elected and re-elected board members to 
come to the front of the room to be sworn in by Associate Circuit Judge Hanson:  
 
    District 1:   James Barnes  Lynne Kilker  Bill Welty 
    District 2:  Marguerite Nye  Mel Messer    W. Ed Rice 
    District 3:  Jason Bauer  Dorothy Bowers Dennis Williams 
    District 4:  Lyle Hopkins  Rich Gronewold John Finfrock 
 


(No recording during the swearing in portion – microphones were not turned on) 
 


County Clerk Huntley thanks Judge Hanson for swearing in the board members tonight. 
 
Roll Call 
 The roll call shows all members are present and is followed with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Nomination and Election of Chairman of the Board 
 County Clerk Huntley opens the nominations for the Office of the Chairman of the Ogle 
County Board. Bowers nominates Jim Barnes for the position of Chairman of the Ogle County 
Board. Welty seconds the nomination. Gronewold nominates Lyle Hopkins for the position of 
Chairman of the Ogle County Board. Messer seconds the nomination. County Clerk Huntley 
asks if there are any other nominations. There being none… Messer moves to close the 
nominations and Bowers seconds. The motion is carried on a voice vote. County Clerk Huntley 
states we will vote on each nomination in the order they were nominated. County Clerk Huntley 
states the first nomination is Jim Barnes and a roll call vote is taken: 
 
YES: Barnes, Boes, Bowers, Colson, De Arvil, Finfrock, Gouker, Heuer, Janes, Kilker, 


Welty, White and Williams 
 
NO: Bauer, Colbert, Gronewold, Hopkins, Horner, Kenney, Messer, Nye, Rice, 


Saunders and Stahl 
 
ABSENT: None  


The motion carries on a roll call vote. 
 
Nomination and Election of Vice-Chairman of the Board 
 County Clerk Huntley opens the nominations for the Office of the Vice-Chairman of the 
Ogle County Board.  Kilker nominates Marcia Heuer for the position of the Vice-Chairman of 
the Ogle County Board. Bowers seconds the nomination. Horner nominates Lyle Hopkins for the 
position of the Vice-Chairman of the Ogle County Board. Colbert seconds the nomination. 
County Clerk Huntley asks if there are any other nominations. There being none…  Saunders 
moves to close the nominations and Kenney seconds.  
 
 Saunders asks if Barnes and Heuer plan on resigning from the Rock River Center Board 
since the County gives money to them. Barnes states whenever there is a vote during the HEW 
Committee meetings, he has refrained from voting. Heuer states at the present time it has not 
been a conflict of interest because both Barnes and I abstain when there is a vote of fiscal 
responsibility. Whether it is from the County Board, County Committees or the Rock River 
Board; the Rock River Center is not totally sustained by tax dollars comments Heuer. 
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County Clerk Huntley states we will take a roll call vote on the nomination of Marcia Heuer: 
 
YES: Boes, Bowers, Colson, De Arvil, Finfrock, Gouker, Heuer, Janes, Kilker, Welty, 


White, Williams and Barnes 
 
NO: Colbert, Gronewold, Hopkins, Horner, Kenney, Messer, Nye, Rice, Saunders, 


Stahl and Bauer 
 
ABSENT:  None 


The motion carries on a roll call vote. 
 
Comments from the Ogle County Board Chairman 
 County Clerk Huntley turns the meeting over to Chairman Barnes. Chairman Barnes thanks 
the board members for entrusting him as Chairman of the Board. We also owe Rice and Hopkins 
for serving as Chairman and Vice-Chairman for the past four years. It has not been easy and I 
was probably pretty hard on both of you and I appreciate what you have done. I have met and 
talked to most of the County Board members and Department Heads. I have received a lot of 
ideas and suggestions. I was asked what do I want to accomplish as Chairman; I would like to 
see a balanced budget – I would like to see more unity on the board. I am going to pass out a list 
of new committees to the board members and return it to me tonight. Vice-Chairman Heuer and I 
will use these sheets to make the committee assignments. Chairman Barnes plans to have the 
assignments complete next week. However, if you have not received this information I am 
asking Welty and Finfrock to take former board members Huntley and Diehl’s place on the Road 
& Bridge Committee.  
 
 Chairman Barnes announces a strategic planning retreat to be held with Dave Dornbush from 
Blackhawk Hills RC&D and Don Falls from DCEO. This will be planning for the future of Ogle 
County and he would like County Board Members and Department Heads to attend. This 
information will be distributed.  
 
 Vice-Chairman Heuer states there are three current sitting County Board members who are 
members of the Blackhawk Hills RC&D Board; Heuer, Kilker and Colson and they have over 20 
years of service experience on this board. We contribute as a County Board to the economic 
development and resource conservation and development planning of Blackhawk Hills. This is 
an excellent opportunity to use this organization to help us do retreat planning. Blackhawk Hills 
RC&D is a federal support and funded agency and if Don Falls from Department of Commerce 
and Economic Opportunity can help facilitate, we will have both federal and state resources to do 
this board retreat. With the help of Vice-Chairman Heuer and my colleagues on the board; they 
have asked for this retreat to be facilitated by Blackhawk Hills RC&D and we are lucky enough 
to have three dates to choose from.  
 
New Business - none 
 
Old Business - none 
 
Public Comments –  
 


• Tom Smith from White Rock Township would like to see the committee meetings to be 
held in the evenings for the public to attend.  


• Chairman Barnes says it has been suggested to change the meetings to the evening and 
will do more research. 


 
Adjourn Meeting 
 At 5:29 p.m., Bowers moves to adjourn the Ogle County Board Reorganizational meeting. 
Bauer seconds and the motion carries. Chairman Barnes announces we will take a five minute 
break before starting the Special Meeting.  
 


Chairman James L. Barnes 
Chairman - Ogle County Board 


 
Attest: Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk & 
         Ex-officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board 
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Proceedings of the Ogle County Board  
Special Meeting 


December 6, 2010 
 


State of Illinois )  
County of Ogle ) ss    
 
Call to Order  
          
Special Ogle County Board Meeting is Called to Order           
 Chairman Barnes calls the Special Ogle County Board Meeting to order at 5:36 p.m.  
 
Roll Call 
 The roll call shows all County Board members are present. 
  
New Business – none 
 
Unfinished Business –  
 Chairman Barnes asks for a motion to go into Closed Session to discuss Collective 
Negotiating Matters (5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (2)). Boes moves to go into Closed Session, Bauer 
seconds and a roll call vote is taken: 
 
YES:  Bauer, Boes, Bowes, Colbert, Colson, De Arvil, Finfrock, Gouker, Gronewold, 


Heuer, Hopkins, Horner, Janes, Kenney, Kilker, Messer, Nye, Rice, Saunders, Stahl, 
Welty, White, Williams and Barnes 


 
NO:  None 
 
ABSENT: None 
 


The motion carries on a roll call vote. 
 
Closed Session –  
 At 5:38 p.m., the Ogle County Board enters into Closed Session.  
 
Open Session –  
 At 6:01 p.m., the Ogle County Board returns to Open Session.  
 


R-2010-1201 
Ogle County Sheriff’s Department Patrol, Corrections, Control 3 and Corrections 
Clerk FOP Labor Union Contract (December 1, 2010 – November 30, 2013) 
 Rice moves to approve the agreement between Ogle County and Ogle County Sheriff and 
Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council representing Ogle County Sheriff’s Department 
Patrol, Corrections, Control 3 and Corrections Clerk. Hopkins seconds. Chairman Barnes states 
this will be subject to final review. Bowers will be abstaining from this vote due to a conflict of 
interest with her daughter. Heuer requests a roll call and a roll call vote is taken: 
 
YES:   Boes, Colbert, Colson, De Arvil, Finfrock, Gouker, Gronewold, Heuer, Hopkins, 


Horner, Janes, Kenney, Kilker, Messer, Nye, Rice, Saunders, Stahl, Welty, White, 
Williams, Bauer and Barnes 


 
NO:   None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN:  Bowers 
 


The motion carries on a roll call vote.(Placed on file) 
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R-2010-1202 


Ogle County Sheriff’s Department Sergeants and Corporals Unit FOP Labor Contract 
(December 1, 2010 – November 30, 2013) 
 Messer moves to approve the agreement between Ogle County and Ogle County Sheriff and 
Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council representing Ogle County Sheriff’s Department 
Sergeants and Corporals Unit. White seconds. Bowers will be abstaining from this vote due to a 
conflict of interest with her daughter. Chairman Barnes states this will be subject to final review. 
Heuer requests a roll call and a roll call vote is taken: 
 
YES:   Colbert, Colson, De Arvil, Finfrock, Gouker, Gronewold, Heuer, Hopkins, 


Horner, Janes, Kenney, Kilker, Messer, Nye, Rice, Saunders, Stahl, Welty, White, 
Williams, Bauer, Boes and Barnes 


 
NO:   None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN:  Bowers 
 


The motion carries on a roll call vote.(Placed on file) 
 


R-2010-1203 
Ogle County Sheriff’s Department Clerk Typist, Telecommunicators, Switchboard 
Operations, Cooks, Maintenance, Personnel and Accounting Clerks FOP Labor Contract 
(December 1, 2010 – November 30, 2013) 
 Bowers moves to approve the agreement between Ogle County and Ogle County Sheriff and 
Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council representing Ogle County Sheriff’s Department 
Clerk Typist, Telecommunicators, Switchboard Operations, Cooks, Maintenance, Personnel and 
Accounting Clerks. De Arvil seconds. Chairman Barnes states this will be subject to final 
review. Heuer requests a roll call and a roll call vote is taken: 
 
YES:   Colbert, Colson, De Arvil, Finfrock, Gouker, Gronewold, Heuer, Hopkins, 


Horner, Janes, Kenney, Kilker, Messer, Nye, Rice, Saunders, Stahl, Welty, White, 
Williams, Bauer, Boes, Bowers and Barnes 


 
NO:   None 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 


The motion carries on a roll call vote.(Placed on file) 
 


R-2010-1204 
Resolution to Authorize Long Range Planning Invoices 


 Chairman Barnes presents R-2010-1204 to authorize payment of the November 2010 LRP 
Bills in the amount of $44,987.66. Administrator McKinley explains each item: 
 


SUPPLIER NAME DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT  


AmSam Courthouse Mats $       687.66


Indentix, Inc Fingerprint machine – Jail $  37,255.00


SimplexGrinnell Intellex DVMS & Monitor – Jail Code Update  $    7,045.00


  TOTAL:  $  44,987.66
 


• AmSam – Courthouse mats to protect the entryway on the first floor of the Courthouse 
and will finish out the Courthouse remodel project 
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• Identix, Inc – Fingerprint machine in the jail – The Executive Committee authorized the 
purchase out of LRP – there was no invoice at the time and will ask that it be paid out of 
the 2010 budget; there is money for this item 


• SimplexGrinnell – This monitor and system upgrade was for security system upgrade 
 
 De Arvil moves to approve R-2010-1204 as presented and Finfrock seconds.  
 
 White asks if this wraps up the updates for the jail. Sheriff Harn states he just received this 
final bill today.  
 
 Colson asks how we are justifying the payment of the Fingerprint machine and the Jail Code 
update from the LRP instead of annual budgeted expenses. Bauer states the fingerprint machine 
is used by teachers, people who apply for adoptions and not just for the jail use. This machine is 
used by multi-parts of the county. Colson states this does not make it a bricks and mortar project. 
Sheriff Harn says money was budgeted and used for jail improvements; the upgrade of lights, 
alarms, monitoring system and roof repairs. There was roughly about $60,000 left and the 
fingerprint machine broke and we went to the Executive Committee. The money was coming out 
of a budgeted line item for the jail upgrades. Building a new jail is a capital expenditure and 
repairing a building is not Colson comments. Messer states this is the original fingerprint 
machine which was purchased through a grant. Gouker asks if this discussion can be held at the 
next County Board meeting instead of this evening. McKinley states not in order to pay for these 
items from the 2010 budget. McKinley says the request was since these items were budgeted and 
previously discussed; we would take the money from the 2010 budget. McKinley states the 
fingerprint machine broke about two weeks before the end of the 2010 fiscal year. There is 
money in the 2010 budget and no money has been budgeted for this 2011. Gouker asks if this 
item was sent out for bid. Harn states there is only one company who supplies this type of 
machine. Welty asks if these two items for the jail have been ordered, received and installed. 
Harn states the SimplexGrinnell upgrade has been installed at this time. There was discussion 
regarding a commitment and obligation for the fingerprint machine as a 2010 expenditure. Welty 
states if we have not committed contractually for this purchase in 2010; this expenditure must be 
made in 2011 fiscal year. McKinley says if the board approves this bill tonight; the Treasurer is 
willing to pay this bill from the 2010 fiscal year.  McKinley and Harn will have to research to see 
if a Purchase Order was made by former Sheriff Beitel for the fingerprint machine. Harn states 
his 2011 budget will not support this purchase. The discussion continued regarding if this 
purchase was a liability in 2010 or not. McKinley will look into this and see if a purchase order 
was made.  
 
 White amends the motion to pay the LRP bills subject to Purchase Order on the fingerprint 
machine in the amount of $37,255.00 and Messer seconds. A roll call vote is called: 
 
YES: Gouker, Gronewold, Heuer, Hopkins, Horner, Janes, Kenney, Kilker, Messer, Nye, 


Rice, Saunders, Stahl, Welty, White, Williams, Bauer, Boes, Bowers, Colbert and 
Barnes 


 
NO: Colson, De Arvil and Finfrock 
 
ABSENT: None 


The motion on the amended motion carries on a roll call vote. 
 


The motion to approve the LRP bills with the amendment carries on a voice vote.(Placed on file) 
 
Public Comments –  


• Vice-Chairman Heuer makes an announcement regarding a communication from UCCI 
regarding refund of 2010 dues in the amount of $2,200; this amount is based on royalties 
from ICMRT. All 52 members of this organization will receive a refund. 


• Sheriff Harn will be traveling to Washington, DC with others from Ogle County for a 
presentation. There have not been any signed documents or commitments. Harn would 
like to see if the Board Chairman would consider forming a committee upon his return if 
needed.  
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Adjourn Meeting 
 At 6:30 p.m., Janes moves to adjourn the Ogle County Board Special meeting until the next 
County Board meeting which will be held on Tuesday, December 21, 2010 at 5:30 p.m. White 
seconds and the motion carries on a voice vote. 
 


Chairman James L. Barnes 
Chairman - Ogle County Board 


 
Attest: Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk & 
         Ex-officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board 


 





		December 6, 2010 - Reorganization Meeting

		December 6, 2010 - Special Meeting
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		December 21, 2010 Meeting






Ogle County Sheriff=s/Coroner/Building & Grounds/IT Combined Committee 
Tentative Minutes 


 
December 15, 2010 at 8:00 a.m. at the Old Courthouse, Conference Room #100, Oregon, 
IL.   Those members attending were: Chief Deputy Michael Schabacker, Lyle Hopkins, 
Bobbie Colbert, Bob DeArvil, Dan Janes, Coroner Lou Finch, and Sheriff Beitel.  Also 
attending were Larry Callan, Bob Welty, Marty Tipper, and Jim Barnes. 


 
1.  Call to Order: 
 


Bobbie Colbert called the meeting to order at 8:04 am. 
 
2.  Approval of Minutes: 
 


At this time, Bobbie Colbert asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the 
November 10, 2010 meeting.  Janes so moved, DeArvil seconded, motion carried.  


 
3.  Presentation and Consideration of Payment: 
 


Janes made the motion to approve the Sheriff=s bills - $27,324.34 - Weltyt seconded.     
Janes made the motion to approve the Emergency Communications bills - $1,007.39 - 
Welty seconded.  DeArvil made the motion to approve the Corrections bills - 
$33,464.80, Janes seconded.  Hopkins made the motion to approve the OCEMA bills - 
$1,342.36 - Janes seconded; for a total of $63,138.89, motion carried on all.  DeArvil 
made the motion to approve the Building and Grounds bills - $39,894.11, Janes 
seconded, motion carried. Discussion was made on the future of renting properties for 
office space when the county owns property and was decided to look into this possibility. 
 Simplex bill seems high.  Would like a break down on what that bill contains.   The 
Coroner=s bills were then presented for approval. DeArvil made the motion to pay 
$3,461.05.  Janes seconded, motion carried.  


 
4.   Coroners Discussion and Comments: 
 


a. Coroner Finch explained there were three deaths that coroner has paid for so far 
this year.  To cover this cost, Coroner will seize all personal property and funds 
ans sell to cover costs.  The funeral goes out to bid as an indigent burial. 


b. There were 37 deaths and 6 autopsies.  Next month he will have totals for the 
year.  Already we have 12 more than last year. 


c. Nothing new to report on Valerie Reece.  There was water in her lungs and the 
Oregon Police are doing the investigation. 
 


5.  Sheriff Discussion and Comments: 
 


a. Comments and Updates: 
 


Sheriff commented on the activity sheet - calls for service dropped in November.  







Miles driven went down also.  Sheriff Harm implemented new stipulations and it 
seems to be keeping the fuel costs down. 


 
b. Weekend of Dec. 11 & 12 there was one crash fatality due to weather.  Sunday 


Dec. 12 there were 15 accidents alone - one an eight car pileup.  Village of Davis 
wants to get on the same radio frequency to aid in road emergencies. 
 
 


c. Bill Welty questioned the number of calls for service and Chief Deputy explained 
to him the nature of all the calls received. 


 
d. Bob DeArvil asked how many Federal detainees were have and Chief Schabacker 


told him low 50's. 
 


e.   Chief Deputy asked on behalf of Sheriff Harn to begin the process of replacing 
Capt. Kerwin who retired on Nov. 30th.  Board members reminded everyone that 
there is a six month waiting period before rehire that was a stipulation of the early 
retirement package.  They agreed that the process of beginning the search should 
begin, just no hire until June 1, 2011. 
  


6.   Public Comments: 
 


None 
 


7.   January  Meeting Date and Time: 
 


Wednesday, January12, 2010 - 8:00 a.m. at the Ogle County Courthouse, 
Conference Room #100, First Floor. 


 
8.    Adjourn: 
 


There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:07 a.m.              
     


 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Melissa Crippen 
Executive Secretary  








Ogle County Executive & State’s Attorney Committee Meeting  
Wednesday, December 15, 2010  


Tentative Minutes 
 


1. Call to Order by Chairman Barnes at 4:00 
 Members present:  Hopkins, Horner, Welty, Kenney, Stahl (arrived at 4:05p.m.), Bauer (arrived at 


4:34p.m.), Nye 
 Members absent: none 
 Others present:  DeArvil, Kilker, Heuer, Colson, Treasurer John Coffman, Marty Typer, Mike 


Mudge, Asst. State’s Attorney Aaron Wiles 
 


2. Approval of Minutes: November 10, 2010 Meeting Minutes  
 Motion by Nye 
 2nd by Kenney 
 Motion carried 


  
3. Public Comment – none 


 
4. Sheriff & Coroner / Buildings & Grounds Committee Report – Horner stated nothing will be brought 


before the County Board. 
 


5. Road & Bridge Committee Report – Welty stated 3 items will be on the agenda for Tuesday; County 
Engineer salary, County Maintenance Resolution and annual presentation. 


 
6. Personnel Salary & County Clerk Committee Report – Kenney informed the Committee on information 


being presented at a later date in regards to Employee Progressive Discipline Training. 
 


7. Executive Committee –  
 Heuer distributed a questionnaire that will be included in the packets and discussed the purpose of 


the January 8th County Board Retreat. She mentioned that the retreat will equip the board members 
for strategic planning. She would like the questionnaire completed and returned to her at Tuesday 
night’s board meeting. 


 
8. Zoning Committee Report – Hopkins stated there will be 2 special use permits for the County Board. 


 
9. HEW & Solid Waste Committee Report – Nothing to report 


       
10. Finance & Insurance Committee Report – Hopkins stated the Board will be briefly informed on the bond 


reduction issue and the Solid Waste Fund Usage that was discussed at the Committee meeting; further 
information will be distributed at a later date. He also mentioned that an Ogle County as Trustee Resolution 
will be presented. 


 
11. Judiciary Committee Report – Nothing to report  


 
12. Appointments & Resignations – None 


 
13. Interview & recommendations – None 


 
14. States Attorney Report –  


 Approval of Bills 
o Motion to approve bills in the amount of  $2957.16 by Stahl 
o 2nd by Nye 
o Motion carried 


 Asst. State’s Attorney Wiles presents the Committee with the Appellate Prosecutor Resolution that 
is required to be passed before the Board every year. 


a. Motion to present to County Board on Tuesday by Kenney 
b. 2nd by Hopkins 
c. Motion carried. 


 







15. New Business –  
 Mike Mudge gave a presentation on Aggregation for Unincorporated Residential & Small 


Commercial Electrical Retail Customers.  
 Bauers expressed interest in possibly allowing elections for districts that the County Board appoints 


currently. He mentioned he has had inquires as to why the board appoints instead of letting the 
public vote on the candidates. 
 


16. Old Business – None 
 


17. Adjournment – by Chairman Barnes at 5:04 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tiffany O’Brien 








Presented to the Ogle County Board on December 6, 2010
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Presented to the Ogle County Board on December 6, 2010
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SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AND
PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE


of the
OGLE COUNTY BOARD


SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS AND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE REPORT


DECEMBER 15,  2010


The regular monthly meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee of
the Ogle County Board was held on December 15, 2010 at the Old Ogle County Courthouse, Third
Floor County Board Room #317, 105 S. Fifth St., Oregon, IL .


The Order of Business is as follows:


1. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM


Chairman Lyle Hopkins called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M.  Roll call indicated six members
of the Committee were present; Chairman Hopkins, Jim Barnes,  Marcia Heuer, Larry Boes, Mel
Messer, and John Finfrock.  Dennis Williams was absent.  Mr. Hopkins declared a quorum
present. 


2. READING AND APPROVAL OF REPORT OF NOVEMBER 10, 2010 MEETING AS MINUTES


Mr. Boes made a motion to approve the report of November 10, 2010  as minutes; seconded by
Mr. Barnes. The motion carried by a voice vote.


SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS PORTION OF MEETING:


3. CONSIDERATION OF MONTHLY BILLS OF SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS, AND
ACTION


Monthly bills of the Supervisor of Assessments were presented to the Committee for
consideration.  The bills totaled $ 2,909.26.  Mr. Messer made a motion to approve the payment
of the bills in the amount of $2,909.26; seconded by Mrs. Heuer.  The motion carried by a voice
vote.


4. OLD BUSINESS


Mr. Harrison stated the Board of Review will hear tax appeals the last two weeks of January. 
There were approximately 90 appeals filed which is surprisingly a typical amount.  There is a fair
amount of administrative work involved with these.  


Discussion ensued regarding the county EAV and housing evaluations.  Mr. Harrison explained
the assessment process and how it relates to market values.


Mr. Boes asked what is status of Pinecrest.  Mr. Harrison stated it was sent to the IL
Department of Revenue for review in mid-October and we should be hearing something anytime
now.   Mrs. Heuer asked what are the states options.  Mr. Harrison stated they can approve the
request, deny the request and/or ask for more information and delay in making a ruling.  Once a
ruling is made, if Pinecrest or any of the taxing districts involved do not like the decision, they
request an administrative appeal.  Mr. Hopkins asked will the taxes be paid until a decision is
made.  Mr. Harrison stated yes.  
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5. NEW BUSINESS


There was no new business for discussion.


PLANNING & ZONING PORTION OF MEETING:


6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There was no unfinished business for consideration.


7. NEW BUSINESS


A. DECISIONS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


#10-10 SPECIAL USE -- Chris A. Ames, 15930 E. Rachel Lane, Davis Junction, IL
for a Special Use Permit to allow a Conference and Retreat facility in the AG-1
Agricultural District on property described as follows and owned by petitioner:


Part of G.L.1 & G.L.2 of the NW1/4 and part of the NE1/4 of Fractional Section
18 Monroe Township 42N, R2E of the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, IL, 179.38 acres,
more or less
Property Identification Number: 12-18-100-001, -003, -005, & -006
Common Location: 6752 N. Kilbuck Rd.


Mr. Barnes made a motion to approve #10-10 Special Use for Chris Ames with
conditions.  He noted that this petition was unanimously approved by the Regional
Planning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals; seconded by Mr. Messer . The
motion carried unanimously by a roll call vote of 6-0.


#11-10 SPECIAL USE -- Terry Myers, 8580 N. Limestone Rd., Rockford, IL for a
Special Use Permit to allow a Small Rural Business (classic & antique auto restoration)
in the AG-1 Agricultural District on property described as follows and owned by
petitioner:


Part of G.L.1 in the NE1/4 Fractional Section 5 Monroe Township 42N, R2E of
the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, IL, 14.18 acres, more or less
Property Identification Number: 12-05-200-022
Common Location: 8580 N. Limestone Rd.


Mr. Messer made a motion to approve 11-10 Special Use for Terry Myers with
conditions; seconded by Mr. Finfrock.  Mrs. Heuer stated we always encourage small
business in the County.  The motion carried unanimously by a roll call vote of 6-0.


B. MOBILE HOME APPLICATIONS - (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


There were no mobile home applications for consideration.


8. SUBDIVISION PLATS (CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION)


Request of David Aarvig for an extension in the recording of the final plat for “Eagle
Reserve Plat One” -- originally approved by the County Board December 17, 2008


Mr. Reibel stated due to the decline in the housing market, Mr. Aarvig has chosen to delay
recording of the final plat.  Mr. Aarvig was present and stated that we are hoping the economy
will recover next spring.  Mr. Boes stated when approved, we thought it was a good fit for the
region; given the current economy, I understand the reason to delay the recording.  Mr. Boes
made a motion to approve a one year extension; seconded by Mr. Barnes; The motion carried
unanimously by a roll call vote of 6-0.


9. CONSIDERATION OF MONTHLY BILLS OF PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT, AND
ACTION
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Monthly bills of the Planning & Zoning Department were presented to the Committee for
consideration.  The bills totaled $632.35.  Mr. Boes made a motion to approve the payment of
the bills in the amount of $632.35 seconded by Mr. Messer.  The motion carried by a voice vote.


Mrs. Heuer asked Mr. Reibel how the final budget numbers turned out this year.  Mr. Reibel
stated we had money that was unexpended.  Mr. Hopkins stated that $14,598.00 was
unexpended in the Planning & Zoning Department budget.


10. REFERRAL OF NEW PETITIONS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR PUBLIC
HEARING


#13-10 VARIATION -- Annette M. Zaugg, 6627 N. Alpine Dr., Byron, IL for a Variation to
allow a deck for an above-ground pool to be located 8' from a side lot line in lieu of 15' as
required pursuant to the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance on property described as
follows and owned by the petitioner :


Lot 88 Nordic Woods Subdivision, part of the E1/2 of the NW1/4 Section 4 Marion
Township 24N, and part of the W1/2 of the SW1/4 Section 33 Marion Township 25N,
R11E of the 4th P.M., Ogle County, IL
Property Identification Number: 10-04-101-018  
Common Location: 6627 N. Alpine Dr.


Mrs. Heuer made a motion to refer the above new requests to the Zoning Board of Appeals for
public hearing; seconded by Mr. Barnes.  The motion carried by a voice vote.


11. DISCUSSION OF WECS SUBCOMMITTEE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS REPORT AND
POSSIBLE ACTION


Mr. Hopkins stated at this time we will wait until the new committee is set for any further
discussion.  I believe the Wisconsin statewide wind siting rules are in the process of being
worked on and could be in effect as of January 1, 2011.  There will be a few modifications but if
they have statewide rules, it seems they must be pretty good recommendations.


12. OTHER BUSINESS


2011 Meeting Resolution


The 2011 Meeting resolution of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning
Committee was presented to the Committee for consideration.  Mr. Messer made a motion to
approve the 2011 meeting resolution; seconded by Mr. Finfrock.  The motion carried by a voice
vote.  Mr. Reibel stated there could be changes and this can be amended.  We are required by
the Open Meetings Act to have a meeting resolution in place.  Mr. Hopkins stated this
Committee meeting has always been held in the afternoon.  This allows any attorneys to be
present for any petitions.  


13. PUBLIC COMMENT


There was no public comment.


14. ADJOURN


The regular monthly meeting of the Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning
Committee of the Ogle County Board adjourned at 1:32 P.M.  The next meeting of the
Supervisor of Assessments and Planning & Zoning Committee is scheduled for Wednesday,
January 12, 2011 at 1:00 P.M. at the Old Ogle County Courthouse, Third Floor County Board
Room #317, 105 S. Fifth St. Oregon, IL.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael Reibel
Planning & Zoning Administrator
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PREAMBLE 


 


This Agreement is entered into by the County of Ogle, a body politic, by its duly constituted County 


Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County, hereinafter referred to as the “Employers”, and the Illinois 


Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, hereinafter referred to as the “Union”.  The purpose of this 


Agreement is to provide an orderly collective bargaining relationship between the Employers and the 


Union representing the employees in the bargaining unit, and to make clear the basic terms upon which 


such relationship depends.   This Agreement is to be interpreted and applied consistent with the law of the 


State of Illinois. In consideration of mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained herein, the 


parties hereto, by their duly authorized representative and/or agents, do mutually covenant and agree as 


follows: 


 


ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION 


 


Section 1.1 Unit Descriptions 


The Employers hereby recognize the Union as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative 


for the purpose of collective bargaining on matters relating to wages, hours, and other terms and 


conditions of employment for the following: 


 


UNIT C: 


Included:   All full-time and regular part-time clerk typists, Supervisor of Telecommunicators, 


Telecommunicators, switchboard operators, cooks, maintenance personnel and accounting clerks. 


 


Excluded:  Administrative Assistant, Sheriff’s Secretary, Assistant Coroner, and Assistant EMA 


(formerly ESDA) Coordinator, and all confidential, managerial or supervisor employees excluded under 


the Act. 


 


Section 1.2 Supervisors 


Supervisors may continue to perform bargaining unit work which is incidental to their jobs.  They may 


also perform bargaining unit work in emergency situations and/or situations where the on-duty supervisor 


determines that the then readily available for duty bargaining unit personnel are not as proficient to 


perform the task necessary to be accomplished by the on-duty supervisor or where such work is necessary 


to train a bargaining unit employee such work by supervisors shall not cause any layoffs, reduction in the 


work force by attrition or other means or reduction in regularly scheduled hours.  Supervisors shall not be 


assigned to perform the duties of a vacant position in the bargaining unit for more than thirty (30) days if 


a valid merit commission eligibility list exists or more than ninety (90) days if a new eligibility list must 


be created, subject to the availability of budgeted Funds. 


 


Section 1.3 Part-time Employees 


The Employer may continue to utilize the services of part-time employees to perform bargaining unit 


work, but such utilization shall not cause layoffs, reduction in force or reduction in regular scheduled 


hours. The use of part-time personnel in the bargaining unit shall not be increased over existing levels. 


 


ARTICLE 2 NEW CLASSIFICATIONS AND VACANCIES 


 


Section 2.1 New Classifications 


Where the Employers find it necessary to create a new job classification, the work of which falls within 


the scope of the bargaining unit, the Employers and Union agree to jointly petition the Illinois State Labor 


Board to seek the necessary unit clarification. If the inclusion of a new position classification is agreed to 


by the parties or found appropriate by the Labor Board, the parties shall negotiate as to the proper pay 


grade for the classification.   
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If no agreement is reached within thirty (30) calendar days from the date its inclusion was determined, the 


Union may appeal the proposed pay grade to the 2
nd


 step of the grievance procedure. The pay grade 


originally assigned by the Employers shall remain in effect pending the decision. If the decision of the 


second step grievance committee or arbitrator is to increase the pay grade of the position classification, 


such rate change shall be applied retroactive to the date of its installation. Upon installation of the new 


position classification, the filling of such position classification shall be in accordance with the procedures 


of this Agreement. The second step grievance committee or arbitrator shall determine the reasonableness 


of the proposed salary grade in relationship to: 


 


 (a)  The job content and responsibilities of other position classifications in the Employer’s work force 


in the bargaining unit of this Agreement; 


 


 (b) Like positions with similar job content and responsibilities within the labor market 


 generally; 


 


 (c) Significant differences in working conditions to comparable position classifications. 


 


Section 2.2 Vacancies 


Vacancies shall be created and filled in accordance with the applicable rules, regulations, and procedures 


of the Merit Commission; however, once the Sheriff determines that a vacancy shall be filled by an 


appropriate notice thereof, said vacancy will be filled, absent extraordinary conditions and/or 


circumstance within one hundred-eighty (180) calendar days of the issuance of said notice. All vacancies 


along with job duties, responsibilities and rates of pay will be posted at least ten (10) calendar days in 


advance of any interviews before the selection and filling of a vacancy. 


 


ARTICLE 3 NON-DISCRIMINATION 


 


Section 3.1 Equal Employment Opportunity 


The Employers will provide equal employment opportunity and practice of a non-discriminatory nature 


consistent with Federal and State of Illinois laws to all members of the bargaining unit. The Employers 


and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination by the Employers or the Union against 


employees because of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, or marital status or because of 


a physical handicap with respect to a position the duties of which can be performed adequately by an 


individual with such a physical handicap without danger to the health or safety of the physically 


handicapped person or to others. 


 


Section 3.2 Union Membership or Activity 


Neither the Employers nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this 


Agreement to become or not become members of the Union, and there shall be no discrimination against 


any such employees because of lawful Union membership or non-membership, activity or status. 


 


ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 


 


The Employers have and will continue to retain the right to operate and manage its affairs in each and 


every respect. The rights reserved to the sole discretion of the Employers shall include, but are not limited 


to, the right: 


 


(a) to determine the organizational and operations of the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office; 


(b) to determine and change purpose, composition and function of each of its consistent 


departments, and subdivisions; 


(c) to set standards; 
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(d) to direct the employees of the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office, including the right to assign 


work and overtime; 


(e) to hire, examine, classify, select, promote, restore to career service positions, train, 


transfer, assign, and schedule employees; 


(f) to increase, reduce or change, modify or alter the composition and the size of the work 


force, including the right to relieve employees from duties because of lack of work or 


Funds or other proper reasons; 


(g) to contract out work when essential in the exercise of powers of the Sheriff’s Office; 


(h) to establish work schedules and to determine the starting and quitting time, and the 


numbers of hours worked; 


(i) to establish, modify, combine or abolish job positions and classifications; 


(j) to add, delete or alter methods of operations, equipment of facilities; 


(k) to determine the location, methods, means, and personnel by which operations, are to be 


conducted including the right to determine whether goods and services are to be made 


provided or purchased; 


(l) to establish, implement and maintain an effective internal control program; 


(m) to suspend, demote, discharge for just cause; and, 


(n) to add, delete, or alter policies, procedures, rules, and regulations. 


 


ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTING 


 


Section 5.1 General Policy 


It is the general policy of the Employers to continue to utilize employees to perform work they are 


qualified to perform.  However, the Employers reserve the right to contract out any work it deems 


necessary in the interests of economy, improved work product or emergency provided that such 


subcontracting does not cause layoff or reduction of work hours for bargaining unit employees.  


 


ARTICLE 6 DUES DEDUCTION AND FAIR SHARE 


 


Section 6.1 Dues Deduction  


Upon receipt of proper written authorization from an employee, the Employers shall deduct each month 


Union dues in the amount certified by the Union from the pay of all employees covered by this 


Agreement, who, in writing, authorize such deductions.  Such money shall be submitted to the Illinois 


FOP Labor Council at 974 Clocktower Drive at Springfield, IL 62704-1304 within thirty (30) days after 


the deductions have been made.  Said deductions will be terminated upon the Employee’s written request. 


The Union hereby indemnifies and agrees to hold the Employers harmless against any and all claims, 


demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise out of, or by reason of, any action taken by the 


Employers for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this Article. 


 


Section 6.2 Fair Share 


Any present employee who is not a member of the Union shall be required to pay a fair share (not to 


exceed the amount of Union dues) of the cost of the collective bargaining process and contract 


administration in pursuing matters affecting wages, hours, and other conditions of employment, but not to 


exceed the amount of dues uniformly required of members.  All employees hired on or after the effective 


date of this Agreement who have not made application for membership shall, on or after the thirtieth 


(30
th


) day of their hire, also be required to pay a fair share as defined above. The Employers shall with 


respect to any employee on whose behalf the Employers have not received a written authorization (see 


Appendix “A”) as provided for above, the Employers shall deduct from the wages of the employee, the 


fair share financial obligation, including any retroactive amount due and owing, and shall forward said 


amount to the Union on the tenth (10
th


) day of the month following the month in which the deduction is 


made, subject only to the following: 
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(a) The Union has certified to the Employers that the affected employee has been delinquent in their 


obligations for at least thirty (30) days; 


 


(b) The Union has certified to the Employers that the affected employee has been notified in writing 


of the obligation and the requirement for each provision of this Article, and that the employee has 


been advised by the Union of their obligations pursuant to this Article and of the manner in which 


the Union has calculated the fair share fee; 


 


 (c)  The Union has certified to the Employers that the affected employee has been given a reasonable 


opportunity to prepare and submit any objections to have said objections adjudicated before an 


impartial arbitrator assigned by the employee and the Union for the purpose of determining and 


resolving any objections the employee may have to the fair share fee. 


 


ARTICLE 7 NO STRIKE 


 


Section 7.1 No Strike Commitment 


Neither the Union nor any officer will call, initiate, authorize, participate in, sanction, encourage, or ratify 


any work stoppage, slow down, or the concerted interference with the full, faithful and proper 


performance of the duties of employment with the Employers during the term of this Agreement.  Neither 


covered employees nor any official of the Union shall refuse to cross any picket line, by whomever 


established. 


 


Section 7.2 Performance on Duty 


It is recognized that employees covered by this Agreement may be required in the line of duty to perform 


duties growing out of or connected with labor disputes which may arise within the County.  The Union 


agrees that no disciplinary action or other action will be taken by the Union against any employee or 


employees covered by this Agreement by reason of any such action or conduct in the line of duty or in 


any way using their official position. 


 


Section 7.3 Resumption of Operation 


In the event of action prohibited by Section 7.1 above, the Union immediately shall disavow such action 


and request the members to return to work, and shall use its best efforts to achieve a prompt resumption of 


normal operations.  The Union, including its officials and agents, shall not be liable for any damages, 


direct or indirect, upon complying with the requirements of this Section. 


 


Section 7.4 Union Liability 


Upon the failure of the Union to comply with the provisions of Section 7.2 above, any agent or official of 


the Union who is an person who is a member of the bargaining unit may be subject to the provisions of 


Section 7.5 below. 


 


Section 7.5 Discipline of Strikers 


Any officer or member of the bargaining unit, who violates the provisions of Section 7.1 of this Article, 


shall be subject to immediate discharge.  Any action taken by the Sheriff against any member of the 


bargaining unit who participates in action prohibited by Section 7.1 above shall not be considered as a 


violation of this Agreement and shall not be subject to review, except that the factual issue of whether an 


officer or member of the bargaining unit in fact participated in a prohibited action shall be subject to 


review in a disciplinary action instituted by the Sheriff pursuant to Article 13 Dispute Resolution and 


Grievance Procedure in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.  
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ARTICLE 8 RESOLUTION OF IMPASSE 


 


All impasses on matters in dispute shall be resolved according to the provisions of Section 14 of the 


Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, as amended, except that all arbitration hearings shall be conducted in 


Oregon, Illinois. 


 


ARTICLE 9 BILL OF RIGHTS 


 


If the interrogation of a member of the bargaining unit subject to the terms of 50 ILCS 725/1 et. seq. is to 


occur which may lead to a suspensions of more than three (3) work days without pay or termination of 


employment, then such member shall have the right to a Union representative during such questioning.  


Nothing in this Article is intended to or should be construed to waive employee’s right to Council 


representation during questioning that the employee reasonably believe may lead to discipline. Employees 


covered by the terms of this Agreement shall have such rights as set forth in the United States Supreme 


Court decision in NLRB vs. Weingarten, 420 U.S.  251 (1975) and the Department of Central 


Management Services & Corrections (Moorage) decision, 1 PERI par. 2020 (ISLRB, 1985).  
 
Section 9.1 Photo Dissemination 
No photo of an employee under investigation shall be made available to the media prior to a conviction 
for a criminal offense, unless determined by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee to be in the best interest 
of public safety for the citizens of Ogle County.  
  
Section 9.2 Compulsion of Testimony 
The Sheriff shall not compel an employee under investigation to speak or testify before, or to be 
questioned by any non-governmental agency relating to any matter or issue under investigation. This 
provision does not apply to the Employer or its attorneys who shall have the right to question an 
employee relating to any matter which may subject the Employer to potential liability.   
 
Section 9.3 Administrative Leave 
The decision as to whether an employee will remain in pay status pending the outcome of an 
administrative or criminal trial shall be made on a case by case basis, and shall equitably and reasonably 
made given the circumstances of each individual case.  
 


ARTICLE 10 PERSONNEL FILES 


 


Section 10.1 Personnel Files 


The Sheriff shall keep a central personnel file within the bargaining unit for each employee. The Sheriff 


may also keep working files such as internal investigation files; however, material not maintained in the 


central personnel file may not provide the basis for disciplinary or other action against an employee. The 


Employer agrees to abide by the terms as set forth in 820 ILCS 40/1 et. seq. and the Freedom of 


Information Act as found in 5 ILCS 140/1 et. seq.  


 


Section 10.2 Inspection 


Upon request of an employee, the Sheriff shall reasonably permit an employee to inspect his personnel 


file but not internal investigation files during an investigation.  The internal investigation file shall be 


available for inspection upon disciplinary action being imposed or a complaint seeking disciplinary 


action. Inspection of files shall be subject to the following: 


 


(a) Such inspection shall occur within a reasonable time following receipt of the request; 


(b) Such inspection shall occur during daytime working hours Monday through Friday upon 


reasonable request; 
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(c) The employee shall not be permitted to remove any part of the personnel file from the premises 


but may obtain copies of any information contained therein upon payment for the cost of copying; 


(d) Upon written authorization by the requesting employee, in cases where such employee has a 


written grievance pending, and is inspecting their file with respect to such grievance, that 


employee may have a representative of the Union present during such inspection and/or may 


inspect their personnel file subject to the procedures contained in this Article; 


(e) Pre-employment information, such as reference reports, credit check or information provided the 


Employers with a specific request that it remain confidential shall not be subject to inspection or 


copying. 


 


Section 10.3 Notification 


Employees and the Union shall be given immediate notice by the Sheriff when a formal, written 


reprimand or other disciplinary documentation is permanently placed in their personnel file.  A copy of 


said discipline shall be given to the employee and the Union. 


 


ARTICLE 11 DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 


 


Section 11.1 Discipline and Discharge 


The parties recognize the principles of progressive and corrective discipline. No employee covered by the 


terms of this Agreement shall be suspended, relieved from duty or disciplined in any matter without just 


cause. Disciplinary action may be imposed upon an employee only pursuant to the laws of the State of 


Illinois. If the Sheriff or Command has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that 


will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public. Disciplinary action or measure 


shall include only the following: 


  


Coaching and counseling 


 Written reprimand 


 Suspension (notice to be given in writing) 


 Demotion 


 Discharge 


 


Section 11.2 Limitation 


The Sheriff’s agreement to use progressive and corrective disciplinary action does not prohibit the Sheriff 


in any case from imposing discipline which is commensurate with the severity of the offense.  The Sheriff 


shall notify both the employee and Union of disciplinary action.  Such notification shall be in writing and 


shall reflect the specific nature of the offense. 


 


Section 11.3 Pre-Disciplinary Meeting 


For discipline other than oral and written reprimands, prior to the imposition of discipline, the Sheriff or 


the Sheriff’s designee shall follow this procedure. The Sheriff shall notify the Union or other member of 


the Union Grievance Committee and the affected employed employee that the employee desires to hold a 


pre-disciplinary meeting and the time and date of such meeting.  The Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee 


shall thereafter inform the Union and employee of the contemplated measure of discipline and the reasons 


therefore.  If agreement can then be reached on the measure of discipline, it shall be imposed. 


 


Section 11.4 Discipline Appeal 


All matters relating to discipline will be subject to appeal through the grievance procedure as set forth in 


Article 13. 
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Section 11.5 Reassignments 


The Sheriff may, in the Sheriff’s discretion, reassign any employee while an investigation of possible 


wrong behavior is completed.  Such assignment shall be without prejudice. 


 


ARTICLE 12 INDEMNIFICATION 


 


Section 12.1 Indemnification 


The Employer shall be responsible for, hold employees harmless from and pay damages or monies which 


may be adjudged, assessed, or otherwise levied against any employee covered by this Agreement for any 


act or omission of said employee to the level provided for at minimum the applicable statutes. The 


Employer agrees to abide by 65 ILCS 5/1-4-6. 


 


Section 12.2 Representation 


An employee covered by the terms of this Agreement shall have legal representation by the Employer in 


any civil cause of action brought against an employee resulting from or arising out of the performance of 


duties, whether the employee was on duty or off duty at the time of the incident. The affected employee 


shall be permitted to choose such legal counsel, subject to the approval of the Employer.  


 


Section 12.3 Cooperation 


Employees shall be required to cooperate with the Employer during the course of the investigation, 


administration or litigation of any claim arising under this Article.  Should a member of the bargaining 


unit fail to cooperate, the terms of this Article shall not apply.  


 


Section 12.4 Applicability 


The Employer will provide the protections set forth herein, so long as the employee is acting within the 


scope of their employment and where the employee cooperates with the Employer in defense of the action 


or claim. Acts of willful misconduct are not covered by the Article. Acts of intentional wrongdoing, 


willful and wanton conduct and/or reckless acts are not covered by the provisions of this Article. 


 


ARTICLE 13 DISPUTE RESOLUTIONS AND GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 


 


All disciplinary grievances shall be subject to the provisions of this Article. Should a member of the 


bargaining unit disagree with the content of a written reprimand, the Sheriff shall allow said member to 


reduce to writing the disagreement and to have such writing attached to the written reprimand issued by 


the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee. Nothing shall prevent the Sheriff from withdrawing or modifying the 


written reprimand based on the content of the said writing of the bargaining unit member. Oral 


reprimands shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure. 


 


Section 13.1 Definition of a Grievance 


A grievance is defined as any unresolved indifferences between the Employer and the Union or any 


employee regarding the application, meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. The rationale or defense 


of “past practice”, whether raised by the Joint Employers or Union herein is expressly subject to the 


grievance procedure. 


 


Section 13.2 Dispute Resolution 


In the interest of resolving disputes at the earliest possible time, it is agreed that an attempt to resolve a 


dispute shall be made between the employee and their immediate supervisor. The employee shall make 


the complaint to their immediate supervisor.  The supervisor will notify the employee of the decision 


within two (2) working days following the day when the complaint was made.  Settlements or 


withdrawals at this step shall not constitute a precedent in the handling of other grievances.  In the event 


of a complaint, the employee shall first complete their assigned work task; and complain later. 
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Section 13.3 Representative 


Grievances may be processed by the Union, or the Union on behalf of an employee or on behalf of a 


group of employees.  The Employers may file contract grievances directly at Step 2, Section 13.8 of this 


Article.  Either party may have the grievant or one (1) grievant representing group grievants present at any 


step of the grievance procedure, and the employee is entitled to Union representation at each and every 


step of this grievance procedure upon request. Grievances may be filed on behalf of two (2) or more 


employees only if the same facts, issues and requested remedy apply to all employees in the group. 


 


Section 13.4 Subject Matter 


Only one (1) subject matter shall be covered in any one (1) grievance.  A grievance shall contain a 


statement of the grievant’s position, the Article, and Section of the Agreement allegedly violated, the date 


of the alleged violation, the relief sought, and the signature of the grieving employee(s) or the FOP Labor 


Council and the date. 


 


Section 13.5 Time Limitations 


Grievances may be withdrawn at any step of the grievance procedure with prejudice to the pending 


grievances but without precedent to future grievances.  If the time limits established in the grievance 


procedure are not followed by the Union or member of the bargaining unit, the grievance shall be 


considered waived. The time limits established in the grievance procedure shall be followed by an 


employee or the Union, the grievance shall be considered settled.  If the time procedure is not followed by 


the Employer, the grievance shall remain active and automatically advance to the next step; provide, 


however, that arbitration shall not occur unless the Union submits written notice of its desire to arbitrate.  


The time limits established herein may be extended by mutual agreement in writing.  In computing days 


under the grievance and arbitration procedures, Saturday, Sunday and holidays shall be excluded. 


 


Section 13.6 Grievance Processing 


A grievance committee member may during regular working hours, without loss of time or pay, in 


accordance with the terms of this Article, investigate and present grievances to the Employers and may 


attend negotiating sessions upon having received permission from their supervisor to do so.  The 


supervisors shall grant permission within a reasonable time after the first (1
st
) hours of the shift for the 


steward to leave their work for these purposes subject to necessary emergency exceptions.  The privilege 


of the steward leaving their work during working hours, without loss of time or pay, is subject to the 


understanding that the time will be devoted to the proper processing of grievances and will not be abused. 


The Union representative may be required to record time spent. All such Union representatives will 


perform their regularly assigned work at all times except whenever necessary to leave their work to 


process grievances as provided herein. 


 


Section 13.7 Grievance Meetings 


A maximum of two (2) employees (the grievant and/or Union representative) per work shift shall be 


excused from work with pay to participate in a Step 1 or Step 2 grievance meeting.  The employee(s) shall 


only be excused for the amount of time reasonably required to present the grievance.  The employee(s) 


shall not be paid for any time during which a grievance meeting occurs outside of the employee’s work 


shift.  In the event of a grievance, the employee and Union representative(s) shall first perform their 


assigned work task and file their grievance later. 
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Section 13.8 Steps in Procedure 


Disputes arising under this Agreement shall be resolved as follows: 


 


STEP 1  If no agreement is reached between the employee and the supervisor, as provided for in Section 


13.2 Dispute Resolution, the Union shall prepare a written grievance on a form mutually agreed to (see 


Appendix “B”) and presented to the Sheriff no later than ten (10) working days after the employee was 


notified of the decision by the supervisor.  Within five (5) working days after the grievance has been 


submitted, the Sheriff shall meet with the grievant and the Union Representative to discuss the grievance 


and make a good faith attempt to resolve the grievance.  The Sheriff shall respond in writing to the 


grievant and the Union Representative within five (5) working days following the meeting. 


 


STEP 2 If the grievance is not settled at Step 1, the grievance may be referred in writing within five (5) 


working days after the decision of the Sheriff to a Committee consisting of the Sheriff and three (3) 


members of the County Board appointment by the Chairman.  Within twenty (20) working days after the 


grievance has been filed with the Committee, the Committee shall meet with the Union and the grievant to 


discuss the grievance and make a good faith effort to resolve the grievance.  The Committee shall respond 


in writing to the grievant and the Union within five (5) working days following the meeting.  The Sheriff 


shall have one (1) vote and the County Board members, collectively, shall have one (1) vote in resolving 


the grievance.   


 


STEP 3 If the dispute is not settled at Step 2, the matter may be submitted to arbitration within ten (10) 


working days after the Committee’s written decision of the expiration of the five (5) day period if the 


Committee fails to render a written decision.  Within ten (10) working days after the matter has been 


submitted to arbitration, a representative of the Employer and the Union shall meet to select an Arbitrator 


from a list of mutually agreed to arbitrators.  If the parties are unable to agree on an Arbitrator within ten 


(10) working days after such meeting, the parties shall request Federal Mediation and Conciliation 


Service to submit a list of seven (7) by alternate strikes by the Employer representative and the Union.  


The Employer and the Union shall flip a coin to determine who strikes first..  The person whose name 


remains on the list shall be the arbitrator, provided that either party before striking any names shall have 


the right to reject one (1) panel of the arbitrators. The Arbitrator shall be notified of their selection by a 


joint letter from the Employer and the Union.   Such letter shall request the arbitrator to set a time and a 


place for the hearing subject to the availability of the Employer and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police 


Labor Council representative and shall be notified of the issue where mutually agreed by the parties.  All 


hearings shall be held in the City of Oregon, Illinois unless otherwise agreed to. Both parties agree to 


make a good faith attempt to arrive at a joint statement of facts and issues to be submitted to the arbitrator.  


 


The Employers or Union shall have the right to request the arbitrator to require the presence of witnesses 


and/or documents.  Each party shall bear the expense of its witnesses. Once a determination is made that 


the matter is arbitrable or if such preliminary determination cannot be reasonably made, the arbitrator 


shall then proceed to determine the merits of the dispute. 


 


The expenses and fees of arbitration and the cost of the hearing room shall be shared equally by the 


Employers and the Union.  Costs of arbitration shall include the arbitrator’s fees, and transcription costs.  


Nothing in this Article shall preclude the Employers and Union from agreeing to use expedited arbitration 


procedures.  The decision and award of the arbitrator shall be made within forty-five (45) days following 


the hearing and shall be final and binding on the Employers, Union and the employee or employees 


involved. The Employers and the Union agree to abide by the Uniform Arbitration Act.  The arbitrator 


shall have no power to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to or subtract from the provisions of this 


Agreement. 
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ARTICLE 14 SENIORITY 


 


Section 14.1 Definition of Seniority 


As used herein, the term “seniority” shall refer to and be defined as the continuous length of service or 


employment covered by this Agreement from the date of last hire. In the case of transfer from a 


classification where the rate of pay is less, the entry level of pay shall apply. With the exception of pay, 


all other benefits herein shall be based upon continuous length of service from date of last hire. 


 


Section 14.2 Probation Period 


An employee is a “probationary employee” for the first twelve (12) months of employment.  No matter 


concerning the discipline, layoff or termination of a probationary employee shall be subject to the 


grievance and arbitration procedures.  A probationary employee shall have no seniority, except as 


otherwise provided in this Agreement, until the employee has completed the probationary period.  Upon 


the completion of the probationary period, the employee will acquire seniority from their date of hire. A 


non-probationary employee who is transferred to a new classification shall serve an additional one 


hundred-eighty (180) day probation period in the new classification.  During that one hundred-eighty 


(180) day period, the employee may be transferred back to their former position either at the request of 


the employee or at the direction of the Sheriff for failure to satisfactorily perform the duties of the new 


position. 


 


Section 14.3 Seniority List 


The Employers and Union have agreed upon the initial seniority list setting forth the present seniority 


dates for all employees covered by this Agreement and shall become effective on the date of execution of 


this Agreement.  Such lists shall finally resolve all questions of seniority affecting employees covered 


under this Agreement or employed at the time the Agreement becomes effective.  Disputes as to seniority, 


listing shall be resolved through the grievance procedure.  The initial agreed list is attached hereto as 


Appendix “C” and made a part hereof. 


 


Section 14.4 Termination of Seniority 


An employee may be terminated by the Employers and their seniority broken when the employee: 


 


(a) quits; or 


(b) is discharged for  just cause; or, 


(c) is laid off pursuant to the provisions of the applicable agreement for a period of twenty-four (24) 


months; or, 


(d) accepts gainful full-time employment while on an approved leave of absence from the Sheriff’s 


Office, unless the leave was granted for the purpose  of employment; or 


(e) is absent for three (3) consecutive scheduled work days without proper notification or 


authorization; or, 


(f) fails to return to work at the conclusion of an approved leave of absence for a period of three (3) 


consecutive days. 


 


Section 14.5 Suspensions 


Employees shall not accrue seniority for any disciplinary suspensions of ten (10) days or longer.  In the 


event that the discipline is subsequent reversed or modified, the appropriate accrual of seniority shall 


require reinstated.  


 


Section 14.6 Seniority While on Leave 


Employees in the bargaining unit shall not accrue credit for time spent on authorized, unpaid leave of 


absence. Vacation, sick leave, holidays and other similar benefits will not be earned while on unpaid leave 


of absence. 
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Section 14.7 Departmental Transfer 


An employee in the bargaining unit who transfers from another Ogle County Department shall accumulate 


total seniority at the County only for purposes of calculating vacation and sick leave. 


 


Section 14.8 Seniority Shift Bidding 


For purposes of determining shift and days off preference, seniority shall apply in the bidding process, 


including the cover shifts each December 1 or in the event of vacancy. 


 


Section 14.9 Dispute Resolution 


Where two (2) or more employees request the same time off, seniority shall determine first choice. Where 


two (2) or more employees are eligible for an overtime opportunity, seniority shall determine first choice.  


 


ARTICLE 15 LAYOFF 


 


Section 15.1 Layoff   


In the event the Employers determine a layoff is necessary based upon insufficient Funds, employees shall 


be laid off within each particular job classification and Department in the inverse order of their seniority 


unless compliance with State or Federal law requires otherwise. 


Section 15.2 Layoff Order 


Temporary and part-time employees and then probationary employees shall be laid off first, and then full-


time employees shall be laid off in inverse order of their seniority.  Individual employees shall receive 


notice in writing of the layoff not less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such layoff. 


 


Section 15.3 Recall 


Employees shall be recalled from layoff within each particular job classification according to their 


seniority.  No new employee shall be hired until all employees on layoff in that particular job 


classification desiring to return to work shall have been given the opportunity to return to work.  Recall 


rights under this provision shall terminate twenty-four (24) months after layoff. 


 


ARTICLE 16 HOLIDAYS 


 


Section 16.1 Paid Holidays 


Employees not working on a holiday shall receive twelve (12), ten (10) or eight (8) hours pay as holiday 


pay depending on their scheduled shift. All employees covered by this Agreement shall receive the below 


designated holidays and any additional holidays as set annually by the Ogle County Board.  The Sheriff 


retains the right to schedule employees off on the aforementioned, additional holidays. The following 


days shall be designated as paid holidays: 


 


 New Year’s Day     Labor Day 


 Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday   Columbus Day 


 Lincoln’s Birthday     Veteran’s Day 


 Washington’s Birthday    Thanksgiving Day 


 Spring Holiday      Day after Thanksgiving 


 Memorial Day      Christmas Day 


 Independence Day 
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Section 16.2 Pay for Holiday Work 


Employees required to work a holiday shall be paid time and one-half (1-1/2) pay for all hours worked in 


addition to their base pay.  Employees regularly scheduled to work on a holiday who actually report to 


work shall not be sent home without consent of the employee. The aforementioned holidays referred to in 


Section 16.1 shall be paid at the employee’s discretion as compensatory time or overtime. 


 


ARTICLE 17 VACATIONS 


 


Section 17.1 Vacation Leave 


All full-time employees shall earn vacation time.  Employees on leave of absence, suspension or layoff 


shall not accrue vacation time.  Eligible employees shall earn vacation time in accordance with the 


following schedule: 


 


After 1 year   1 week to be taken in the second year 


After 2 years   2 weeks for the third and subsequent years 


After 7 years   3 weeks for the eighth and subsequent years 


After 12 years   4 weeks for the thirteenth and subsequent years 


After 16 years   4 weeks and one (1) day 


After 17 years   4 weeks and two (2) days 


After 18 years   4 weeks and three (3) days 


After 19 years   4 weeks and four (4) days 


After 20 years   4 weeks plus five (5) days 


After 21 years              5 weeks and one (1) day 


After 22 years              5 weeks and two (2) days 


After 23 years              5 weeks and three (3) days 


After 24 years              5 weeks and four (4) days 


After 25 years              5 weeks and five (5) days 


 


Section 17.2 Vacation Pay 


All vacation leave will be paid for at the regular hourly rate and on the basis of their weekly work 


schedule.  In the discretion of the Sheriff and subject to available budget funds, an employee may 


annually redeem up to one (1) week’s vacation for pay in exceptional circumstances. 


 


Section 17.3 Vacation Requests 


No later than the first week of January, the Employer shall post a vacation sign up sheet for the selection 


of vacations for the following year.  Except as otherwise provided herein, vacation selection shall be by 


seniority within each position and shift.  To be entitled to vacation selection priority, employees must 


submit their priority vacation selections by January 31.  However, during the January selection period, the 


selection of vacations in forty (40) or eighty (80) hour blocks, shall take precedence over vacation 


requests of less than a forty (40) hour block, regardless of seniority.   After January 31, vacation requests 


shall be on a first come first serve basis.  Once a “first come first serve” vacation selection has been made 


that selection cannot be bumped by a more senior employee.  For vacation requests of one (1) shift, five 


(5) days notice shall be given by the employee.  No more than one (1) employee from each shift may be 


on vacation at the same time.  The Sheriff agrees that vacation requests shall not be unreasonably denied 


and further agrees to make every effort to respond to vacation requests in a timely manner.   This 


paragraph shall become effective December 1, 2010 except that the first January vacation selection shall 


not occur until January of each year. 
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Section 17.4 Termination 


Any employee who has completed their probationary period who terminates County employment shall be 


paid for their accumulated vacation days at the rate of pay currently received by said employee.  Any 


unused vacation days in the year of termination shall be pro-rated. 


 


Section 17.5 Vacation Eligibility 


No employee shall be entitled to any vacation, or pay therefore, until the employee has been on the 


payroll for a continuous period of at least twelve (12) months and has satisfactorily completed their 


probationary period.  Vacation with pay will not be granted before vacation time has been earned. 


 


Section 17.6 Cancelled Vacation 


If a properly scheduled vacation must be cancelled by the Sheriff, the employee shall be paid their normal 


hourly rate for the lost vacation time. The Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee shall grant the vacation be 


rescheduled either the same calendar year or the following year. 


Section 17.7 Vacation Pay Advance 


If a regular payday falls during an employee’s vacation and the employee is to be on vacation for two (2) 


weeks or longer, the employee will be entitled to receive that check in advance before going on vacation.  


An employee must make a request to the Sheriff for their check two (2) weeks before the payday if the 


employee expects to receive the check in advance.  All authorized deductions due will be taken out of 


vacation checks at the time of issue. 


 


ARTICLE 18 SICK LEAVE 


 


Section 18.1 Sick Leave 


Accumulated unused sick leave upon retirement shall be credited to additional retirement benefits under 


IMRF. Sick leave shall be deducted on an hour for hour basis. Employees shall accumulate sick leave as 


follows: 


 


A. Years of Service  Accrual Per Month  Maximum Sick 


         Leave Accum. 


    8 Hr. Shift 12 Hr. Shift 


 0-1   4 Hours 9 Hours  6 duty days 


 Over 1 Year  8 Hours 10 Hours  Unlimited 


 


Section 18.2 Use of Sick Leave 


No employee will be permitted to take sick leave that has not yet been earned. Sick leave may be taken 


after six (6) months of employment for the following reasons:  Any illness an employee may contract or 


any exposure to a contagious disease the employee may experience in which the health of others may be 


endangered by their attendance at duty or an illness of the immediate family, spouse, child, mother, father, 


or the employee’s grandparents.  For compensable injury or illness, to supplement the Worker’s 


Compensation benefits, to equal such employee’s regular rate of pay charged against sick leave bank.  


Any non-duty connected disability an employee may sustain, except for an injury that may be sustained 


while being in the employee of another during their off duty time which is covered by Worker’s 


Compensation furnished by the other Employer. 


Section 18.3 Medical Leave 


(a) Physician’s Verification: A doctor’s written verification may be required as evidence of an 


employee or family illness or any injury prevented their attendance at work for a period in excess of three 


(3) continuous days or in cases of multiple absences due to sick leave.  Falsification of such evidence will 


be sufficient cause of disciplinary action. 
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(b) Sick Leave During Vacation:  If an employee becomes ill while on vacation, the use of sick leave 


shall be granted only if written proof from a doctor is submitted describing the illness, the length of 


incapacity and further evidenced by a receipted bill for services of the attending physician.  The employee 


shall return to work on the originally scheduled date unless that date is changed by their supervisor. 


 


(c) Medical Examination:  Employees suffering from a chronic or recurring illness necessitating 


absences in excess of the absences for which sick pay is payable may, at the Sheriff’s option, be required 


to submit to an examination by a physician chosen by the Sheriff.  If corrective surgery or other therapy is 


recommended to remedy or alleviate such illness and the employee does not submit to such surgery or 


therapy within reasonable time, the employee may be discharged due to such physical disability. 


 


Section 18.4 Sick Leave Abuse Sanctions 


For the purposes of the provisions contained in this Article “abuse” of sick leave is the utilization of such 


for reasons other than those stated in Article 18: Section 18.2. In the case of the abuse of such sick leave, 


the employee shall not be paid for such leave taken nor shall the employee accrue any rights such as 


seniority or other rights.  “Abuse” of sick leave shall subject the employee to disciplinary action pursuant 


to the terms of this Agreement.  All employees agree to cooperate fully with the Department in verifying 


illness. 


 


Section 18.5 Termination 


Covered employees, upon termination with the proper two (2) weeks notice and who have five (5) years 


of completed service through eight (8) years of service will be compensated eight (8) hours of straight 


time pay for each unused accumulated sick day.  Covered employees, who do not have five (5) years 


completed service or quits without the proper notice with or without the five (5) years of completed 


service or who are discharged for just cause will not be entitled to any compensation of accumulated sick 


pay. 


 


ARTICLE 19 LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY 


 


Section 19.1 Leave of Absence Definition 


The Sheriff may grant leaves of absence in his sole discretion. For the purpose of this Agreement, a leave 


of absence without pay shall be defined as all time for which a County employee is to be continued as an 


employee but not paid whether it is one (1) day or the maximum time allowable under the reason for the 


leave. When an employee is granted a leave of absence without pay, the Sheriff commits to allowing the 


employee to return to work at the end of the leave to the same duties and the same salary that the 


employee was performing and earning when the employee went on leave.  Any substitutes hired to fill in 


for employees on leaves of absence without pay should be hired accordingly, and laid off or discharged at 


the return of the employee on leave.  If the employee’s position is eliminated by the County Board or 


State or Federal enactment during his leave, the employee shall be placed first on the recall list for a 


vacancy in the Department for which the employee is qualified. When granted a leave of absence without 


pay, the employee commits to return to work at the end of the leave. 


 


Section 19.2 Effect of Leaves Without Pay 


(a) Does not receive pay from the County. 


(b) Does not earn annual vacation leave. 


(c) Does not earn sick leave. 


(d) Has no time deducted from the employee’s annual vacation leave or sick leave to cover the time 


off on the leave of absence without pay. 


(e) The employee does not earn any additional credit for seniority but retains the length of seniority 


credited at the beginning of the leave. 
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(f) Remains a member of the Illinois Municipal Retirement System but cannot withdraw Retirement 


contributions while on leave of absence, only on separation, and cannot pay Retirement 


contributions. 


(g) The employee does not earn credit toward longevity pay, if any, or credit toward the rate of annual 


vacation leave or sick leave accumulation for the period covered by the leave. 


(h) Must pay any group hospitalization premiums falling due during any month which the employee 


has not worked the minimum hours required by the County insurance carrier.  (Employees on such 


leave should contact payroll.) 


 


Section 19.3 Types of Leave Without Pay 


A. To cover time off because of personal illness beyond that covered by earned sick leave with pay.  


 


1. To be used when the employee has exhausted their accumulations of earned sick leave with 


pay and earned annual vacation leave. 


 


 2. Not to exceed six (6) months for any one (1) leave, but may be renewed. 


 


3. To be granted only on the written recommendation of the employee’s physician and 


subject to the Sheriff verifying the supplied information by a medical professional chosen 


by Sheriff.  


  


B. To cover time off because of a compensable injury beyond that covered by sick leave with pay and 


annual vacation leave with pay. 


C. To cover time off while running for County elected office filled by partisan election.  If such a 


leave is requested, except no more than two (2) leaves may be granted for the purpose of running 


for elected office in any one (1) calendar year and each leave must be no less than fifteen (15) 


calendar days nor more than thirty (30) calendar days. 


D. To cover disciplinary leaves (suspension without pay). 


 


E. To cover time off because of personal reasons.  Such leave requires the approval of the Sheriff and 


may not exceed six (6) months. 


 


Section 19.4 Return from a Leave Without Pay 


If an employee fails to return to County employment within three (3) days at the end of a leave of absence 


without pay, and no extension of the leave is granted, the employee must submit a resignation from 


County service.  Failure to contact the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee at the end of the leave shall be 


grounds for labeling the separation from County service a voluntary resignation. During any leave granted 


pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, regardless of being with or without pay, any employee may not 


be gainfully employed or independently self-employed without prior approval by the Sheriff. Violation of 


the provisions contained within this Agreement shall subject the employee to immediate discharge and 


loss of all benefits and rights accrued pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 


 


Section 19.5 Family and Medical Leave Act 


The provisions of the Ogle County Personnel Policies as applied to the Family and Medical Leave Act are 


hereby adopted by reference.   Said policies shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Family 


and Medical Leave Act of 1993 and any Federal Regulations adopted there under, as they may be 


amended from time to time. 
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ARTICLE 20 PAID AND SPECIAL LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


Section 20.1 Bereavement Leave 


Employees will be granted up to three (3) days leave with no loss of compensation because of the death of 


the employee’s spouse, child, step-child, parent, step-parent, sister, brother, mother-in-law, father-in-law, 


grandchild, grandparents, or anyone who raised the employee from childhood.  One (1) day with pay may 


be granted for a military funeral in which an employee is an official participant.  In the event of lengthy 


travel or for deaths of other than the immediate family, vacation days, compensatory time or sick leave to 


a maximum of three (3) days may be used, in addition to the above and subject to the operating needs of 


the Office.  Written proof of relationship, death and/or funeral location may be required by the Sheriff 


prior to final approval of such leave. 


 


Section 20.2 Jury Duty Leave 


Employees on jury duty or subpoenaed as a witness on scheduled work days shall be paid the wages the 


employee would have earned by working during straight time hours for the Employers on that day, for 


each day on which the employee reports for or performs jury duty and on which the employee otherwise 


would have been scheduled for work for the Employers.  Such time will not be charged against the 


employee’s annual leave or sick leave.  An employee on a jury panel or appearing as a witness shall return 


to work for the balance of the day when the employee is excused by the court from further attendance. All 


monies of any kind paid to the member of the bargaining unit who is called for jury duty shall be signed 


off to the County of Ogle for the member of the bargaining unit to receive the benefits of this Section.  


 


Section 20.3 Maternity Leave 


Employees who become disabled due to pregnancy shall be entitled to use the benefits, vacation, 


compensatory time, sick leave or Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund disability leave subject to the 


following: 


 


A. The Sheriff shall be notified as soon as possible after medical confirmation of the pregnancy is 


received; such notice to include estimated date of delivery. 


 


B. An employee will not be allowed to return to work after delivery until she has supplied the Sheriff 


with a statement from her physician that she is physically and medically able to return to her duties as a 


County employee.  A copy of this statement shall be forwarded to the personnel Department. 


 


C. In any case, if an employee has not returned to work within two (2) months after delivery, she 


shall provide a doctor’s statement substantiating her continued disability and expected date of recovery.  


Employees failing to comply with this Section or failing to return to work when found able by their 


physician will be separated from County employment.  


 


D. Those employees desiring IMRF disability leave must meet the qualifications of IMRF for such 


leave. The Sheriff shall have the right to verify the condition of a member of the bargaining unit who 


seeks the benefits of this Article; such verification by a medical professional to be paid solely by the 


Sheriffs’ Office.  


 


Section 20.4 Personal Days 


Covered employees shall be allowed up to three (3) days of leave annually without loss of compensation 


for personal reasons. Employees must utilize personal days within the year they are granted or the 


personal days will be forfeited. In the event due to operational needs, an employee is denied personal 


days, that employee may carry over the time that was denied. 
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ARTICLE 21 HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME 


 


Section 21.1 Regular Hours: 
The Employer maintains the right to reschedule these meal periods and rest periods due to emergency 
operational needs or by mutual agreement of the Employer and employees. The regular hours of work 
each day shall be consecutive except that they may be interrupted by: 


 
(a) One (1) hour unpaid meal period for switchboard operator and secretary to the Chief 


Deputy; 
(b) One-half (1/2) hour unpaid meal period for the day shift custodian; 
(c) Two (2) paid fifteen (15) minute break periods in the first half and second half of their 


shift. 
 
Section 21.2 Work Period/Work Day 
The regular work period for employees covered by this Agreement, except the switchboard operator, shall 
consist of eight (8) consecutive hours of work and the regular work period shall consist of five (5) 
consecutive days. The switchboard operator’s work period shall consist of five (5) consecutive days with 
seven (7) consecutive hours in a day. Nothing herein shall guarantee a minimum or maximum hours per 
work period. 
 


Section 21.3 Overtime  
 


(a) Employee shall be paid overtime for all authorized overtime hours.  The employee shall 
annually elect whether to take pay or to take compensatory time at the rate of time and one-
half (1+1/2) hours for each hour worked beyond forty (40) hours in a work period in 
accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.   An employee desiring to change their election 
shall notify the Sheriff but no more often than quarterly.   All hours worked or paid as if 
worked shall count toward overtime accrual, with the exception of sick leave. 


 
(b) Unused compensatory time may be accumulated.  On the first payday in December of each 


year, the Employers shall compensate employees for all unused compensatory time 
accumulated in excess of one hundred-fifty (150) hours.  Subject to operating needs, the 
Sheriff may direct employees to utilize compensatory time that has accumulated beyond one 
hundred-fifty (150) hours. Employees may utilize compensatory time at their request, subject 
to operating needs. 


 


Section 21.4 Call-Back Time 


All employees who are required to report or work other than their regular shift will receive a minimum of 


two (2) hours guarantee at time and one-half (1+1/2) his hourly rate.  


 


Section 21.5 Overtime Authorization 
All overtime worked in accordance with the above provisions must be authorized by the employee’s 
immediate supervisor. 
 


ARTICLE 22 WAGES/COMPENSATION/ALLOWANCES 


 


Section 22.1 Wages 


During the term of this Agreement, employees in the bargaining unit shall be paid according to the 


schedules hereto attached. Only employees employed as of December 1, 2010 shall be eligible for 


retroactive pay. 


 


Section 22.2 Uniforms 


Full-time employees assigned to maintenance and light maintenance who have completed their 


probationary period shall receive three hundred dollars ($300.00) per year as a clothing allowance payable 
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each December 1, of this Agreement, (pro-rata if assigned less than a full year), for the purchase and 


maintenance of work clothing.   


 


The Employers agree to provide and replace uniforms as follows: 


 


 Accounting Clerks & Clerk Typist – (3) Shirts and (3) Pants 


 Telecommunicators – (4) Shirts 


 Cooks – (5) Uniforms 


 Part-Time Cooks – (2) Uniforms 


 


Section 22.3 Shift Differential 


All employees shall receive hourly shift differential of seventy-five cents ($.75) per hour, added to their 


base rates of pay, for all shifts other than Day shift.  


 


ARTICLE 23 INSURANCE AND PENSION 


 


Section 23.1 Health Insurance 


The County shall provide group health insurance coverage at a substantially equivalent level of benefits as 


in effect on November 8, 2010. The County will pay seventy-five percent (75%) of the premium or 


premium equivalent and the employee will pay the remaining twenty-five percent (25%) for the following 


types of coverage offered: a) employee; b) employee plus one (1) dependent; c) employee plus two (2) or 


more dependents. 


 


Section 23.2 Pension 


Employers shall continue to contribute on behalf of the employees to the Illinois Municipal Retirement 


Fund in the amount the Employers are required to contribute by State Statute. 


 


Section 23.3 Health Insurance Payments for Retirees 


The County shall begin to contribute fifty percent (50%) of the cost of single health insurance coverage 


through the County policy when the employee retires after at least meeting the minimum age and time 


statutory requirement of their pension Fund, or retires on a duty related disability pension.  This 


contribution shall continue until the employee reaches the age at which Medicare coverage begins.  An 


employee who collects a pension through IMRF shall have fifty percent (50%) of the cost of premiums 


paid by the County. 


 


ARTICLE 24 LABOR MANAGEMENT/SAFETY COMMITTEE 


 


Section 24.1 Labor Management Conferences 


The Union and the Employers mutually agree that in the interest of efficient management and harmonious 


employee relations, it is desirable that meetings be held between Union representatives and responsible 


administrative representatives of the Sheriff and County Board. The Employers and the Union agree to 


cooperate with each other in matters of the administration of this Agreement, and to the degree that 


standards of law enforcement can be maintained for the maximum protection of the citizens of the State of 


Illinois. To effectuate the purposes and intent of the parties, both parties agree to meet as necessary. Such 


meetings may be requested at least seven (7) days in advance by either party by placing in writing a 


request to the other for a labor-management conference and expressly providing the agenda for such 


meeting, such meetings and locations shall be limited to: 


 


(a) Discussion of the implementation and general administration of this Agreement. 


(b) A sharing of general information of interest to the parties. 
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(c)   Notifying the Union of changes in non-bargaining conditions of employment contemplated by the 


Employers which may affect employees.  The Union agrees to notify the Employers of non-


bargaining conditions of employment contemplated by the Union which may affect the 


Employers. 


(d)  Discussion of pending grievances on a non-binding basis to attempt to adjust such grievances and 


to discuss procedures for avoiding further grievances. 


(e)  Items concerning safety issues. 


 


Section 24.2 Integrity of Grievance Procedure 


It is expressly understood and agreed that such meetings shall be exclusive of the grievance procedure.  


Grievance being processed under the grievance procedure shall not be discussed in detail at labor 


management conferences, and any such discussion of a pending grievance shall be non-binding on either 


party and solely for the purpose of exploring alternatives to settle such grievances and such grievance 


discussion shall only be held by mutual agreement of the Employers and the Union, nor shall negotiations 


for the purpose of altering any or all of the terms of this Agreement be carried on at such meetings. 


 


Section 24.3 Safety Issues 


Any report or recommendation which may be prepared by the Union or the Employers as a direct result of 


a labor management conference discussion will be in writing and copies shall be submitted to the 


Employers and the Union. 


 


Section 24.4 Union Representative Attendance 


When absence from work is required to attend labor management conferences, employees shall, before 


leaving their work station, give reasonable notice to and receive approval from their supervisor in order to 


remain in pay status.  Supervisors shall approve the absence except in emergency situations.  Employees 


attending such conferences shall be limited to two (2). 


 


ARTICLE 25 F.O.P. REPRESENTATIVES 
  
For the purposes of administering and enforcing the provisions of this Agreement, the Employer agrees as 
follows:  


  
Section 25.1 Attendance at Labor Council Meetings 
Subject to the need for orderly scheduling and emergencies, the Employer agrees that designated 
members of the Labor Council shall be permitted reasonable time off to attend general, board, or special 
meetings of the Labor Council, provided that at least forty-eight (48) hours notice of such meetings shall 
be given in writing to the Employer, and provided further that the names of all such officials and 
employees shall be certified in writing to the Employer.  Employees may utilize accumulated paid leave. 
  
Section 25.2 Grievance Processing 
Reasonable time while on duty shall be permitted Labor Council representatives for the purpose of aiding 
or assisting or otherwise representing employees in the handling and processing of grievances or 
exercising other rights set forth in this Agreement, and such reasonable time shall be without loss of pay.  
  
Section 25.3 F.O.P. Delegates 
Any employee(s) chosen as delegate(s) to an F.O.P. State or National Conference will, upon written 
application approved by the Labor Council and submitted to the Employer with at least fourteen (14) days 
notice, be given an approved paid leave utilizing accumulated paid leave for the period of time required to 
attend such convention or conference. This period of time shall not exceed two (2) workdays annually. No 
more than two (2) employees per bargaining unit may take leave as a delegate under this provision.  
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Section 25.4 Labor Council Negotiating Team 
Members designated as being on the Labor Council negotiating team who are scheduled to work on a day 
on which negotiations will occur, shall, for the purpose of attending scheduled negotiations, be excused 
from their regular duties without loss of pay. If a designated Labor Council negotiating team member is in 
regular day off status on the day of negotiations, the employee will not be compensated for attending the 
session.  
 


ARTICLE 26 GENERAL PROVISIONS 


 


Section 26.1 Use of Masculine Pronoun 


The use of the masculine pronoun in this or any other document is understood to be for clerical 


convenience only, and it is further understood that the masculine pronoun includes the feminine pronoun 


as well. 


 


Section 26.2 Work Rules 


Work rules of the Ogle County Sheriff which are not specifically in conflict with this Agreement shall 


continue in full force and effect. 


 


Section 26.3 Worker’s Compensation 


The Employers agree to cooperate toward the prompt settlement of employee’s on-the-job injury and 


sickness claims when such claims are due and owing.  The Employers shall provide Worker’s 


Compensation protection for all employees. Employees on compensable injury under Worker’s 


Compensation may use sick leave or annual vacation leave to make up the difference between Worker’s 


Compensation benefits and the employee’s regular wage, less deductions.  Employees on compensable 


injury placed on a leave of absence shall continue to accumulate seniority. 


 


Section 26.4 Unemployment Compensation 


The Employers will provide for all employees of the bargaining unit unemployment compensation as 


prescribed by law.  Such unemployment compensation shall provide the maximum coverage by law for 


each employee of the bargaining unit. 


 


Section 26.5 Unsafe Equipment 


The Employers shall not require employees to take out on the streets or highway any vehicle that is not in 


safe operating condition or equipped with the safety appliances prescribed by law.  If an employee refuses 


to operate said equipment without justification, said employee may be subject to disciplinary action, 


including discharge.  “Justification” shall mean that the operation of the vehicle would cause proximate 


danger to the employee or the public as determined by a mechanic, or, in the event of dispute, by another 


mechanic both being from an established garage or dealership. The Employers shall not require a member 


of this bargaining unit to use, operate or carry any equipment that is in disrepair, which malfunctions, or is 


unsafe where such disrepair, malfunction or unsafe status would result in proximate danger to the 


employee or the public in the assigned activity. 


 


Section 26.6 Loss or Damage by Employee 


Employees shall not be charged for loss or damage to Employer’s equipment and/or property unless a 


preponderance of the evidence shows negligence. 


 


Section 26.7 Accidents 


Any employee involved in any accident shall immediately report said accident and any physical injury 


sustained to their Command Officer.  When required by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee, the 


employee, before ending his current shift, on forms provided by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee, shall 


make out an accident report, in writing, and shall turn in all available names and addresses of witnesses to 
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any accidents.  Failure to comply with this provision shall subject such employee to disciplinary action by 


the Sheriff. 


Section 26.8 Equipment Reports 


Employees shall immediately, (or at least by the end of their shift), report all defects of equipment.  Such 


report shall be made on a suitable form furnished by the Sheriff and shall be made in multiple copies; one 


(1) copy to be retained by the employee. When the occasion arises where an employee gives written 


report on forms in use by the Sheriff of a vehicle being in an unsafe operating condition for the assigned 


activity, and receives no consideration from the Sheriff, the employee shall take the matter up with the 


Officers of the Union who will take the matter up with the Sheriff. 


 


Section 26.9 Individual Agreements 


Absent written authorization from the Union, the joint Employers herein are prohibited from entering into 


individual agreements with covered employees that are contrary to the express provisions of this 


Agreement. 


 


Section 26.10 Union Copy 


County agrees to mail to the Union a copy of any proposed policy change prior to implementation. 


 


ARTICLE 27 SAVINGS CLAUSE 


 


If any provision of this Agreement or any application thereof should be rendered or declared unlawful, 


invalid or unenforceable by virtue of any judicial action, or by any existing or subsequently enacted 


Federal or State legislation, or by Executive Order or other competent authority, the remaining provisions 


of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  In such event, upon the request of either party, the 


parties shall meet promptly and negotiate with respect to substitute provisions for those provisions 


rendered or declared unlawful, invalid or unenforceable. 


 


ARTICLE 28 COMPLETE AGREEMENT 


 


The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded this Agreement, each had the 


unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not 


removed by law from the area of collective bargaining.  The understandings and agreements arrived at by 


the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. 
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ARTICLE 29 DURATION AND SIGNATURE 


 


This Agreement shall be effective from December 1, 2010, and shall remain in full force and effect until 


November 30, 2013.  It shall continue in effect from year to year thereafter unless notice of “Demand to 


Bargain” is given in writing by certified mail by either party to the other not more than one-hundred and 


twenty (120) days nor less than ninety (90) days prior to expiration.  The notices referred to shall be 


considered to have been given as of the date shown on the postmark.  Written notice may be tendered in 


person, in which case the date of notice shall be the written date of receipt. 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signature this ______ day of 


____________, 20_____. 


 


 


FOR THE EMPLOYER:    FOR THE UNION: 


 


 


             


                                                                              Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson                                    Illinois FOP Labor Council 


 


             


Michael Harn                                                         Linda McNames  


Sheriff of Ogle County   


                                                                                ___    _ 


                                                                              Stephanie Bailey 


                                      


              


                                        Tim Mitchusson 
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APPENDIX D-1 


-Clerk Typists 


 


Clerk Typists 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


     


Start $25,550 $26,061 $26,582 


After 1 year $26,573 $27,104 $27,647 


After 2 years $27,635 $28,188 $28,751 


After 3 years $28,741 $29,316 $29,902 


After 4 years $29,889 $30,487 $31,097 


After 5 years $31,086 $31,708 $32,342 


After 6 years $32,329 $32,976 $33,635 


After 7 years $33,620 $34,292 $34,978 


After 8 years $34,966 $35,665 $36,379 


After 9 years $36,365 $37,092 $37,834 


After 10 years $36,910 $37,648 $38,401 


After 11 years $37,464 $38,213 $38,978 


After 12 years $38,027 $38,788 $39,563 


After 13 years $38,597 $39,369 $40,156 


After 14 years $39,175 $39,959 $40,758 


After 15 years $39,764 $40,559 $41,370 


After 16 years $40,360 $41,167 $41,991 


After 17 years $40,743 $41,558 $42,389 


After 18 years $41,150 $41,973 $42,812 


After 19 years $41,562 $42,393 $43,241 


After 20 years $42,393 $43,241 $44,106 


 


 


Supervisor’s rate shall be $3,600.00 per year 


 


Bargaining unit members shall receive step increases on their anniversary date of hire. 
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APPENDIX D-2 


-Cook 


 


Cook 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


Start $27,834  $28,391  $28,958  


After 1 year $28,947  $29,526  $30,116  


After 2 years $30,106  $30,708  $31,322  


After 3 years $31,310  $31,936  $32,575  


After 4 years $32,562  $33,213  $33,878  


After 5 years $33,865  $34,542  $35,233  


After 6 years $35,219  $35,923  $36,642  


After 7 years $36,628  $37,361  $38,108  


After 8 years $38,092  $38,854  $39,631  


After 9 years $39,617  $40,409  $41,218  


After 10 years $40,409  $41,217  $42,042  


After 11 years $41,217  $42,042  $42,882  


After 12 years $42,042  $42,882  $43,740  


After 13 years $42,882  $43,740  $44,615  


After 14 years $43,740  $44,615  $45,507  


After 15 years $44,615  $45,507  $46,417  


After 16 years $45,507  $46,417  $47,346  


After 17 years $46,417  $47,346  $48,292  


After 18 years $47,346  $48,292  $49,258  


After 19 years $48,292  $49,258  $50,244  


After 20 years $49,258  $50,244  $51,248  


 


Bargaining unit members shall receive step increases on their anniversary date of hire. 


 


Effective 12-01-2011, Jennie Hennis will be placed on the Appendix D-2 wage schedule per the 


thirteen (13) years: $43,740 
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APPENDIX D-3 


-Light Maintenance 


 


Light Maintenance 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


     


Start $24,346 $24,833 $25,330 


After 1 year $25,320 $25,826 $26,343 


After 2 years $26,333 $26,860 $27,397 


After 3 years $27,383 $27,931 $28,489 


After 4 years $28,481 $29,051 $29,632 


After 5 years $29,620 $30,212 $30,817 


After 6 years $30,804 $31,420 $32,048 


After 7 years $32,038 $32,679 $33,332 


After 8 years $33,320 $33,986 $34,666 


After 9 years $34,651 $35,344 $36,051 


After 10 years $34,998 $35,698 $36,412 


After 11 years $35,348 $36,055 $36,776 


After 12 years $35,702 $36,416 $37,144 


After 13 years $36,058 $36,779 $37,515 


After 14 years $36,418 $37,146 $37,889 


After 20 years $37,147 $37,890 $38,648 


 


Bargaining unit members shall receive step increases on their anniversary date of hire. 


 


Presented to the Ogle County Board on December 6, 2010







26 


APPENDIX D-4 


-Maintenance 


 


Maintenance 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


Start $34,134  $34,817  $35,513  


After 1 year $35,501  $36,211  $36,935  


After 2 years $36,933  $37,672  $38,425  


After 3 years $38,397  $39,165  $39,948  


After 4 years $39,944  $40,743  $41,558  


After 5 years $41,529  $42,360  $43,207  


After 6 years $43,190  $44,054  $44,935  


After 7 years $44,918  $45,816  $46,733  


After 8 years $46,714  $47,648  $48,601  


After 9 years $48,584  $49,556  $50,547  


After 10 years $50,040  $51,041  $52,062  


After 11 years $51,543  $52,574  $53,625  


After 12 years $53,089  $54,151  $55,234  


After 13 years $54,681  $55,775  $56,890  


After 14 years $56,321  $57,447  $58,596  


After 15 years $58,012  $59,172  $60,356  


After 16 years $59,751  $60,946  $62,165  


After 17 years $61,545  $62,776  $64,031  


After 18 years $63,391  $64,659  $65,952  


After 19 years $65,294  $66,600  $67,932  


After 20 years $65,599  $66,911  $68,249  


 


 


The Supervisor shall receive an additional $3,600.00 per year. 


 


Bargaining unit members shall receive step increases on their anniversary date of hire. 
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APPENDIX D-5 


Telecommunicators 


 


Telecommunicators 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


Start $33,879  $34,557  $35,248  


After 1 year $35,065  $35,766  $36,482  


After 2 years $36,251  $36,976  $37,716  


After 3 years $37,500  $38,250  $39,015  


After 4 years $39,554  $40,345  $41,152  


After 5 years $41,608  $42,440  $43,289  


After 6 years $43,666  $44,539  $45,430  


After 7 years $45,718  $46,632  $47,565  


After 8 years $47,775  $48,731  $49,705  


After 9 years $49,830  $50,827  $51,843  


After 10 years $50,328  $51,335  $52,361  


After 11 years $50,830  $51,847  $52,884  


After 12 years $51,340  $52,367  $53,414  


After 13 years $51,853  $52,890  $53,948  


After 14 years $52,371  $53,418  $54,487  


After 15 years $52,894  $53,952  $55,031  


After 16 years $53,424  $54,492  $55,582  


After 17 years $53,958  $55,037  $56,138  


After 18 years $54,498  $55,588  $56,700  


After 19 years $55,042  $56,143  $57,266  


After 20 years $56,143  $57,266  $58,411  


 


 


• Employer agrees to compensate Telecommunicator Field Training Officer (CTO) an  


additional $1.00 per hour for each hour spent training new personnel. 


 


• Telecommunicator Supervisor is not entitled to additional compensation for performing duties of 


Field Training Officer. 


 


• Telecommunicator Supervisor shall receive an annual stipend of $3,600 


 


Bargaining unit members shall receive step increases on their anniversary date of hire. 
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APPENDIX D-6 


-Part-Time Employees 


 


Part-Time Employees 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


  $12.95  $12.95  $12.95  
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SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 


REGARDING THE HEALTH INSURANCE COMMITTEE 


 


 


 


The County of Ogle/Sheriff of Ogle County agree that the Union will be permitted to designate one 


employee representative to attend meetings of the County’s Health Insurance Committee to represent the 


interests of the bargaining unit represented by the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council.  If the 


representative is on duty, time spent by the representative attending the meeting shall be paid time. 


 


 


FOR THE EMPLOYER:    FOR THE UNION: 


 


             


                                                                                    Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson                                           Illinois FOP Labor Council 


 


             


Michael Harn                                                   Linda McNames 


Sheriff of Ogle County 


                                                                    


                                                                                    Stephanie Bailey 


 


______________________________ 


Tim Mitchusson 
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APPENDIX A 


DUES AUTHORIZATION FORM 


 


ILLINOIS FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE 


LABOR COUNCIL 


974 CLOCKTOWER DRIVE 


SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62704 


 


 


I,          , hereby authorize my Joint 


Employers, Sheriff of Ogle County and the County of Ogle, to deduct from my wages the uniform amount 


of monthly dues set by the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, for expenses connected with 


the cost of negotiating and maintaining the collective bargaining agreement between the parties and to 


remit such dues to the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council as it may from time to time direct. 


(In addition, I authorize my Employer to deduct from wages any back dues owed to the Illinois Fraternal 


Order of Police Labor Council from the date of its certification as exclusive bargaining representative to 


the date this dues deduction is implemented, in such manner as it so directs.) 


 


Date:     Signed:       


     Address:       


     City:        


     State:   Zip:     


     Telephone:       


Employment Start Date:      


Title:        


---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 


Employer, please remit all dues deductions to: 


 


Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council 


Attn: Accounting 


974 Clock Tower Drive 


Springfield, Illinois  62704 


 


(217) 698-9433 


 


Dues remitted to the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council are not tax deductible as charitable 


contributions for federal income tax purposes; however, they may be deductible on Schedule A of Form 


1040 as a miscellaneous deduction. 
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APPENDIX B GRIEVANCE 
 


 Date Filed:   


 Department:   


       


Grievant's Name:      


  Last First M.I. 
  


STEP ONE 


Date of Incident or Date Knew of Facts Giving Rise to Grievance:  


Article(s)/Sections(s) violated:   


Briefly state the facts:   


  


  


  


  


  


 


Remedy Sought:   


  


  


 


Given To:     Date:  


         


 Grievant's Signature  FOP Representative Signature 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


 


         


 Employer Representative Signature   Position 


      
 Person to Whom Response Given   Date  
  


STEP TWO 
 


Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:  


    
 Grievant's Signature FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


    
 Person to Whom Response Given Date 


L
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d
g


e/U
n
it N


o
.     


Y
ear     G
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ce 


N
o


. 


  
 


 
 
 


               


/   
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STEP THREE 
Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:   


     
 Grievant's Signature FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


    
 Person to Whom Response Given Date 


 


 


STEP FOUR 
Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:  


 


    


 Grievant's Signature     FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


 


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


 


    


 Person to Whom Response Given Date 


 


 


REFERRAL TO ARBITRATION by Illinois FOP Labor Council 


 


    
Person to Whom Referral Given   Date 
 


  
FOP Labor Council Representative  
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g


e/U
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APPENDIX C 


SENIORITY LIST 


 


    Clerk Typists 


   Melissa Hayes  03/25/85 


     Linda McNames 11/27/89 


    


   Corrections Cook 


    Jeannie Hennis 09/06/99 


 


 


   Telecommunicators 


   Sandy Beitel  06/24/85 


   Diana Day  11/01/89 


   Patricia Blackburn 02/16/91 


   Mary DeHaan  05/01/99 


   Tracie Sill  02/01/00 


   Lisa Bloom  08/05/02 


   Kathy Hardesty 09/03/05 


   Heather Brooks 05/16/07 


   Susan Steeves  10/16/07 


   Stephanie Bailey 11/16/07 


                                    Lori Wilcox                 11/01/08 


      


   Maintenance 


   Tim Mitchusson 08/02/99 


   Gene Osborne  12/01/99 


   Gary Schnorr  08/01/01 


 


   Janitorial 


   Kathy Davidson 03/23/98 


   Kim Bauer  12/27/04 


   Steven Meyers  08/14/06 


    


 


 


December 1, 2010 
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LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 


 


This Agreement is entered into by the County of Ogle, a body politic, by its duly constituted County 


Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County, hereinafter also referred to as the "Employers", and the Illinois 


Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, hereinafter also referred to as the "Union". The purpose of 


this Letter of Understanding is to address the wage and step agreement the parties have agreed 


covering the period from December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2011 only. The Illinois Fraternal 


Order of Police Labor Council and its membership (Unit C) have agreed to a temporary wage and step 


freeze only for the period covering December 1, 2010 through November, 30, 2011. The parties further 


agree, that effective December 1, 2011, the annual step movement provided in the wage schedules 


shall resume, provided that the step movement for fiscal year 2012 (December 1, 2011 through 


November 30, 2012) will be a one-step increase from the step which the bargaining unit member 


occupied as of November 30, 2010. The parties further agree that it is not the intent of the parties to 


“make-up” the frozen step during the term of this Agreement, but does not negate the parties 


negotiating such in the future. It is also agreed to, that movement through the steps applicable for 


individuals in the steps effective December 1, 2011 will be as to the practice and continuing except as 


denoted. The temporary freezing of step and cola increases for the period covering December 1, 2010 


through November 30, 2011 does not constitute a precedent in future step or cola increases as 


negotiated in the Collective Bargaining Agreement. This Letter of Understanding provides for an 


orderly collective bargaining relationship between the Employers and the Union representing the 


employees in the bargaining unit, and to make clear this is a temporary agreement to freeze the step 


and cola increase for the term covering December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2011.  


 


The Ogle County Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County agree that no current full-time employee 


covered by the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be laid-off or reduced covering the period from 


October 29, 2010 through November 30, 2011.  


 


The Ogle County Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County agree that the Health Insurance currently 


provided will not have any increases be implemented to covered staff, nor will any of the current 


benefit levels or employee out of pocket expenses increase above the current rates in place as of 


October 29th, 2010 through November 30, 2011.  
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In consideration of mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto, by 


their duly authorized representative do mutually covenant and agree.  


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signature this ______ day of 


December, 2010. 


 


FOR THE COUNTY OF OGLE:  FOR THE UNION:               


 


    


  Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson  Illinois Fraternal Order of Police  


 


    


Michael Harn  Linda McNames 


Sheriff of Ogle County    


                                                                                                  


                         Stephanie Bailey 


 


    


  Tim Mitchusson 
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PREAMBLE 


 


This Agreement is entered into by the County of Ogle, a body politic, by its duly constituted County 


Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County, herein after referred to as the "Employers", and the Illinois 


Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, hereinafter referred to as the "Union". The purpose of this 


Agreement is to provide an orderly collective bargaining relationship between the Employers and the 


Union representing the employees in the bargaining unit, and to make clear the basic terms upon which 


such relationship depends. This Agreement is to be interpreted and applied consistent with the law of the 


State of Illinois. In consideration of mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained herein, the 


parties hereto, by their duly authorized representative and/or agents, do mutually covenant and agree as 


follows: 


 


ARTICLE I RECOGNITION 


 


Section 1.1 Unit Description 


The Employers hereby recognize the Union as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative 


for the purpose of collective bargaining on matters relating to wages, hours, and other terms and 


conditions of employment for the following: 


 


UNIT A: 


Included: All full-time employees in the following job classifications: Patrol Deputy, Detective Deputy. 


 


Excluded:  Patrol Corporal, Patrol Sergeants, Corrections Corporal, Corrections Sergeant, Lieutenants, 


Captain, Sheriff, Corrections Officer, Bookkeeper, Telecommunicator, Cook, Maintenance Man, Bailiff, 


Courthouse Janitor, Courthouse Switchboard Operator, Administrative Assistant, Sheriff’s Secretary and 


all confidential, managerial or supervisor employees excluded under the Act. 


 


UNIT B: 


Included:  All full-time and regular part-time employees in the job classification of Corrections Officer, 


Bailiff, and Courthouse Security, Civilian Corrections Clerk and Control 3 Personnel. 


 


Excluded:  Patrol Deputy, Patrol Corporal, Patrol Sergeant, Corrections Corporal, Corrections Sergeant, 


Detective, Lieutenant, Captain, Sheriff, Bookkeeper, Telecommunicator, Cook, Maintenance Man, 


Courthouse Janitor, Courthouse Switchboard Operator, Administrative Assistant, Sheriff’s Secretary, and 


all confidential managerial and supervisory employees excluded under the Act. 


 


Section 1.2 Career Position 


The Union and the Employees both recognize that the classification of law enforcement officer and 


corrections officer is a career position. We further recognize that such position requires suitable 


equipment in order to perform the duties and responsibilities of the Law Enforcement and Corrections 


Officer. No officer shall refuse to perform his duty for reasons of objection to such equipment but shall 


grieve such objections. 


 


Section 1.3 Supervisors 


Supervisors may continue to perform bargaining unit work which is incidental to their jobs.  They may 


also perform bargaining unit work in emergency situations and/or situations where the on-duty supervisor 


determines that the then readily available for duty bargaining unit personnel are not as proficient to 


perform the task necessary to be accomplished by the on-duty supervisor or  where such work is 


necessary to train a bargaining unit employee.  Such work by supervisors shall not cause any layoffs, 


reduction in the work force by attrition or other means or reduction in regularly scheduled hours.   
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Supervisors shall not be assigned to perform the duties of a vacant position in the bargaining unit for more 


than thirty (30) days if a valid merit commission eligibility list exists or more than ninety (90) days if a 


new eligibility list must be created, subject to the availability of budgeted funds. 


 


Section 1.4 Part-Time Employees 


The Employer may continue to utilize the services of part-time employees to perform bargaining unit 


work, but such utilization shall not cause layoffs, reduction in force or reduction in regular scheduled 


hours. The use of part-time personnel in the bargaining unit shall not be increased over existing levels. 


 


Section 1.5 Duty Assignment 


Qualified employees in Unit A (Patrol Officers and Detectives) may be assigned to Unit B duty on a 


temporary basis and qualified employees in Unit B (Corrections Officers) may be assigned to Unit A duty 


on a temporary basis in the discretion of the Sheriff to meet operating needs when off-duty employees in 


this unit are not available and/or it is determined by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee that the 


bargaining unit personnel are not qualified and/or available to fulfill the then necessary needs of the 


Sheriff’s Office. 


 


ARTICLE 2 NEW CLASSIFICATIONS AND VACANCIES 


 


Section 2.1 New Classifications 


Where the Employers find it necessary to create a new job classification, the work of which falls within 


the scope of the bargaining unit, the Employers and Union agree to jointly petition the Illinois State Labor 


Board to seek the necessary unit clarification. If the inclusion of a new position classification is agreed to 


by the parties or found appropriate by the Labor Board, the parties shall negotiate as to the proper pay 


grade for the classification.  If no agreement is reached within thirty (30) calendar days from the date its 


inclusion was determined, the Union may appeal the proposed pay grade to the 2
nd


 step of the grievance 


procedure. The second step grievance committee or arbitrator shall determine the reasonableness of the 


proposed salary grade in relationship to: 


 


(a)      The job content and responsibilities of other position classifications in the Employer’s work force 


in the bargaining unit of this Agreement; 


(b) Like positions with similar job content and responsibilities within the labor market generally; 


(c) Significant differences in working conditions to comparable position classifications. 


 


The pay grade originally assigned by the Employers shall remain in effect pending the decision. If the 


decision of the second step grievance committee or arbitrator is to increase the pay grade of the position 


classification, such rate change shall be applied retroactive to the date of its installation. Upon installation 


of the new position classification, the filling of such position classification shall be in accordance with the 


procedures of this Agreement. 


 


Section 2.2 Vacancies 


Vacancies shall be created and filled in accordance with the applicable rules, regulations, and procedures 


of the Merit Commission; however, once the Sheriff determines that a vacancy shall be filled by an 


appropriate notice thereof, said vacancy will be filled, absent extraordinary conditions and/or 


circumstance within one hundred-eighty (180) calendar days of the issuance of said notice. All vacancies 


along with job duties, responsibilities and rates of pay will be posted at least ten (10) calendar days in 


advance of any interviews before the selection and filling of a vacancy. 
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ARTICLE 3 NON-DISCRIMINATION 


 


Section 3.1 Equal Employment Opportunity 


The Employers will provide equal employment opportunity and practice of a non-discriminatory nature 


consistent with Federal and State of Illinois laws to all members of the bargaining unit. The Employers 


and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination by the Employers or the Union against 


employees because of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, or marital status or because of 


a physical handicap with respect to a position the duties of which can be performed adequately by an 


individual with such a physical handicap without danger to the health or safety of the physically 


handicapped person or to others. 


 


Section 3.2 Union Membership or Activity 


Neither the Employers nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this 


Agreement to become or not become members of the Union, and there shall be no discrimination against 


any such employees because of lawful Union membership or non-membership, activity or status. 


 


ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 


 


The Employers have and will continue to retain the right to operate and manage its affairs in each and 


every respect. The rights reserved to the sole discretion of the Employers shall include, but are not limited 


to, the right: 


(a) to determine the organizational and operations of the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office; 


(b) to determine and change purpose, composition and function of each of its consistent 


departments, and subdivisions; 


(c) to set standards; 


(d) to direct the employees of the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office, including the right to assign 


work and overtime; 


(e) to hire, examine, classify, select, promote, restore, to career service positions, train, 


transfer, assign, and schedule employees; 


(f) to increase, reduce or change, modify or alter the composition and the size of the work 


force, including the right to relieve employees from duties because of lack of work or 


funds or other proper reasons; 


(g) to contract out work when essential in the exercise of powers of the Sheriff’s Office; 


(h) to establish work schedules and to determine the starting and quitting time, and the 


numbers of hours worked; 


(i) to establish, modify, combine or abolish job positions and classifications; 


(j) to add, delete or alter methods of operations, equipment of facilities; 


(k) to determine the location, methods, means, and personnel by which operations, are to be 


conducted including the right to determine whether goods and services are to be made 


provided or purchased; 


(l) to establish, implement and maintain an effective internal control program; 


(m) to suspend, demote, discharge for just cause; and, 


(n) to add, delete, or alter policies, procedures, rules, and regulations. 


 


ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTING 


 


Section 5.1 General Policy 


It is the general policy of the Employers to continue to utilize employees to perform work they are 


qualified to perform.  However, the Employers reserve the right to contract out any work it deems 


necessary in the interests of economy, improved work product or emergency provided that such 


subcontracting does not cause layoff or reduction of work hours for bargaining unit employees.  
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ARTICLE 6 DUES DEDUCTION AND FAIR SHARE 


 


Section 6.1 Dues Deduction  


Upon receipt of proper written authorization from an employee, the Employers shall deduct each month 


Union dues in the amount certified by the Union from the pay of all employees covered by this 


Agreement, who, in writing, authorize such deductions.  Such money shall be submitted to the Illinois 


FOP Labor Council at 974 Clocktower Drive at Springfield, IL 62704-1304 within thirty (30) days after 


the deductions have been made.  Said deductions will be terminated upon the Employee’s written request. 


The Union hereby indemnifies and agrees to hold the Employers harmless against any and all claims, 


demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise out of, or by reason of, any action taken by the 


Employers for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this Article. 


 


Section 6.2 Fair Share 


Any present employee who is not a member of the Union shall be required to pay a fair share (not to 


exceed the amount of Union dues) of the cost of the collective bargaining process and contract 


administration in pursuing matters affecting wages, hours, and other conditions of employment, but not to 


exceed the amount of dues uniformly required of members.  All employees hired on or after the effective 


date of this Agreement who have not made application for membership shall, on or after the thirtieth 


(30
th


) day of their hire, also be required to pay a fair share as defined above.  


 


The Employers shall with respect to any employee on whose behalf the Employers have not received a 


written authorization (see Appendix “A”) as provided for above, the Employers shall deduct from the 


wages of the employee, the fair share financial obligation, including any retroactive amount due and 


owing, and shall forward said amount to the Union on the tenth (10
th


) day of the month following the 


month in which the deduction is made, subject only to the following: 


 


 (a) The Union has certified to the Employers that the affected employee has been delinquent in their 


obligations for at least thirty (30) days; 


 (b) The Union has certified to the Employers that the affected employee has been notified in writing 


of the obligation and the requirement for each provision of this Article, and that the employee has been 


advised by the Union of their obligations pursuant to this Article and of the manner in which the Union 


has calculated the fair share fee; 


 (c)  The Union has certified to the Employers that the affected employee has been given a reasonable 


opportunity to prepare and submit any objections to have said objections adjudicated before an impartial 


arbitrator assigned by the employee and the Union for the purpose of determining and resolving any 


objections the employee may have to the fair share fee. 


 


ARTICLE 7 NO STRIKE 


 


Section 7.1 No Strike Commitment 


Neither the Union nor any officer will call, initiate, authorize, participate in, sanction, encourage, or ratify 


any work stoppage, slow down, or the concerted interference with the full, faithful and proper 


performance of the duties of employment with the Employers during the term of this Agreement.  Neither 


covered employees nor any official of the Union shall refuse to cross any picket line, by whoever 


established. 
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Section 7.2 Performance on Duty 


It is recognized that employees covered by this Agreement may be required in the line of duty to perform 


duties growing out of or connected with labor disputes which may arise within the County.  The Union 


agrees that no disciplinary action or other action will be taken by the Union against any employee or 


employees covered by this Agreement by reason of any such action or conduct in the line of duty or in 


any way using their official position. 


 


Section 7.3 Resumption of Operation 


In the event of action prohibited by Section 7.1 above, the Union immediately shall disavow such action 


and request the officers to return to work, and shall use its best efforts to achieve a prompt resumption of 


normal operations. The Union, including its officials and agents, shall not be liable for any damages, 


direct or indirect, upon complying with the requirements of this Section. 


 


Section 7.4 Union Liability 


Upon the failure of the Union to comply with the provisions of Section 7.2 above, any agent or official of 


the Union who is an officer or person who is a member of the bargaining unit may be subject to the 


provisions of Section 7.5 below. 


 


Section 7.5 Discipline of Strikers 


Any officer or member of the bargaining unit, who violates the provisions of Section 7.1 of this Article, 


shall be subject to immediate discharge.  Any action taken by the Sheriff against any officer or member of 


the bargaining unit who participates in action prohibited by Section 7.1 above shall not be considered as a 


violation of this Agreement and shall not be subject to review, except that the factual issue of whether an 


officer or member of the bargaining unit in fact participated in a prohibited action shall be subject to 


review in a disciplinary action instituted by the Sheriff pursuant to Article 13 Dispute Resolution and 


Grievance Procedure in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.  


 


ARTICLE 8 RESOLUTION OF IMPASSE 


 


All impasses on matters in dispute shall be resolved according to the provisions of Section 14 of the 


Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, as amended, except that all arbitration hearings shall be conducted in 


Oregon, Illinois. 


 


ARTICLE 9 BILL OF RIGHTS 


 


If the interrogation of a member of the bargaining unit subject to the terms of 50 ILCS 725/1 et. seq. is to 


occur which may lead to a suspensions of more than three (3) work days without pay or termination of 


employment, then such member shall have the right to a Union representative during such questioning.  


Nothing in this Article is intended to or should be construed to waive employee’s right to Council 


representation during questioning that the employee reasonably believe may lead to discipline. Employees 


covered by the terms of this Agreement shall have such rights as set forth in the United States Supreme 


Court decision in NLRB vs. Weingarten, 420 U.S. 251 (1975) and the Department of Central 


Management Services & Corrections (Moorage) decision, 1 PERI par. 2020 (ISLRB, 1985).  
 
Section 9.1 Photo Dissemination 


No photo of an employee under investigation shall be made available to the media prior to a conviction 


for a criminal offense, unless determined by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee to be in the best interest 


of public safety for the citizens of Ogle County or prior to an administrative decision being rendered by 


the Sheriff or the Merit Commission.  
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Section 9.2 Compulsion of Testimony 
The Sheriff shall not compel an employee under investigation to speak or testify before, or to be 
questioned by any non-governmental agency relating to any matter or issue under investigation. This 
provision does not apply to the Employer or its attorneys who shall have the right to question an 
employee relating to any matter which may subject the Employer to potential liability.   
 


Section 9.3 Administrative Leave 


The decision as to whether an employee will remain in pay status pending the outcome of an 


administrative or criminal trial shall be made on a case by case basis, and shall equitably and reasonably 


made given the circumstances of each individual case. All appeals for a suspension without pay of a 


member of the bargaining unit without a Complaint being filed by the Sheriff are to be appealed per 


Article 11 Discipline and Discharge as set forth in this Agreement.  


 


ARTICLE 10 PERSONNEL FILES 


 


Section 10.1 Personnel Files 


The Sheriff shall keep a central personnel file within the bargaining unit for each employee. The Sheriff 


may also keep working files such as internal investigation files; however, material not maintained in the 


central personnel file may not provide the basis for disciplinary or other action against an employee. The 


Employer agrees to abide by the terms as set forth in 820 ILCS 40/1 et. seq. and the Freedom of 


Information Act as found in 5 ILCS 140/1 et. seq.  


 


Section 10.2 Inspection 


Upon request of an employee, the Sheriff shall reasonably permit an employee to inspect his personnel 


file but not internal investigation files during an investigation. The internal investigation file shall be 


available for inspection upon disciplinary action being imposed. Inspection of files shall be subject to the 


following: 


 


(a) Such inspection shall occur within a reasonable time following receipt of the request; 


(b) Such inspection shall occur during daytime working hours Monday through Friday upon 


reasonable request; 


(c) The employee shall not be permitted to remove any part of the personnel file from the premises 


but may obtain copies of any information contained therein upon payment for the cost of copying; 


(d) Upon written authorization by the requesting employee, in cases where such employee has a 


written grievance pending, and is inspecting his file with respect to such grievance, that employee 


may have a representative of the Union present during such inspection and/or may inspect his 


personnel file subject to the procedures contained in this Article; 


(e) Pre-employment information, such as reference reports, credit check or information provided the 


Employers with a specific request that it remain confidential shall not be subject to inspection or 


copying. 


 


Section 10.3 Notification 


Employees and the Union shall be given immediate notice by the Sheriff when a formal, written 


reprimand or other disciplinary documentation is permanently placed in their personnel file.  A copy of 


said discipline shall be given to the employee and the Union. 
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ARTICLE 11 DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 


 


Section 11.1 Discipline and Discharge 


The parties recognize the principles of progressive and corrective discipline. No officer covered by the 


terms of this Agreement shall be suspended, relieved from duty or disciplined in any matter without just 


cause. Disciplinary action may be imposed upon an employee only pursuant to the laws of the State of 


Illinois. If the Sheriff or Command has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that 


will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public.  Disciplinary action or measure 


shall include only the following: 


 


 Coaching and counseling 


 Oral reprimand 


 Written reprimand 


 Suspension (notice to be given in writing) 


 Discharge 


 


Section 11.2 Limitation 


The Sheriff’s agreement to use progressive and corrective disciplinary action does not prohibit the Sheriff 


in any case from imposing discipline which is commensurate with the severity of the offense.  The Sheriff 


shall notify both the employee and Union of disciplinary action.  Such notification shall be in writing and 


shall reflect the specific nature of the offense. 


 


Section 11.3 Pre-Disciplinary Meeting 


For discipline other than oral and written reprimands, prior to the imposition of discipline, the Sheriff or 


the Sheriff’s designee shall follow this procedure: The Sheriff shall notify the Union or other member of 


the Union Grievance Committee and the affected employed employee that the employee desires to hold a 


pre-disciplinary meeting and the time and date of such meeting.  The Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee 


shall thereafter inform the Union and employee of the contemplated measure of discipline and the reasons 


therefore.  If agreement can then be reached on the measure of discipline, it shall be imposed. 


 


Section 11.4 Discipline Appeal Process 


The Sheriff of Ogle County and the County of Ogle and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor 


Council have negotiated an alternative procedure based upon the Dispute Resolution and Grievance 


Procedure provisions of this Agreement, and the foregoing provisions with respect to the appeal and 


review of disciplinary action or discharge decisions shall be in lieu of, and shall expressly supersede and 


preempt, any provisions that might otherwise be the Rules and Regulations of the Sheriffs' Merit 


Commission Act as found in 55 ILCS 5/3-8001 et. seq.  After the Pre-disciplinary meeting has been held 


pursuant to Article 11, Section 11.3 Pre-Disciplinary Meeting, and if the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee 


imposes disciplinary action, an employee has the option to have the disciplinary action appealed per the 


Dispute Resolution and Grievance Procedure provisions of this Labor Agreement or before the Ogle 


County Sheriffs' Office Merit Commission, but not both. The employee upon written notification and 


implementation of the disciplinary action has ten (10) business days, Saturday, Sunday and holidays shall 


be excluded, to select via the Election Waiver and Release Form; Appendix D the option the employee 


has selected to appeal the discipline. Once the employee has made the election, no changes will be 


allowed and such denoted election constitutes a waiver to use the other appeal process not selected.   


 


If the affected covered member selects to appeal the disciplinary action via Article 13, Dispute Resolution 


and Grievance Procedure of the CBA, the parties agree the (Sheriff of Ogle County and/or the County of 


Ogle) or their agent for the Employers has the right to implement disciplinary action, up to and including 


termination for just cause only immediately upon receipt of the Election Waiver and Release Form and 


will not review, process, file charges or present the disciplinary action before or to the Ogle County 
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Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission which is subject to the Dispute Resolution and Grievance Procedure 


as set forth in this Agreement.  


 


If the affected covered member elects to appeal the disciplinary action per Appendix D, the Election 


Waiver and Release Form to the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission, the procedures set forth 


in the rules and regulations of the Commission will be followed.  


 


Section 11.5 Merit Commission Appointments 


Should the Sheriff desire to fill a vacancy on the Merit Commission, the Sheriff shall notify the Union or 


other member of the Union Grievance Committee of the recommended appointment not less than seven 


(7) days prior to sending the recommended appointment to the County Board.  Upon request of the Union, 


the Sheriff shall meet and confer with the Union over the advisability of such recommendation and 


consider alternatives suggested by the Union. 


 


Section 11.6 Reassignments 


The Sheriff may, in his discretion, reassign any employee while an investigation of possible wrong 


behavior is completed.  Such assignment shall be without prejudice. 


 


Section 11.7 Inactivation 


If any member shoots, while in the line of duty, another person, that member may be inactivated, 


receiving full pay and benefits for a period of up to three (3) days except periods of emergency, unless 


such action is cause of disciplinary action.  During the three (3) days, the employee must make 


themselves available for investigative purposes.   


 


ARTICLE 12 INDEMNIFICATION 


 


Section 12.1 Indemnification 


The Employer shall be responsible for, hold employees harmless from and pay damages or monies which 


may be adjudged, assessed, or otherwise levied against any employee covered by this Agreement for any 


act or omission of said employee to the level provided for at minimum the applicable statutes. The 


Employer agrees to abide by 65 ILCS 5/1-4-6. 


 


Section 12.2 Representation 


An employee covered by the terms of this Agreement shall have legal representation by the Employer in 


any civil cause of action brought against an employee resulting from or arising out of the performance of 


duties, whether the employee was on duty or off duty at the time of the incident. The affected employee 


shall be permitted to choose such legal counsel, subject to the approval of the Employer.  


 


Section 12.3 Cooperation 


Employees shall be required to cooperate with the Employer during the course of the investigation, 


administration or litigation of any claim arising under this Article.  Should a member of the bargaining 


unit fail to cooperate, the terms of this Article shall not apply.  


 


Section 12.4 Applicability 


The Employer will provide the protections set forth herein, so long as the employee is acting within the 


scope of his employment and where the employee cooperates with the Employer in defense of the action 


or claim. Acts of willful misconduct are not covered by the Article. Acts of intentional wrongdoing, 


willful and wanton conduct and/or reckless acts are not covered by the provisions of this Article. 
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ARTICLE 13 DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 


 


All disciplinary grievances shall be subject to the provisions of this Article. Should a member of the 


bargaining unit disagree with the content of a written reprimand, the Sheriff shall allow said member to 


reduce to writing the disagreement and to have such writing attached to the written reprimand issued by 


the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee. Nothing shall prevent the Sheriff from withdrawing or modifying the 


written reprimand based on the content of the said writing of the bargaining unit member. Oral 


reprimands shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure. 


 


Section 13.1 Definition of a Grievance 


A grievance is defined as any unresolved indifferences between the Employer and the Union or any 


employee regarding the application, meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. The rationale or defense 


of “past practice”, whether raised by the Joint Employers or Union herein is expressly subject to the 


grievance procedure. 


 


Section 13.2 Dispute Resolution 


In the interest of resolving disputes at the earliest possible time, it is agreed that an attempt to resolve a 


dispute shall be made between the employee and immediate supervisor. The employee shall make their 


complaint to their immediate supervisor.  The supervisor will notify the employee of the decision within 


two (2) working days following the day when the complaint was made.  Settlements or withdrawals at this 


step shall not constitute a precedent in the handling of other grievances.  In the event of a complaint, the 


employee shall first complete assigned work task; and complain later. 


 


Section 13.3 Representative 


Grievances may be processed by the Union, or the Union on behalf of an employee or on behalf of a 


group of employees.  The Employers may file contract grievances directly at Step 2, Section 13.8 of this 


Article.  Either party may have the grievant or one (1) grievant representing group grievant present at any 


step of the grievance procedure, or the employee is entitled to Union representation at each and every step 


of this grievance procedure upon their request. Grievances may be filed on behalf of two (2) or more 


employees only if the same facts, issues and requested remedy apply to all employees in the group. 


 


Section 13.4 Subject Matter 


Only one (1) subject matter shall be covered in any one (1) grievance.  A grievance shall contain a 


statement of the grievant position, the Article, and Section of the Agreement allegedly violated, the date 


of the alleged violation, the relief sought, and the signature of the grieving employee (s) or the FOP Labor 


Council and the date. 


 


Section 13.5 Time Limitations 


Grievances may be withdrawn at any step of the grievance procedure with prejudice to the pending 


grievances but without precedent to future grievances.  If the time limits established in the grievance 


procedure are not followed by the Union or member of the bargaining unit, the grievance shall be 


considered waived. The time limits established in the grievance procedure shall be followed by an 


employee or the Union, the grievance shall be considered settled.   


 


If the time procedure is not followed by the Employer, the grievance shall remain active and 


automatically advance to the next step; provide, however, that arbitration shall not occur unless the Union 


submits written notice of its desire to arbitrate.  The time limits established herein may be extended by 


mutual agreement in writing.  In computing days under the grievance and arbitration procedures, 


Saturday, Sunday and holidays shall be excluded. 
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Section 13.6 Grievance Processing 


A grievance committee member may during regular working hours, without loss of time or pay, in 


accordance with the terms of this Article, investigate and present grievances to the Employers and may 


attend negotiating sessions upon having received permission from their supervisor to do so.  The 


supervisors shall grant permission within a reasonable time after the first (1
st
) hours of the shift for the 


steward to leave their work for these purposes subject to necessary emergency exceptions.  The privilege 


of the steward leaving their work during working hours, without loss of time or pay, is subject to the 


understanding that the time will be devoted to the proper processing of grievances and will not be abused. 


The Union representative may be required to record time spent. All such Union representatives will 


perform their regularly assigned work at all times except whenever necessary to leave their work to 


process grievances as provided herein. 


 


Section 13.7 Grievance Meetings 


A maximum of two (2) employees (the grievant and/or Union representative) per work shift shall be 


excused from work with pay to participate in a Step 1 or Step 2 grievance meeting.  The employee(s) shall 


only be excused for the amount of time reasonably required to present the grievance.  The employee(s) 


shall not be paid for any time during which a grievance meeting occurs outside of the employee’s work 


shift.  In the event of a grievance, the employee and Union representative(s) shall first perform their 


assigned work task and file their grievance later. 


 


Section 13.8 Steps in Procedure 


Disputes arising under this Agreement shall be resolved as follows: 


 


STEP 1   If no agreement is reached between the employee and the supervisor, as provided for in Section 


13.2 Dispute Resolution, the Union shall prepare a written grievance on a form mutually agreed to (see 


Appendix “B”) and presented to the Sheriff no later than ten (10) working days after the employee was 


notified of the decision by the supervisor.  Within five (5) working days after the grievance has been 


submitted, the Sheriff shall meet with the grievant and the Union Representative to discuss the grievance 


and make a good faith attempt to resolve the grievance.  The Sheriff shall respond in writing to the 


grievant and the Union Representative within five (5) working days following the meeting. 


 


STEP 2 If the grievance is not settled at Step 1, the grievance may be referred in writing within five (5) 


working days after the decision of the Sheriff to a Committee consisting of the Sheriff and three (3) 


members of the County Board appointment by the Chairman.  Within twenty (20) working days after the 


grievance has been filed with the Committee, the Committee shall meet with the Union and the grievant to 


discuss the grievance and make a good faith effort to resolve the grievance.  The Committee shall respond 


in writing to the grievant and the Union within five (5) working days following the meeting.  The Sheriff 


shall have one (1) vote and the County Board members, collectively, shall have one (1) vote in resolving 


the grievance.   


 


STEP 3 If the dispute is not settled at Step 2, the matter may be submitted to arbitration within ten (10) 


working days after the Committee’s written decision of the expiration of the five (5) day period if the 


Committee fails to render a written decision.   


 


Within ten (10) working days after the matter has been submitted to arbitration, a representative of the 


Employer and the Union shall meet to select an arbitrator from a list of mutually agreed to arbitrators.  If 


the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator within ten (10) working days after such meeting, the parties 


shall request Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a list of seven (7) by alternate strikes 


by the Employer representative and the Union.  The Employer and the Union shall flip a coin to determine 


who strikes first. The person whose name remains on the list shall be the arbitrator, provided that either 


party before striking any names shall have the right to reject one (1) panel of arbitrators.  
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The Arbitrator shall be notified of their selection by a joint letter from the Employer and the Union.  Such 


letter shall request the Arbitrator to set a time and a place for the hearing subject to the availability of the 


Employer and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council representative and shall be notified of 


the issue where mutually agreed by the parties.  All hearings shall be held in the City of Oregon, Illinois 


unless otherwise agreed to. Both parties agree to make a good faith attempt to arrive at a joint statement of 


facts and issues to be submitted to the arbitrator. The Employers or Union shall have the right to request 


the arbitrator to require the presence of witnesses and/or documents.  Each party shall bear the expense of 


its witnesses. 


 


Once a determination is made that the matter is arbitral or if such preliminary determination cannot be 


reasonably made, the arbitrator shall then proceed to determine the merits of the dispute. The expenses 


and fees of arbitration shall be shared equally by the Employers and the Union.  Costs of arbitration shall 


include the arbitrator’s fees, room cost and transcription costs.  Nothing in this Article shall preclude the 


Employers and Union from agreeing to use expedited arbitration procedures.  The decision and award of 


the arbitrator shall be made within forty-five (45) days following the hearing and shall be final and 


binding on the Employers, Union and the employee or employees involved. The Employers and the Union 


agree to abide by the uniform Arbitration Act.  The arbitrator shall have no power to amend, modify, 


nullify, ignore, add to or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. 


 


ARTICLE 14 SENIORITY 


 


Section 14.1 Definition of Seniority 


As used herein, the term “seniority” shall refer to and be defined as the continuous length of service or 


employment covered by this Agreement from the date of last hire. In the case of transfer from a 


classification where the rate of pay is less, the entry level of pay shall apply. With the exception of pay, 


all other benefits herein shall be based upon continuous length of service from date of last hire. 


 


Section 14.2 Probation Period 


An employee is a “probationary employee” for their first twelve (12) months of employment.  No matter 


concerning the discipline, layoff or termination of a probationary employee shall be subject to the 


grievance and arbitration procedures.  A probationary employee shall have no seniority, except as 


otherwise provided in this Agreement, until the employee has completed their probationary period.  Upon 


the completion of employees’ probationary period, the employee will acquire seniority from their date of 


hire. A non-probationary employee who is transferred to a new classification shall serve an additional one 


hundred-eighty (180) day probation period in the new classification.  During that one hundred-eighty 


(180) day period, the employee may be transferred back to their former position either at the request of 


the employee or at the direction of the Sheriff for failure to satisfactorily perform their duties of the new 


position. 


 


Section 14.3 Seniority List 


The Employers and Union have agreed upon the initial seniority list setting forth the present seniority 


dates for all employees covered by this Agreement and shall become effective on the date of execution of 


this Agreement.  Such lists shall finally resolve all questions of seniority affecting employees covered 


under this Agreement or employed at the time the Agreement becomes effective.  Disputes as to seniority, 


listing shall be resolved through the grievance procedure.  The initial agreed list is attached hereto as 


Appendix “C” and made a part hereof. 
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Section 14.4 Termination of Seniority 


An employee may be terminated by the Employers and his seniority broken when the employee: 


 


(a) Quits; or 


 


(b) is discharged for just cause; or 


 


(c) is laid off pursuant to the provisions of the applicable agreement for a period of twenty-four (24) 


months; or 


 


(d) accepts gainful full-time employment while on an approved leave of absence from the Sheriff’s 


Office, unless the leave was granted for the purpose of employment; or 


 


(e) is absent for three (3) consecutive scheduled work days without proper notification or 


authorization; or 


 


(f) fails to return to work at the conclusion of an approved leave of absence for a period of three (3) 


consecutive days. 


 


Section 14.5 Suspensions 


Employees shall not accrue seniority for any disciplinary suspensions of ten (10) days or longer.  In the 


event that the discipline is subsequently reversed or modified, the appropriate accrual of seniority shall be 


reinstated. 


 


Section 14.6 Seniority While on Leave 


Employees in the bargaining unit shall not accrue credit for time spent on authorized, unpaid leave of 


absence. Vacation, sick leave, holidays and other similar benefits will not be earned while on unpaid leave 


of absence. 


 


Section 14.7 Departmental Transfer 


An employee in the bargaining unit who transfers from another Ogle County Department shall accumulate 


total seniority at the County only for purposes of calculating vacation and sick leave. 


 


Section 14.8 Seniority Shift Bidding 


For purposes of determining shift and days off preference, seniority shall apply in the bidding process.  


 


Section 14.9 Dispute Resolution 


Where two (2) or more employees request the same time off, seniority shall determine first choice. Where 


two (2) or more employees are eligible for an overtime opportunity, seniority shall determine first choice.  


 


ARTICLE 15 LAYOFF 


 


Section 15.1 Layoff 


In the event the Employers determine a layoff is necessary based upon insufficient funds, employees shall 


be laid off within each particular job classification and Department in the inverse order of their seniority 


unless compliance with State or Federal law requires otherwise. 


 


Section 15.2 Layoff Order 


Temporary and part-time employees and then probationary employees shall be laid off first, and then full-


time employees shall be laid off in inverse order of their seniority.  Individual employees shall receive 


notice in writing of the layoff not less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such layoff. 
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Section 15.3 Recall 


Employees shall be recalled from layoff within each particular job classification according to their 


seniority.  No new employee shall be hired until all employees on layoff in that particular job 


classification desiring to return to work shall have been given the opportunity to return to work.  Recall 


rights under this provision shall terminate twenty-four (24) months after layoff. 


 


ARTICLE 16 HOLIDAYS 


 


Section 16.1 Paid Holidays 


Employees not working on a holiday shall receive twelve (12), ten (10) or eight (8) hours pay as holiday 


pay depending on their scheduled shift. All employees covered by this Agreement shall receive the below 


designated holidays and any additional holidays as set annually by the Ogle County Board.  The Sheriff 


retains the right to schedule employees off on the aforementioned, additional holidays. The following 


days shall be designated as paid holidays: 


 


 New Year’s Day     Labor Day 


 Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday   Columbus Day 


 Lincoln’s Birthday     Veteran’s Day 


 Washington’s Birthday    Thanksgiving Day 


 Spring Holiday      Day after Thanksgiving 


 Memorial Day      Christmas Day 


 Independence Day 


 


Section 16.2 Pay for Holiday Work 


Employees required to work a holiday shall be paid time and one-half (1-1/2) pay for all hours worked in 


addition to their base pay.  Employees regularly scheduled to work on a holiday who actually report to 


work shall not be sent home without consent of the employee. The aforementioned holidays referred to in 


Section 16.1 shall be paid at the employee’s discretion as compensatory time or overtime. 


 


ARTICLE 17 VACATIONS 


 


Section 17.1 Vacation Leave 


All full-time employees shall earn vacation time.  Employees on leave of absence, suspension or layoff 


shall not accrue vacation time.  Eligible employees shall earn vacation time in accordance with the 


following schedule: 


After 1 year   1 week to be taken in the second year 


After 2 years   2 weeks for the third and subsequent years 


After 7 years   3 weeks for the eighth and subsequent  


After 12 years   4 weeks for the thirteenth and subsequent  


After 15 years   4 weeks for the sixteenth year 


After 16 years    4 weeks and 1 day  


After 17 years    4 weeks and 2 days 


After 18 years    4 weeks and 3 days 


After 19 years    4 weeks and 4 days 


After 20 years    5 weeks  


After 21 years   5 weeks and one (1) day 


After 22 years   5 weeks and two (2) days 


After 23 years   5 weeks and three (3) days 


After 24 years   5 weeks and four (4) days 


After 25 years   5 weeks and five (5) days 
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Section 17.2 Vacation Pay 


All vacation leave will be paid for at the regular hourly rate and on the basis of their weekly work 


schedule.  In the discretion of the Sheriff and subject to available budget funds, an employee may 


annually redeem up to one (1) week’s vacation for pay in exceptional circumstances. 


 


Section 17.3 Vacation Requests 


To get priority for vacation (except for an occasional day which is taken as vacation leave) all employees 


must submit, in writing, to the Sheriff, a schedule of desired vacation on a quarterly basis.  Vacation 


requests shall be made at least fifteen (15) days in advance of the posting of the work schedule.  Conflicts 


in scheduling will be resolved in favor of the most senior employee in rank.  At least five (5) days notice 


shall be given for a one (1) day leave. No employee shall be entitled to priority in selecting their vacation 


for more than two (2) weeks in each calendar year.  No more than one (1) employee from each shift may 


be on vacation at the same time. The Sheriff agrees vacation request shall not be unreasonably denied and 


further agrees to make every effort to respond to vacation request in a timely manner. 


 


Section 17.4 Termination 


Any employee who has completed their probationary period who terminates County employment shall be 


paid for their accumulated vacation days at the rate of pay currently received by said employee.  Any 


unused vacation days in the year of termination shall be pro-rated. 


 


Section 17.5 Vacation Eligibility 


No employee shall be entitled to any vacation, or pay therefore, until the employee has been on the 


payroll for a continuous period of at least twelve (12) months and has satisfactorily completed their 


probationary period.  Vacation with pay will not be granted before vacation time has been earned. 


 


Section 17.6 Cancelled Vacation 


If a properly scheduled vacation must be cancelled by the Sheriff, the employee shall be paid their normal 


hourly rate for the lost vacation time. The Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee shall grant the vacation be 


rescheduled either the same calendar year or the following year. 


 


Section 17.7 Vacation Pay Advance 


If a regular payday falls during an employee’s vacation and the employee is to be on vacation for two (2) 


weeks or longer, the employee will be entitled to receive that check in advance before going on vacation.  


An employee must make a request to the Sheriff for their check two (2) weeks before the payday if the 


employee expects to receive the check in advance.  All authorized deductions due will be taken out of 


vacation checks at the time of issue. 


 


ARTICLE 18 SICK LEAVE 


 


Section 18.1 Sick Leave 


Accumulated unused sick leave upon retirement shall be credited to additional retirement benefits under IMRF. 


Sick leave shall be deducted on an hour for hour basis. Employees shall accumulate sick leave as follows: 


 


 Years of Service  Accrual Per Month  Maximum Sick 


         Leave Accum. 


    8 Hr. Shift 12 Hr. Shift 


 0-1   4 Hours 9 Hours  6 duty days 


 Over 1 Year  8 Hours 10 Hours  Unlimited 
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Section 18.2 Use of Sick Leave 


No employee will be permitted to take sick leave that has not yet been earned. Sick leave may be taken 


after six (6) months of employment for the following reasons: Any illness an employee may contract or 


any exposure to a contagious disease the employee may experience in which the health of others may be 


endangered by their attendance at duty or an illness of the immediate family, spouse, child, mother, father, 


or the employee’s grandparents. For compensable injury or illness, to supplement the Worker’s 


Compensation benefits, to equal such employee’s regular rate of pay charged against sick leave bank. Any 


non-duty connected disability an employee may sustain, except for an injury that may be sustained while 


being in the employee of another during their off duty time which is covered by Worker’s Compensation 


furnished by the other Employer.  


 


Section 18.3 Medical Leave 


 


(a) Physician’s Verification:  A doctor’s written verification may be required as evidence of an employee 


or family illness or any injury prevented the employee’s attendance at work for a period in excess of three 


(3) continuous days or in cases of multiple absences due to sick leave.  Falsification of such evidence will 


be sufficient cause of disciplinary action. 


 


(b) Sick Leave During Vacation: If an employee becomes ill while on vacation, the use of sick leave shall 


be granted only if written proof from a doctor is submitted describing the illness, the length of incapacity 


and further evidenced by a receipted bill for services of the attending physician.  The employee shall 


return to work on the originally scheduled date unless that date is changed by their supervisor. 


 


(c)  Medical Examination:  Employees suffering from a chronic or recurring illness necessitating absences 


in excess of the absences for which sick pay is payable may, at the Sheriff’s option, be required to submit 


to an examination by a physician chosen by the Sheriff.  If corrective surgery or other therapy is 


recommended to remedy or alleviate such illness and the employee does not submit to such surgery or 


therapy within reasonable time, the employee may be discharged due to such physical disability. 


 


Section 18.4 Sick Leave Abuse Sanctions 


For the purposes of the provisions contained in this Article “abuse” of sick leave is the utilization of such 


for reasons other than those stated in Article 18: Section 18.2. In the case of the abuse of such sick leave, 


the employee shall not be paid for such leave taken nor shall the employee accrue any rights such as 


seniority or other rights.  “Abuse” of sick leave shall subject the employee to disciplinary action pursuant 


to the terms of this Agreement.  All employees agree to cooperate fully with the Department in verifying 


illness. 


 


Section 18.5 Termination 


Covered employees, upon termination with the proper two (2) weeks notice and who have five (5) years 


of completed service through eight (8) years of service will be compensated eight (8) hours of straight 


time pay for each unused accumulated sick day.  Covered employees, who do not have five (5) years 


completed service or quits without the proper notice with or without the five (5) years of completed 


service or who are discharged for just cause will not be entitled to any compensation of accumulated sick 


pay. 


 


ARTICLE 19 LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY 


 


Section 19.1 Leave of Absence Definition 


The Sheriff may grant leaves of absence in his sole discretion. For the purpose of this Agreement, a leave 


of absence without pay shall be defined as all time for which a County employee is to be continued as an 


employee but not paid whether it is one (1) day or the maximum time allowable under the reason for the 
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leave. When an employee is granted a leave of absence without pay, the Sheriff commits to allowing the 


employee to return to work at the end of the leave to the same duties and the same salary that the 


employee was performing and earning when the employee went on leave.  Any substitutes hired to fill in 


for employees on leaves of absence without pay should be hired accordingly, and laid off or discharged at 


the return of the employee on leave.  If the employee’s position is eliminated by the County Board or 


State or Federal enactment during his leave, the employee shall be placed first on the recall list for a 


vacancy in the Department for which the employee is qualified. When granted a leave of absence without 


pay, the employee commits to return to work at the end of the leave. 


 


Section 19.2 Effect of Leaves Without Pay 


 


(a) Does not receive pay from the County. 


(b) Does not earn annual vacation leave. 


(c) Does not earn sick leave. 


(d) Has no time deducted from the employee’s annual vacation leave or sick leave to cover the time 


off on the leave of absence without pay. 


(e) The employee does not earn any additional credit for seniority but retains the length of seniority 


credited at the beginning of the leave. 


(f) Remains a member of the Illinois Municipal Retirement System but cannot withdraw retirement 


contributions while on leave of absence, only on separation, and cannot pay retirement 


contributions. 


(g) The employee does not earn credit toward longevity pay, if any, or credit toward the rate of annual 


vacation leave or sick leave accumulation for the period covered by the leave. 


(h) Must pay any group hospitalization premiums falling due during any month which the employee 


has not worked the minimum hours required by the County insurance carrier.  (Employees on such 


leave should contact payroll.) 


 


Section 19.3 Types of Leave Without Pay 


To cover time off because of personal illness beyond that covered by earned sick leave with pay.  


 


1. To be used when the employee has exhausted their accumulations of earned sick leave with  


    pay and earned annual vacation leave. 


2. Not to exceed six (6) months for any one (1) leave, but may be renewed. 


3. To be granted only on the written recommendation of the employee’s physician and subject to the   


    Sheriff verifying the supplied information by a medical professional chosen by Sheriff.  


 


To cover time off because of a compensable injury beyond that covered by sick leave with pay and annual 


vacation leave with pay. To cover time off while running for County elected office filled by partisan 


election.  If such a leave is requested, except no more than two (2) leaves may be granted for the purpose 


of running for elected office in any one (1) calendar year and each leave must be no less than fifteen (15) 


calendar days nor more than thirty (30) calendar days to cover disciplinary leaves (suspension without 


pay) or to cover time off because of personal reasons.  Such leave requires the approval of the Sheriff and 


may not exceed six (6) months. 


 


Section 19.4 Return from a Leave Without Pay 


If an employee fails to return to County employment within three (3) days at the end of a leave of absence 


without pay, and no extension of the leave is granted, the employee must submit a resignation from 


County service.  Failure to contact the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee at the end of the leave shall be 


grounds for labeling the separation from County service a voluntary resignation. During any leave granted 


pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, regardless of being with or without pay, any employee may not 


be gainfully employed or independently self-employed without prior approval by the Sheriff. Violation of 
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the provisions contained within this Agreement shall subject the employee to immediate discharge and 


loss of all benefits and rights accrued pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 


 


Section 19.5 Family and Medical Leave Act 


The provisions of the Ogle County Personnel Policies as applied to the Family and Medical Leave Act are 


hereby adopted by reference.   Said policies shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Family 


and Medical Leave Act of 1993 and any Federal regulations adopted there under, as they may be amended 


from time to time. 


 


ARTICLE 20 PAID AND SPECIAL LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


Section 20.1 Bereavement Leave 


Employees will be granted up to three (3) days leave with no loss of compensation because of the death of 


the employee’s spouse, child, step-child, parent, step-parent, sister, brother, mother-in-law, father-in-law, 


grandchild, grandparents, or anyone who raised the employee from childhood.  One (1) day with pay may 


be granted for a military funeral in which an employee is an official participant.  In the event of lengthy 


travel or for deaths of other than the immediate family, vacation days, compensatory time or sick leave to 


a maximum of three (3) days may be used, in addition to the above and subject to the operating needs of 


the Office.  Written proof of relationship, death and/or funeral location may be required by the Sheriff 


prior to final approval of such leave. 


 


Section 20.2 Jury Duty Leave 


Employees on jury duty on scheduled work days shall be paid the wages the employee would have earned 


by working during straight time hours for the Employers on that day, for each day on which the employee 


reports for or performs jury duty and on which the employee otherwise would have been scheduled for 


work for the Employers.  Such time will not be charged against the employee’s annual leave or sick leave.  


An employee on a jury panel or appearing as a witness shall return to work for the balance of the day 


when the employee is excused by the court from further attendance. All monies of any kind paid to the 


member of the bargaining unit who is called for jury duty shall be signed off to the County of Ogle for the 


member of the bargaining unit to receive the benefits of this Section.  


 


Section 20.3 Maternity Leave 


Employees who become disabled due to pregnancy shall be entitled to use the benefits, vacation, 


compensatory time, sick leave or Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund disability leave subject to the 


following: 


 


A. The Sheriff shall be notified as soon as possible after medical confirmation of the pregnancy is 


received; such notice to include estimated date of delivery. 


 


B. An employee will not be allowed to return to work after delivery until she has supplied the Sheriff 


with a statement from her physician that she is physically and medically able to return to her 


duties as a County employee.  A copy of this statement shall be forwarded to the personnel 


Department. 


 


C. In any case, if an employee has not returned to work within two (2) months after delivery, she 


shall provide a doctor’s statement substantiating her continued disability and expected date of 


recovery.  Employees failing to comply with this Section or failing to return to work when found 


able by their physician will be separated from County employment.  


 


D. Those employees desiring IMRF disability leave must meet the qualifications of IMRF for such 


leave. The Sheriff shall have the right to verify the condition of a member of the bargaining unit 
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who seeks the benefits of this Article; such verification by a medical professional to be paid solely 


by the Sheriffs’ Office.  


 


Section 20.4 Personal Days 


Covered employees shall be allowed up to three (3) days of leave annually without loss of compensation 


for personal reasons. Employees must utilize personal days within the year they are granted or the 


personal days will be forfeited. In the event due to operational needs, an employee is denied personal 


days, that employee may carry over the time that was denied.  


 


ARTICLE 21 HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME 


 


Section 21.1 Workday, Work Period and Work Schedules 


Each employee shall be allowed a paid thirty (30) minute meal period per normal workday. This meal 


shall be considered out of service time during which the employee will be subject to priority calls. 


Employees will be allowed to take periodic breaks as long as they are not out of service and properly 


perform their duties. The work period is defined as a regularly recurring period of twenty-eight (28) days. 


An employee will be assigned to work up to one hundred seventy-one (171) hours in each work period. 


Employees working a twelve (12) hour day shall work fourteen (14) shifts each twenty-eight (28) days. 


Employees working a ten (10) hour day shall work a shift for four (4) consecutive days followed by three 


(3) consecutive days off. Employees working an eight (8) hour day shall work five (5) consecutive days 


followed by two (2) consecutive days off. Work schedules showing the employee’s normal shifts, work 


days and hours shall be posted on all department bulletin boards at all times, at least fourteen (14) days 


prior to the beginning of schedule. In the event a need arises to alter the work schedule due to emergency 


and/or unanticipated reasons, the Sheriff or designee shall endeavor to provide at least a forty-eight (48) 


hour notice to the affected employee unless mutually waived by the affected employee. 
 
Section 21.2 Overtime Payment and Procedure 


All approved overtime in excess of one hundred seventy-one (171) hours required of an employee by 


reason of the employee's regular twenty-eight (28) day work period, shall receive time and one-half (1-


1/2) times their actual hourly rate of pay for work performed in excess of that employee's regular work 


hours in a given work period.  With the exception of sick leave all hours worked or paid as if worked shall 


count toward overtime accrual. Compensatory time may be paid in lieu of overtime payment if the 


employee in his discretion so elects.  Compensatory time will be calculated at the same rate as overtime 


pay.  Overtime rate shall be computed on the basis of completed fifteen (15) minutes segments. Patrol 


Officers and Corrections Officers, as part of their regularly scheduled shift are required to report for work 


ten (10) minutes prior to their regular scheduled starting time.  
 
Section 21.3 Compensatory Time 


Unused compensatory time may be accumulated. On the first payday in December of each year, the 


Employers shall compensate employees for all unused compensatory time accumulated in excess of one 


hundred-fifty (150) hours.  Subject to operating needs, the Sheriff may direct employees to utilize 


compensatory time that has accumulated beyond one hundred-fifty (150) hours.  Employees may utilize 


compensatory time at their request, subject to operating needs. Any compensatory time earned shall be 


paid at the rate of time and one-half (1+1/2) for each hour earned. Compensatory time shall be granted at 


such times and in such time blocks as are mutually agreed upon between the involved employee and their 


supervisor; permission to utilize compensatory time off shall not be unreasonably denied by the 


supervisor if operating requirements will not be adversely affected. The Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee 


agrees to endeavor to approve compensatory time within forty-eight (48) hours of the written submission 


by the officer.  Compensatory time off shall be granted in blocks of the employee's normal tour of duty 


agreed upon between the employee and the supervisor or in increments of one (1) hour. All extra work 


will be posted whenever possible. 
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Section 21.4 Rest Periods 


Employees shall be granted a minimum of eight (8) hours rest before having to report to duty if working 


an eight (8) hour shift. If the employee is called or scheduled to come back to work before the eight (8) 


hour rest time, the employee is eligible for those hours as overtime that would be the difference.  The 


Employer will not send the employee home to prevent from paying overtime. 


 


Section 21.5 Court and Call-Back Time 


All employees who are required to report or work other than their regular scheduled shift, will receive a 


minimum of two (2) hours guarantee at time and one-half (1-1/2) their appropriate rate of pay called for 


under the terms of this Agreement.  All employees required too appear in court in connection with their 


duties or where the County is a party in any legal proceeding which occurs outside their regularly 


scheduled shift shall receive a guaranteed minimum of two (2) hours at time and one-half (1+1/2) their 


appropriate rate of pay called for under the terms of this Agreement. 


 


Section 21.6 Overtime Distribution 
In the event of an emergency being declared by the Sheriff, or the Sheriff’s designee, as many of the 
employees shall be continued on duty for such number of hours as may be necessary. Overtime shall be 
distributed in accordance with current practice for all voluntary overtime. Special duty assignments, 
prisoner transport and similar work will be offered, posted, to full-time personnel before part-time 
personnel. Detectives may become involved in active case prisoner transport.  
 


Section 21.7 Third Party Work 


All requests from other persons, agencies or public bodies for off-duty personnel to work where the 


source of compensation is not Ogle County shall be posted for volunteer sign up.  In the event bargaining 


unit personnel do not volunteer to work such duty, this posting requirement shall thereafter be null and 


void. 


 


Section 21.8 Premium Rate of Exception 


Overtime rates shall not be paid when more than a regular shift in a twenty-four (24) hour period is 


worked as a result of regular shift changes or as a result of employees trading shifts for their own 


convenience. 


 


Section 21.9 Stand-By Pay 


For every two (2) hours an employee is on stand-by will receive one (1) hour pay.  


 


ARTICLE 22 WAGES/COMPENSATION/ALLOWANCES 


 


Section 22.1 Wages 


During the term of this Agreement, employees in the bargaining unit shall be paid according to the 


schedules hereto attached. Only employees employed as of December 1, 2010 shall be eligible for 


retroactive pay. 


 


Section 22.2 Uniforms 


A. Uniforms shall continue to be furnished by the Employer in accordance with past practice.  


B. The Employer agrees to maintain accounts with cleaning and laundry establishments to provide for dry 


cleaning and laundering uniforms, the expense of which shall not exceed four hundred dollars ($400.00) 


per year for each employee.  Billings for such shall be made directly to the Employer by the vendor. 
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Section 22.3 Clothing Allowance 


Detectives shall be allowed up to the following amounts per month for clothing allowance. 


 


A. Effective December 1, 2006 - $100.00 


 


B. Cleaning allowance shall be the same as Section 22.2(b) above. 


 


Section 22.4 Canine Compensation 


Employees assigned to Canine commencing December 1, 2003 shall receive seven (7) hours at time and 


one-half (1+1/2) per month to cover duty and off-duty canine care activities. 


 


Section 22.5 Detective On-Call Pay 


Detectives who are placed on-call by the Employer shall receive fifty dollars ($50) per month for each full 


month in which they serve in such capacity.   


 


ARTICLE 23 INSURANCE AND PENSION 


 


Section 23.1 Health Insurance 


The County shall maintain the current group health insurance plan coverage as provided to the covered 


unit at a substantially equivalent level of benefits as in effect on November 8, 2010.  The County will pay 


seventy-five percent (75%) of the premium or premium equivalent and the employee will pay the 


remaining twenty-five percent (25%) for the following types of coverage offered: a) employee; b) 


employee plus one (1) dependent; c) employee plus two (2) or more dependents. 


 


Section 23.2 Pension 


Employers shall continue to contribute on behalf of the employees to the Illinois Municipal Retirement 


Fund in the amount the Employers are required to contribute by State Statute. 


 


Section 23.3 Health Insurance Payments for Retirees 


The County shall begin to contribute fifty percent (50%) of the cost of single health insurance coverage 


through the County policy when the employee retires after at least meeting the minimum age and time 


statutory requirement of their pension fund, or retires on a duty related disability pension.  This 


contribution shall continue until the employee reaches the age at which Medicare coverage begins.  An 


employee who collects a pension through IMRF shall have fifty percent (50%) of the cost of premiums 


paid by the County. 


 


ARTICLE 24 LABOR MANAGEMENT/SAFETY COMMITTEE 


 


Section 24.1 Labor Management Conferences 


The Union and the Employers mutually agree that in the interest of efficient management and harmonious 


employee relations, it is desirable that meetings be held between Union representatives and responsible 


administrative representatives of the Sheriff and County Board. The Employers and the Union agree to 


cooperate with each other in matters of the administration of this Agreement, and to the degree that 


standards of law enforcement can be maintained for the maximum protection of the citizens of the State of 


Illinois. To effectuate the purposes and intent of the parties, both parties agree to meet as necessary. Such 


meetings may be requested at least seven (7) days in advance by either party by placing in writing a 


request to the other for a labor-management conference and expressly providing the agenda for such 


meeting, such meetings and locations shall be limited to: 


 


(a) Discussion of the implementation and general administration of this Agreement. 
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(b) A sharing of general information of interest to the parties. 


 


(c) Notifying the Union of changes in non-bargaining conditions of employment contemplated by the 


Employers which may affect employees.  The Union agrees to notify the Employers of non-


bargaining conditions of employment contemplated by the Union which may affect the 


Employers. 


 


(d)  Discussion of pending grievances on a non-binding basis to attempt to adjust such grievances and 


to discuss procedures for avoiding further grievances. 


 


(e)  Items concerning safety issues. 


 


Section 24.2 Integrity of Grievance Procedure 


It is expressly understood and agreed that such meetings shall be exclusive of the grievance procedure.  


Grievance being processed under the grievance procedure shall not be discussed in detail at labor 


management conferences, and any such discussion of a pending grievance shall be non-binding on either 


party and solely for the purpose of exploring alternatives to settle such grievances and such grievance 


discussion shall only be held by mutual agreement of the Employers and the Union, nor shall negotiations 


for the purpose of altering any or all of the terms of this Agreement be carried on at such meetings. 


 


Section 24.3 Safety Issues 


Any report or recommendation which may be prepared by the Union or the Employers as a direct result of 


a labor management conference discussion will be in writing and copies shall be submitted to the 


Employers and the Union. 


 


Section 24.4 Union Representative Attendance 


When absence from work is required to attend labor management conferences, employees shall, before 


leaving their work station, give reasonable notice to and receive approval from their supervisor in order to 


remain in pay status.  Supervisors shall approve the absence except in emergency situations.  Employees 


attending such conferences shall be limited to two (2). 


 


Article 25 F.O.P. REPRESENTATIVES 
 
For the purposes of administering and enforcing the provisions of this Agreement, the Employer agrees as 
follows:  
 
Section 25.1 Attendance at Labor Council Meetings 


Subject to the need for orderly scheduling and emergencies, the Employers agrees that designated 


members of the Labor Council shall be permitted reasonable time off to attend general, board, or special 


meetings of the Labor Council, provided that at least forty-eight (48) hours notice of such meetings shall 


be given in writing to the Employer, and provided further that the names of all such officials and 


employees shall be certified in writing to the Employer.  Employees may utilize accumulated paid leave. 
 
Section 25.2 Grievance Processing 
Reasonable time while on duty shall be permitted Labor Council representatives for the purpose of aiding 
or assisting or otherwise representing employees in the handling and processing of grievances or 
exercising other rights set forth in this Agreement, and such reasonable time shall be without loss of pay.  
 
Section 25.3 F.O.P. Delegates 
Any employee(s) chosen as delegate(s) to an F.O.P. State or National Conference will, upon written 
application approved by the Labor Council and submitted to the Employer with at least fourteen (14) days 
notice, be given an approved paid leave utilizing accumulated paid leave for the period of time required to 
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attend such convention or conference. This period of time shall not exceed two (2) workdays annually.  
No more than two (2) employees per bargaining unit may take leave as a delegate under this provision.  
 
Section 25.4 Labor Council Negotiating Team 
Members designated as being on the Labor Council negotiating team who are scheduled to work on a day 
on which negotiations will occur, shall, for the purpose of attending scheduled negotiations, be excused 
from their regular duties without loss of pay. If a designated Labor Council negotiating team member is in 
regular day off status on the day of negotiations, the employee will not be compensated for attending the 
session.  


 


ARTICLE 26 GENERAL PROVISIONS 


 


Section 26.1 Use of Masculine Pronoun 


The use of the masculine pronoun in this or any other document is understood to be for clerical 


convenience only, and it is further understood that the masculine pronoun includes the feminine pronoun 


as well. 


 


Section 26.2 Work Rules 


Work rules of the Ogle County Sheriff which are not specifically in conflict with this Agreement shall 


continue in full force and effect. 


 


Section 26.3 Disability Income 


Any Patrol Deputy, Correctional Officer or Detective covered by the terms of this Agreement who is 


legitimately absent from work on account of injury or illness incurred while acting in the line of duty for 


any period not exceeding  twelve (12) months shall receive full pay and benefits for the period of absence, 


provided by such injury or illness. The Employer agrees to abide by the provisions of 5 ILCS 345/1.   


 


Section 26.4 Worker’s Compensation 


The Employers agree to cooperate toward the prompt settlement of employee’s on-the-job injury and 


sickness claims when such claims are due and owing.  The Employers shall provide Worker’s 


Compensation protection for all employees. Employees on compensable injury under Worker’s 


Compensation may use sick leave or annual vacation leave to make up the difference between Worker’s 


Compensation benefits and the employee’s regular wage, less deductions.  Employees on compensable 


injury placed on a leave of absence shall continue to accumulate seniority. 


 


Section 26.5 Unemployment Compensation 


The Employers will provide for all employees of the bargaining unit unemployment compensation as 


prescribed by law.  Such unemployment compensation shall provide the maximum coverage by law for 


each employee of the bargaining unit. 


 


Section 26.6 Unsafe Equipment 


A. The Employers shall not require employees to take out on the streets or highway any vehicle that is not 


in safe operating condition or equipped with the safety appliances prescribed by law.  If an employee 


refuses to operate said equipment without justification, said employee may be subject to disciplinary 


action, including discharge.  “Justification” shall mean that the operation of the vehicle would cause 


proximate danger to the employee or the public as determined by a mechanic, or, in the event of dispute, 


by another mechanic both being from an established garage or dealership. 


 


B. The Employers shall not require a member of this bargaining unit to use, operate or carry any 


equipment that is in disrepair, which malfunctions, or is unsafe where such disrepair, malfunction or 


unsafe status would result in proximate danger to the employee or the public in the assigned activity. 
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Section 26.7 Loss or Damage by Employee 


Employees shall not be charged for loss or damage to Employer’s equipment and/or property unless a 


preponderance of the evidence shows negligence. 


 


Section 26.8 Accidents 


Any employee involved in any accident shall immediately report said accident and any physical injury 


sustained to their Command Officer.  When required by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee, the 


employee, before ending his current shift, on forms provided by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee, shall 


make out an accident report, in writing, and shall turn in all available names and addresses of witnesses to 


any accidents.  Failure to comply with this provision shall subject such employee to disciplinary action by 


the Sheriff. 


 


Section 26.9 Equipment Reports 


A. Employees shall immediately, (or at least by the end of their shift), report all defects of equipment.  


Such report shall be made on a suitable form furnished by the Sheriff and shall be made in multiple 


copies; one (1) copy to be retained by the employee. 


 


B. When the occasion arises where an employee gives written report on forms in use by the Sheriff of a 


vehicle being in an unsafe operating condition for the assigned activity, and receives no consideration 


from the Sheriff, the employee shall take the matter up with the Officers of the Union who will take the 


matter up with the Sheriff. 


 


Section 26.10 Individual Agreements 


Absent written authorization from the Union, the joint Employers herein are prohibited from entering into 


individual agreements with covered employees that are contrary to the express provisions of this 


Agreement. 


 


Section 26.11 Union Copy 


County agrees to mail to the Union a copy of any proposed policy change prior to implementation. 


 


ARTICLE 27 SAVINGS CLAUSE 


 


If any provision of this Agreement or any application thereof should be rendered or declared unlawful, 


invalid or unenforceable by virtue of any judicial action, or by any existing or subsequently enacted 


Federal or State legislation, or by Executive Order or other competent authority, the remaining provisions 


of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  In such event, upon the request of either party, the 


parties shall meet promptly and negotiate with respect to substitute provisions for those provisions 


rendered or declared unlawful, invalid or unenforceable. 


 


ARTICLE 28 COMPLETE AGREEMENT 


 


The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded this Agreement, each had the 


unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not 


removed by law from the area of collective bargaining.  The understandings and agreements arrived at by 


the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. 


 


ARTICLE 29 DURATION AND SIGNATURE 


 


This Agreement shall be effective from December 1, 2010, and shall remain in full force and effect until 


November 30, 2013.  It shall continue in effect from year to year thereafter unless notice of “Demand to 


Bargain” is given in writing by certified mail by either party to the other not more than one-hundred and 
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twenty (120) days nor less than ninety (90) days prior to expiration.  The notices referred to shall be 


considered to have been given as of the date shown on the postmark.  Written notice may be tendered in 


person, in which case the date of notice shall be the written date of receipt. 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signature this ______ day of 


____________, 20____. 


 


 


FOR THE EMPLOYER:    FOR THE UNION: 


 


             


                                                                           Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson                                       Illinois FOP Labor Council  


 


             


Michael Harn                                                         Daniel Daub 


Sheriff of Ogle County 


                                                                     


                                                                              ChrisThiel 


 


_____________________________ 


Kari Aupperle 


 


             


                                                                                    Kindra Plett 


        


             


                        Chad Gallick 


 


                                                                        _____________________________ 


                      Jason Clark            
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WAGE SCHEDULE 


-Patrol, Corrections, Court Security & Bailiff 


 


 


Patrol, Corrections, Court Security & Bailiff 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


1 $39,546  $40,337  $41,144  


2 $41,539  $42,370  $43,217  


3 $43,533  $44,404  $45,292  


4 $45,525  $46,436  $47,364  


5 $47,518  $48,468  $49,438  


6 $49,511  $50,501  $51,511  


7 $51,503  $52,533  $53,584  


8 $53,500  $54,570  $55,661  


9 $55,499  $56,609  $57,741  


10 $57,569  $58,720  $59,895  


15 $61,383  $62,611  $63,863  


 


 


Fiscal year (FY) begins on December 1 of each year. 


 


Shift Differential: For all shifts other than Day Shift & Detectives is $0.75 per hour  


 


Detective Pay of $1.00 per hour added to the base. 
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WAGE SCHEDULE 


-Civilian Corrections Clerk (Control 3) 


 


 


Civilian Corrections Clerk (Control 3) 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


1 $28,275  $28,841  $29,417  


2 $29,402  $29,990  $30,590  


3 $30,530  $31,141  $31,763  


4 $31,657  $32,290  $32,936  


5 $32,784  $33,440  $34,108  


6 $33,912  $34,590  $35,282  


7 $35,039  $35,740  $36,455  


8 $36,166  $36,889  $37,627  


9 $37,293  $38,039  $38,800  


10 $38,420  $39,188  $39,972  


 


 


Fiscal year (FY) begins on December 1 of each year. 


 


Shift Differential: For all shifts other than Day Shift is $0.75 per hour 
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WAGE SCHEDULE 


-Part-Time Employees 


 


 


Regular part-time employees in the job classifications of Corrections Officer, Bailiff, Courthouse 


Security, Civilian Corrections Clerk and Control 3 Personnel shall be paid at the following rates per hour: 


 


 


Part-Time Employees 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


  $13.45  $13.45  $13.45  
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SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT  


REGARDING THE HEALTH INSURANCE COMMITTEE 
 


 


The County of Ogle/Sheriff of Ogle County agree that the Union will be permitted to designate one 


employee representative to attend meetings of the County’s Health Insurance Committee to represent the 


interests of the bargaining unit represented by the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council.  If the 


representative is on duty, time spent by the representative attending the meeting shall be paid time. 


 


FOR THE EMPLOYER:    FOR THE UNION: 


 


             


                                                                            Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson                                      Illinois FOP Labor Council 


 


             


Michael Harn                                                        Jason Clark 


Ogle County Sheriff  


                                                                  _____  


                                                                              Daniel Daub 


 


_____________________________ 


Kari Aupperle 


 


             


                                                                                    Kindra Plett 


      


             


                        Chad Gallick 


  


                                                              ______ _______________________ 


                      Chris Thiel 
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APPENDIX A 


DUES AUTHORIZATION FORM 


 


ILLINOIS FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE 


LABOR COUNCIL 


974 CLOCKTOWER DRIVE 


SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62704 


 


 


I,          , hereby authorize my Joint 


Employers, Sheriff of Ogle County and the County of Ogle, to deduct from my wages the uniform amount 


of monthly dues set by the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, for expenses connected with 


the cost of negotiating and maintaining the collective bargaining agreement between the parties and to 


remit such dues to the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council as it may from time to time direct. 


(In addition, I authorize my Employer to deduct from wages any back dues owed to the Illinois Fraternal 


Order of Police Labor Council from the date of its certification as exclusive bargaining representative to 


the date this dues deduction is implemented, in such manner as it so directs.) 


 


Date:     Signed:       


     Address:       


     City:        


     State:   Zip:     


     Telephone:       


Employment Start Date:      


Title:        


---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 


Employer, please remit all dues deductions to: 


 


Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council 


Attn: Accounting 


974 Clock Tower Drive 


Springfield, Illinois  62704 


 


(217) 698-9433 


 


Dues remitted to the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council are not tax deductible as charitable 


contributions for federal income tax purposes; however, they may be deductible on Schedule A of Form 


1040 as a miscellaneous deduction. 
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APPENDIX B GRIEVANCE 
 


 Date Filed:   


 Department:   


       


Grievant's Name:      


  Last First M.I. 
  


STEP ONE 


Date of Incident or Date Knew of Facts Giving Rise to Grievance:  


Article(s)/Sections(s) violated:   


Briefly state the facts:   


  


  


  


  


  


 


Remedy Sought:   


  


  


 


Given To:     Date:  


         


 Grievant's Signature  FOP Representative Signature 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


 


         


 Employer Representative Signature   Position 


      


 Person to Whom Response Given   Date  


  


STEP TWO 
 


Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:  


    


 Grievant's Signature FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


    


 Person to Whom Response Given Date 
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STEP THREE 
Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:   


     


 Grievant's Signature FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


    


 Person to Whom Response Given Date 


 


 


STEP FOUR 
Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:  


 


    


 Grievant's Signature     FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


 


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


 


    


 Person to Whom Response Given Date 


 


 


REFERRAL TO ARBITRATION by Illinois FOP Labor Council 


 


    
Person to Whom Referral Given   Date 
 


  
FOP Labor Council Representative  
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APPENDIX C 


SENIORITY LIST 


 


DETECTIVES                   PATROL            CORRECTIONS OFFICER 


 


COURT SECURITY/BAILIFF   CORRECTIONS CONTROL CLERK 


 


 


Patrol 


Rodney Smith 09/04/90 


Cheri Brodzik 02/01/95 


Douglas Lockard 09/23/95 


Kevin Colloton 03/01/96 


Chad Gallick 10/23/00 


Neil Minnis 09/01/01 


Jeremy Pennington 04/16/05 


Robert Gemmell 07/11/05 


Nicanor Anaya           04/15/06                                          


Joshua Anderson 10/16/06 


Brent Fleming 10/16/06 


Ross Dillon                 03/01/08 


Chris Thiel                  03/16/08 


David Rivera               03/16/08 


Jason Plumb                03/16/08   


 


Detectives                                                                                                                                              
Jason Clark 11/13/00 


Danielle Hardesty 08/20/01 


 


Court Security /Bailiff 


David Garard             10/25/91 


Ron Vandergrift 04/01/05 


David Clark 01/22/06 


 


Corrections Control Clerks 


 


Sharon Tucker 06/14/00 


Judith Martin 11/12/01 


Kari Aupperle 10/01/03 


Jackie Miller 11/16/07 


 


 


Effective December 1, 2010 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Corrections 


Kevin Dewey             03/12/95 


Cathy Zitelman          12/15/98 


Daniel Daub               09/01/99 


Kindra Plett 11/01/05 


William Tracey 12/01/05 


Richard Krug Jr. 01/30/06 


Carla Bulthaus 12/01/06 


Juan Carreno 12/01/06 


Jason Lynn 01/16/07 


Anne Arneson 08/20/07 


Greg Bergin 11/01/07 


Bill White                   09/16/08 
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APPENDIX D 


ELECTION WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM FOR PATROL  


 


THE EMPLOYEE IS TO EXECUTE ONE (1) OPTION, BUT NOT BOTH, OF THE 


FOLLOWING OPTIONS IN ORDER TO ELECT THE FORUM IN WHICH TO APPEAL 


DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS. 


 


The Sheriff of Ogle County and the County of Ogle and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor 


Council have negotiated an alternative procedure and process based upon the Dispute Resolution and 


Grievance Procedure provisions of this Agreement, and the foregoing provisions with respect to the 


appeal and review of disciplinary action or discharge. The employee upon written notification of the 


disciplinary action has ten (10) business days, Saturday, Sunday and holidays shall be excluded, to select 


via the Election Waiver and Release Form; Appendix D, the option the employee has selected to appeal 


the disciplinary action.  Once the employee has made the election, no changes will be allowed and such 


denoted election constitutes a waiver to use the other appeal process not selected.  The parties agree 


(Sheriff of Ogle County/Ogle County) that the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s agent for the Employers has the 


right to implement disciplinary action up to and including termination of a covered member for just cause 


only. Once the employee has selected the desired option, no processing, review, implementation or relief 


shall be available per the option not selected and such shall act as a waiver and release from using the 


other option not selected.  


 


OPTION 1: ELECTION TO USE THE DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCE 


ARBITRATION PROCEDURE IN THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 


AGREEMENT AND TO WAIVE USING THE OGLE COUNTY SHERIFF’S 


OFFICE MERIT COMMISSION APPEAL PROCESS: 


 


I,     , being proposed for discipline by the Sheriff  (including suspension from 


duty with or without pay, disciplinary demotion or termination of employment) hereby elect to pursue a 


grievance over such discipline according to the appropriate provisions of the Collective Bargaining 


Agreement between the County of Ogle/Ogle County Sheriff, and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police 


Labor Council. I acknowledge that by making this election to use the Dispute Resolution and Grievance 


Arbitration Procedure in the Collective Bargaining Agreement to appeal the discipline, I am waiving the 


rights and remedies of the alternative review or appeal procedure available to me by the Ogle County 


Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission Act (55 ILCS 5/3-8001 et seq.  Furthermore, I acknowledge and agree 


that execution of the Election Waiver and Release Form shall be a prerequisite to processing of any 


grievance concerning the disciplinary action of me by the Sheriff.  By selecting the grievance process 


alternative, I, and the parties to this agreement, acknowledge that the Sheriff has the right to unilaterally 


impose the discipline immediately, subject to possible later modification or reversal by an arbitrator. By 


election to file a grievance over my suspension (Paid or Unpaid), disciplinary demotion or discharge, I 


hereby release the County of Ogle, Ogle County Sheriff, the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit 


Commission and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, as well as their officers, directors, 


agents, employees, attorneys, and other representatives from any and all liability per my election. 


 


OPTION 2: ELECTION TO USE THE OGLE COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE MERIT 


COMMISSION APPEAL PROCESS AND TO WAIVE USING THE DISPUTE 


RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCE ARBITRATION PROCEDURE IN THE 


COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
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I,     , being proposed for discipline by the Sheriff (including suspension from 


duty with or without pay, disciplinary demotion or termination of employment) hereby elect to pursue an 


appeal over such discipline according to the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission Act (55 


ILCS 5/3-8001 et seq. I acknowledge that by making this election to use the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office 


Merit Commission Act (55 ILCS 5/3-8001 et seq.,  I am waiving the rights and remedies of the alternative 


review or appeal procedure available to me by the Dispute Resolution and Grievance Arbitration 


Procedure in the Collective Bargaining Agreement Furthermore, I acknowledge and agree that execution 


of the Election Waiver and Release Form shall be a prerequisite to processing of any appeal concerning 


the proposed discipline of me by the Sheriff.  By selecting the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit 


Commission alternative, I hereby acknowledge that charges will be filed requesting my suspension 


without pay, disciplinary demotion or my termination to the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit 


Commission. By election to appeal my suspension (Paid or Unpaid), disciplinary demotion or discharge 


with the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission, I hereby release the County of Ogle, Ogle 


County Sheriff, the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission and the Illinois Fraternal Order of 


Police Labor Council, as well as their officers, directors, agents, employees, attorneys, and other 


representatives from any and all liability per my election. 


 


Signed this _______ day of _______________, 20___. 


 


By:     ____________          


Print Employee Name 


 


By: _______________________________________ 


       Signature of Employee 


 


Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______ day of ________________, 20____. 


                          Notary Public, Illinois.   


 


My commission expires     


 


 


Received by the Sheriff’s Office:_______________       , 200_ 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Cc. Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council 


      Employee 


     File 
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LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 


 


This Agreement is entered into by the County of Ogle, a body politic, by its duly constituted County 


Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County, hereinafter also referred to as the "Employers", and the Illinois 


Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, hereinafter also referred to as the "Union". The purpose of this 


Letter of Understanding is to address the wage and step agreement the parties have agreed covering the 


period from December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2011 only. The Illinois Fraternal Order of Police 


Labor Council and its membership (Units A & B) have agreed to a temporary wage and step freeze only 


for the period covering December 1, 2010 through November, 30, 2011. The parties further agree, that 


effective December 1, 2011, the annual step movement provided in the wage schedules shall resume, 


provided that the step movement for fiscal year 2012 (December 1, 2011 through November 30, 2012) 


will be a one-step increase from the step which the bargaining unit member occupied as of November 30, 


2010. The parties further agree that it is not the intent of the parties to “make-up” the frozen step during 


the term of this Agreement, but does not negate the parties negotiating such in the future. It is also agreed 


to, that movement through the steps applicable for individuals in the steps effective December 1, 2011 


will be as to the practice and continuing except as denoted. The temporary freezing of step and cola 


increases for the period covering December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2011 does not constitute a 


precedent in future step or cola increases as negotiated in the Collective Bargaining Agreement. This 


Letter of Understanding provides for an orderly collective bargaining relationship between the Employers 


and the Union representing the employees in the bargaining unit, and to make clear this is a temporary 


agreement to freeze the step and cola increase for the term covering December 1, 2010 through November 


30, 2011.  


 


The Ogle County Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County agree that no current full-time employee covered 


by the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be laid-off or reduced covering the period from October 29, 


2010 through November 30, 2011.  


 


The Ogle County Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County agree that the Health Insurance currently 


provided will not have any increases be implemented to covered staff, nor will any of the current benefit 


levels or employee out of pocket expenses increase above the current rates in place as of October 29th, 


2010 through November 30, 2011.  


 


In consideration of mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto, by 


their duly authorized representative do mutually covenant and agree.  


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signature this ______ day of December, 


2010. 


 


FOR THE COUNTY OF OGLE:  FOR THE UNION:               


 


    


  Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson  Illinois Fraternal Order of Police  


 


    


Michael Harn  Kari Aupperie 


Sheriff of Ogle County 


    


                         Daniel Daub 
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  ___________________________________ 


  Kinda Plett 


                                                                                                


                                                                                                  


  Chris Thiel 


 


    


  Chad Gallick 


   


    


  Jason Clark 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS


COUNTY OF OGLE )


ORDINANCE NO.                                  


AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6752 N. KILBUCK ROAD, MONROE TOWNSHIP


WHEREAS, Chris A. Ames, 15930 E. Rachel Ln., Davis Junction, IL has filed a petition
for a Special Use Permit in the AG-1 Agricultural District (Petition No. 10-10SU) to allow a
Conference and Retreat Facility in the AG-1 Agricultural District, on property located at 6752 N.
Kilbuck Road in Monroe Township and legally described as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;
and


WHEREAS, following due and proper notice by publication in the Ogle County Life at
least fifteen (15) days prior thereto, and by mailing notice to all owners of property abutting the
subject property at least fifteen (15) days prior thereto, the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals
conducted a public hearing on November 23, 2010, at which the petitioner presented evidence,
testimony, and exhibits in support of the requested Special Use Permit, two (2) persons testified in
support of the petition, and four members of the public spoke in opposition to or with concerns
regarding the petition; and


WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having considered the evidence, testimony and
exhibits presented has made its findings of fact and recommended that the requested Special Use
Permit be granted as set forth in the Findings of Fact and Recommendation of the Ogle County
Zoning Board of Appeals dated November 23, 2010, a copy of which is appended hereto as Exhibit
“B”; and


WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board has reviewed
the testimony and exhibits presented at the public hearing and has considered the findings of fact
and recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals, and has forwarded a recommendation to the
Ogle County Board that the requested Special Use Permit be granted; and


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Board has considered the findings of fact and
recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals and the recommendation of the Planning and
Zoning Committee, and has determined that granting the Special Use Permit to allow a Conference
and Retreat Facility in the AG-1 Agricultural District would be consistent with the requirements
established by Section 9.08(C) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance;


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF OGLE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, as follows:


SECTION ONE:  The report of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals, Exhibit “B”
attached hereto, is hereby accepted and the findings set forth therein are hereby adopted as the
findings of fact and conclusions of the Ogle County Board.


SECTION TWO:  Based on the findings of fact set forth above, the request of  Chris A.
Ames, 15930 E. Rachel Ln., Davis Junction, IL for a Special Use Permit in the AG-1 Agricultural
District (Petition No. 10-10SU) to allow a Conference and Retreat Facility in the AG-1 
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Agricultural District on property located at 6752 N. Kilbuck Road in Monroe Township and
legally described as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby approved subject to the
following conditions:


1. All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative shall be
conditions of the Special Use Permit.


2. No camping (tent or recreational vehicle) shall be permitted.
3. Outside gatherings shall be discontinued no later than 1:00 A.M. Outside speakers, music, etc.


shall be discontinued no later than 10:00 P.M.
4. The use shall not become obnoxious or create a nuisance to the neighborhood.
5. Property boundary fence(s) shall be maintained so as to deter guests from leaving the property.
6. All requirements of the Ogle County Health Department and Illinois Department of Public


Health shall be complied with in regards to water supply and sewage disposal.
7. All facilities shall comply with the Illinois Accessibility Code as applicable.
8. Monroe Fire Protection District shall be contacted not less than annually to conduct an


inspection of the premises for adequate ingress/egress of emergency service vehicles and
equipment.


9. A fence of chain link, woven wire or equivalent or higher quality, shall be installed along the
top of the steep slope above the Kilbuck Creek near the building(s) site and equipped with
warning signs.  The fence shall be a minimum of 4' high.


10. No ATV or snowmobile use shall be allowed on the property in connection with the authorized
use.


SECTION THREE:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the
County Board of Ogle County, Illinois and attestation by the Ogle County Clerk.


SECTION FOUR:  Failure of the owners or other party in interest or a subsequent owner or
other party in interest to comply with the terms of this Ordinance, after execution of such Ordinance,
shall subject the owners or party in interest to the penalties set forth in Section 9.10 of the Ogle County
Amendatory Zoning Ordinance.


PASSED BY THE COUNTY BOARD THIS 21ST DAY OF DECEMBER 2010 A.D.


                                                                               
, Chairman of the Ogle County Board


ATTEST:


                                                                               
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk and
Ex Officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board
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EXHIBIT “A”
LEGAL DESCRIPTION


Parcel “A”:


All of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 18, Township 42 North, Range 2 East
of the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, Illinois.


Parcel “B”:


Part of the South Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 18, Township 42 North, Range 2 East of
the 3rd P.M., Ogle County, Illinois, described as follows: Beginning at the Northwest corner of the
South Half of the Northeast quarter of said Section 18; thence North 89 degrees 57'10" East on the
North line of the South Half of the said Northeast Quarter, 1557.61 feet to the centerline of a public
highway, known as Kilbuck Road; thence South 20 degrees 16'48" East on said centerline, 70.34 feet
to a point 66 feet perpendicularly distance Southerly of the North line of the South Half of the said
Northeast Quarter, thence South 89 degrees 57 I 10" West parallel with said North line, 1582.03 feet
to the West line of the South Half of the said Northeast Quarter; thence North a degrees 02' 05" East
on said West line, 66 feet to the point of beginning.


Parcel “C”:


Part of the Northwest Quarter (1/4) of Section Eighteen (18), Township Forty-two (42) North, Range
Two (2) East of Third (]Cd) Principal Meridian, bounded and described as follows, to-wit:


Commencing at the southeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of said Section; thence North 00
degrees 02 minutes 05 second West, along the East line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section, a
distance of 722.00 feet to the point of beginning for the following described parcel; thence South 89
degrees 47 minutes 01 second West, 1200.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 02 minutes 05 seconds
East, parallel with the East line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section, a distance of 363.00 feet;
thence North 89 degrees 47 minutes 01 East, 1200.00 feet to its intersection with the East line of the
Northwest Quarter of said Section; thence South 00 degrees 07 seconds 05 West, along the East line
of the Northwest Quarter of said Section, a distance of 363.00 feet to the point of beginning; situated
in the County of Ogle and the State of Illinois.


Parcel “D”:


The North ½ of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 18, and all that part of the North ½ of the Northeast 1/4
of Section 18 as lies West of the Highway running through said Northeast 1/4 of Section 18, all in
Township 42 North, Range 2 East of the Third P.M., situated in Ogle County, Illinois.


Parcel “E”:


Part of Section 18 Township 42 North Range 2 East of the Third Principal Meridian, Ogle County,
IL, bonded and described as follows, to wit:


Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of said Section; thence South 89
degrees 52 minutes 36 seconds West, along the South line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section,
a distance of 1,330.79 feet thence North 00 degrees 08 minutes 19 seconds East, 192.30 feet to the
point of beginning for the following described parcel; thence continuing North 00 degrees 08 minutes
19 seconds East, a distance of 1130.87 feet; thence South 89 degrees 47 minutes 01 seconds West, a
distance of 876.00 feet to it's intersection with the center line of Kilbuck Creek; thence South 05







degrees 10 minutes 14 seconds East, 40.47 feet; thence Southeasterly along a circular curve to the left
having a radius of 446.07 feet and whose center lies to the Northeast an arc distance of 234.20 feet,
the chord across the last described circular curve course bears South 47 degrees 16 minutes 26 seconds
East, 231.52 feet thence Southeasterly along a circular curve to the left having a radius of 154.44 feet
and whose center lies to the Northeast an arc distance of 90.84 feet, the chord across the last described
circular curve course bears South 85 degrees 11 minutes 48 seconds East, 89.53 feet; the last 3
previous calls being along the center line of said Kilbuck Creek; thence South 23 degrees 36 minutes
56 seconds East, 481.57 feet to its intersection with the center line of said Kilbuck Creek; thence
Southwesterly along a circular curve to the left having a radius of 273.00 feet and whose center lies
to the Southeast an arc distance of 187.07 feet, the chord across the last described circular curve
course bears South 57 degrees 00 minutes 44 seconds West, 183.43 feet; thence Southeasterly along
a circular curve to the left having a radius of 109.40 feet and whose center lies to the East an arc
distance 138.74 feet, the chord across the last described circular curve course bears South 01 degrees
38 minutes 38 seconds East, 129.63 feet; thence Southeasterly along a circular curve to the left having
a radius of 167.62 feet and whose center lies to the Northeast an arc distance of 136.54 feet, the chord
across the last described circular curve course bears South 63 degrees 25 minutes 13 seconds East
132.79 feet; thence Northeasterly along a circular curve to the right having a radius of 226.26 feet and
whose center lies to the South an arc distance of 101.11 feet, the chord across the last described
circular curve course bears North 76 degrees 18 minutes 39 seconds East, 100.27 feet; thence South
61 degrees 08 minutes 14 seconds East, 128.53 feet; thence Southeasterly along a circular curve to the
left having a radius of 334.85 feet and whose center lies to the Northeast an arc distance of 293.61
feet, the chord across the last described circular curve course bears South 57 degrees 08 minutes 20
seconds East, 284.30 feet to the point of beginning, the last 6 previous calls being along the center line
of said Kilbuck Creek. Situated in the County of Ogle and the State of Illinois.


Property Identification Number 12-18-100-001, -003, -005 and -006
Common Location: 6752 N. Kilbuck Road
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Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals 
911 W. Pines Road 


Oregon, IL 61061 - 815.732.1190 
Fax: 815.732.2229 


FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDAnON
 
OF THE OGLE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
 


This is the fmdings of fact and the recommendation of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals 
concerning an application ofChris A. Ames, 15930 E. Rachel Ln., Davis Junction, IL, in case #10-10SU. 
The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to permit Conference and Retreat Facility in the AG-l 
Agricultural District on Parcel Identification Nos. 12-18-100-001, -003, -005 & -006, a 179.38 acre parcel 
which is part of Section 18, Township 42N, Range 2E of the 3'dprincipal Meridian and is located in 
Monroe Township at 6752 N. Kilbuck Road. 


After due notice, as required by law, the Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing in this case on 
November 23,2010 in the County Board Room, 3'd Floor, Ogle County Courthouse, Oregon, Illinois and 
hereby report their fmdings of fact and their recommendation as follows: 


SITE INFORMATION: See Staff Report (attached herewith). 


ANALYSIS OF SEVEN STANDARDS: After considering all the evidence and testimony presented at 
,.	 the public hearing, this Board makes the following analysis of the six standards listed in Section 9.08© 


(Standards for Special Use Permits) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance that must all be 
found-in the affirmative prior to recommending granting of the petition. 


1.	 That the proposed special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to the value of other property 
in the neighborhood in which it is to be located or the public health, safety, morals, comfort or 
general welfare at large. The proposed special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to the 
value of other property in the neighborhood in which it is to be located or the public health, 
safety, morals, comfort or general welfare, as the proposed use is in a rural area on a hard 
surface road, is well-buffered and located over 1/4 mile from any public road, there are only 
four other dwellings within Y2 mile of the site, and the proposed use is small in scale and will 
be conducted from existing buildings on the site. STANDARD MET. 


2.	 That the location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in 
or conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access 
to it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent 
development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district 
regulations. In determining whether the special use will so dominate the immediate neighborhood, 
consideration shall be given to: 


a.	 The location, nature and height of building, structures, walls and fences on the site; and, 


b.	 The nature and extent ofproposed landscaping and screening on the proposed site. 







The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in 
or conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving 
access to it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as 
to prevent development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the AG-l 
zoning district regulations, as the proposed use will be conducted from within existing 
buildings, it is located on a hard surface road, it is over 1/4 mile from the road that provides 
access (Kilbuck Road), and there are few other dwellings in the immediate vicinity. 
STANDARD MET. 


3.	 That off-street parking and loading areas will be provided in accordance with the standards set 
forth in these regulations. The site has adequate off-street parking and loading areas. 
STANDARD MET. 


4.	 That adequate utilities, ingress/egress to the site, access roads, drainage and other such necessary 
facilities have been or will be provided. Adequate utilities, ingress/egress to the site from N. 
Kilbuck Road, access roads, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will 
be provided. STANDARD MET. 


5.	 That the proposed use can be operated in a manner that is not detrimental to the permitted 
developments and uses in the zoning district; can be developed and operated in a manner that is 
visually compatible with the permitted uses in the surrounding area; and is deemed essential or 
desirable to preserve and promote the public health, safety and general welfare of Ogle County. 
The proposed use can be operated in a manner that is not detrimental to the permitted 
developments and uses in the AG-l zoning district; can be developed and operated in a 
manner that is visually compatible with the permitted uses in the surrounding area; and is 
deemed essential or desirable to preserve and promote the public health, safety and general 
welfare of Ogle County. STANDARD MET. 


6.	 That the proposed special use complies with all provisions of the applicable district regulations. 
The proposed special use appears to comply with all provisions of the AG-l district 
regulations. STANDARD MET. 


RECOMMENDATION: After considering all the evidence and testimony presented, this Board fmds that 
the application meets all the standards as found in Section 9.08© of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning 
Ordinance. 


Therefore, the Zoning Board ofAppeals hereby recommends that a Special Use Permit be granted to allow 
Conference and Retreat Facility in the AG-l Agricultural District subject to the following conditions: 


1.	 All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative shall be 
conditions of the Special Use Permit. 


2.	 No camping (tent or recreational vehicle) shall be permitted. 
3.	 Outside gatherings shall be discontinued no later than 1:00 A.M. Outside speakers, music, etc. shall 


be discontinued no later than 10:00 P.M. 
4.	 The use shall not become obnoxious or create a nuisance to the neighborhood. 
5.	 Property boundary fence(s) shall be maintained so as to deter guests from leaving the property. 
6.	 All requirements of the Ogle County Health Department and Illinois Department of Public Health 


shall be complied with in regards to water supply and sewage disposal. 
7.	 All facilities shall comply with the Illinois Accessibility Code as applicable. 
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8. Monroe Fire Protection District shall be contacted not less than annually to conduct an inspection of 
the premises for adequate ingress/egress of emergency service vehicles and equipment. 


9.	 A fence ofchain link, woven wire or equivalent or higher quality, shall be installed along the top of 
the steep slope above the Kilbuck Creek near the building(s) site and equipped with warning signs. 
The fence shall be a minimum of 4' high. 


10.	 No ATV or snowmobile use shall be allowed on the property in connection with the authorized use. 


ROLL CALL VOTE: The roll call vote was 5 members for the motion to recommend granting, 0 opposed. 


Respectfully submitted this 23 rd day ofNovember 2010 by the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals. 


Bruce McKinney, Chairman 
Maurice Bronkema 
Jason Sword 
Randall Anderson 
Curtis Freeberg 


Bruce McKinney, Chairman 


ATTEST: 


M~(I1~ 
Mark E. Miller, Acting Secretary 
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PREAMBLE 


 


This Agreement is entered into by the County of Ogle, a body politic; by its duly constituted County 


Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County, herein after referred to as the "Employers”, and the Illinois 


Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, hereinafter referred to as the “Union”. The purpose of this 


Agreement is to provide an orderly collective bargaining relationship between the Employers and the 


Union representing the employees in the bargaining unit, and to make clear the basic terms upon which 


such relationship depends. This Agreement is to be interpreted and applied consistent with the law of the 


State of Illinois. In consideration of mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained herein, the 


parties hereto, by their duly authorized representative and/or agents, do mutually covenant and agree as 


follows: 


 


ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION 


 


Section 1.1 Unit Description 


The Employers hereby recognize the Union as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative 


for the purpose of collective bargaining on matters relating to wages, hours, and other terms and 


conditions of employment for the following: 


 


UNIT 


Included: All full-time employees in the following job classifications: All Patrol Corporals; Patrol 


Sergeants; Corrections Corporals, and Corrections Sergeants. 


 


Excluded: All other employees employed by the County of Ogle and the Ogle County Sheriff, and all 


supervisory, managerial and confidential employees as defined by the Act. 


 


Section 1.2 Career Position 


The Union and the Employees both recognize that the classification of law enforcement officer and 


corrections officer is a career position. We further recognize that such position requires suitable 


equipment in order to perform the duties and responsibilities of the Law Enforcement and Corrections 


Officer. No officer shall refuse to perform his duty for reasons of objection to such equipment but shall 


grieve such objections. 


 


Section 1.3 Supervisors 


Bargaining unit members may continue to perform bargaining unit work which is incidental to their jobs. 


They may also perform bargaining unit work in emergency situations and/or situations where their on-


duty supervisor determines that the then readily available for duty bargaining unit personnel are not as 


proficient to perform the task necessary to be accomplished by the on-duty supervisor or where such work 


is necessary to train a bargaining unit employee, such work by supervisors shall not cause any layoffs, 


reduction in the work force by attrition or other means or reduction in regularly scheduled hours. 


Supervisors shall not be assigned to perform the duties of a vacant position in the bargaining unit for more 


than thirty (30) days if a valid merit commission eligibility list exists or more than ninety (90) days if a 


new eligibility list must be created, subject to the availability of budgeted Funds. 


 


Section 1.4 Part-Time Employees 


The Employer may continue to utilize the services of Part-Time employees to perform bargaining unit 


work, but such utilization shall not cause layoffs, reduction in force or reduction in regular scheduled 


hours. The use of Part-Time personnel in the bargaining unit shall not be increased over existing levels. 


 


Presented to the Ogle County Board on December 6, 2010







2 


Section 1.5 Duty Assignment 


Qualified employees in Patrol may be assigned to Corrections duty on a temporary basis and qualified 


employees in Corrections may be assigned to Patrol duty on a temporary basis in the discretion of the 


Sheriff to meet operating needs when off-duty employees in this unit are not available and/or it is 


determined by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee that the bargaining unit personnel are not qualified 


and/or available to fulfill the then necessary needs of the Sheriff's Office. 


 


ARTICLE 2 NEW CLASSIFICATIONS AND VACANCIES 


 


Section 2.1 New Classifications 


Where the Employers find it necessary to create a new job classification, the work of which falls within 


the scope of the bargaining unit, the Employers and Union agree to jointly petition the Illinois State Labor 


Board to seek the necessary unit clarification. If the inclusion of a new position classification is agreed to 


by the parties or found appropriate by the Labor Board, the parties shall negotiate as to the proper pay 


grade for the classification.  If no agreement is reached within thirty (30) calendar days from the date its 


inclusion was determined, the Union may appeal the proposed pay grade to the 2nd step of the grievance 


procedure. The second step grievance committee or arbitrator shall determine the reasonableness of the 


proposed salary grade in relationship to: 


 


(a)  The job content and responsibilities of other position classifications in the Employer's work force 


in the bargaining unit of this Agreement; 


(b) Like positions with similar job content and responsibilities within the labor market generally; 


(c) Significant differences in working conditions to comparable position classifications. 


 


The pay grade originally assigned by the Employers shall remain in effect pending the decision. If the 


decision of the second step grievance committee or arbitrator is to increase the pay grade of the position 


classification, such rate change shall be applied retroactive to the date of its installation. Upon installation 


of the new position classification, the filling of such position classification shall be in accordance with the 


procedures of this Agreement. 


 


Section 2.2 Vacancies 


Vacancies shall be created and filled in accordance with the applicable rules, regulations, and procedures 


of the Merit Commission; however, once the Sheriff determines that a vacancy shall be filled by an 


appropriate notice thereof, said vacancy will be filled, absent extraordinary conditions and/or 


circumstance within one-hundred and eighty (180) calendar days of the issuance of said notice. All 


vacancies along with job duties, responsibilities and rates of pay will be posted at least ten (10) calendar 


days in advance of any interviews before the selection and filling of vacancy. 


 


ARTICLE 3 NON-DISCRIMINATION 


 


Section 3.1 Equal Employment Opportunity 


The Employers will provide equal employment opportunity and practice of a non-discriminatory nature 


consistent with Federal and State of Illinois laws to all members of the bargaining unit. The Employers 


and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination by the Employers or the Union against 


employees because of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, or marital status or because of 


a physical handicap with respect to a position the duties of which can be performed adequately by an 


individual with such a physical handicap without danger to the health or safety of the physically 


handicapped person or to others. 


 


Presented to the Ogle County Board on December 6, 2010







3 


Section 3.2 Union Membership or Activity 


Neither the Employers nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this 


Agreement to become or not become members of the Union, and there shall be no discrimination against 


any such employees because of lawful Union membership or non-membership, activity or status. 


 


ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 


 


The Employers have and will continue to retain the right to operate and manage its affairs in each and 


every respect. The rights reserved to the sole discretion of the Employers shall include, but are not limited 


to, the right: 


 


(a) to determine the organizational and operations of the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office; 


(b) to determine and change purpose, composition and function of each of its consistent departments, 


and subdivisions; 


(c) to set standards; 


(d) to direct the employees of the Ogle County Sheriff's Office, including the right to assign work and 


overtime; 


(e) to hire, examine, classify, select, promote, restore to career service positions, train, transfer, 


assign, and schedule employees; 


(f)  to increase, reduce or change, modify or alter the composition-and the size of the work force, 


including the right to relieve employees from duties because of lack of work or Funds or other 


proper reasons; 


(g) to contract out work when essential in the exercise of powers of the Sheriff’s Office; 


(h) to establish work schedules and to determine the starting and quitting time, and the numbers of 


hours worked; 


(i) to establish, modify, combine or abolish job positions and classifications; 


(j) to add, delete or alter methods of operations, equipment of facilities; 


(k) to determine the location, methods, means, and personnel, by which operations, are to be 


conducted including the right to determine whether goods and services are to be made provided or 


purchased; 


(1) to establish, implement and maintain an effective internal control program; 


(m) to suspend, demote, discharge for just cause; and, 


(n) to add, delete, or alter policies, procedures, rules, and regulations. 


 


ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTING 


 


Section 5.1 General Policy 


It is the general policy of the Employers to continue to utilize employees to perform work they are 


qualified to perform. However, the Employers reserve the right to contract out any work it deems 


necessary in the interests of economy, improved work product or emergency provided that such 


subcontracting does not cause layoff or reduction of work hours for bargaining unit employees. 


 


ARTICLE 6 DUES DEDUCTION AND FAIR SHARE 


 


Section 6.1 Dues Deduction 


Upon receipt of proper written authorization from an employee, the Employers shall deduct each month 


Union dues in the amount certified by the Union from the pay of all employees covered by this 


Agreement, who, in writing, authorize such deductions. Such money shall be submitted to the Illinois 


FOP Labor Council at 974 Clocktower Drive at Springfield, IL 62704-1304 within; thirty (30) days after 


the deductions have been made. Said deductions will be terminated upon the Employee's written request. 
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The Union hereby indemnifies and agrees to hold the Employers harmless against any and all claims, 


demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise out of, or by reason of, any action taken by the 


Employers for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this Article. 


 


Section 6.2 Fair Share 


Any present employee who is not a member of the Union shall be required to pay a fair share (not to 


exceed the amount of Union dues) of the cost of the collective bargaining process and contract 


administration in pursuing matters affecting wages, hours, and other conditions of employment, but not to 


exceed the amount of dues uniformly required of members. All employees hired on or after the effective 


date of this Agreement who have not made application for membership shall, on or after the thirtieth 


(30th) day of their hire, also be required to pay a fair share as defined above. The Employers shall with 


respect to any employee on whose behalf the Employers have not received a written authorization (see 


Appendix “A”) as provided for above, the Employers shall deduct from the wages of the employee, the 


fair share financial obligation, including any retroactive amount due and owing, and shall forward said 


amount to the Union on the tenth (10th) day of the month following the month in which the deduction is 


made, subject only to the following: 


 


(a)  The Union has certified to the Employers that the affected employee has been delinquent in their 


obligations for at least thirty (30) days; 


(b)  The Union has certified to, the Employers that the affected employee has been notified in writing 


of the obligation and the requirement for each provision of this Article, and that the employee has 


been advised by the Union, of their obligations pursuant to this Article and of the manner in which 


the Union has calculated the fair share fee; 


(c)  The Union has certified to the Employers that the affected employee has been given a reasonable 


opportunity to prepare and submit any objections to have said objections adjudicated before an 


impartial arbitrator assigned by the employee and the Union for the purpose of determining and 


resolving any objections the employee may have to the fair share fee. 


 


ARTICLE 7 NO STRIKE 


 


Section 7.1 No Strike Commitment  


Neither the Union nor any officer will call, initiate, authorize, participate in, sanction, encourage, or ratify 


any work stoppage, slow down, or the concerted interference with the full, faithful and proper 


performance of the duties of employment with the Employers during the term of this Agreement. Neither 


covered employees nor any official of the Union shall refuse to cross any picket line, by whoever 


established. 


 


Section 7.2 Performance on Duty 


It is recognized that employees covered by this Agreement may be required in the line of duty to perform 


duties growing out of or connected with labor disputes which may arise within the County. The Union 


agrees that no disciplinary action or other action will be taken by the Union against any employee or 


employees covered by this Agreement by reason of any such action or conduct in the line of duty or in 


any way using their official position. 


 


Section 7.3 Resumption of Operation 


In the event of action prohibited by Section 7.l above, the Union immediately shall disavow such action 


and request the officers to return to work, and shall use its best efforts to achieve a prompt resumption of 


normal operations. The Union, including its officials and agents, shall not be liable for any damages, 


direct or indirect, upon complying with the requirements of this Section. 
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Section 7.4 Union Liability 


Upon the failure of the Union to comply with the provisions of Section 7.2 above, any agent or official of 


the Union who is an officer or person who is a member of the bargaining unit may be subject to the 


provisions of Section 7.5 below. 


 


Section 7.5 Discipline of Strikers 


Any officer or member of the bargaining unit, who violates the provisions of Section 7.l of this Article, 


shall be subject to immediate discharge. Any action taken by the Sheriff against any officer or member of 


the bargaining unit who participates in action prohibited by Section 7.1 above shall not be considered as a 


violation of this Agreement and shall not be subject to review, except that the factual issue of whether an 


officer or member of the bargaining unit in fact participated in a prohibited action shall be subject to 


review in a disciplinary action instituted by the Sheriff pursuant to Article 13 Dispute Resolution and 


Grievance Procedure in the Collective Bargaining Agreement. 


 


ARTICLE 8 RESOLUTION OF IMPASSE 


 


All impasses on matters in dispute shall be resolved according to the provisions of Section 14 of the 


Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, as amended, except that all arbitration hearings shall be conducted in 


Oregon, Illinois. 


 


ARTICLE 9 BILL OF RIGHTS 


 


If the interrogation of a member of the bargaining unit subject to the terms of 50 ILCS 725/1 et. seq. is to 


occur which may lead to suspensions of more than three (3) work days without pay or termination of 


employment, then such member shall have the right to a Union representative during such questioning. 


Nothing in this Article is intended to or should be construed to waive employee’s right to Council 


representation during questioning that the employee reasonably believe may lead to discipline.  


 


Employees covered by the terms of this Agreement shall have such rights as set forth in the United States 


Supreme Court decision in NLRB vs. Weingarten, 420 U.S. 251 (1975) and the Department of Central 


Management Services & Corrections (Moorage) decision, 1 PERI par. 2020 (ISLRB, 1985). 


 


Section 9.1 Photo Dissemination 


No photo of an employee under investigation shall be made available to the media prior to a conviction 


for a criminal offense, unless determined by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee to be in the best interest 


of public safety for the citizens of Ogle County or prior to an administrative decision being rendered by 


the Sheriff.  


 


Section 9.2 Compulsion of Testimony 


The Sheriff shall not compel an employee under investigation to speak or testify before, or to be 


questioned by any non-governmental agency relating to any matter or issue under investigation. This 


provision does not apply to the Employer or its attorneys who shall have the right to question an 


employee relating to any matter which may subject the Employer to potential liability. 


 


Section 9.3 Administrative Leave 
The decision as to whether an employee will remain in pay status pending the outcome of an 


administrative or criminal trial shall be made on a case by case basis, and shall equitably and reasonably 


be made, given the circumstances of each individual case. All appeals for a suspension without pay of a 


member of the bargaining unit without a complaint having being filed by the Sheriff are to be appealed 


per Article 11 Discipline and Discharge as set forth in this Agreement.  
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ARTICLE 10 PERSONNEL FILES 


 


Section 10.1 Personnel Files 


The Sheriff shall keep a central personnel file within the bargaining unit for each employee. The Sheriff 


may also keep working files such as internal investigation files; however, material not maintained in the 


central personnel file may not provide the basis for disciplinary or other action against an employee. The 


Employer agrees to abide by the terms as set forth in 820 ILCS 40/1 et seq. and the Freedom of 


Information Act as found in 5 ILCS 140/1 et. seq. 


 


Section 10.2 Inspection  


Upon request of an employee, the Sheriff shall reasonably permit an employee to inspect their personnel 


file but not internal investigation files during an investigation. The internal investigation file shall be 


available for inspection upon disciplinary action being imposed or a complaint seeking disciplinary 


action. Inspection of files shall be subject to the following: 


 


(a)  Such inspection shall occur within a reasonable time following receipt of the request; 


(b)  Such inspection shall occur during daytime working hours Monday through Friday upon 


reasonable request; 


(c)  The employee shall not be permitted to remove any part of the personnel file from the premises 


but may obtain copies of any information contained therein upon payment for the cost of copying; 


(d)  Upon written authorization by the requesting employee, in cases where such employee has a 


written grievance pending, and is inspecting their file with respect to such grievance, that 


employee may have a representative of the Union present during such inspection and/or may 


inspect their personnel file subject to the procedures contained in this Article;  


(e)  Pre-employment information, such as reference reports, credit check or information provided the 


Employers with a specific request that it remain confidential shall not be subject to inspection or 


copying. 


 


Section 10.3 Notification 


Employees and the Union shall be given immediate notice by the Sheriff when a formal, written 


reprimand or other disciplinary documentation is permanently placed in their personnel file. A copy of 


said discipline shall be given to the employee and the Union. 


 


ARTICLE 11 DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 


 


Section 11.1 Discipline and Discharge 


The parties recognize the principles of progressive and corrective discipline. Disciplinary action may be 


imposed upon an employee only pursuant to the laws of the State of Illinois. If the Sheriff or Command 


has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee 


before other employees or the public. No officer covered by the terms of this Agreement shall be 


suspended, relieved from duty or disciplined in any matter without just cause. Disciplinary action or 


measure shall include only the following: 


 


Coaching and counseling 


Written reprimand 


Suspension (notice to be given in writing) 


Discharge 


Demotion 
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Section 11.2 Limitation 


The Sheriff’s agreement to use progressive and corrective disciplinary action does not prohibit the Sheriff 


in any case from imposing discipline which is commensurate with the severity of the offense. The Sheriff 


shall notify both the employee and Union of disciplinary action. Such notification shall be in writing and 


shall reflect the specific nature of the offense. 


 


Section 11.3 Pre-disciplinary Meeting 


For discipline other than oral and written reprimands, prior to the imposition of discipline, the Sheriff or 


the Sheriff’s designee shall follow this procedure: The Sheriff shall notify the Union or other member of 


the Union Grievance Committee and the affected employed employee that the employee desires to hold a 


pre-disciplinary meeting and the time and date of such meeting. The Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee shall 


thereafter inform the Union and employee of the contemplated measure of discipline and the reasons 


therefore. If agreement can then be reached on the measure of discipline, it shall be imposed. 


 


Section 11.4 Discipline Appeal Process 


The Sheriff of Ogle County and the County of Ogle and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor 


Council have negotiated an alternative procedure based upon the Dispute Resolution and Grievance 


Procedure provisions of this Agreement, and the foregoing provisions with respect to the appeal and 


review of disciplinary action or discharge decisions shall be in lieu of, and shall expressly supersede and 


preempt, any provisions that might otherwise be the Rules and Regulations of the Sheriffs' Merit 


Commission Act as found in 55 ILCS 5/3-8001 et. seq.  After the Pre-disciplinary meeting has been held 


pursuant to Article 11, Section 11.3 Pre-Disciplinary Meeting, and if the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee 


imposes disciplinary action, an employee has the option to have the disciplinary action appealed per the 


Dispute Resolution and Grievance Procedure provisions of this Labor Agreement or before the Ogle 


County Sheriffs' Office Merit Commission, but not both. The employee upon written notification and 


implementation of the disciplinary action has ten (10) business days, Saturday, Sunday and holidays shall 


be excluded, to select via the Election Waiver and Release Form; Appendix D the option the employee 


has selected to appeal the discipline. Once the employee has made the election, no changes will be 


allowed and such denoted election constitutes a waiver to use the other appeal process not selected.   


 


If the affected covered member selects to appeal the disciplinary action via Article 13, Dispute Resolution 


and Grievance Procedure of the CBA, the parties agree the (Sheriff of Ogle County and/or the County of 


Ogle) or their agent for the Employers has the right to implement disciplinary action, up to and including 


termination for just cause only immediately upon receipt of the Election Waiver and Release Form and 


will not review, process, file charges or present the disciplinary action before or to the Ogle County 


Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission which is subject to the Dispute Resolution and Grievance Procedure 


as set forth in this Agreement.  


 


If the affected covered member elects to appeal  the disciplinary action per Appendix D: Election Waiver 


and Release Form to the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission, the procedures set forth in the 


rules and regulations of the Commission will be followed.  


 


Section 11.5 Merit Commission Appointments 


Should the Sheriff desire to fill a vacancy on the Merit Commission; the Sheriff shall notify the Union or 


other member of the Union Grievance Committee or the recommended appointment not less than seven 


(7) days prior to sending the recommended appointment to the County Board. Upon request of the Union, 


the Sheriff shall meet and confer with the Union over the advisability of such recommendation and 


consider alternatives suggested by the Union. 
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Section 11.6 Reassignments 


The Sheriff may, in his discretion, reassign any employee while an investigation of possible wrong 


behavior is completed. Such assignment shall be without prejudice. 


 


Section 11.7 Inactivation 


If any member shoots, while in the line of duty, another person, that member may be inactivated, 


receiving full pay and benefits for a period of up to three (3) days except periods of emergency, unless 


such action is cause of disciplinary action.  During the three (3) days, the employee must make 


themselves available for investigative purposes. 


 


ARTICLE 12 INDEMNIFICATION  


 


Section 12.1 Indemnification 


The Employer shall be responsible for, hold employees harmless from and pay damages or monies which 


may be adjudged, assessed, or otherwise levied against any employee covered by this Agreement for any 


act or omission of said employee to the level provided for at minimum the applicable statutes. The 


Employer agrees to abide by 65 ILCS 5/1-4-6. 


 


Section 12.2 Representation 


An employee covered by the terms of this Agreement shall have legal representation by the Employer in 


any civil cause of action brought against an employee resulting from or arising out of the performance of 


duties, whether the employee was on duty or off duty at the time of the incident. The affected employee 


shall be permitted to choose such legal counsel, subject to the approval of the Employer. 


 


Section 12.3 Cooperation 


Employees shall be required to cooperate with the Employer during the course of the investigation, 


administration or litigation of any claim arising under this Article.  Should a member of the bargaining 


unit fail to cooperate, the terms of this Article shall not apply. 


 


Section 12.4 Applicability 


The Employer will provide the protections set forth herein, so long as the employee is acting within the 


scope of the employee’s employment and where the employee cooperates with the Employer in defense of 


the action or claim. Acts of willful misconduct are not covered by the Article. Acts of intentional 


wrongdoing, willful and wanton conduct and/or reckless acts are not covered by the provisions of this 


Article. 


 


ARTICLE 13 DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 


 


All disciplinary grievances shall be subject to the provisions of this Article. Should a member of the 


bargaining unit disagree with the content of a written reprimand, the Sheriff shall allow said member to 


reduce to writing the disagreement and to have such writing attached to the written reprimand issued by 


the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee. Nothing shall prevent the Sheriff from withdrawing or modifying the 


written reprimand based on the content of the said writing of the bargaining unit member. Oral 


reprimands shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure. 


 


Section 13.1 Definition of a Grievance 


A grievance is defined as any unresolved indifferences between the Employer and the Union or any 


employee regarding the application, meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. The rationale or defense 


of “past practice”, whether raised by the Joint Employers or Union herein is expressly subject to the 


grievance procedure. 
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Section 13.2 Dispute Resolution 


In the interest of resolving disputes at the earliest possible time, it is agreed that an attempt to resolve a 


dispute shall be made between the employee and their immediate supervisor. The employee shall make 


their complaint to their immediate supervisor. The supervisor will notify the employee of the decision 


within two (2) working days following the day when the complaint was made. Settlements or withdrawals 


at this step shall not constitute a precedent in the handling of other grievances. In the event of a complaint, 


the employee shall first complete assigned work task; and complain later. 


 


Section 13.3 Representative 


Grievances may be processed by the Union, or the Union on behalf of an employee or on behalf of a 


group of employees. The Employers may file contract grievances directly at Step 2, Section 13.8 of this 


Article. Either party may have the grievant or one (1) grievant representing group grievants present at any 


step of the grievance procedure, and the employee is entitled to Union representation at each and every 


step of this grievance procedure upon their request. Grievances may be filed on behalf of two (2) or more 


employees only if the same facts, issues and requested remedy apply to all employees in the group. 


 


Section 13.4 Subject Matter 


Only one (1) subject matter shall be covered in any one (1) grievance. A grievance shall contain a 


statement of the grievant's position, the Article, and Section of the Agreement allegedly violated, the date 


of the alleged violation, the relief sought, and the signature of the grieving employee(s) or the FOP Labor 


Council and the date. 


 


Section 13.5 Time Limitations 


Grievances may be withdrawn at any step of the grievance procedure with prejudice to the pending 


grievances but without precedent to future grievances. If the time limits established in the grievance 


procedure are not followed by the Union or member of the bargaining unit, the grievance shall be 


considered waived. The time limits established in the grievance procedure shall be followed by an 


employee or the Union, the grievance shall be considered settled. 


 


If the time procedure is not followed by the Employer, the grievance shall remain active and 


automatically advance to the next step; provided however, that arbitration shall not occur unless the Union 


submits written notice of its desire to arbitrate. The time limits established herein may be extended by 


mutual agreement in writing. In computing days under the grievance and arbitration procedures, Saturday, 


Sunday and holidays shall be excluded. 


 


Section 13.6 Grievance Processing 


A grievance committee member may during regular working hours, without loss of time or pay, in 


accordance with the terms of this Article, investigate and present grievances to the Employers and may 


attend negotiating sessions upon having received permission from their supervisor to do so. The 


supervisors shall grant permission within a reasonable time after the first (1st) hours of the shift for the 


steward to leave their work for these purposes subject to necessary emergency exceptions. The privilege 


of the steward leaving their work during working hours, without loss of time or pay, is subject to the 


understanding that the time will be devoted to the proper processing of grievances and will not be abused. 


The Union representative may be required to record time spent. All such Union representatives will 


perform their regularly assigned work at all times except whenever necessary to leave their work to 


process grievances as provided herein.  


 


Section 13.7 Grievance Meetings 


A maximum of two (2) employees (the grievant and/or Union representative) per work shift shall be 


excused from work with pay to participate in a Step 1 or Step 2 grievance meeting. The employee(s) shall 


only be excused for the amount of time reasonably required to present the grievance. The employee(s) 
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shall not be paid for any time during which a grievance meeting occurs outside of the employees work 


shift. In the event of a grievance, the employee and Union representative(s) shall first perform their 


assigned work task and file their grievance later. 


 


Section 13.8 Steps in Procedure 


Disputes arising under this Agreement shall be resolved as follows:  


 


STEP 1  If no agreement is reached between the employee and the supervisor, as provided for in 


Section 13.2 Dispute Resolution, the Union shall prepare a written grievance on a form 


mutually agreed to (see Appendix "B") and presented to the Sheriff no later than ten (10) 


working days after the employee was notified of the decision by the supervisor. Within 


five (5) working days after the grievance has been submitted, the Sheriff shall meet with 


the grievant the Union Representative to discuss the grievance and make a good faith 


attempt to resolve the grievance. The Sheriff shall respond in writing to the grievant and 


the Union Representative within five (5) working days following the meeting. 


 


STEP 2  If the grievance is not settled at Step 1, the grievance may be referred in writing within five 


(5) working days after the decision of the Sheriff to a Committee consisting of the Sheriff 


and three (3) members of the County Board appointment by the Chairman. Within twenty 


(20) working days after the grievance has been filed with the Committee, the Committee 


shall meet with the Union and the grievant to discuss the grievance and make a good faith 


effort to resolve the grievance. The committee shall respond in writing to the grievant and 


the Union within five (5) working days following the meeting. The Sheriff shall have one 


(1) vote and the County Board members, collectively, shall have one (1) vote in resolving 


the grievance. 


 


STEP 3  If the dispute is not settled at Step 2, the matter may be submitted to arbitration within ten 


(10) working days after the Committee's written decision of the expiration of the five (5) 


day period if the Committee fails to render a written decision. Within ten (10) working 


days after the matter has been submitted to arbitration, a representative of the Employer 


and the Union shall meet to select an arbitrator from a list of mutually agreed to arbitrators. 


If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator within ten (10) working days after such 


meeting, the parties shall request Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a 


list of seven (7) by alternate strikes by the Employer representative and the Union. The 


Employer and the Union shall flip a coin to determine who strikes first. The person whose 


name remains on the list shall be the arbitrator, provided that either party before striking 


any names shall have the right to reject one (1) panel of the arbitrators. The arbitrator shall 


be notified of their selection by a joint letter from the Employer and the Illinois Fraternal 


Order of Police Labor Council. Such letter shall request the arbitrator to set a time and a 


place for the hearing subject to the availability of the Employer and Union representative 


and shall be notified of the issue where mutually agreed by the parties. All, hearings shall 


be held in the City of Oregon, Illinois unless otherwise agreed to.  


 


Both parties agree to make a good faith attempt to arrive at a joint statement of facts and issues to be 


submitted to the arbitrator. The Employers or Union shall have the right to request the arbitrator to require 


the presence of witnesses and/or documents. Each party shall bear the expense of its witnesses. Once a 


determination is made that the matter is arbitrable or if such preliminary determination cannot be 


reasonably made, the arbitrator shall then proceed to determine the merits of the dispute. The expenses 


and fees of arbitration and the cost of the hearing room shall be shared equally by the Employers and the 


Union. Costs of arbitration shall include the arbitrator's fees, and transcription costs. Nothing in this 


Article shall preclude the Employers and Union from agreeing to use expedited arbitration procedures. 
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The decision and award of the arbitrator shall be made within forty-five (45) days following the hearing 


and shall be final and binding on the Employers, Union and the employee or employees involved. The 


Employers and the Union agree to abide by the Uniform Arbitration Act. The arbitrator shall have no 


power to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. 


 


ARTICLE 14 SENIORITY 


 


Section 14.1 Definition of Seniority 


As used herein, the term "seniority" shall refer to and be defined as the continuous length of service or 


employment from the last date of hire with the Employer for accrual purposes and for the use purposes it 


shall be defined as date of promotion to the rank. In the case of transfer from a classification where the 


rate of pay is less, the entry level of pay shall apply.  With the exception of pay, all other benefits herein 


shall be based upon continuous length of service from date of last hire. 


 


Section 14.2 Probation Period 


Probationary period for members of this bargaining unit shall be consistent with the Merit Commission 


Rule and Regulations, as they existed at the time of ratification of this Agreement. 


 


Section 14.3 Seniority List 


The Employers and Union have agreed upon the initial seniority list setting forth the present seniority 


dates (including date of hire and date of promotion to the current rank) for all employees covered by this 


Agreement and shall become effective on the date of execution of this Agreement. Such lists shall finally 


resolve all questions of seniority affecting employees covered under this Agreement or employed at the 


time the Agreement becomes effective. Disputes as to seniority, listing shall be resolved through the 


grievance procedure. The initial agreed list is attached hereto as Appendix “C” and made a part hereof. 


 


Section 14.4 Termination of Seniority 


An employee may be terminated by the Employers and the employee’s seniority broken when the 


employee: 


(a) quits; or 


(b) is discharged for just cause; or 


(c) is laid off pursuant to the provisions of the applicable agreement for a period of twenty-four (24) 


months; or, 


(d)  accepts gainful full-time employment while on an approved leave of absence from the Sheriff's 


Office, unless the leave was granted for the purpose of employment; or 


(e) is absent for three (3) consecutive scheduled work days without proper notification or 


authorization; or 


(f) fails to return to work at the conclusion of an approved leave of absence for a period of three (3) 


consecutive days. 


 


Section 14.5 Suspensions 


Employees shall not accrue seniority for any disciplinary suspensions of ten (10) days or longer. In the 


event that the discipline is subsequently reversed or modified, the appropriate accrual of seniority shall be 


reinstated.  


 


Section 14.6 Seniority While on Leave 


Employees in the bargaining unit shall not accrue credit for time spent on authorized, unpaid leave of 


absence. Vacation, sick leave, holidays and other similar benefits will not be earned while on unpaid leave 


of absence. 
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Section 14.7 Departmental Transfer 


An employee in the bargaining unit who transfers from another Ogle County Department shall accumulate 


total seniority at the County only for purposes of calculating vacation and sick leave. 


 


Section 14.8 Dispute Resolution 


Where two (2) or more employees request the same time off, seniority shall, determine first choice. 


Where two (2) or more employees are eligible for an overtime opportunity, seniority shall determine first 


choice. 


 


ARTICLE 15 LAYOFF 


 


Section 15.1 Layoff 


In the event the Employers determine a layoff is necessary based upon insufficient funds, employees shall 


be laid off within each particular job classification and Department in the inverse order of their seniority 


unless compliance with State or Federal law requires otherwise. 


 


Section 15.2 Layoff Order 


Temporary and Part-Time employees and then probationary employees shall be laid off first, and then 


full-time employees shall be laid off in inverse order of their seniority. Individual employees shall receive 


notice in writing of the layoff not less than, thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such layoff.  


 


Section 15.3 Recall 


Employees shall be recalled from layoff within each particular job class according to their seniority. No 


new employee at all shall be hired until all employees on layoff in that particular job classification 


desiring to return to work shall have been given the opportunity to return to work. Recall rights under this 


provision shall terminate twenty-four (24) months after layoff. 


 


ARTICLE 16 HOLIDAYS 


 


Section 16.1 Paid Holidays 


Employees not working on a holiday shall receive twelve (12) ten (10) or eight (8) hours pay as holiday 


pay depending on their scheduled shift. All employees covered by this Agreement shall receive the below 


designated holidays and any additional holidays as set annually by the Ogle County Board. The Sheriff 


retains the right to schedule employees off on the aforementioned, additional holidays. The following 


days shall be designated as paid holidays: 


 


New Year's Day  Labor Day 


Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday  Columbus Day 


Lincoln’s Birthday  Veteran's Day 


Washington's Birthday  Thanksgiving Day 


Spring Holiday  Day after Thanksgiving 


Memorial Day  Christmas Day 


Independence Day 


 


Section 16.2 Pay for Holiday Work 


Employees required to work a holiday shall be paid time and one-half (1+1/2) pay for all hours worked in 


addition to their base pay.  Employees regularly scheduled to work on a holiday who actually report to 


work shall not be sent home without consent of the employee. The aforementioned holidays referred to in 


Section 16.1 shall be paid at the employee’s discretion as compensatory time or overtime. 
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ARTICLE 17 VACATIONS 


 


Section 17.1 Vacation Leave 


All full-time employees shall earn vacation time. Employees on leave of absence, suspension or layoff 


shall not accrue vacation time. Eligible employees shall earn vacation time in accordance with the 


following schedule: 


 


After 1 Year 1 week to be taken in the second year 


After 2 Years 2 weeks for the third and subsequent years 


After 7 Years 3 weeks for the eighth and subsequent 


After 12 Years 4 weeks for the thirteenth and subsequent 


After 15 Years 4 weeks for the sixteenth year 


After 16 Years 4 weeks and 1 day 


After 17 Years 4 weeks and 2 days 


After 18 Years 4 weeks and 3 days 


After 19 Years 4 weeks and 4 days 


After 20 Years 5 weeks  


After 21 Years 5 weeks and one (1) day 


After 22 Years 5 weeks and two (2) days 


After 23 Years 5 weeks and three (3) days 


After 24 Years 5 weeks and four (4) days 


After 25 Years 5 weeks and five (5) days 


 


Section 17.2 Vacation Pay 


All vacation leave will be paid for at the regular hourly rate and on the basis of their weekly work 


schedule. In the discretion of the Sheriff and subject to available budget Funds, an employee may 


annually redeem up to one (1) week's vacation for pay in exceptional circumstances. 


 


Section 17.3 Vacation Requests 


To get priority for vacation (except for an occasional day which is taken as vacation leave) all employees 


must submit, in writing, to the Sheriff, a schedule of desired vacation on a quarterly basis, vacation 


requests shall be made at least fifteen (15) days in advance of the posting of the work schedule. Conflicts 


in scheduling will be resolved in favor of the most senior employee in rank. At least five (5) days notice 


shall be given for a one (1) day leave. No employee shall be entitled to priority in selecting their vacation 


for more than two (2) weeks in each calendar year. No more than one (1) employee from each shift may 


be on vacation at the same time. The Sheriff agrees vacation request shall not be unreasonably denied and 


further agrees to make every effort to respond to vacation request in a timely manner. 


 


Section 17.4 Termination 


Any employee who has completed their probationary period who terminates County employment shall be 


paid for their accumulated vacation days at the rate of pay currently received by said employee. Any 


unused vacation days in the year of termination shall be pro-rated. 


  


Section 17.5 Vacation Eligibility 


No employee shall be entitled to any vacation, or pay therefore, until the employee has been on the 


payroll for a continuous period of at least twelve (12) months and has satisfactorily completed their 


probationary period. Vacation with pay will not be granted before vacation time has been earned. 
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Section 17.6 Cancelled Vacation 


If a properly scheduled vacation must be cancelled by the Sheriff, the employee shall be paid their normal 


hourly rate for the lost vacation time. The Sheriff or designee shall grant the vacation be rescheduled 


either the same calendar year or the following year. 


 


Section 17.7 Vacation Pay Advance 


If a regular payday falls during an employee's vacation and the employee is to be on vacation for two (2) 


weeks or longer, the employee will be entitled to receive that check in advance before going on vacation. 


An employee must make a request to the Sheriff for their check two (2) weeks before the payday if the 


employee expects to receive the check in advance. All authorized deductions due will be taken out of 


vacation checks at the time of issue. 


 


ARTICLE 18 SICK LEAVE 


 


Section 18.1 Sick Leave 


Accumulated unused sick leave upon retirement shall be credited to additional retirement benefits under 


IMRF. Sick leave shall be deducted on an hour for hour basis. Employees shall accumulate sick leave as 


follows: 


        


A. Years of Service      Accrual Per Month            Maximum Sick 


                  Leave Accumulation 


    8 Hr. Shift 12 Hr. Shift 


 0-1   4 Hours   9 Hours  6 duty days 


 Over 1 Year  8 Hours 10 Hours  Unlimited 


 


Section 18.2 Use of Sick Leave 


No employee will be permitted to take sick leave that has not yet been earned. Sick leave may be taken 


after six (6) months of employment for the following reasons:  Any illness an employee may contract or 


any exposure to a contagious disease the employee may experience in which the health of others may be 


endangered by their attendance at duty or an illness of the immediate family, spouse, child, mother, father, 


or the employee's grandparents. For compensable injury or illness, to supplement the Worker's 


Compensation benefits, to equal such employee's regular rate of pay charged against sick leave bank. Any 


non-duty connected disability an employee may sustain, except for an injury that may be sustained while 


being in the employ of another during their off duty time which is covered by Worker's Compensation 


furnished by the other Employer. 


 


Section 18.3 Medical Leave 


 


(a)  Physician's Verification: A doctor's written verification may be required as evidence of an 


employee or family illness or any injury prevented the employee’s attendance at work for a period in 


excess of three (3) continuous days or in cases of multiple absences due to sick leave. Falsification of 


such evidence will be sufficient cause of disciplinary action. 


 


(b)  Sick Leave During Vacation: If an employee becomes ill while on vacation, the use of sick leave 


shall be granted only if written proof from a doctor is submitted describing the illness, the length of 


incapacity and further evidenced by a receipted bill for services of the attending physician. The employee 


shall return to work on the originally scheduled date unless that date is changed by their supervisor. 
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(c)  Medical Examination:  Employees suffering from a chronic or recurring illness necessitating 


absences in excess of the absences for which sick pay is payable may, at the Sheriff's option, be required 


to submit to an examination by a physician chosen by the Sheriff. If corrective surgery or other therapy is 


recommended to remedy or alleviate such illness and the employee does not submit to such surgery or 


therapy within reasonable time, the employee may be discharged due to such physical disability. 


 


Section 18.4 Sick Leave Abuse Sanctions 


For the purposes of the provisions contained in this Article "abuse" of sick leave is the utilization of such 


for reasons other than those stated in Article 18: Section 18.2. In the case of the abuse of such sick leave, 


the employee shall not be paid for such leave taken nor shall the employee accrue any rights such as 


seniority or other rights. "Abuse" of sick leave shall subject the employee to disciplinary action pursuant 


to the terms of this Agreement. All employees agree to cooperate fully with the Department in verifying 


illness. 


 


Section 18.5 Termination 


Covered employees, upon termination with the proper two (2) weeks notice and who have five (5) years 


of completed service through eight (8) years of service will be compensated for all hours at their straight 


time pay for each unused accumulated sick hours, at their current rate of pay. Covered employees, who do 


not have five (5) years completed service or quits without the proper notice with or without, the five (5) 


years of completed service or who are discharged for just cause will not be entitled to any compensation 


of accumulated sick pay. 


 


ARTICLE 10 LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY 


 


Section 19.1 Leave of Absence Definition 


The Sheriff may grant leaves of absence in his sole discretion. For the purpose of this Agreement, a leave 


of absence without pay shall be defined as all time for which a County employee is to be continued as an 


employee but not paid whether it be one (1) day or the maximum time allowable under the reason for the 


leave. When an employee is granted a leave of absence without pay, the Sheriff commits to allowing the 


employee to return to work at the end of the leave to the same duties and the same salary that the 


employee was performing and earning when the employee went on leave. Any substitutes hired to fill in 


for employees on leaves of absence without pay should be hired accordingly, and laid off or discharged at 


the return of the employee on leave. If the employee’s position is eliminated by the County Board or State 


or federal enactment during his leave, the employee shall be placed first on the recall list for a vacancy in 


the Department for which the employee is qualified. When granted a leave of absence without pay, the 


employee commits to return to work at the end of the leave. 


 


Section 19.2 Effect of Leaves Without Pay 


 


(a)  Does not receive pay from the County.  


(b) Does not earn annual vacation leave. 


(c) Does not earn sick leave. 


(d)  Has no time deducted from the employees’ annual vacation leave or sick leave to cover the time 


off on the leave of absence without pay. 


(e)  The employee does not earn any additional credit for seniority but retains the length of seniority 


credited at the beginning of the leave. 


(f)  Remains a member of the Illinois Municipal Retirement System but cannot withdraw retirement 


contributions while on leave of absence, only on separation, and cannot pay retirement 


contributions. 


(g)  The employee does not earn credit toward longevity pay, if any, or credit toward the rate of annual 


vacation leave or sick leave accumulation for the period covered by the leave. 
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(h)  Must pay any group hospitalization premiums falling due during any month which the employee 


has not worked the minimum hours required by the County insurance carrier. (Employees on such 


leave should contact payroll.) 


 


Section 19.3 Types of Leave Without Pay 


 


A. To cover time off because of personal illness beyond that covered by earned sick leave with pay. 


 


1.  To be used when the employee has exhausted their accumulations of earned sick leave with 


pay and earned annual vacation leave.  


2. Not to exceed six (6) months for any one (1) leave, but may be renewed. 


3.  To be granted only on the written recommendation of the employee's physician and subject 


to the Sheriff verifying the supplied information by a medical professional chosen by 


Sheriff. 


 


B. To cover time off because of a compensable injury beyond that covered by sick leave with pay and 


annual vacation leave with pay.  


 


C.  To cover time off while running for County elected office filled by partisan election. If such leave 


is requested, except no more than two (2) leaves may be granted for the purpose of running for 


elected office in any one (1) calendar year and each leave must be no less than fifteen (15) 


calendar days nor more than thirty (30) calendar days. 


 


D.  To cover disciplinary leaves (suspension without pay).  


 


E.  To cover time off because of personal reasons. Such leave requires the approval of the Sheriff and 


may not exceed six (6) months. 


 


Section 19.4 Return from a Leave Without Pay 


If an employee fails to return to County employment within three (3) days at the end of a leave of absence 


without pay, and no extension of the leave is granted, the employee must submit a resignation from 


County service. Failure to contact the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee at the end of the leave shall be 


grounds for labeling the separation from County service a voluntary resignation. During any leave granted 


pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, regardless of being with or without pay, any employee may not 


be gainfully employed or independently self-employed without prior approval by the Sheriff. Violation of 


the provisions contained within this Agreement shall subject the employee to immediate discharge and 


loss of all benefits and rights accrued pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  


 


Section 19.5 Family and Medical Leave Act 


The provisions of the Ogle County Personnel Policies as applied to the Family and Medical Leave Act are 


hereby adopted by reference.  Said policies shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Family 


and Medical Leave Act of 1993 and any Federal regulations adopted there under, as they may be amended 


from time to time. 


 


ARTICLE 20 PAID AND SPECIAL LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 


Section 20.1 Bereavement Leave 


Employees will be granted up to three (3) days leave with no loss of compensation because of the death of 


the employee's spouse, child, step-child, parent, step-parent, sister, brother, mother-in-law, father-in-law, 


grandchild, grandparents, or anyone who raised the employee from childhood. One (1) day with pay may 


be granted for a military funeral in which an employee is an official participant. In the event of lengthy 
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travel or for deaths of other than the immediate family, vacation days, compensatory time or sick leave to 


a maximum of three (3) days may be used, in addition to the above and subject to the operating needs of 


the Office. Written proof of relationship, death and/or funeral location may be required by the Sheriff 


prior to final approval of such leave. 


 


Section 20.2 Jury Duty Leave 


Employees on jury duty on scheduled work days shall be paid the wages the employee would have earned 


by working during straight time hours for the Employers on that day, for each day on which the employee 


reports for or performs jury duty and on which the employee otherwise would have been scheduled for 


work for the Employers. Such time will not be charged against the employee's annual leave or sick leave. 


An employee on a jury panel or appearing as a witness shall return to work for the balance of the day 


when the employee is excused by the court from further attendance. All monies of any kind paid to the 


member of the bargaining unit who is called for jury duty shall be signed off to the County of Ogle for the 


member of the bargaining unit to receive the benefits of this Section. 


 


Section 20.3 Maternity Leave 


Employees who become disabled due to pregnancy shall be entitled to use the benefits, vacation, 


compensatory time, sick leave or Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund disability leave subject to the 


following: 


 


A. An employee will not be allowed to return to work after delivery until she has supplied the Sheriff 


with a statement from her physician that she is physically and medically able to return to her 


duties as a County employee. A copy of this statement shall be forwarded to the personnel 


Department. 


 


B. In any case, if an employee has not returned to work within two (2) months after delivery, she 


shall provide a doctor's statement substantiating her continued disability and expected date of 


recovery. Employees failing to comply with this Section or failing to return to work when found 


able by their physician will be separated from County employment. 


 


C. Those employees desiring IMRF disability leave must meet the qualifications of IMRF for such 


leave. The Sheriff shall have the right to verify the condition of a member of the bargaining unit 


who seeks the benefits of this Article; such verification by a medical professional to be paid solely 


by the Sheriff's Office. 


 


Section 20.4 Personal Days 


Covered employees shall be allowed up to three (3) days of leave annually without loss of compensation 


for personal reasons. Employees must utilize personal days within the year they are granted or the 


personal days will be forfeited. In the event due to operational needs, an employee is denied personal 


days, that employee may carry over the time that was denied. 


 


ARTICLE 21 HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME 


 


Section 21.1 Workday, Work Period and Work Schedules 


Each employee shall be allowed a paid thirty (30) minute meal period per normal workday. This meal 


shall be considered out of service time during which the employee will be subject to priority calls. 


Employees will be allowed to take periodic breaks as long as they are not out of service and properly 


perform their duties. The work period is defined as a regularly recurring period of twenty-eight (28) days. 


An employee will be assigned to work up to one hundred seventy-one (171) hours in each work period. 


Employees working a twelve (12) hour day shall work fourteen (14) shifts each twenty-eight (28) days.  


Employees working a ten (10) hour day shall work a shift for four (4) consecutive days followed by three 
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(3) consecutive days off.  Employees working an eight (8) hour day shall work five (5) consecutive days 


followed by two (2) consecutive days off. Bargaining Unit members shall continue to rotate shifts. For 


purposes of determining shift and days off preference, seniority shall be applied in the bidding process. 


The current practice of trading shifts among members assigned to the same division with the advance 


knowledge of their supervisor shall continue for the term of the Agreement. Work schedules showing the 


employee's normal shifts, work days and hours shall be posted on all department bulletin boards at all 


times, at least fourteen (14) days prior to the beginning of schedule. In the event a need arises to alter the 


work schedule due to emergency and/or unanticipated reasons, the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee shall 


endeavor to provide at least a forty-eight (48) hour notice to the affected employee unless mutually 


waived by the affected employee. 


 


Section 21.2 Overtime Payment and Procedure 


All approved overtime in excess of one hundred seventy-one (171) hours required of an employee by 


reason of the employee's regular twenty-eight (28) day work period, holiday and vacation time off shall be 


counted as compensated hours and bargaining unit members shall receive time and one-half (1+1/2) times 


their actual hourly rate of pay for work performed in excess of that employee's regular work hours in a 


given work period. With the exception of sick leave all hours worked or paid as if worked shall count 


toward overtime accrual. Compensatory time may be paid in lieu of overtime payment if the employee in 


his discretion so elects. Compensatory time will be calculated at the same rate as overtime pay. Overtime 


rate shall be computed on the basis of completed fifteen (15) minutes segments. Bargaining Unit 


members, as part of their regularly scheduled shift are required to report for work ten (10) minutes prior to 


their regular scheduled starting time. 


 


Section 21.3 Compensatory Time 


Unused compensatory time may be accumulated. On the first payday in December of each year, the 


Employers shall compensate employees for all unused compensatory time accumulated in excess of one 


hundred-fifty (150) hours. Subject to operating needs, the Sheriff may direct employees to utilize 


compensatory time that has accumulated beyond one hundred-fifty (150) hours. Employees may utilize 


compensatory time at their request, subject to operating needs. Any compensatory time earned shall be 


paid at the rate of time and one-half (1+1/2) for each hour earned. Compensatory time shall be granted at 


such times and in such time blocks as are mutually agreed upon between the involved employee and his 


supervisor; permission to utilize compensatory time off shall not be unreasonably denied by the 


supervisor if operating requirements will not be adversely affected. The Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee 


agrees to endeavor to approve compensatory time within forty-eight (48) hours of the written submission 


by the officer. Compensatory time off shall be granted in blocks of the employee's normal tour of duty 


agreed upon between the employee and the supervisor or in increments of one (1) hour. All extra work 


will be posted whenever possible. 


 


Section 21.4 Rest Periods 


Employees shall be granted a minimum of eight (8) hours rest before having to report to duty if working 


in eight (8) hour shift. If the employee is called or scheduled to come back to work before the eight (8) 


hour rest time, the employee is eligible for those hours as overtime that would be the difference. The 


Employer will not send the employee home to prevent from paying overtime. 


 


Section 21.5 Court and Call-Back Time 


All employees who are required to report or work other than their regular scheduled shift, will receive a 


minimum of two (2) hours guarantee at time and one-half (1-1/2) their appropriate rate of pay called for 


under the terms of this Agreement. All employees required too appear in court in connection with their 


duties or where the County is a party in any legal proceeding which occurs outside their regularly 


scheduled shift shall receive a guaranteed minimum of two (2) hours at time and one-half (1+1/2) their 


appropriate rate of pay called for under the terms of this Agreement. 
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Section 21.6 Overtime Distribution 


In the event of an emergency being declared by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee, as many of the 


employees shall be continued on duty for such number of hours as may be necessary. Overtime shall be 


distributed in accordance with current practice for all voluntary overtime. Special duty assignments, 


prisoner transport and similar work will be offered, posted, to full-time personnel before Part-Time 


personnel. Detectives may become involved in active case prisoner transport. 


 


Section 21.7 Third Party Work 


All requests from other persons, agencies or public bodies for off-duty personnel to work where the 


source of compensation is not Ogle County shall be posted for volunteer sign up. In the event bargaining 


unit personnel do not volunteer to work such duty, this posting requirement shall thereafter be null and 


void. 


 


Section 21.8 Premium Rate of Exception 


Overtime rates shall not be paid when more than a regular shift in a twenty-four (24) hour period is 


worked as a result of regular shift changes or as a result of employees trading shifts for their own 


convenience. 


 


Section 21.9 Stand-By Pay 


For every two (2) hours an employee is on stand-by, he will receive one (1) hour pay. 


 


ARTICLE 22 WAGES/COMPENSATION/ALLOWANCES  


 


Section 22.1 Wages 


During the term of this Agreement, employees in the bargaining unit shall be paid according to the 


schedules hereto attached. Only employees employed as of December 1, 2010 shall be eligible for 


retroactive pay. 


 


Section 22.2 Uniforms 


 


A. Uniforms shall continue to be furnished by the Employer in accordance with past practice. 


 


B.  The Employer agrees to maintain accounts with cleaning and laundry establishments to provide 


for dry cleaning and laundering uniforms, the expense of which shall not exceed four hundred 


dollars ($400.00) per year for each employee. Billings for such shall be made directly to the 


Employer by the vendor. 


 


Section 22.3 Clothing Allowance 


 


A. Detectives shall be allowed up to one-hundred dollars ($100.00) per month for clothing allowance.  


 


B. Cleaning allowance shall be the same as Section 22.2 (B) above. 
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ARTICLE 23 INSURANCE AND PENSION 


 


Section 23.1 Health Insurance 


The County shall provide group health insurance coverage at a substantially equivalent level of benefits as 


in effect on November 8, 2010.  The County will pay seventy-five percent (75%) of the premium or 


premium equivalent and the employee will pay the remaining twenty-five percent (25%) for the following 


types of coverage offered: a) employee; b) employee plus one (1) dependent; c) employee plus two (2) or 


more dependents. 


 


Section 23.2 Pension 


Employers shall continue to contribute on behalf of the employees to the Illinois Municipal Retirement 


Fund in the amount the Employers are required to contribute by State Statute. 


 


Section 23.3 Health Insurance Payments for Retirees 


The County shall begin to contribute fifty percent (50%) of the cost of single health insurance coverage 


through the County policy when the employee retires after at least meeting the minimum age and time 


statutory requirement of their pension Fund, or retires on a duty related disability pension.  This 


contribution shall continue until the employee reaches the age at which Medicare coverage begins.  An 


employee who collects a pension through IMRF shall have fifty percent (50%) of the cost of premiums 


paid by the County. 


 


ARTICLE 24 LABOR MANAGEMENT/SAFETY COMMITTEE 


 


Section 24.1 Labor Management Conferences 


The Union and the Employers mutually agree that in the interest of efficient management and harmonious 


employee relations, it is desirable that meetings be held between Union representatives and responsible 


administrative representatives of the Sheriff and County Board. The Employers and the Union agree to 


cooperate with each other in matters of the administration of this Agreement, and to the degree that 


standards of law enforcement can be maintained for the maximum protection of the citizens of the State of 


Illinois. To effectuate the purposes and intent of the parties, both parties agree to meet as necessary. Such 


meetings may be requested at least seven (7) days in advance by either party by placing in writing a 


request to the other for a labor-management conference and expressly providing the agenda for such 


meetings and locations shall be limited to: 


 


(a) Discussion of the implementation and general administration of this Agreement. 


(b)  A sharing of general information of interest to the parties. 


(c) Notifying the Union of changes is non-bargaining conditions of employment contemplated by the 


Employers which may affect employees. The Union agrees to notify the Employers of non-


bargaining conditions of employment contemplated by the Union which may affect the 


Employers. 


(d) Discussion of pending grievances on a non-binding basis to attempt to adjust such grievances and 


to discuss procedures for avoiding further grievances. 


(e) Items concerning safety issues. 


 


Section 24.2 Integrity of Grievance Procedure 


It is expressly understood and agreed that such meetings shall be exclusive of the grievance procedure. 


Grievances being processed under the grievance procedure shall not be discussed in detail at labor 


management conferences, and any such discussion of a pending grievance shall be non-binding on either 


party and solely for the purpose of exploring alternatives to settle such grievances and such grievance 


discussion shall only be held by mutual agreement of the Employers and the Union, nor shall negotiations 


for the purpose of altering any or all of the terms of this Agreement be carried on at such meetings. 
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Section 24.3 Safety Issues 


Any report or recommendation which may be prepared by the Union or the Employers as a direct result of 


a labor management conference discussion will be in writing and copies shall be submitted to the 


Employers and the Union. 


 


Section 24.4 Union Representative Attendance 


When absence from work is required to attend labor management conferences, employees shall, before 


leaving their workstation, give reasonable notice to and receive approval from their supervisor in order to 


remain in pay status. Supervisors shall approve the absence except in emergency situations.  Employees 


attending such conferences shall be limited to two (2). 


 


ARTICLE 25 F.O.P. REPRESENTATIVES 


 


For the purposes of administering and enforcing the provisions of this Agreement, the Employer agrees as 


follows: 


 


Section 25.1 Attendance at Labor Council Meetings 


Subject to the need for orderly scheduling and emergencies, the Employers agrees that designated 


members of the Labor Council shall be permitted reasonable time off to attend general, board, or special 


meetings of the Labor Council, provided that at least forty-eight (48) hours notice of such meetings shall 


be given in writing to the Employer, and provided further that the names of all such officials and 


employees shall be certified in writing, to the Employer. Employees may utilize accumulated paid leave. 


 


Section 25.2 Grievance Processing 


Reasonable time while on duty shall be permitted Labor Council representatives for the purpose of aiding 


or assisting or otherwise representing employees in the handling and processing of grievances or 


exercising other rights set forth in this Agreement, and such reasonable time shall be without loss of pay. 


 


Section 25.3 F.O.P. Delegates 


Any employee(s) chosen as delegate(s) to an F.O.P. State or National Conference will, upon written 


application approved by the Labor Council and submitted to the Employer with at least fourteen (14) days 


notice, be given an approved paid leave utilizing accumulated paid leave for the period of time required to 


attend such convention or conference. This period of time shall not exceed two (2) workdays annually. No 


more than two (2) employees per bargaining unit may take leave as a delegate under this provision. 


 


Section 25.4 Labor Council Negotiating Team 


Members designated as being on the Labor Council negotiating team who are scheduled to work on a day 


on which negotiations will occur, shall, for the purpose of attending scheduled negotiations, be excused 


from their regular duties without loss of pay. If a designated Labor Council negotiating team member is in 


regular day off status on the day of negotiations, the employee will not be compensated for attending the 


session. 


  


ARTICLE 26 GENERAL PROVISIONS 


 


Section 26.1 Use of Masculine Pronoun 


The use of the masculine pronoun in this or any other document is understood to be for clerical 


convenience only, and it is further understood that the masculine pronoun includes the feminine pronoun 


as well. 
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Section 26.2 Work Rules 


Work rules of the Ogle County Sheriff which are not specifically in conflict with this Agreement shall 


continue in full force and effect. 


 


Section 26.3 Disability Income 


Any Patrol Deputy, Correctional Officer or Detective covered by the terms of this Agreement who is 


legitimately absent from work on account of injury or illness incurred while acting in the line of duty for 


any period not exceeding twelve (12) months shall receive full pay and benefits for this period of absence, 


provided by such injury or illness. The Employer agrees to abide by the provisions of 5 ILCS 345/1. 


 


Section 26.4 Worker’s Compensation 


The Employers agree to cooperate toward the prompt settlement of employee's on-the-job injury and 


sickness claims when such claims are due and owing. The Employers shall provide worker s 


compensation protection for all employees. Employees on compensable injury under Worker's 


Compensation may use sick leave or annual vacation leave to make up the difference between Worker's 


Compensation benefits and the employee's regular wage, less deductions. Employees on compensable 


injury placed on a leave of absence shall continue to accumulate seniority. 


 


Section 26.5 Unemployment Compensation 


The Employers will provide for all employees of the bargaining unit unemployment compensation as 


prescribed by law. Such unemployment compensation shall provide the maximum coverage by law for 


each employee of the bargaining unit. 


 


Section 26.6 Unsafe Equipment 


 


A.  The Employers shall not require employees to take out on the streets or highway any vehicle that 


is not in safe operating condition or equipped with the safety appliances prescribed by law. If an 


employee refuses to operate said equipment without justification, said employee may be subject to 


disciplinary action, including discharge. "Justification" shall mean that the operation of the vehicle 


would cause proximate danger to the employee or the public as determined by a mechanic, or, in 


the event of dispute, by another mechanic both being from an established garage or dealership. 


 


B.  The Employers shall not require a member of this bargaining unit to use, operate or carry any 


equipment that is in disrepair, which malfunctions, or is unsafe where such disrepair, malfunction 


or unsafe status would result in proximate danger to the employee or the public in the assigned 


activity. 


 


Section 26.7 Loss or Damage by Employee 


Employees shall not be charged for loss or damage to Employer's equipment and/or property unless a 


preponderance of the evidence shows negligence. 


 


Section 26.8 Accidents 


Any employee involved in any accident shall immediately report said accident and any physical, injury 


sustained to their command Officer. When required by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee, the employee, 


before ending his current shift, on forms provided by the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s designee, shall make out 


an accident report, in writing, and shall turn in all available names and addresses of witnesses to any 


accidents. Failure to comply with this provision shall subject such employee to disciplinary action by the 


Sheriff. 
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Section 26.9 Equipment Reports 


 


A.  Employees shall immediately, (or at least by the end of their shift), report all defects of equipment. 


Such report shall be made on a suitable form furnished by the Sheriff and shall be made in 


multiple copies; one (1) copy to be retained by the employee. 


 


B.  When the occasion arises where an employee gives written report on forms in use by the Sheriff of 


a vehicle being in an unsafe operating condition for the assigned activity, and receives no 


consideration from the Sheriff, the employee shall take the matter up with the Officers of the 


Union who will take the matter up with the Sheriff. 


 


Section 26.10 Individual Agreements 


Absent written authorization from the Union, the joint Employers herein are prohibited from entering into 


individual agreements with covered employees that are contrary to the express provisions of this 


Agreement. 


 


Section 26.11 Union Copy 


County agrees to mail to the Union a copy of any proposed policy change prior to implementation. 


 


ARTICLE 27 SAVINGS CLAUSE 


 


If any provision of this Agreement or any application thereof should be rendered or declared unlawful 


invalid or unenforceable by virtue of any judicial action, or by any existing or subsequently enacted 


Federal or State legislation, or by Executive Order or other competent authority, the remaining provisions 


of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. In such event, upon the request of either party, the 


parties shall meet promptly and negotiate with respect to substitute provisions for those provisions 


rendered or declared unlawful, invalid or unenforceable. 


 


ARTICLE 28 COMPLETE AGREEMENT 


 


The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded this Agreement, each had 


the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter 


not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining. The understandings and agreements arrived at 


by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. 
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ARTICLE 29 DURATION AND SIGNATURE 


 


This Agreement shall be effective from December 1, 2010, and shall remain in full force and effect until 


November 30, 2013. It shall continue in effect from year to year thereafter unless notice of "Demand to 


Bargain” is given in writing by certified mail by either party to the other not more than one-hundred and 


twenty (120) days nor less than ninety (90) days prior to expiration. The notices referred to shall be 


considered to have been given on the date shown on the postmark. Written notice may be tendered in 


person, in which case the data of notice shall be the written date of receipt. 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signature this    day of  


  , 2010. 


 


FOR THE EMPLOYER:   FOR THE UNION: 


         


  


        


Ed Rice                                                                       Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson                                           Illinois FOP, Labor Council 


 


 


        


Gregory A. Beitel                                                       Brian Ketter 


Ogle County Sheriff                           


                         ______________________________ 


                                                                                    Gerda Clark 


______________________________ 


Michael Harn                         ______________________________ 


Sheriff-Elect of Ogle County                                      Michal Schabacker 
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WAGE SCHEDULE 


 


The pay for all employees with the rank of Corporal shall be five percent (5%) above the wage of the top 


seniority pay of a Deputy and Sergeant shall be ten (10%) above the wage of the top seniority pay of a 


Deputy. Fiscal Year (FY) begins on December 1st of each year.  


 


Shift Premium: For all shifts other than Day Shift & Detective is $0.75 cents per hour.  


 


 


 


 


CORPORAL 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


  $64,452  $65,741  $67,056  


 


 


 


SERGEANT 


Year FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 


  12/1/2010 12/1/2011 12/1/2012 


        


  $67,521  $68,872  $70,249  
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SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT  


REGARDING THE HEALTH INSURANCE COMMITTEE 
 


 


The County of Ogle/Sheriff of Ogle County agree that the Union will be permitted to designate one 


employee representative to attend meetings of the County’s Health Insurance Committee to represent the 


interests of the bargaining unit represented by the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council.  If the 


representative is on duty, time spent by the representative attending the meeting shall be paid time. 


 


 


FOR THE EMPLOYER   FOR THE UNION 


         


        


Ed Rice                                                                       Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson                                           Illinois FOP, Labor Council 


 


        


Gregory A. Beitel                                                       Brian Ketter 


Sheriff of Ogle County 


 


                               


______________________________                        Gerda Clark 


Michael Harn                          


Sheriff-Elect of Ogle County 


                                                                                          


                                                                                    Michael Schabacker 
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APPENDIX A 


DUES AUTHORIZATION FORM 


ILLINOIS FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE 


LABOR COUNCIL 


974 CLOCKTOWER DRIVE 


SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62704 


 


 


I,         , hereby authorize my Joint 


Employers, Sheriff of Ogle County and the County of Ogle, to deduct from my wages the uniform amount 


of monthly dues set by the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, for expenses connected with 


the cost of negotiating and maintaining the collective bargaining agreement between the parties and to 


remit such dues to the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council as it may from time to time direct. 


(In addition, I authorize my Employer to deduct from wages any back dues owed to the Illinois Fraternal 


Order of Police Labor Council from the date of its certification as exclusive bargaining representative to 


the date this dues deduction is implemented, in such manner as it so directs.) 


 


Date:     Signed:       


     Address:       


     City:        


     State:   Zip:     


     Telephone:       


Employment Start Date:      


Title:        


---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 


Employer, please remit all dues deductions to: 


 


Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council 


Attn: Accounting 


974 Clock Tower Drive 


Springfield, Illinois  62704 


 


(217) 698-9433 


 


Dues remitted to the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council are not tax deductible as charitable 


contributions for federal income tax purposes; however, they may be deductible on Schedule A of Form 


1040 as a miscellaneous deduction. 
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APPENDIX B GRIEVANCE 
 


 Date Filed:   


 Department:   


       


Grievant's Name:      


  Last First M.I. 
  


STEP ONE 


Date of Incident or Date Knew of Facts Giving Rise to Grievance:  


Article(s)/Sections(s) violated:   


Briefly state the facts:   


  


  


  


  


  


 


Remedy Sought:   


  


  


 


Given To:     Date:  


         


 Grievant's Signature  FOP Representative Signature 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


 


         


 Employer Representative Signature   Position 


      
 Person to Whom Response Given   Date  
  


STEP TWO 
 


Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:  


    
 Grievant's Signature FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


    
 Person to Whom Response Given Date 
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STEP THREE 
Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:   


     
 Grievant's Signature FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


    
 Person to Whom Response Given Date 


 


 


STEP FOUR 
Reasons for Advancing Grievance:   


  


Given To:  Date:  


 


    


 Grievant's Signature     FOP Representative Signature 


 


EMPLOYER'S RESPONSE 
  


  


  


 


    


 Employer Representative Signature Position 


 


    


 Person to Whom Response Given Date 


 


 


REFERRAL TO ARBITRATION by Illinois FOP Labor Council 


 


    
Person to Whom Referral Given   Date 
 


  
FOP Labor Council Representative  
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APPENDIX C 


SENIORITY LIST 


SERGEANTS AND CORPORALS UNIT 


 


    Corrections 


    Laura Armour  08/28/90 


    Gerda Clark  11/15/90 


    Jeannifer Ashley 02/04/92 


    Mildred Hose  05/01/01 


 


    Patrol 


    Michael Schabacker 02/10/92 


    James Messer  08/22/95 


    Danny White  04/01/98 


    Jason Ketter  12/04/00 


 


    Detective  


    Kenneth Wendt 05/16/94 


                                                Brian Ketter  08/17/98 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Effective December 1, 2010 
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APPENDIX D 


ELECTION WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM FOR SERGEANTS AND CORPORALS 


 


THE EMPLOYEE IS TO EXECUTE ONE (1) OPTION, BUT NOT BOTH, OF THE 


FOLLOWING OPTIONS IN ORDER TO ELECT THE FORUM IN WHICH TO APPEAL 


DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS. 


 


The Sheriff of Ogle County and the County of Ogle and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor 


Council have negotiated an alternative procedure and process based upon the Dispute Resolution and 


Grievance Procedure provisions of this Agreement, and the foregoing provisions with respect to the 


appeal and review of disciplinary action or discharge. The employee upon written notification of the 


disciplinary action has ten (10) business days, Saturday, Sunday and holidays shall be excluded, to select 


via the Election Waiver and Release Form; Appendix D, the option the employee has selected to appeal 


the disciplinary action.  Once the employee has made the election, no changes will be allowed and such 


denoted Election Waiver and Release Form constitutes a waiver to use the other appeal process not 


selected.  The parties agree (Sheriff of Ogle County/Ogle County) that the Sheriff or the Sheriff’s agent 


for the Employers has the right to implement disciplinary action up to and including termination of a 


covered member for just cause only. Once the employee has selected the desired option, no processing, 


review, implementation or relief shall be available per the option not selected and such shall act as a 


waiver and release from using the other option not selected.  


 


OPTION 1: ELECTION TO USE THE DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCE 


ARBITRATION PROCEDURE IN THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 


AGREEMENT AND TO WAIVE USING THE OGLE COUNTY SHERIFF’S 


OFFICE MERIT COMMISSION APPEAL PROCESS: 


 


I,       , being proposed for discipline by the Sheriff (including 


suspension from duty with or without pay, disciplinary demotion or termination of employment) hereby 


elect to pursue a grievance over such discipline according to the appropriate provisions of the Collective 


Bargaining Agreement between the County of Ogle/Ogle County Sheriff, and the Illinois Fraternal Order 


of Police Labor Council. I acknowledge that by making this election to use the Dispute Resolution and 


Grievance Arbitration Procedure in the Collective Bargaining Agreement to appeal the discipline, I am 


waiving the rights and remedies of the alternative review or appeal procedure available to me by the Ogle 


County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission Act (55 ILCS 5/3-8001 et seq.  Furthermore, I acknowledge 


and agree that execution of the Election Waiver and Release Form shall be a prerequisite to processing of 


any grievance concerning the disciplinary action of me by the Sheriff.  By selecting the grievance process 


alternative, I, and the parties to this agreement, acknowledge that the Sheriff has the right to unilaterally 


impose the discipline immediately, subject to possible later modification or reversal by an arbitrator. By 


election to file a grievance over my suspension (Paid or Unpaid), disciplinary demotion or discharge, I 


hereby release the County of Ogle, Ogle County Sheriff, the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit 


Commission and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, as well as their officers, directors, 


agents, employees, attorneys, and other representatives from any and all liability per my election. 
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OPTION 2: ELECTION TO USE THE OGLE COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE MERIT 


COMMISSION APPEAL PROCESS AND TO WAIVE USING THE DISPUTE 


RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCE ARBITRATION PROCEDURE IN THE 


COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 


 


I,       , being proposed for discipline by the Sheriff (including 


suspension from duty with or without pay, disciplinary demotion or termination of employment) hereby 


elect to pursue an appeal over such discipline according to the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit 


Commission Act (55 ILCS 5/3-8001 et seq. I acknowledge that by making this election to use the Ogle 


County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission Act (55 ILCS 5/3-8001 et seq.,  I am waiving the rights and 


remedies of the alternative review or appeal procedure available to me by the Dispute Resolution and 


Grievance Arbitration Procedure in the Collective Bargaining Agreement Furthermore, I acknowledge 


and agree that execution of the Election Waiver and Release Form shall be a prerequisite to processing of 


any appeal concerning the proposed discipline of me by the Sheriff.  By selecting the Ogle County 


Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission alternative, I hereby acknowledge that charges will be filed requesting 


my suspension without pay, disciplinary demotion or my termination to the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office 


Merit Commission. By election to appeal my suspension (Paid or Unpaid), disciplinary demotion or 


discharge with the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission, I hereby release the County of Ogle, 


Ogle County Sheriff, the Ogle County Sheriff’s Office Merit Commission and the Illinois Fraternal Order 


of Police Labor Council, as well as their officers, directors, agents, employees, attorneys, and other 


representatives from any and all liability per my election. 


 


Signed this _______ day of _______________, 20___. 


 


By:         


     Print Employee Name 


 


By: _______________________________________ 


      Signature of Employee 


 


Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______ day of ________________, 20____. 


                          Notary Public, Illinois.  


  


My commission expires     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Received by the Sheriff’s Office:_______________       , 200_ 


 


 


Cc. Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council 


       Employee 


       File 
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LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 


 


This Agreement is entered into by the County of Ogle, a body politic, by its duly constituted County 


Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County, hereinafter also referred to as the "Employers", and the Illinois 


Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council, hereinafter also referred to as the "Union". The purpose of this 


Letter of Understanding is to address the wage agreement the parties have agreed covering the period 


from December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2011 only. The Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor 


Council and its membership (Patrol/Corrections Sergeants, Patrol/Corrections Corporals) have agreed to a 


temporary wage freeze only for the period covering December 1, 2010 through November, 30, 2011. The 


parties further agree, that effective December 1, 2011, and continuing all agreed to wage increases will be 


implemented as denoted on the wage schedule. The temporary freezing of the cola increase for the period 


covering (December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2011) does not constitute a precedent in future cola 


increases as negotiated in the Collective Bargaining Agreement. This Letter of Understanding provides 


for an orderly collective bargaining relationship between the Employers and the Union representing the 


employees in the bargaining unit, and to make clear this is a temporary agreement to freeze the cola 


increase for the term covering December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2011.  


 


The Ogle County Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County agree that no current full-time employee covered 


by the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be laid-off or reduced covering the period from October 29, 


2010 through November 30, 2011.  


 


The Ogle County Board and the Sheriff of Ogle County agree that the Health Insurance currently 


provided will not have any increases be implemented to covered staff, nor will any of the current benefit 


levels or employee out of pocket expenses increase above the current rates in place as of October 29th, 


2010 through November 30, 2011.  


  
In consideration of mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto, by 


their duly authorized representative do mutually covenant and agree.  


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signature this ______ day of December, 


2010. 


 


FOR THE EMPLOYER   FOR THE UNION 


         


        


Ed Rice                                                                       Kevin S. Krug 


Ogle County Chairperson                                           Illinois FOP, Labor Council 


 


        


Gregory A. Beitel                                                       Brian Ketter 


Sheriff of Ogle County 


 


                               


______________________________                        Gerda Clark 


Michael Harn                          


Sheriff-Elect of Ogle County 


                                                                                          


                                                                                    Michael Schabacker 
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Ogle County Finance & Insurance Committee Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday December 15, 2010  


 
Tentative Minutes 


 
1. Call to Order – at 2:30 by Chairman Hopkins 


 Members present:  Rice, Gronewold, Kenney, White, Saunders, Finfrock 
 Members absent:  none 
 Others present:  DeArvil, Heuer, Boes, Welty, Kilker, Barnes, Bauer, Coroner Lou Finch, Treasurer 


John Coffman, Marty Typer, Circuit Clerk Ron McDermott, Solid Waste Director Steve Rypkema, 
Greg Query 


 
2. Approval of Minutes: November 10, 2010 


 Motion by Rice 
 2nd by Kenney 
 Motion carried 


 
3. Approval of Bills -  


 Treasurer-  
o Motion  to approve $216.94 by Saunders 
o 2nd by Kenney 
o Motion carried 


 Finance & Administrator 
o Motion to approve $1873.00 by Kenney 
o 2nd by Gronewold 
o Motion carried 


 
4. Public Comment – None  


 
5. Insurance Report – Mr. Query distributed a report; making comment on one claim and mentioning that the 


annual review will be scheduled for the February meeting. Coffman explain an email from Group 
Administrators regarding some necessary amendments to our Flex Spending Summary Plan Description for 
compliance with new health care regulations; one was the age of dependents up to age 26 on the health flex 
spending side and 2 were regarding over-the-counter drug reimbursements. Motion by Rice to suspend 
County Board Rules of Order #25, 2nd by White. Roll call: yes – Kenney, White, Finfrock, Gronewold, 
Saunders, Rice, Hopkins; no – none, motion carried. Motion by Rice to accept recommendations by Group 
Administrators to amend flex spending summary per requirements by federal guidelines, 2nd by Finfrock. 
Motion carried. 
 


6. Finance Report – Coffman distributed end-of-year reports; he states that income was $1.950 million short. 
He also mentioned that the County will be receiving the State’s Attorney and Public Defender 
reimbursements. Hopkins states he is pleased to see the departments turn back unused money ($243,651 
unexpended). 
 


7. Administrator Report - None 
 


8. New Business –  
 Ogle County as Trustee Resolution –  


o Motion by Kenney 
o 2nd by Saunders 
o Roll call: yes – White, Finfrock, Gronewold, Saunders, Rice, Kenney, Hopkins; no – none. 


Motion carried. 







 2010 Senior Levy Revenue & Expense Difference – Coffman explains to the Committee the 
shortage of $785.48 from the 2nd payment. He mentions that we didn’t collect all the taxes that were 
levied; we were over on the trigger amount on Exelon and abated taxes on parcels. This will be an 
issue again next year. 


 Accelerated Bond Debt Repayment – Bauer presents a recommendation on how to pay off the 2004 
bonds on the Judicial Center and what savings will come from it. Discussion followed, more 
information will be presented. 


 Solid Waste Funds Usage – Bauer presented recommendation on increasing the minimum balance to 
2.5 million and putting a percentage on the General Fund Levy. Discussion followed. 
 


9. Old Business –  
 Kenney asks Coffman to clarify his situation with an employee performance payment; Coffman 


explains his actions. 
 Rice mentions that he received a telephone call from the Director of the Intermodal expressing the 


opportunity for board members to receive a tour of the facility. Further information will follow. 
 


10. Adjournment at 3:50 by Chairman Hopkins 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tiffany O’Brien 












STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS


COUNTY OF OGLE )


ORDINANCE NO.                                  


AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXTENSION OF THE RECORDING DATE OF THE
FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT OF “EAGLE RESERVE PLAT ONE”


WHEREAS, on June 17, 2008 the Ogle County Board adopted an ordinance approving the final
subdivision plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One” (County Board Ordinance No. 2008-6001); and


WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ogle County Land Subdivision Regulations, a final subdivision plat is
required to be recorded with the Ogle County Recorder within six (6) months of the date of approval by the Ogle
County Board; and


WHEREAS, on December 16, 2008 the Ogle County Board adopted an ordinance approving a twelve-
month extension of the recording dated of the final subdivision plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One”; and


WHEREAS, on December 15, 2009 the Ogle County Board adopted an ordinance approving a twelve-
month extension of the recording dated of the final subdivision plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One”; and


WHEREAS, Aarvig Development, LLC, the owner and developer of the aforementioned subdivision,
has filed a written request for an extension of the required extended recording date of the aforementioned final
subdivision plat; and


WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board has reviewed the written
request of Aarvig Development, LLC, and has recommended that an additional twelve (12) month extension of
the recording date of the final subdivision plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One” be granted.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF OGLE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, as follows:


SECTION ONE: The required recording date for the final subdivision plat of “Eagle Reserve Plat One”
is hereby extended for a period of twelve (12) months to December 30, 2011.


SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the County Board
of Ogle County, Illinois and attestation by the Ogle County Clerk.


PASSED BY THE COUNTY BOARD THIS 21ST DAY OF DECEMBER 2010 A.D.


                                                                                  
James Barnes, Chairman of the Ogle County Board


ATTEST:


                                                                              
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk and
Ex Officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board
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O g le  C o unty                                                                                             P: 815.732.1153 
G IS Pa rtne rsh ip                                                                                           
105 S.5th Stre e t; Suite 202                                                               
www.o g le c o untyg is.o rg  
O re g o n, IL 61061                                        
 
 


“IMPRO VED MAPPING  FO R INFO RMED DEC ISIO NS” 
 
 


 
Ogle County GIS Partnership Meeting 


 
Thursday, December 2nd, 2010 


Ogle County Courthouse 
Historical Room 


Fourth & Jefferson Streets 
Oregon, IL  61061 


 
A sign in sheet indicated the following representatives present:  


 
Susie Corbitt – City of Polo 
Meggon McKinley – Ogle County Administrator 
Kris Gilbert – Ogle County GIS Partnership, GIS Specialist 
Jim Harrison – Ogle County Assessor 
Larry Callant – Ogle County GIS Partnership, GIS Coordinator 
 
 
Meeting called to order @1:00 pm.  
 
 


Susie moved to accept September Meeting Minutes.  Meggon seconded.  Approved. 
 
We are sending a letter to the Ogle County Fire Chief’s Association  on Ogle County GIS 


Partnership participation.  Meggon moved to accept the letter.  Susie seconded.  
Approved. 


 
• New Membership/New Subscribers:  
 Oregon-Nashua Township 
 
 


 
• Project Status:  


 
1)  Disaster Mitigation Plan 


 
Ogle County has been developing a disaster mitigation plan for about a year.  We have 
provided tornado touchdown and path locations as well as critical facilities, flood plains, 
buildings in the flood plains, and critical infrastructure.  Some of the final 
recommendations were to enhance GIS with hardware and software upgrades. 







2) Sign Program 
The sign program has been completed.  Maps for the various entities have been produced 
and delivered. 
 


 
3) Andy Shaw, our GIS Intern from NIU, has completed his internship.  This internship was 


for a class therefore was it was a non-salary position.  Andy completed the realignment of 
the streams in Ogle County.  
 


4) GIS Website 
The GIS website has been refreshed.  We felt that a clean / streamlined look was needed. 


 
• New Business 


 
1) Fire Chief’s Association Letter 


In the past, we worked with the various Fire Districts / Departments thru the Ogle County 
Fire Chief’s Association.  Due to the varying needs of each Fire District it was 
determined that an individual approach was the best way to fill those needs.   


 
2) ArcGIS Web Server 


We are developing a new website for our GIS Partnership members.  This site will allow 
our member to view / access / modify their GIS information.  This will enhance our 
ability to offer immediate update mapping to our partnership. 
 


3) Future Meeting Dates and Locations: 
 
Thursday, March 10th, 2011 
Flagg Township 
Conference Room 
303 W. Hwy 38 
Rochelle, IL 61068 
 
Thursday, June 9th, 2011 
Byron City Hall 
Council Chambers 
232 W. Second Street 
Byron, IL 61010  


Thursday, Sept, 8th, 2011 
Polo City Hall 
Council Chambers  
115 South Franklin Avenue 
Polo, IL  61064 


 
Thursday, December 8th, 2011 
Ogle County Courthouse 
History Room, 3rd Floor 
105 S. 5th  Street 
Oregon, IL  61061 


 
 


 
 
 


Larry Callant 
GIS Coordinator 
 
 
  





		Ogle County GIS Partnership Meeting

		Meeting called to order @1:00 pm.

		Disaster Mitigation Plan






STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS


COUNTY OF OGLE )


ORDINANCE NO.                                  


AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8580 N LIMESTONE ROAD, MONROE TOWNSHIP


WHEREAS, Terry Myers, 8580 N. Limestone Rd., Rockford, IL has filed a petition for a
Special Use Permit in the AG-1 Agricultural District (Petition No. 11-10SU) to allow a Small
Rural Business (classic & antique auto restoration) in the AG-1 Agricultural District, on property
located at 8580 N. Limestone Road in Monroe Township and legally described as shown in
Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and


WHEREAS, following due and proper notice by publication in the Ogle County Life at
least fifteen (15) days prior thereto, and by mailing notice to all owners of property abutting the
subject property at least fifteen (15) days prior thereto, the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals
conducted a public hearing on November 23, 2010, at which the petitioner presented evidence,
testimony, and exhibits in support of the requested Special Use Permit, and no member(s) of the
public spoke in favor of or opposition to the petition; and


WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having considered the evidence, testimony and
exhibits presented has made its findings of fact and recommended that the requested Special Use
Permit be granted as set forth in the Findings of Fact and Recommendation of the Ogle County
Zoning Board of Appeals dated November 23, 2010, a copy of which is appended hereto as Exhibit
“B”; and


WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Committee of the Ogle County Board has reviewed
the testimony and exhibits presented at the public hearing and has considered the findings of fact
and recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals, and has forwarded a recommendation to the
Ogle County Board that the requested Special Use Permit be granted; and


WHEREAS, the Ogle County Board has considered the findings of fact and
recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals and the recommendation of the Planning and
Zoning Committee, and has determined that granting the Special Use Permit to allow a Small
Rural Business (classic & antique auto restoration) in the AG-1 Agricultural District would be
consistent with the requirements established by Section 9.08(C) of the Ogle County Amendatory
Zoning Ordinance;


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF OGLE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, as follows:


SECTION ONE:  The report of the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals, Exhibit “B”
attached hereto, is hereby accepted and the findings set forth therein are hereby adopted as the
findings of fact and conclusions of the Ogle County Board.


SECTION TWO:  Based on the findings of fact set forth above, the request of  Terry
Myers, 8580 N. Limestone Rd., Rockford, IL for a Special Use Permit in the AG-1 Agricultural
District (Petition No. 11-10SU) to allow a Small Rural Business (classic & antique auto 
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restoration) in the AG-1 Agricultural District on property located at 8580 N. Limestone Road in
Monroe Township and legally described as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby
approved subject to the following conditions:


1. All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative shall be
conditions of the Special Use Permit.


2. Outside storage of vehicles, vehicle parts, or other items/materials associated with the use
shall not be permitted.


SECTION THREE:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by
the County Board of Ogle County, Illinois and attestation by the Ogle County Clerk.


SECTION FOUR:  Failure of the owners or other party in interest or a subsequent owner or
other party in interest to comply with the terms of this Ordinance, after execution of such
Ordinance, shall subject the owners or party in interest to the penalties set forth in Section 9.10 of
the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance.


PASSED BY THE COUNTY BOARD THIS 21ST DAY OF DECEMBER 2010 A.D.


                                                                               
, Chairman of the Ogle County Board


ATTEST:


                                                                               
Rebecca Huntley, Ogle County Clerk and
Ex Officio Clerk of the Ogle County Board
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EXHIBIT “A”
LEGAL DESCRIPTION


Parcel I:


Part of the East Half (1/2) of the Northeast Fractional Quarter (1/4) of Section 5, Township 42
North, Range 2 East of the Third Principal Meridian, bounded and described as follows:


Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Northeast Fractional Quarter (1/4) of said Section 5;
thence North 0 degrees 00'00" West along the East line of said Northeast Fractional Quarter (1/4),
a distance of 470.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 33'12" West parallel with the South line of the
East Half (1/2) of said Northeast Fractional Quarter (1/4), a distance of 465.00 feet to the point of
beginning of the hereinafter described parcel of land; thence continuing South 89 degrees 33'12"
West parallel with the South line of the East Half (1/2) of said Northeast Fractional Quarter (1/4),
a distance of 849.11 feet to the Easterly Right-of-Way line of a public road designated Interstate
Route 39 (FA Route 412); thence South 0 degrees 01'21" West along said Easterly Right-of-Way
line, a distance of 470.00 feet to the South line of the East Half (1/2) of said Northeast Fractional
Quarter (1/4); thence North 89 degrees 33'12" East along said South line, a distance of 849.30 feet;
thence North 0 degrees 00'00" East parallel with the East line of said Northeast Fractional Quarter
(1/4), a distance of 470.00 feet to the point of beginning; situated in the County of Ogle and State
of Illinois.


Parcel II:


Starting at a point at the Southeast corner of the East Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section Five
(5), Township Forty-two (42) North, Range Two (2) East of the Third Principal Meridian; thence
West along the South line of said East Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 5, a distance of 465
feet; thence North parallel with the East line of said East Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section
5, a distance of 470 feet; thence East parallel with the South line of said East Half of the Northeast
Quarter of Section 5, a distance of 465 feet; thence South along the East line of the East half of the
Northeast Quarter of Section 5, a distance of 470 feet to the place of beginning; situated in the
County of Ogle and the State of Illinois.


Property Identification Number 12-05-200-022
Common Location: 8580 N. Limestone Road







EXHIBIT “B”


FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION
OF THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS







Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals 
911 W. Pines Road 


Oregon, IL 61061 
815.732.1190 


Fax: 815.732.2229 
-


FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION
 
OF THE OGLE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
 


This is the findings of fact and the recommendation of the Ogle County Zoning Board ofAppeals concerning an 
application ofTerry Myers, 8580 N. Limestone Rd., Rockford, IL, in case #11-10SU. The applicant is 
requesting a Special Use Permit to permit Small Rural Business (classic & antique auto restoration) in the AG-l 
Agricultural District on Parcel Identification No. 12-05-200-022, a 14.18 acre parcel which is part of Section 5, 
Township 42N, Range 2E of the 3'dPrincipal Meridian and is located in Monroe Township at 8580 N. Limestone 
Road. 


After due notice, as required by law, the Zoning Board ofAppeals held a public hearing in this case on 
November 23,2010 in the County Board Room, 3'd Floor, Ogle County Courthouse, Oregon, Illinois and hereby 
report their findings of fact and their recommendation as follows: 


SITE INFORMATION: See StaffReport (attached herewith). 


ANALYSIS OF SEVEN STANDARDS: After considering all the evidence and testimony presented at the 
public hearing, this Board makes the following analysis of the six standards listed in Section 9.08© (Standards 
for Special Use Permits) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning Ordinance that must all be found in the 
affirmative prior to recommending granting of the petition. 


1.	 That the proposed special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to the value of other property in 
the neighborhood in which it is to be located or the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general 
welfare at large. The proposed special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to the value of 
other property in the neighborhood in which it is to be located or the public health, safety, 
morals, comfort or general welfare, as the proposed use is in a rural area on a hard surface 
road, there are only six other dwellings within Y2 mile of the site, and the proposed use is small in 
scale and will be conducted from a completely enclosed existing building. STANDARD MET. 


2.	 That the location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or 
conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it 
are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate_oeighborhomiso-as-tO-pre-v-en.!.-t--------- 
development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district 
regulations. In determining whether the special use will so dominate the immediate neighborhood, 
consideration shall be given to: 


a.	 The location, nature and height of building, structures, walls and fences on the site; and, 


b.	 The nature and extent of proposed landscaping and screening on the proposed site. 


The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or 
conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access 
to it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent 
development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the AG-l zoning district 
regulations, as the proposed use will be conducted from within an existing building, it is located 
on a hard surface road, and there are few other dwellings in the immediate vicinity. 
STANDARD MET. 







3.	 That off-street parking and loading areas will be provided in accordance with the standards set forth in 
these regulations. The site has adequate off-street parking and loading areas. STANDARD 
MET. 


4.	 That adequate utilities, ingress/egress to the site, access roads, drainage and other such necessary 
facilities have been or will be provided. Adequate utilities, ingress/egress to the site from N. 
Limestone Road, access roads, drainage and other such necessary facilities have heen or will be 
provided. STANDARD MET. 


5.	 That the proposed use can be operated in a manner that is not detrimental to the permitted 
developments and uses in the zoning district; can be developed and operated in a manner that is 
visually compatible with the permitted uses in the surrounding area; and is deemed essential or 
desirable to preserve and promote the public health, safety and general welfare of Ogle County. The 
proposed use can be operated in a manner that is not detrimental to the permitted developments 
and uses in the AG-l zoning district; can be developed and operated in a manner that is visually 
compatihle with the permitted uses in the surrounding area; and is deemed essential or desirable 
to preserve and promote the public health, safety and general welfare of Ogle County. 
STANDARD MET. 


6.	 That the proposed special use complies with all provisions of the applicable district regulations. The 
proposed special use appears to comply with all provisions of the AG-l district regulations. 
STANDARD MET. 


RECOMMENDATION: After considering all the evidence and testimony presented, this Board finds that the 
application meets all the standards as found in Section 9.08(C) of the Ogle County Amendatory Zoning 
Ordinance. 


Therefore, the Zoning Board of Appeals hereby recommends that a Special Use Permit be granted to allow 
Small J~.ural Business (classic & antique auto restoration) in the AG-l Agricultural District subject to the 
following conditions: 


1.	 All proposals and representations made by the applicant and/or their representative shall be conditions 
of the Special Use Permit. 


2.	 Outside storage of vehicles, vehicle parts, or other items/materials associated with the use shall not be 
permitted. 


ROLL CALL VOTE: The roll call vote was 5 members for the motion to recommend granting, 0 opposed. 


Respectfully submitted this 23rd day of November 2010 by the Ogle County Zoning Board of Appeals. 


Bruce McKinney, Chairman 
Maurice Bronkema 
Jason Sword 
Randall Anderson 
Curtis Freeberg 


Bruce McKinney, Chairman 


ATTEST: 


H4[t1~ 
Mark E. Miller, Acting Secretary 
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